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SECTION I - GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when reading
the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalised terms used in this Letter of Offer is intended
for the convenience of the reader/prospective investor only and is not exhaustive.

This Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which, unless the context otherwise indicates
or implies, or unless otherwise specified, shall have the meaning as provided below. References to any legislation,
act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies shall be to such legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies
as amended, supplemented, or re-enacted from time to time and any reference to a statutory provision shall include
any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that provision.

The words and expressions used in this Letter of Offer, but not defined herein, shall have the same meaning (to the
extent applicable) ascribed to such terms under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Companies Act, 2013, the SCRA, the
Depositories Act, and the rules and regulations made thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in
sections/ chapters titled “Industry Overview”, “Statement of Special Tax Benefits”, “Financial Information” and
“Outstanding Litigations and Defaults” and “Terms of Issue” on pages 57, 53, 81, 158 and 170 respectively, shall

have the meaning given to such terms in such sections.

General terms

Term

Description

“Praxis Home Retail
Limited” or “We” or “us”
or “Our Company” or
“the Company” or ‘“the
Issuer”

Praxis Home Retail Limited, a public limited company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered and corporate office at 2nd Floor,
Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar Off Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Near Talav,
Jogeshwari East, Mumbai — 400 060.

Company related terms

Term Description
Articles / Articles of The Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time.
Association / AoA
Auditor /  Statutory The statutory auditor of our Company, being M/s Singhi & Co, Chartered
Auditor Accountants.
Audited Financial The audited financial statements of our Company for the financial year ended March
Statements/ Audited 31, 2025, which comprises of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the statement of

Financial Information

profit and loss, including other comprehensive income, the cash flow statement and
the statement of changes in equity for the year March 31, 2025, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. For details, see
“Financial Statements” on page 81.

Board / Board of Directors

Board of Directors of our Company, including any committees thereof.

Corporate Promoter

Future Corporate Resources Private Limited.

Equity Share(s)

The equity shares of our Company of a face value of I5 each, unless otherwise
specified in the context thereof.

Independent Director(s)

The independent director(s) of our Company, in terms of Section 2(47) and Section
149(6) of the Companies Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Individual Promoter

Kishore Biyani

Key Management Key management/ managerial personnel of our Company in accordance with
Personnel / KMP Regulation 2(1)(bb) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and as described in “Our
Management — Key Managerial Personnel” on page 77 .

Memorandum /_Memorandum of association of our Company, as amended from time to time.




Term

Description

Memorandum of

Association / MoA

Preference Shares

The 9 % redeemable non-cumulative preference shares of a face value of 100 of our
Company each, unless otherwise specified in the context thereof.

Promoter(s)

The Promoters of our Company, namely Kishore Biyani and Future Corporate
Resources Private Limited.

Promoter Group

The persons and entities constituting the promoter group of our Company in terms of
Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Registered and Corporate
Office

The registered office of our Company located at 2nd Floor, Knowledge House, Shyam
Nagar Off Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Near Talav, Jogeshwari East, Mumbai —
400 060.

Registrar of Companies/
RoC

The Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbeai.

Shareholders /
Shareholder

Equity

The equity shareholders of our Company, for the time being.

SVAR Plan-2018

Praxis Home Retail Limited Share Value Appreciation Rights Plan -2018 pursuant to
a special resolution passed by the shareholders of our Company on September 18,
2018.

Praxis ESOP — 2021

Praxis Home Retail Limited Employee Stock Option Plan — 2021 pursuant to a special
resolution passed by the shareholders of our Company on December 13, 2021.

Praxis ESOP - 2024

Praxis Home Retail Limited Employee Stock Option Plan — 2024 pursuant to a special
resolution passed by the shareholders of our Company on April 27, 2024.

Issue related terms

Term

Description

Abridged Letter of Offer
/ ALOF

The abridged letter of offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our
Company with respect to this Issue in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations
and the Companies Act.

Additional Rights Equity

The Rights Equity Shares applied or allotted under this Issue in addition to the Rights

Shares / Additional Entitlement.

Equity Shares

Allot / Allotted / Unless the context otherwise requires, the allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant
Allotment to the Issue.

Allotment Account(s) The accounts opened with the Banker to the Issue, into which the amounts blocked by

Application Supported by Blocked Amount in the ASBA Account, with respect to
successful Applicants will be transferred on the Transfer Date in accordance with
Section 40(3) of the Companies Act.

Allotment Account

Bank(s) which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an issue

Bank/Banker to and with whom the Allotment Account(s) will be opened, in this case being HDFC

Issue/Refund Bank Bank Limited.

Allotment Advice Note, advice or intimation of Allotment sent to each successful Applicant who has been
or is to be Allotted and the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue.

Allotment Date Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to this Issue.

Allottee(s) Persons to whom the Rights Equity Shares are Allotted pursuant to the Issue.

Applicant(s) / Investor(s)

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renouncees who are entitled to make an
application for the Equity Shares in terms of this Letter of Offer.

Application

Application made (i) through submission of the Application Form or plain paper
Application to the Designated Branch(es) of the SCSBs or online/ electronic
application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under
the ASBA process to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares at the Issue Price.

Application Form

Form in terms of which an Applicant shall make an application to subscribe to the
Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue, including plain-paper applications and
online application form available for submission of application though the website of




Term

Description

the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process

Application Money Aggregate amount payable in respect of the Rights Equity Shares applied for in the
Issue at the Issue Price.

Application Supported The application (whether physical or electronic) used by an Applicant(s) to make an

by Blocked Amount / application authorizing the SCSB to block the amount payable on application in their

ASBA ASBA Account maintained with such SCSB.

ASBA Account An account maintained with an SCSB and as specified in the Application Form or plain
paper Application, as the case may be, by the Applicant for blocking the amount
mentioned in the Application Form or in the plain paper.

ASBA Applicants / Applicants / Investors who make Application in this Issue using the ASBA Process.

ASBA Investors

ASBA Circulars Collectively, SEBI circular bearing reference number

SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009, SEBI circular bearing
reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011, SEBI ICDR Master
Circular (to the extent it pertains to the rights issue process) and any other circular
issued by SEBI in this regard and any subsequent circulars or notifications issued by
SEBI in this regard

Banker to the Company

HDFC Bank Limited

Banker to the Issue

HDFC Bank Limited

Banker to the Issue
Agreement

Agreement dated March 13, 2025 amongst our Company, the Lead Managers, the
Registrar to the Issue and the Banker to the Issue for transfer of funds to the Allotment
Account, refunds of the amounts collected from Applicants/Investors and providing
such other facilities and services as specified in the agreement.

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful applicants
in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange under this Issue and which is
described in “Terms of the Issue” on page 170.

Controlling Branches /
Controlling Branches of
the SCSBs

Such branches of the SCSBs which co-ordinate with the Lead Managers, the Registrar
to the Issue and the Stock Exchanges, a list of which is available on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intml
d=34, updated from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed by
SEBI from time to time.

Demographic Details

Details of Investors including the Investor’s address, name of the Investor’s father/
husband, investor status, occupation and bank account details, where applicable.

Designated Branches

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Application Form or the plain
paper Application, as the case may be, from the Investors and a list of which is
available on the website of SEBI and/or such other website(s) as may be prescribed by
the SEBI or the Stock Exchange(s), from time to time.

Designated Stock BSE Limited

Exchange

Depository(ies) NSDL and CDSL or any other depository registered with SEBI under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 as
amended from time to time read with the Depositories Act, 1996.

Draft Letter of Offer / The draft letter of offer dated December 19, 2024, filed with the Stock Exchanges

DLOF including any addenda or corrigenda thereto.

Equity Shareholder(s) / The holders of Equity Shares of our Company.

Shareholder(s)

Eligible Equity Holder(s) of the Equity Shares as on the Record Date, i.e., Thursday, March 20, 2025

Shareholder(s)

Independent Auditor for
the Issue

M/s DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants

ISIN

International Securities Identification Number.

Issue / Rights Issue

Issue of up to 4,95,80,000 Rights Equity Shares for cash at a price of * 10/- per Rights
Equity Share, including a share premium of X 5/- per Rights Equity Share for an




Term

Description

aggregate amount upto X 4,958.00 lakhs* on a rights basis by our Company to the
Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of 11 Rights Equity Shares for every 30 Equity
Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders on the Record Date.

*Assuming full subscription

Issue Agreement

Issue agreement dated December 13, 2024, between our Company and the Lead
Managers, pursuant to which certain arrangements are agreed to in relation to the Issue.

Issue Closing Date

Thursday, August 7, 2025

Issue Opening Date

Monday, August 18, 2025

Issue Documents

Collectively, Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer,
Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter, any other issue material

Issue Period

The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclusive of
both days, during which Applicants/Investors can submit their Applications, in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Issue Price

% 10/- per Rights Equity Share.

Issue Proceeds/Gross
Proceeds

The gross proceeds raised through the Issue.

Issue Size

The issue of up to 4,95,80,000 Rights Equity Shares aggregating to an amount upto I
4,958.00 lakhs*.
*Assuming full subscription

Lead Managers to the
Issue/ Lead Managers

Prime Securities Limited and New Berry Capitals Private Limited

Letter of offer/ LOF

The Letter of Offer dated Wednesday, July 30, 2025, to be filed with the Stock
Exchanges and SEBI after obtaining in-principle approval from BSE & NSE.

Listing Agreement

The listing agreements entered into between our Company and the Stock Exchanges in
terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Materiality Threshold

Materiality threshold adopted by our Committee of Directors by way of its resolution
dated July 30, 2025, in relation to the disclosure of outstanding civil litigation, where
the amount involved is equal to or in excess of ¥ 594.85 lakh (being 5% percent of the
revenue of the Company as per the audited financial statements of the Company for
the immediately preceding financial year).

Multiple Application
Forms

Multiple application forms submitted by an Eligible Equity Shareholder/Renouncee in
respect of the Rights Entitlement available in their demat account. However
supplementary applications in relation to further Equity Shares with/without using
additional Rights Entitlements will not be treated as multiple application.

Net Proceeds

Issue Proceeds less the Issue-related expenses. For details, see “Objects of the Issue”
on page 48

Non-Institutional
Investor(s) / NII

An Investor other than a Retail Individual Investor or Qualified Institutional Buyer as
defined under Regulation 2(1)(jj) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Non — ASBA Applicant/
Non - ASBA Investor

Investors other than ASBA Investors who apply in the Issue otherwise than through
the ASBA process.

Offer Document(s)

This Letter of Offer, Draft Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer including any
notices, corrigenda thereto.

On Market Renunciation

The renouncement of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading them
over the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges through a registered stock
broker in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, circulars issued by the
Stock Exchanges from time to time and other applicable laws, on or before Tuesday,
August 12, 2025.

Off Market Renunciation

The renouncement of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by transferring
them through off market transfer through a depository participant in accordance with
the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, circulars issued by the Depositories from time to time
and other applicable laws.

QIBs / Qualified
Institutional Buyers

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

Record Date

Designated date for the purpose of determining the Shareholders eligible to apply for




Term

Description

the Rights Equity Shares in the Issue, being Thursday, March 20, 2025

Registrar / Registrar to
the Issue

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as Link Intime India Private
Limited)

Registrar Agreement

Agreement dated December 5, 2024, entered into between our Company and the
Registrar in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the Issue
pertaining to this Issue.

Renouncee(s)

Person(s) who, has/have acquired Rights Entitlements from the Eligible Equity
Shareholders on renunciation either through On Market Renunciation or through Off
Market Renunciation in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Rights
Issue Circulars, the Companies Act and any other applicable law.

Renunciation Period

The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights
Entitlements which shall commence from the Issue Opening Date. Such period shall
close on Tuesday, August 12, 2025, in case of On Market Renunciation. Eligible Equity
Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through Off-market transfer is
completed in such manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat
account of the Renouncee on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

Retail Individual
Investor / RII

An individual Investor who has applied for Rights Equity Shares for an amount not
more than % 2,00,000 (including an HUF applying through karta in the Issue as defined
under Regulation 2(1)(vv) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Rights Entitlements/ REs

The number of Rights Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled to
in proportion to his / her shareholding in our Company as on the Record Date, being
11 Rights Equity Share(s) for every 30 fully paid-up Equity Share(s) held by the
Eligible Equity Shareholder on the Record Date.

Pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue
Circulars, the Rights Entitlements shall be credited in dematerialized form in respective
demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders before the Issue Opening Date.

Rights Entitlement Letter

Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Shareholders.

Rights Equity Shares /
Rights Shares

Equity Shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to the Issue.

Self-Certified Syndicate

Self-certified syndicate banks registered with SEBI, which offers the facility of ASBA.

Banks / SCSBs A list of all SCSBs is available on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes, updated
from time to time and/or such other website(s) as maybe prescribed by SEBI from time
to time.

Stock Exchanges BSE and NSE where the Equity Shares are presently listed.

Transfer Date

The date on which the Application Money blocked in the ASBA Account will be
transferred to the Allotment Account in respect of successful Applications, upon
finalization of the Basis of Allotment, in consultation with the Designated Stock
Exchange.

Wilful Defaulter or
Fraudulent Borrower

An entity or person categorised as a wilful defaulter or fraudulent borrower by any
bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in terms of Regulation 2(1)(1ll) of
the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Working Day

In terms of Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working day means all
days on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business. Further, in respect
of Issue Period, working day means all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public
holidays, on which commercial banks in Mumbeai are open for business. Furthermore,
the time period between the Issue Closing Date and the listing of Equity Shares on the
Stock Exchanges, “Working Day” shall mean all trading days of the Stock Exchanges,
excluding Sundays and bank holidays.
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Business and Industry Related Terms

Terms Description
GDP Gross Domestic Product
GVA Gross Value Added
HNIs High Networth Individuals
1P Index of Industrial Production
IT Information Technology
MRP Maximum Retail Price
PMAY Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana
SKU Stock Keeping Units
TV Television
Conventional, General Terms and Abbreviations
Term Description
%/ Rs./ Rupees/ INR Indian Rupees
Alc Account
AGM Annual General Meeting
AIF Alternative investment fund, as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012.
BSE BSE Limited
CAGR Compounded annual growth rate
CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited
CCD Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
CIN Corporate Identity Number

Companies Act

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder

Consolidated FDI Policy

The consolidated FDI Policy, effective from October 15, 2020, issued by the
Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce and Industry,
Government of India, and any modifications thereto or substitutions thereof, issued
from time to time

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996

Depository Participant / A Depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

DP

DIN Director Identification Number

DP ID Depository Participant’s Identification Number

EBITDA Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation

EGM Extraordinary general meeting

EPS Earnings per Share

ERP Enterprise Resource Planning

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with rules and regulations made
thereunder

FEMA Rules Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019

Financial year / Fiscal/ FY

Period of 12 (twelve) months beginning April 1 and ending March 31 of that particular
year, unless otherwise stated

Foreign Portfolio Investor
/ FPI

Foreign portfolio investor as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations

Fugitive Economic An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of the
Offender Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered under the FVCI Regulations

FVCI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors)

Regulations, 2000




Term

Description

GDP Gross Domestic Product

Government /" Government of India

Government of India / Gol

GST Goods and Services Tax

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

ICAI The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

IFRS International Financing Reporting Standards of the International Accounting
Standards Board

Ind AS Indian accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, as
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

Insider Trading Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,

Regulations 2015

ISIN International Securities Identification Number allotted by the depository

IT Information Technology

IT. Act/IT Act Income Tax Act, 1961

I. T. Rules Income Tax Rules, 1962

Listing Agreements The listing agreements entered into by our Company with the Stock Exchanges

MAT Minimum Alternate Tax

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India

MICR Magnetic ink character recognition

MoU Memorandum of Understanding

Mutual Fund Mutual Fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI Mutual Fund Regulations.

NA /N.A. Not Applicable

NACH National Automated Clearing House which is a consolidated system of ECS

NAV Net asset value

NCLT National Company Law Tribunal

NCLAT National Company Law Appellate Tribunal

NEFT National Electronic Fund Transfer

Net Worth The aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out of the
profits, securities premium account and debit or credit balance of profit and loss
account, after deducting the aggregate value of the accumulated losses, deferred
expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not written off, as per the audited balance
sheet, but does not include reserves created out of revaluation of assets, write-back of
depreciation and amalgamation

NI Act Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881

NSDL National Securities Depositories Limited

NR / Non-Resident A person resident outside India, as defined under the FEMA

NRE Account Non-Resident External Account

NRO Account Non-Resident Ordinary Account

NRI Non-Resident Indian

NSE The National Stock Exchange of India Limited

OCB / Overseas A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or indirectly

Corporate to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in which not less than

Body 60% of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or indirectly and which
was in existence on October 3, 2003 and immediately before such date was eligible to
undertake transactions pursuant to general permission granted to OCBs under FEMA

OCI Overseas Citizen of India

p.a. Per Annum

PAC Persons Acting in Concert

PAN Permanent Account Number

PAT Profit After Tax

PBT Profit Before Tax

P/E Ratio Price / Earnings Ratio




Term

Description

PIO Persons of Indian Origin

RBI Reserve Bank of India

RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement

RONW Return on Net Worth

SCORES SEBI Complaints Redress System

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India, constituted under the SEBI Act
SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

SEBI ICDR Regulations  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended

SEBI Listing Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended

SEBI FPI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations,
2019, as amended

SEBI Rights Issue SEBI master circular bearing number SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-1/P/CIR/2024/0154 dated
Circulars/ Rights Issue November 11,2024

Circulars/ SEBI ICDR

Master Circular

SEBI Takeover Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Regulations Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended

Securities Act United States Securities Act of 1933

STT Securities Transaction Tax

TAN Tax Deduction Account Number

Trade Marks Act Trade Marks Act, 1999

UsS United States of America

US GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in United States

VCF A venture capital fund (as defined and registered with SEBI under the erstwhile

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996)




NOTICE TO INVESTORS

Our Company is undertaking this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Draft Letter of
Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other
applicable Issue material (collectively, the “Issue Materials”) will be sent/ dispatched only to the Eligible Equity
Shareholders who have provided Indian address and who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the
Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares are permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not result in
and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. Pursuant to the Rights Issue Circulars, in case
such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent only to
their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders who have not provided their e-mail address,
then the Issue Materials will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.
Those overseas shareholders who do not update our records with their Indian address or the address of their duly
authorized representative in India, prior to the date on which we propose to dispatch the Issue Materials, shall not be
sent any Issue Materials. Further, the Letter of Offer will be provided through e-mail by the Registrar on behalf of our
Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their email addresses to our Company and who make
arequest in this regard. Investors can also access the Draft Letter of Offer/Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer
and the Application Form from the websites of the Registrar, our Company, the Lead Managers, and the Stock
Exchanges.

Our Company shall also endeavour to dispatch physical copies of the Issue Materials to Eligible Equity Shareholders
who have provided an Indian address to our Company. Our Company, the Lead Managers, and the Registrar will not
be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue Materials.

No action has been or will be taken to permit this Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that
purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or
indirectly, and the Issue Materials may not be distributed in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal
requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Issue Materials will not constitute an offer in those
jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, under those circumstances, the Issue Materials
must be treated as sent for information only and should not be copied, redistributed or acted upon for subscription to
Rights Equity Shares or the purchase of Rights Entitlements. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Issue
Materials should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares, distribute or
send such document in, into the United States or any other jurisdiction where to do so would, or might contravene
local securities laws or regulations or would subject the Company, Lead Managers or their respective affiliates to any
filing or registration requirement (other than in India). If Issue Materials is received by any person in any such
jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Entitlement or Rights Equity
Shares referred to in Issue Materials. Envelopes containing an Application Form should not be dispatched from any
jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares in this
Issue must provide an Indian address.

Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered in the
Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorised to acquire the
Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in
his jurisdiction without requirement for our Company, the Lead Managers or their respective affiliates to make any
filing or registration (other than in India).

Neither the delivery of the Issue Materials nor any sale or offer hereunder, shall under any circumstances create any
implication that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or that the information
contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the date of the Draft Letter of Offer/Letter of Offer or date of
such information.

The contents of the Draft Letter of Offer/Letter of Offer and Abridged Letter of Offer should not be construed
as business, legal, tax or investment advice. Prospective investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or
local tax or legal consequences as a result of buying or selling of Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements.
As a result, each investor should consult its own counsel, business advisor and tax advisor as to the legal,
business, tax and related matters concerning the offer of Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements. In
addition, neither our Company nor the Lead Managers nor any of their respective affiliates are making any



representation to any offeree or purchaser of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements regarding
the legality of an investment in the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements by such offeree or
purchaser under any applicable laws or regulations.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the United States
Securities Act, 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”), or any U.S. state securities laws and may not be offered, sold,
resold or otherwise transferred within the United States of America or the territories or possessions thereof (“United
States” or “U.S.”) or to, or for the account or benefit of, “U.S. persons” (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities
Act (“Regulation S”), except in a transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. The
Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares referred to in the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer are being offered
in India and in jurisdictions where such offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares and/ Or Rights Entitlements are
permitted under laws of such jurisdictions, but not in the United States. The offering to which the Draft Letter of
Offer/Letter of Offer, and Abridged Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an
offering of any securities or rights for sale in the United States or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the
said securities or rights.

Accordingly, the Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer, Rights Entitlement Letter and Application Form should
not be forwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States at any time.

Neither our Company, nor any person acting on behalf of our Company, will accept a subscription or renunciation
from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company, or any person acting on behalf
of our Company has reason to believe is, in the United States of America when the buy order is made. No payments
for subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares shall be made from US bank accounts and all persons subscribing for the
Rights Equity Shares and wishing to hold such Rights Equity Shares in registered form must provide an address for
registration of the Rights Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible
Equity Shareholders and will dispatch the Letter of Offer or Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form only
to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company.

We, the Registrar, the Lead Managers or any other person acting on behalf of us, reserve the right to treat as
invalid any Application Form which: (i) does not include the certification set out in the Application Form to
the effect that the subscriber does not have a registered address (and is not otherwise located) in the United
States and is authorised to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or its agents to have been executed in, electronically
transmitted from or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a registered Indian address is not provided;
or (iv) where we believe that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such Application Form may
infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and we shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights
Equity Shares in respect of any such Application Form.

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.

10



PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OTHER INFORMATION
Certain Conventions

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references to “India” contained in this Letter of Offer
are to the Republic of India and the ‘Government’ or ‘Gol’ or the ‘Central Government’ or the ‘State Government’
are to the Government of India, Central or State, as applicable. Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise
requires, all references in this Letter of Offer to the “US’ or ‘U.S.” or the ‘United States’ are to the United States of
America and its territories and possessions.

Unless otherwise specified, all references in this Letter of Offer are in Indian Standard Time. Unless indicated
otherwise, all references to a year in this Letter of Offer are to a calendar year.

A reference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever applicable.
Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in are to the page numbers of this Letter of Offer.
Financial Data

Unless stated or the context requires otherwise, our financial data included in this Letter of Offer is derived from the
Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025. For further information, see “Financial
Information” on page 81.

We have prepared our Audited Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, Regulation 33
of the SEBI Listing Regulations and guidance notes issued by ICAI. Our Company publishes its financial statements
in Indian Rupees. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting policies and practices on the financial
disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited.

Our Company’s Financial Year commences on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ends on March
31 of that particular calendar year. Accordingly, all references to a particular Financial Year or Fiscal or FY, unless
stated otherwise, are to the 12 months period ending on March 31 of that particular calendar year.

In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to
rounding off, and unless otherwise specified, all financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative figures. Unless
stated otherwise, throughout this Letter of Offer, all figures have been expressed in lakhs.

Market and Industry Data

Unless stated otherwise, market and industry data used in this Letter of Offer has been obtained or derived from
publicly available information, industry publications and sources. Industry publications generally state that the
information that they contain has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but that the accuracy, adequacy,
completeness, reliability or underlying assumption are not guaranteed. Similarly, internal surveys, industry forecasts,
market research and industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer, while believed to be reliable, have not been
independently verified by our Company, the Lead Managers or their respective affiliates and neither our Company,
the Lead Managers, nor their respective affiliates make any representation as to the accuracy of such information.
Accordingly, Investors should not place undue reliance on this information.

Certain industry related information in the sections titled “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”, “Risk Factors” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” on pages 57,71 , 17 and
147 respectively, have been derived from an industry report titled “/ndia Home Furniture Market 2024-2029” dated
September 10, 2024, prepared by Mordor Intelligence Private Limited (the “Home Furniture Report’) an
independent research house, pursuant to an engagement with our Company.
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Currency and Units of Presentation

All references to “Rupees” or “3” or “Rs.” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India. All
references to “US$”, “U.S. Dollar”, “USD” or “U.S. Dollars” are to United States Dollars, the official currency of the
United States of America.

Certain numerical information has been presented in this Letter of Offer in “Lakhs” units. 1,00,00,000 represents one
crore and 10,00,000 represents one million.

In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to
rounding off. All figures derived from our Audited Financial Statements in decimals have been rounded off to the
second decimal and all percentage figures have been rounded off to two decimals.

Exchange Rates

These conversions should not be construed as a representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can
be converted into Indian Rupees, at any particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between the
Indian Rupee and the respective foreign currencies:

Currency Exchange rate as on (in )
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 US$ 85.58 83.37
(Source: www.fbil.org.in
The price for the period end refers to the price as on the last trading day of the respective fiscal year.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Letter of Offer that are not statements of historical fact constitute ‘forward-looking
statements’. Investors can generally identify forward-looking statements by terminology including ‘anticipate’,
‘believe’, ‘continue’, ‘can’, ‘could’, ‘estimate’, ‘expect’, ‘future’, ‘forecast’, ‘intend’, ‘may’, ‘objective’, ‘plan’,
‘potential’, ‘project’, ‘pursue’, ‘shall’, ‘should’, ‘target’, ‘will’, ‘would’ or other words or phrases of similar import.
Similarly, statements that describe our objectives, plans or goals are also forward-looking statements. However, these
are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements. All statements regarding our Company’s
expected financial conditions, results of operations, business plans and prospects are forward-looking statements.
These forward-looking statements may include planned projects, revenue and profitability (including, without
limitation, any financial or operating projections or forecasts) and other matters discussed in this Letter of Offer that
are not historical facts.

These forward-looking statements contained in this Letter of Offer (whether made by our Company or any third party),
are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors that may cause
the actual results, performance or achievements of our Company to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections. All
forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about our Company that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. Important
factors that could cause our actual results, performances and achievements to differ materially from any of the forward-
looking statements include, among others:

. Our Company has incurred losses in the past, which may adversely impact our business and financial conditions.

. One of our Promoters is undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), which may adversely
affect our business, financial position and timely completion of the process relating to the Rights Issue.

. Our Company and certain persons of Promoter Group are involved in certain legal proceedings, including IBC
matters. Any adverse outcome in these proceedings may adversely affect our business, compliance framework,
reputation and ability to explore various business resources.

. Our Company, our Promoters and Promoter Group were involved in certain legal proceedings initiated by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India in the past. The adverse decisions in these proceedings may adversely
affect our business and results of operations.

. Our Statutory Auditor has included certain remarks on our Audited Financial Statements. The Statutory
Auditors’ report issued under the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO”), on our Audited
Financial Statements contains a few disclaimers of opinion on certain matters.

. Reduction in Promoter Group shareholding and proposed reclassification of Promoter may adversely impact
our governance structure, investor perception, and strategic direction

. Our business is subject to seasonal and cyclical volatility and our inability to forecast the trends and consumer
preferences or demands in the forthcoming seasons may contribute to fluctuations in our results of operations
and financial condition.

. The success of our business is dependent on our procurement systems, supply chain management and efficient
logistics, and any disruption in the same may affect our business adversely.

. If we are unable to enter into new leasehold or rental agreements for locations suitable for our stores, or we are

unable to renew our existing leasehold or rental agreements for our current stores, it may adversely affect our
expansion and growth plans.
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. Any adverse impact on the title or ownership rights or development rights of our landlords from whose premises
we operate may impede our effective operations of our stores, offices or distribution centres in the future.

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from the expectations, see the sections
“Risk Factors”, “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” on pages 17, 71 and 147, respectively. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates
and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual gains or losses could
materially differ from those that have been estimated.

Forward-looking statements reflect the current views of our Company as at the date of this Letter of Offer and are not
a guarantee or assurance of future performance. These statements are based on our management’s beliefs and
assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the assumptions upon
which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be
inaccurate, and the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Accordingly, we cannot
assure investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct and given
the uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. If any of
these risks and uncertainties materialise, or if any of our Company’s underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect,
the actual results of operations or financial condition of our Company could differ materially from that described
herein as anticipated, believed, estimated or expected. All subsequent forward-looking statements attributable to our
Company are expressly qualified in their entirety by reference to these cautionary statements.
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SUMMARY OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a general summary of certain disclosures included in this Letter of Offer and is neither exhaustive,
nor does it purport to contain a summary of all the disclosures in this Letter of Offer or all details relevant to
prospective investors. This summary should be read in conjunction with and is qualified by, the more detailed
information appearing in this Letter of Offer, including the sections titled “Risk Factors”, “Objects of the Issue”, “Our
Business” and “Outstanding Litigations and Defaults” on pages 17, 48, 71 and 158 , respectively.

Summary of our Business

Our Company operates brick-and-mortar and online stores of home furniture and home fashion under the brand name
“HomeTown” and caters to home retail segment in India. This retail format brings together under one roof, a wide
range of furniture, home furnishing goods, kitchenware, other home related accessories and quality services including
complete home design, modular kitchen, among others, giving customers a great in-store experience. In addition, an
exciting range of accessories, such as clocks, wall hangings and décor make it a complete one stop shop for all home
needs.

Objects of the Issue
Our Company intends to utilize the Net Proceeds raised through the Issue towards the following objects:
(R In lakhs)
S. Particulars Estimated
No. amount
1. To reduce the current liabilities by repaying part of our Borrowings 1,000.00
2. To reduce the current liabilities by repaying part of our outstanding trade payables 2,800.00
3. General corporate purposes 1,053.46
Total Net Proceeds* 4,853.46

*Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment. The amount utilized for
general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25.00% of the Gross Proceeds.

For further details, see “Objects of the Issue” on page 48.
Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group in the Issue

Our Promoter, Kishore Biyani, by letter dated December 16, 2024, (the “Promoter Subscription Letter””) and by a
subsequent reaffirmation letter dated July 28, 2025, issued on behalf of the Promoter Group of the Company, except
Future Corporate Resources Private Limited, has confirmed and ensured the following:

i.  to subscribe to their Rights Entitlements in the Issue or renounce a portion of their Rights Entitlements in favour
of the Promoters or other member(s) of our Promoter Group or in favour of existing shareholders of the Company
or third party investors;

ii.  to subscribe to additional Rights Equity Shares including subscribing to any unsubscribed portion in the Issue,
if any, or subscription pursuant to Rights Entitlement acquired through renunciation, either individually or jointly
and / or severally with any other members of the Promoter Group, subject to compliance with the minimum
public shareholding requirements, as prescribed under the SCRR, the Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the SEBI Listing Regulations, the SEBI Takeover Regulations and other applicable laws /
regulations.

The acquisition of Rights Equity Shares by our Promoters and our Promoter Group, over and above their Rights
Entitlements, as applicable, or subscription to the unsubscribed portion of this Issue, shall not result in a change of
control of the management of our Company. Our Company is and will be in compliance with Regulation 38 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements under the
Applicable Law.
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Our other Promoter, Future Corporate Resources Private Limited (“FCRPL”), holding only a 0.31% shareholding of
our Company, has been admitted to corporate insolvency resolution proceedings (“CIRP”) by the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench (“NCLT”), consequent to the proceedings initiated by the Central Bank of
India (“Financial Creditor”) against FCRPL under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”).

Further, an Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”’) has been appointed by the NCLT to take control of FCRPL and
the erstwhile management has been suspended in accordance with the provisions of the IBC. Therefore, Mr. Kishore
Biyani is unable to provide confirmation on behalf of FCRPL regarding its participation to subscribing or renouncing
to the Rights Entitlements of FCRPL. However, if any such instructions are received from the IRP of FCRPL, our
Company / Board shall duly consider such subscription or renouncement, as the case may be.

Summary of Outstanding Litigations and Defaults

A summary of outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company as on the date of this Letter of Offer is set forth
in the table below:

Nature of Cases Number  Amount Involved*
of Cases (X lakhs)

Litigations involving our Company

Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability 1 Nil
Matters involving material violations of statutory regulations by our Nil Nil
Company

Economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Nil Nil
Company

Other proceedings involving our Company which involve an alleged amount 3 6,999.00

exceeding the Materiality Threshold and other pending matters which, if they
result in an adverse outcome would materially and adversely affect the
operations or the financial position of our Company

* To the extent quantifiable.

For further details, see “Outstanding Litigations and Defaults” beginning on page 158.

Risk Factors

For details of the risks associated with our Company, please see the section titled “Risk Factors” on page 17.
Contingent Liabilities

For details of contingent liabilities for the Fiscal 2025, please see the section titled “Financial Statements” on page 81
Related Party Transactions

For details of related party transactions for the Fiscal 2025, please see the section titled, see “Financial Statements”
on page 81.

Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the last one year

No Equity Shares have been issued by our Company for consideration other than cash during the period of one year
immediately preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer.
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SECTION II - RISK FACTORS

An investment in equity shares involves a high degree of risk. This section describes the risks that we currently believe
may materially affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. You should carefully consider each
of the following risk factors and all other information set forth in this Letter of Offer, including the risks and
uncertainties described below, before making an investment in the Rights Equity Shares.

The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only risks that we currently face. Additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also materially adversely
affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations and cash flows. If any or some combination
of the following risks, or other risks that we do not currently know about or believe to be material, actually occur, our
business, financial condition and results of operations and cash flows could suffer, the trading price of, and the value
of your investment in our equity shares could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. In making an
investment decision, you must rely on your own examination of our Company and the terms of this Issue, including
the merits and risks involved.

To obtain a complete understanding of our Company, prospective investors should read this section in conjunction
with “Our Business”, “Industry Overview”, “Financial Information” beginning on pages 71, 57 and 81 respectively,
as well as the financial, statistical and other information contained in this Letter of Offer. In making an investment
decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination of us and the terms of the Issue including the merits
and risks involved. You should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about the consequences to you of an

investment in our Rights Equity Shares.

This Letter of Offer also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our results could
differ materially from such forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the considerations
described below and elsewhere in this Letter of Offer.

Unless otherwise stated, references to “we”, “us”, “our” and “the Company” are to Praxis Home Retail Limited on
a standalone basis.

Internal Risk Factors

1. Our Company has incurred losses in the past, which may adversely impact our business and financial
conditions.

Our Company has incurred losses amounting to X (3,497.85) lakhs as per the Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal
2025. Our losses during the above-mentioned periods have been primarily due to lower revenues on account of non-
availability of sufficient inventory and consequently low footfall of customers in our retail stores. The accumulated
losses have resulted in erosion of net worth of the Company, which indicates material uncertainty on our Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our ability to operate profitably depends upon a number of factors, some of
which are beyond our direct control. These factors include, but are not limited to, competition, customer taste and
preferences. If we continue to incur losses, our business and the financial conditions could be adversely affected.

Further, we have not paid any dividend in the past and our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon
various factors. There can be no assurance that we will, or have the ability to, declare and pay any dividends on the
Equity Shares in the near future. The declaration, payment and amount of any future dividends are subject to the
discretion of the Board and will depend upon a number of factors, including our Company's results of operations,
future earnings, profitability, capital requirements for future expansions and available surplus, general financial
conditions, contractual restrictions, applicable Indian law restrictions and other factors considered relevant by our
Board.

2. One of our Promoters is undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), which may adversely
affect our business, financial position and timely completion of the process relating to the Rights Issue.

One of our Promoters, Future Corporate Resources Private Limited (“FCRPL”), has been admitted to corporate
insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench (“NCLT”),
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following an application filed by Central Bank of India against FCRPL under Section 7 of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”) and appointed an Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) to take control of FCRPL.
As on the date of this Letter of Offer, FCRPL holds 0.31% shareholding in our company. Since the IRP has assumed
control of FCRPL, the erstwhile management of FCRPL has been suspended as per the provisions of the IBC. As a
result, the erstwhile management of FCRPL is restrained from taking any action concerning our Company's affairs,
including various actions related to the proposed Rights Issue. For instance, FCRPL has not independently confirmed
its intention and extent of participation in this Rights Issue. Although our another Promoter — Mr. Kishore Biyani, has
assured to subscribe additional Rights Equity Shares including subscribing to any unsubscribed portion in the Issue,
either individually or jointly and / or severally with any other members of the Promoter Group, however, such non-
confirmation by IRP of FCRPL may lead to procedural delays and affect the timelines of the Rights Issue.

The uncertainty and potential financial implications arising from the CIRP could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of operations. Consequently, this may adversely affect the trading price of
our Equity Shares and the success of the Rights Issue. Further, the erstwhile management of FCRPL shall not be
capable of acting on behalf of FCRPL in consonant with Promoter Group. For example, we cannot assure that the IRP
of FCRPL shall vote in the same manner in which the other persons or entities belonging to the Promoter Group vote
on any matters requiring approval from shareholders. Furthermore, as a Promoter of our Company, FCRPL may be
required to provide business and compliance support to us. Any non-provision of or delay in providing such support
may result in penalties, fines or such other regulatory actions which may negatively impact our business operations
and financial condition.

3. Our Company and certain persons of Promoter Group are involved in certain legal proceedings, including IBC
matters. Any adverse outcome in these proceedings may adversely affect our business, compliance framework,
reputation and ability to explore various business resources.

Our Company and certain persons of our Promoter Group are currently involved in various legal proceedings in India,
including proceedings initiated under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC). These legal proceedings are
pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts and tribunals. We cannot assure that these legal
proceedings will be decided in our favor. We may incur significant expenses and management time in these
proceedings and may have to make provisions in our financial statements, which may affect our profitability and
adversely affect our financial condition.

Any adverse outcome of these proceedings could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial
condition, and results of operations. Additionally, it could adversely impact our ability to explore various resources
required for our business and would also impact exercise of significant influence by our Promoter Group. Such adverse
outcomes could negatively affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. For further details on the outstanding
litigations pertaining to our Company, refer to the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigation and Defaults” beginning on
page 158.

4. Our Company, our Promoters and Promoter Group were involved in certain legal proceedings initiated by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India in the past. The adverse decisions in these proceedings may adversely
affect our business and results of operations.

Our Company and our Promoters were previously involved in legal proceedings initiated by SEBI. For instance, on
December 12, 2019, our Company allotted 7,500 Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (“CCDs”) to one of our
Promoters, Future Corporate Resources Private Limited (“FCRPL”). Upon exercising the conversion option for 3,180
CCDs of the initially allotted 7,500 CCDs, FCRPL was allotted 30,00,000 equity shares of our Company on February
11, 2020. This exercise of conversion option resulted in an increase in FCRPL’s shareholding in our Company from
1,16,82,558 Equity Shares (47.43%) to 1,46,82,558 Equity Shares (53.13%), registering a 5.71% increase as of
February 11, 2020. In light of this increase in shareholding, a show cause notice dated October 19, 2022, was issued
by SEBI to our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group (“Noticees™) for the violation of Regulation 3 (3) and
3 (2) read with Regulation 25 (5) of SEBI Takeover Regulations. It was alleged that since the increase in FCRPL’s
shareholding in our Company post-allotment was 5.71%, FCRPL along with the Noticees (persons acting in concert)
were required to make a public announcement of the open offer under Regulation 3 (3) and 3 (2) read with Regulation
25 (5) of SEBI Takeover Regulations. Since FCRPL along with other Noticees failed to make the public
announcement, SEBI, vide its order dated April 28, 2023 levied a monetary penalty of 20 lakhs in aggregate on our
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Promoters and members of our Promoter Group for violating the SEBI Takeover Regulations. The penalty was
remitted to SEBI by FCRPL and another member of the Promoter Group, Surplus Finvest Private Limited, on May 9,
2023, and May 10, 2023, respectively.

In another matter, SEBI through its order dated February 3, 2021 (“Order”), restrained our Promoters and Promoter
Group from accessing the securities markets for a specified period, alleging trading in the scrip of Future Retail
Limited based on unpublished price sensitive information (“UPSI”). Aggrieved by the Order, our Promoters along
with other noticees challenged the Order before the Securities and Appellate Tribunal (“SAT”). SAT, through its order
dated December 20, 2023, quashed the impugned Order, stating that the UPSI relating to the demerger was already in
the public domain. Therefore, the trading done by the appellants after the publication of the information cannot be
considered as trading while in possession of UPSI.

Although these legal proceedings are no longer outstanding, the adverse decisions, if any, resulting from these
proceedings may lead to significant expenses and management time devoted to compliance. This could increase our
expenses and liabilities. Additionally, initiation of any new/ fresh proceedings in future and any adverse outcomes
thereof, and their subsequent media coverage could have a significant negative impact on our reputation, business,
financial condition, and results of operations. This could potentially affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

5.  Our Statutory Auditor has included certain remarks on our Audited Financial Statements. The Statutory
Auditors’ report issued under the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO”), on our Audited
Financial Statements contains a few disclaimers of opinion on certain matters.

Our Statutory Auditors have included certain remarks or basis of disclaimer of opinion in their report on our Audited
Financial Statements for Fiscal 2025. For further information, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis on the
Financial Conditions and Results of Operations - Reservations, qualifications, matter of emphasis, adverse remarks /
other observations in caro” page 147.

There can be no assurance that any similar remarks or basis of disclaimer of opinion or matters of emphasis will not
form part of our financial statements for the future periods, or that such remarks will not affect our financial results in
future. Investors should consider such adverse remarks in evaluating our financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows. Any such adverse remarks in the auditors’ report and/ or CARO report on our financial statements in the
future may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

6. Reduction in Promoter Group shareholding and proposed reclassification of Promoter may adversely impact
our governance structure, investor perception, and strategic direction

As on March 31, 2025, the Promoter Group of our Company held 23.61% of the total paid-up equity share capital.
However, as on the date of filing this Letter of Offer, the Promoter Group’s shareholding has reduced significantly to
9.92%. Further, Mr. Kishore Biyani, one of the Promoters of our Company, has, vide his letter dated June 09, 2025,
expressed his intention to reclassify himself and other persons acting in concert with him from the “Promoter Group”
category to the “Public” category, subject to compliance with the conditions prescribed under Regulation 31A of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and receipt of necessary approvals,
including from the shareholders and stock exchanges. For further information, please see “Material Developments” on
page 144.

There can be no assurance that such reclassification will be approved or completed in a timely manner, or at all. If the
reclassification is approved, the Company may no longer have an identifiable promoter or promoter group, which could
impact investor perception, strategic direction, and governance of the Company. Additionally, the significant reduction
in promoter group shareholding may be perceived as a lack of long-term commitment by the existing promoters, which
could adversely affect investor confidence and the market price of the Equity Shares.

Further, in the absence of a controlling shareholder or promoter group, the Company may be more susceptible to hostile
takeovers or changes in control and may face challenges in maintaining continuity in strategic decision-making and
long-term business planning. Any such developments could materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations, and prospects.
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7. Our business is subject to seasonal and cyclical volatility and our inability to forecast the trends and consumer
preferences or demands in the forthcoming seasons may contribute to fluctuations in our results of operations
and financial condition.

We offer wide range of a wide range of furniture, home furnishing goods, kitchenware, other home related accessories
and quality services including complete home design, modular kitchen, among others. We offer our products at our
stores that our consumers require and our success is dependent on our ability to meet our consumers’ requirements. It
is difficult to predict consistently and successfully the consumption patterns of the customers. The success of our
business depends in part on our ability to identify and respond to the evolving consumption patterns in various lines of
businesses that we operate in. Our success depends upon our ability to forecast, anticipate and respond to the changing
customer preferences and home decor trends in a timely manner which may include designing new products or
modifying our existing products in line with such changing customer preferences and home decor trends.

We plan our products based on the forecast of consumer buying patterns as well as on the forecast of home retail and
trends in the forthcoming seasons. The retail consumer spending is heavily dependent on the economy and, to a large
extent, on various festive occasions. Any mismatch between our forecasts, our planning and the actual purchase by
customers can impact us adversely, leading to excess inventory and requiring us to resort to higher markdown and thus
lower margins in order to clear such inventory. Consumer preferences are susceptible to change with change in home
retail and trends, and their service level expectations too can change from time to time.

Further, for us to remain competitive, our designers have to keep themselves abreast with the latest global trends and
home decor demands and more importantly understand the requirements of the customers. In order to design our
products for the various brands we distribute, we conduct data analytics and explore home decor trends to introduce
new and original concepts in the market. While our design and development carries a structured approach, we cannot
assure that the current portfolio of products or future portfolio of products created through future designs will be
received well by our customers. This may result in a non-recovery of costs incurred on design and development, costs
on distribution and lead to inventory that may not be sold or shall be sold slower than anticipated. This may have a
material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. Failure to timely identify the changing patterns or
effectively respond to such trends, preferences and spending patterns could negatively affect our relationship with our
customers and the demand for our products.

As a result, our revenue and profits may vary during different quarters of the financial year and certain periods may
not be indicative of our financial position for a full financial year or future quarters or periods and may be below market
expectations. Further, any unanticipated decrease in demand for our products during our peak selling season could
result into higher closing inventory position, which may lead to sale and liquidation of inventory getting delayed against
the trajectory under normal course of business, which could adversely affect our financial position and business
operations.

Our success depends partly upon our ability to forecast, anticipate and respond to such changing consumer preferences
and trends in a timely manner. Any failure by us to identify and respond to such emerging trends in consumer
preferences could have a material adverse effect on our business. Our inability to identify and recognize international
and domestic trends and the risk of obsolescence could adversely affect our business and profitability. Our brand image
may also suffer if customers believe we are no longer able to offer the latest design. The occurrence of these events
could adversely affect our cash flows, financial condition and business operations.

8. The success of our business is dependent on our procurement systems, supply chain management and efficient
logistics, and any disruption in the same may affect our business adversely.

We strive to keep optimum inventory at our stores and our warehouse to control our costs and working capital
requirements. Inefficient supply chain management and wrong predictions of information technology systems could
adversely affect availability of merchandise at our stores which would affect results of operations. Ensuring shelf
availability for our products warrants meticulous planning since the lead times are long and requires high level of
coordination between the suppliers, our warehouse and our stores.

Further, we rely on our network of suppliers to supply our products in each region where we operate. Hence, our
business is dependent on maintaining good relationships with our suppliers. Furthermore, our growth as a business
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depends on our ability to attract additional high-quality and cost-efficient suppliers to our network. We cannot assure
you that our current suppliers will continue to do business with us or that we can continue to attract additional suppliers
to our network. Any inability to maintain the stability of our supply network and to attract such additional suppliers to
our network will affect our ability to meet the consumer demands for our products in a timely manner and may have
an adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Some of the furniture, furnishings and general merchandise items retailed through our stores are imported from
countries like Indonesia, China, Malaysia, Thailand and Vietnam. Any inability to maintain stable supply network with
suppliers in these countries or any adverse political, economic or social condition in these countries, may lead to
disruption or delay in supply of goods to us, which may have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations
and financial condition. Further, in the event, any anti-dumping or import duty were to be levied on such imports or
vendors or imports from such countries or vendors is prohibited or restricted, the import of goods may become unviable
for us or may be disrupted, which may adversely impact our operations and financial results.

9. If'we are unable to enter into new leasehold or rental agreements for locations suitable for our stores, or we are
unable to renew our existing leasehold or rental agreements for our current stores, it may adversely affect our
expansion and growth plans.

As of June 30, 2025, we have 16 stores across 14 cities across 10 states majorly in Maharashtra, West Bengal, Odisha,
Uttar Pradesh and Telangana. We do not own any of the premises in which our stores and distribution centres are
situated, and these are operated on a leasehold/ leave and license basis. Our office premises at Mumbai is also on license
basis. Our registered and corporate office is located at “2nd Floor, Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar Off Jogeshwari-
Vikhroli Link Road, Near Talav, Jogeshwari East, Mumbai — 400 060”, which is not owned by our Company. Such
leasehold/ leave and license basis arrangements may require renewal or escalations in rentals/ license fee from time to
time during the lease/ license period.

Whilst we typically have long-term license/lease arrangements, the term of some of our license/lease arrangements will
complete in the next few years. We may not be able to renew our leases or licenses on terms acceptable to us or at all.
In the event that any of our leases or licenses are not renewed, and we will be required to vacate our stores, identify
alternative real estate and enter into fresh lease or leave and license agreements, suffer losses in terms of existing
furniture and fixtures and the cost of restoring furniture and fixtures at the new location, which could result in loss of
business and may adversely affect our operations and profitability. We may also face the risk of being evicted in the
event that our landlords allege a breach on our part of any terms under these lease/ leave and license agreements and
there is no assurance that we will be able to identify suitable locations to re-locate our operations. Further, for our
expansion plans we need to identify new real estate locations and enter into new lease or leave and license agreements.
Any failure to identify such new real estate locations may affect our expansion plans and business operations.

10. Any adverse impact on the title or ownership rights or development rights of our landlords from whose premises
we operate may impede our effective operations of our stores, offices or distribution centres in the future.

Most of the premises from which we operate our stores / offices / distribution centres are taken by us on long term
lease or sub-lease or leave and license and/or on the basis of other contractual agreements with third parties. We may
continue to enter into such transactions with third parties. Any adverse impact on the title / ownership rights /
development rights of our landlords from whose premises we operate our stores may impede our business, our
operations and our profitability. The financial impact of such aforesaid risk cannot be quantified.

In the past, we have been subject to lock-in period for some of our lease agreements. In the event, we renew our lease
agreements or enter into new lease agreements and such arrangements also prescribe a lock-in period or such other
similar restrictions, it will prevent us from moving our stores even if there are events or circumstances that impede
our profitability. Any such event and such restrictive covenants in our lease agreements affect our ability to move the
location of our stores and may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

11. We operate in a competitive market and our failure to match such competition may adversely affect our
business.

The home furniture, home fashion and furnishing industry in which we operate is highly competitive and there exists
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competition from other domestic and international brands. A number of different competitive factors could have a
material adverse effect on our operational results and financial condition including:

i. anticipating and responding to changing customers’ demands;
il. to satisfy and explain properly the specialties of each product;
iii. sourcing products efficiently;
iv. to undertake strong and effective marketing;
v. to provide post sell services in relation to the product bought by the customer;
Vi. to maintain our reputation in the markets in which we operates;
Vil. to increase our presence at different platform including e — retailing; and
Vviil. to maintain the relationship with customers’ and our brand partners.

Some of our competitors may have more financial and human resources, better access to attractive retail store locations
or closer relationships with brand partners. Competition may lead to, among other things, higher costs for retail space
and lower sales per retail store, all of which could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and
financial condition and lower our profit margins.

12. Our inability or failure to maintain a balance between optimum inventory levels and our product offering at
our stores may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We strive to keep optimum inventory at our stores, distribution centres and warchouse for in-store as well as online
sales, to control our costs and working capital requirements through our dynamic supply chain management. An
optimal level of inventory is important to our business as it allows us to respond to consumer demand effectively and
to maintain a range of merchandise at our stores. At the same time, we aim to minimise excessive inventories which
would result in higher levels of discounting. If we fail to accurately forecast customer demand, we may experience
excess inventory levels or a shortage of products available for sale in our stores, distribution centres and e-commerce
market places. In addition, if we underestimate customer demand for our products, we may be required to outsource
the manufacture of additional quantities to third parties. Our third-party manufacturers may not be able to deliver
products to meet our requirements, and this could result in delays in the shipment of products to our points of sale and
may damage our reputation and customer relationships. There can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully
manage our inventory at a level appropriate for future customer demand. To maintain an optimal inventory, we monitor
our inventory levels based on our projections of demand as well as on a real-time basis. Unavailability of products,
which are in high demand, may depress sales volumes and adversely affect our customer relationships. However, there
have been no such instances of shortcoming in inventory or product offering in the preceding three Fiscals which had
adverse effect on the business, result of operations and financial conditions of our Company.

If we over-stock inventory, our required working capital will increase and we will incur additional financing costs. If
we under-stock inventory, our ability to meet consumer demand and our operating results may be adversely affected.
Any mismatch between our planning and the actual consumption by consumers can impact us adversely, leading to
potential excess inventory and requiring us to resort to higher markdown and thus lower margins, in order to clear
such inventory. Any of the aforesaid circumstances could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Inventory levels in excess of consumer demand may result in inventory write — offs and the sales of excess inventory
at a discounted price, which would cause our gross margin to suffer. Any write — downs or write — offs and sale of
excess inventory at discounted prices could also impair the strength and exclusivity of our brands. In addition, if we
underestimate consumer demand for products distributed by us, we may not be able to service the demand for the
products and this may damage our reputation and consumer relationships.

13. Risks associated with the suppliers from whom our products are sourced and the safety of those products could
adversely affect our financial performance.

The products sold by us are sourced from a wide variety of domestic and international suppliers. Global sourcing of
many of the products, we sell is an important factor in our financial performance. All of our suppliers must comply
with applicable laws, including labour and environmental laws, and otherwise be certified as meeting our required
supplier standards of conduct. Our ability to find qualified suppliers who meet our standards, and to access products
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in a timely and efficient manner is a significant challenge, especially with respect to suppliers located and goods
sourced outside of the respective states in which the stores are located. Political and economic instability in India or
political instability in certain states of India in which the suppliers are located, the financial instability of suppliers,
suppliers’ failure to meet our supplier standards, labour problems experienced by our suppliers, the availability of raw
materials to suppliers, merchandise quality issues, currency exchange rates, transport availability and cost, transport
security, inflation, and other factors relating to the suppliers and the countries in which they are located are beyond
our control. These and other socio economic factors affecting our suppliers and our access to products could adversely
affect our financial performance.

Our customers count on us to provide them with safe products. Concerns regarding the safety of products that we
source from our suppliers and then sell could cause shoppers to avoid purchasing certain products from us, or to seek
alternative sources of supply for their needs. Any loss of confidence on the part of our customers would be difficult
and costly to re-establish. As such, any issue regarding the safety of any items we sell, regardless of the cause, could
adversely affect our financial performance.

14. We are dependent on maintaining and enhancing awareness of our brands “HomeTown” and we may not
succeed in that to the extent desired.

We believe that maintaining and enhancing the effectiveness of the brands in our brands portfolio is a major
contributing factor to expand our consumer base. Maintaining and enhancing our owned brands may require us to
make substantial investments in areas such as outlet operations, marketing and employee training etc., and these
investments may not be successful. We use various media channels to promote our brands including placing
advertisements and commercials on television, newspapers, hoardings and on digital media and continue to aim at
investing in marketing initiatives for brand recall, demand pull, create awareness about the product or enhance
reputation of the brand. In the event marketing initiatives do not produce desired outcome, it may adversely impact
business performance.

As we expand into new geographic markets, consumers in these markets may not accept our brands. We anticipate
that, as our business expands into new markets and as the market becomes increasingly competitive, maintaining and
enhancing our brands may become increasingly difficult and expensive. If we are unable to enhance the visibility of
our brands and generate commensurate sales, it would have an adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

15. We rely on our information technology systems and third parties for procuring IT services to process
transactions, summarize results and manage our business. Disruptions in both our primary and secondary
(backup) systems could harm our ability to run our business.

It is critical that we maintain uninterrupted operation of our business’ critical information technology systems. Our
information technology systems, including our back-up systems, are subject to damage or interruption from power
outages, computer and telecommunications failures, computer viruses, security breaches, catastrophic events such as
fires, tornadoes and hurricanes, and usage errors by our employees. If our information technology systems and our
back-up systems are damaged or cease to function properly, we may have to make significant investment to fix or
replace them, and we may suffer interruptions in our operations in the interim.

Any material interruption in both of our information technology systems and back-up systems may have a material
adverse effect on our business or results of operations. Further, if we fail to integrate our information technology
systems and processes we may fail to realize the benefits anticipated to be derived from these initiatives. Any delay
in implementation, problems in transition to new systems or any disruptions in its functions may adversely impact our
business operations. Further, if we are not able to obtain IT systems and services from third parties in a cost effective
manner, it may affect our technology operations which may have an effect on our business operations and financial
results.

In our online business, the markets for our products and services are characterized by rapidly changing technology,
evolving industry standards and norms, introduction of new products and services. Our results of operations and
financial condition depend on our ability to introduce new products and services. The process of developing new
products and services is complex and requires us to accurately predict and respond to customers' changing and diverse
needs and emerging technological trends. The success of our new products and services will depend on several factors,
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including proper identification of market demands and the competitiveness of our products and services and adaptation
of new technologies. Our failure to respond successfully to any of these challenges will significantly harm our results
of operations and financial condition.

16. Negative publicity if any, would adversely affect the value of our brand, and our sales.

Our business is dependent on the trust our customers have in the quality of our merchandise as well as on our ability
to protect our trademarks and our intellectual property to maintain our brand value. If we fail to adequately protect
our intellectual property, competitors may market products similar to ours. Any negative publicity regarding our
Company, brands, or products, including those arising from a drop in quality of merchandise from our vendors,
disputes concerning the ownership of intellectual property, mishaps at our stores, or any other unforeseen events could
adversely affect our reputation our brand value, our operations and our results from operations.

17. The success of our business is dependent on our senior and key management team and our inability to retain
them or the loss of any member of our senior management team could adversely affect our business if we are
unable to find equally skilled replacements.

Our Company is managed by a team of professionals to oversee its operations and growth. Our performance and
success depends on our senior and key management team to manage our current operations and meet future business
challenges. Our ability to sustain our growth depends, in large part, on our ability to attract, train, motivate and retain
highly skilled personnel. There is significant competition for management and other skilled personnel in our industry.
Our inability to hire and retain additional qualified personnel will impair our ability to continue to expand our business.
The loss of the services of such personnel of our Company and our inability to hire and retain additional qualified
personnel may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. An increase in
the rate of attrition of our experienced employees, would adversely affect our growth strategy. We cannot assure you
that we will be successful in recruiting and retaining a sufficient number of personnel with the requisite skills or to
replace those personnel who leave. Further, we cannot assure you that we will be able to re-deploy and re-train our
personnel to keep pace with continuing changes in our business. The loss of the services of such personnel and our
inability to hire and retain additional qualified personnel may have an adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

18. Industry information included in this Letter of Offer has been derived from an industry report titled “India
Home Furniture Market 2024-2029”. There can be no assurance that such third- party statistical, financial and
other industry information is complete, reliable or accurate.

We have not independently verified data obtained from industry publications including Home Furniture Report
commissioned by us for such purpose and other external sources referred to in this Letter of Offer and therefore, while
we believe them to be accurate, complete and reliable, we cannot assure you that they are accurate, complete or
reliable. Such data may also be produced on different bases. Therefore, discussions of matters relating to the home
furniture industry, are subject to the caveat that the statistical and other data upon which such discussions are based
may be inaccurate, incomplete or unreliable. Industry publications generally state that the information contained in
those publications has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy, adequacy or completeness
and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Industry and government
sources and publications are also prepared on the basis of information as of specific dates and may no longer be current
or reflect current trends. Industry and government sources and publications may also base their information on
estimates, forecasts and assumptions that may prove to be incorrect. Accordingly, no investment decision should be
made on the basis of such information.

19. In the event our contingent liabilities that have not been provided for, materializes, our liquidity, business,
prospects, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.

As of March 31, 2025, the following contingent liabilities are appearing in our Audited Financial Statements:
a) The Company has not provided for Income Tax demand demand excluding contingent interest of X 113.80 lakhs

(2024: 2113.80 lakhs) which is pending before CIT Appeals & for GST Tax demand of X 670.62 lakhs (2024:
Nil) which is pending before GST Appellate Authorities.
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b) On November 27, 2020, The Company has received demand notice from the Directorate General of Anti
Profiteering department wherein the department has stated that the Company has contravened the provisions of
Section 171(1) of the Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 and the benefit of the rate reduction in GST from
28% to 18% was not passed on to the recipients by increasing the base price of the products. As per the report the
total amount of profiteering covered for the period 15.11.2017 to 30.09.2019 has been worked out to X 368 Lakhs.
The Company has submitted its reply on January 18, 2021 to National Anti-Profiteering Authority (GST). The
Company was granted personal hearing in the matter by National Anti-Profiteering Authority (GST) on April 7,
2022. Pursuant to the said hearing, the Company has argued and submitted its reply vide letter date April 12, 2022
to emphasize the fact that the benefit of GST rate change was duly passed on to the customers. Further clarification
was required by the Directorate General of Anti Profiteering department on November 3, 2022, for which Company
has submitted its reply vide letter date November 17, 2022. Final order is awaited in this regard. Based on
consultation with the legal advisors of the Company, the management believes that the tax authorities are not likely
to be able to substantiate their tax assessments / demands & accordingly it has not provided for these tax demands
at the Balance sheet date.

c¢) On April 12, 2021, the Company received a notice from its vendor wherein the party filed an application under
IBC Code with NCLT towards alleged non-payment of its dues (including interest) ¥ 100.65 lakhs, however the
total outstanding as per the Company books amounts to X 0.83 lakhs. As at March 31, 2025, the said matter was
pending before the NCLT. For further information, please see “Civil Litigations initiated against our Company—
Outstanding Litigations And Defaults” on page 158.

The Company is a party to various legal proceedings in normal course of business and does not expect the outcome
of these proceedings to have any adverse effect on its financial conditions, results of the operations or cash flow.
Amounts of such disputes are unascertainable.

In the event our contingent liabilities that have not been provided for materializes, our liquidity, business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations may be affected.

20. Our Company has in the past entered into related party transactions and will continue to do so in the future.
Such transactions or any future transactions with related parties may potentially involve conflict of interest and
impose certain liabilities on our Company.

We have in the past entered into transactions with enterprises over which our Directors and KMPs have a significant
influence. While we believe that all such transactions have been conducted on an arm’s length basis and in compliance
with applicable laws, we cannot assure you that we might have obtained more favourable terms had such transactions
been entered into with unrelated parties. Further, it is likely that we may enter into related party transactions in the
future. Such related party transactions may potentially involve conflicts of interest.

Although in terms of the Companies Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, we are required to adhere to various
compliance requirements such as obtaining prior approvals from our Audit Committee, Board of Directors and
Shareholders for certain related party transactions, there can be no assurance that such transactions, individually or in
the aggregate, will receive the necessary approvals in future. Accordingly, any future transactions with our related
parties could potentially involve conflicts of interest, which may be detrimental to our Company. We cannot assure
you that such transactions, individually or in the aggregate, will always be in the best interests of our minority
shareholders and will not have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows. For further details of our related party transactions, see “Financial Statements” on page 81.

21. We depend on third parties for our logistics and transportation needs. Any disruptions in the same may
adversely affect our operations, business, cash flows and financial condition.

We do not have an in-house transportation facility and we rely on third party transportation and other logistic facilities
at every stage of our business activity including for procurement of products from our suppliers and for transportation
from our distribution centres to various retail outlets. Although we have insurance for transit of goods, it may be
difficult for us to recover damages for damaged, delayed or lost goods.
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Our operations and profitability are dependent upon the availability of transportation and other logistic facilities in a
time and cost-efficient manner. Accordingly, our business is vulnerable to increased transportation costs,
transportation strikes and lock-outs, shortage of labour, delays and disruption of transportation services for events
such as weather related problems and accidents. Further, movement of goods encounters additional risks such as
accidents, pilferage, spoilage, shrinkage and our inability to claim insurance may adversely affect our operations,
results of operations and financial condition. Although we have not experienced any material logistics and transport
related disruptions in the past, any prolonged disruption or unavailability of such facilities in a timely manner could
result in delays or non-supply or may require us to look for alternative sources which may not be cost-effective,
thereby adversely affecting our operations, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

22. The current location of our retail outlets and other factors impacting the malls and locations where our retail
outlets are located may not continue to remain attractive.

The success of any exclusive brand outlet depends in part on its location. We sell our products through stores, spaces
and warehouse which are taken on lease. The location of such leased outlets and spaces significantly impacts our
ability to attract customers, helps in our brand positioning and to carry out our operations. We select locations for our
retail outlets based on research and analytics for each brand that we market taking into considering the brand
positioning, economic conditions, demographic patterns etc. We cannot assure you that current locations of our retail
outlets will continue to remain attractive or profitable. The quality, demographic structure and economic conditions
of the location where our retail outlets are located could decline in the future, thus resulting in reduced sales in those
locations. To remain asset light, a large part of our back-office operations such as warchouse and offices is taken on
lease. We believe that the strength of our brand portfolio and relationships with landlords enables us to secure rented
properties and spaces at favourable locations.

Further, in order to generate footfall we depend heavily on locating our retail outlets in prominent locations within
successful shopping malls. Sales of these exclusive brand outlets are derived, in part, from footfall in such malls. The
exclusive brand outlets benefit from the ability of a mall’s other tenants to generate footfall in the vicinity of the
exclusive brand outlets and the continuing popularity of the malls as shopping destinations. We incur lease rent charges
primarily towards payment of rent for our leased outlets and warehouse. Our lease rent charges may increase in the
future due to contractual escalation of rents payable in accordance with the lease agreements entered into by us.
Further, there can be no assurance that current locations will continue to be attractive as demographic pattern changes.
If we are unable to obtain alternate locations at reasonable prices our ability to affect our growth strategy will be
adversely affected.

23. Current trends of discounting and price competition could lead to consumers getting habituated to price driven
purchases and reduce the attraction of brands in the minds of consumers, impacting our business operations
and profitability.

Online retailing has increased substantially in the past few years and current trends of discounting and price
competition could lead to consumers getting habituated to price driven purchases. Various companies offer a wide
variety of products, including the products that we retail through our outlets, on the internet at different price points.
Online retailing has witnessed intense competition in India with deep discounts and regular promotions offered by
several e-tailers. We may be unsuccessful in competing against present and future competitors, ranging from large
and established companies to emerging start-ups, both Indian and large, multi-national, e-commerce companies
operating in India. Our consumers may prefer purchasing such products from these online stores because of factors
like heavy discounts and variety of products. This could adversely affect the sales at our retail outlets and could have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In the event we are required to
compete with e-tailers, specifically with respect to pricing, our margins from sale of our products may be adversely
affected. Increasing attractiveness of online channels for customers, driven by offers and discounts, could impact on
our financial position. In the event that we are competing with e-tailers, our business prospects could be adversely
affected.

24. If we are unable to obtain the requisite approvals, licenses, registrations or permits to operate our business or
are unable to renew them in a timely manner, our business or results of operations may be adversely affected.
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We are governed by various laws and regulations for carrying our business activities. Shops and establishment
legislations are applicable in the states where we have our stores and distribution centres. This legislation regulates
the conditions of work and employment in shops and commercial establishments and generally prescribes obligations
in respect of inter alia registration, opening and closure of hours, daily and weekly working hours, holidays, leave,
health and safety measures and wages for overtime work. Therefore, we are required to obtain registration under the
same. Further, we are also required to comply with the provisions of the Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and trade license
for operating stores under the respective state legislatures in India. In addition, we may need to apply for additional
approvals, including the renewal of approvals which may expire from time to time and approvals required for our
operations, in the ordinary course of business.

If we fail to obtain any applicable approvals, licenses, registrations or permits, including those mentioned above, in a
timely manner, we may not be able to undertake certain operations of our business, or at all, which may affect our
business or results of operations. Our failure to comply with existing or increased regulations, or the introduction of
changes to existing regulations, could adversely affect our business or results of operations. We cannot assure that the
approvals, licenses, registrations or permits issued to us may not be suspended or revoked in the event of non-
compliance or alleged non-compliance with any terms or conditions thereof, or pursuant to any regulatory action. Any
failure to renew the approvals that have expired, or to apply for and obtain the required approvals, licenses,
registrations or permits, or any suspension or revocation of any of the approvals, licenses, registrations or permits that
have been or may be issued to us, may materially and adversely affect our business or results of operations. As on the
date of this Letter of Offer, we have obtained a significant number of, but not all, approvals, licenses, registrations and
permits that we require from the relevant authorities. For instance, some licenses and registrations have expired and
are currently under process of renewal, while others are still pending issuance.

25. Owur inability to procure and/or maintain adequate insurance cover in connection with our business may
adversely affect our operations and profitability.

We maintain insurance that we consider to be sufficient typical in our industry in India and in amounts which are
commercially appropriate for a variety of risks, including fire, burglary, terrorist activities, group medical and group
personal accident insurance. However, such insurance may not be adequate to cover all losses or liabilities that may
arise from our business operations, particularly if the loss suffered is not easily quantifiable. Our insurance policies
contain exclusions and limitations on coverage, as a result of which, we may not be able to successfully assert our
claims for any liability or loss under such insurance policies. Additionally, there may be various other risks and losses
for which we are not insured because such risks are either uninsurable or not insurable on commercially acceptable
terms. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that in the future we will be able to maintain insurance of the types or
at levels which we deem necessary or adequate or at premiums which we deem to be commercially acceptable. For
further details, see the chapter titled “Our Business” on page 71

The occurrence of an event for which we are not insured, where the loss is in excess of insured limits occurs or where
we are unable to successfully assert insurance claims from losses, could result in uninsured liabilities. Further, despite
such uninsured losses we may remain obligated for any financial indebtedness or other obligations related to our
business. Any such uninsured losses or liabilities could result in an adverse effect on our business and financial results.

26. Our business is manpower intensive and may be adversely affected if we are unable to recruit and retain suitable
staff for our sales and operations.

Our business is manpower intensive and our continued growth depends in part on our ability to recruit and retain
suitable staff. As we expand our network, we will need experienced manpower that has knowledge of the local market
and the retail industry to operate the retail stores that we open. As of June 30, 2025, we had 359 regular and 37
contractual employees. We rely on our design team comprising of skilled designers for designing of our products such
as home furniture and home fashion.

We have faced increasing competition for management and skilled personnel with significant knowledge and
experience in the retail, distribution and manufacturing sector in India. Further, we cannot assure you that we will be
able to find or hire personnel with the necessary experience or expertise to operate our retail stores in our existing
markets or new markets that we are entering into. In the event that we are unable to hire people with the necessary
knowledge or the necessary expertise, our business may be severely disrupted, financial condition and results of
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operations may be adversely affected. In addition, we have seen an increasing trend in manpower costs in India, which
has had a direct impact on our employee costs. We may need to offer better compensation and other benefits in order
to attract and retain key personnel in the future and that may materially affect our costs and profitability. We cannot
assure you that as we continue to grow our business in the future, our operating expenses will not significantly increase.

27. Increased losses due to fraud, shrinkage, employee negligence, theft or similar incidents may have an adverse
impact on us.

Our business and the industry we operate in are vulnerable to the problem of shoplifting by customers, pilferage by
employees, damage, misappropriation of cash and inventory management and logistical errors. An increase in product
losses due to such factors at our existing and future retail stores or our retail channels may require us to install
additional security and surveillance equipment and incur additional expenses towards inventory management and
handling. We cannot assure you whether these measures will successfully prevent such losses. Further, there are
inherent risks in cash management as part of our operations, which include theft and robbery, employee fraud and the
risks involved in transferring cash from our retail stores to banks. Additionally, in case of losses due to theft, financial
misappropriation, fire, breakage or damage caused by other casualties, we cannot assure you that we will be able to
recover from our insurers the full amount of any such loss in a timely manner, or at all. In addition, if we file claims
under an insurance policy it could lead to increases in the insurance premiums payable by us or the termination of
coverage under the relevant policy. Shrinkage at our stores and/or our distribution centres may occur through a
combination of shoplifting by customer, pilferage by employee, damage, obsolescence and error in documents and
transaction that go un-noticed and later adjusted for upon physical verification of stock with book stock. An increase
in shrinkage levels at our existing and future stores or our distribution centres may force us to hire additional supply
chain management personnel or additional security staff or install additional security and surveillance equipments,
which will increase our operational costs and may have an adverse impact on our profitability.

28. Our operations and investments are concentrated in the Indian retail, and consumption-led sectors, involving
consumer financing which exposes us to the risk of a downturn in this sector.

Our strategic focus is on the Indian retail and consumption-led sectors. As a result of this focus, during periods of
difficult market conditions or slowdowns in these sectors, or any lockdowns imposed in the future due to a pandemic
like situation, the decreased revenues, difficulty in obtaining access to financing and increased fixed and running costs
experienced by us may adversely affect us. Although the Indian retail and consumption-led sectors have been growing
rapidly in recent periods, this growth may not be sustainable in the long term and there may be periods of difficult
market conditions. Interest rate fluctuations could also adversely impact the growth of the retail and consumption-led
sectors. If growth in the Indian retail and consumption-led sectors were to slow or if market conditions were to worsen,
we could sustain losses or may be unable to attain target returns, which would adversely impact our financial
performance. In addition, demand for our retail services could decline as Indian consumers reduce their spending. Any
of the foregoing would have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition
One of our product includes furniture and it being a big ticket merchandise, consumer finance is required for driving
sale. Lack or unavailability of consumer finance for products like these can have a material adverse effect on the
Company.

29. We will not distribute the Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form
to overseas Shareholders who have not provided an address in India for service of documents.

The Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter
of Offer and any other Issue Materials may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in or into in (i) the United States or
(i1) or any jurisdiction other than India except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction.
The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been, and will not be, registered under the U.S
Securities Act and may not be offered or sold within the United States.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other applicable laws, the Rights Entitlements will
be credited to the demat account of the Eligible Equity Shareholders who are Equity Shareholders as on the Record
Date, however, the Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer and other Issue related materials (together, the “Issue
Materials) will be sent/ dispatched only to such Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address
to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sales of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted
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under the laws of such jurisdiction (together, the “Relevant Requirements”) and only such Eligible Equity
Shareholders are permitted to participate in the Issue. The Equity Shareholders who do not satisfy the Relevant
Requirements will not be eligible to participate in the Issue and accordingly, their shareholding as a percentage of the
paid-up capital of our Company post Issue will stand reduced to the extent of non-participation.

Further, in the case that Eligible Equity Shareholders who satisfy the Relevant Requirements and have also provided
their valid e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in the case that such
Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Issue Materials will be dispatched, on a
reasonable effort basis, to the addresses provided by them.

The Issue Materials will not be distributed to overseas sharcholders who do not meet the Relevant Requirements on
account of restrictions that apply to circulation of such materials in certain overseas jurisdictions. However, the
Companies Act requires companies to serve documents at any address, which may be provided by the members as
well as through e -mail. Presently, there is lack of clarity under the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder with
respect to distribution of Issue Material in overseas jurisdictions where such distribution may be prohibited under the
applicable laws of such jurisdictions. While we have requested all the shareholders to provide an address in India for
the purposes of distribution of Issue Material, we cannot assure you that the regulator or authorities would not adopt
a different view with respect to compliance with the Companies Act and may subject us to fines or penalties.

30. As the securities of our Company are listed on Stock Exchanges in India, our Company and our Promoters are
subject to certain obligations and reporting requirements under Insider Trading Regulations, Takeover Code
and Listing Regulations. Any non — compliances / delay in complying with such obligations and reporting
requirements may render us / our Promoter liable to prosecution and/or penalties.

Our Company and our Promoters are subject to certain obligations and reporting requirements under Insider Trading
Regulations, Takeover Code and Listing Regulations. Though our Company and our Promoters endeavour to comply
with all such obligations/reporting requirements, there have been certain instances of non-compliance and delays in
complying with such obligations/reporting requirements, such as delay for submission of events by our Company
relating to initiating of corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) against the Company, appointment of
resolution professional, settlement between the Company and operational creditor and withdrawal of CIRP by the
NCLT, Mumbai bench. Although our Company/our Promoters have responded and explained the causes of such
delays/non-compliance, there could be a possibility that penalties may be levied against our Company/our Promoters
for of non-compliance and delays or failures in complying with such obligations/reporting requirements.

31. There have been instances of non-compliances/delayed compliances and discrepancies in the statutory filings
in the past.

In past, there have been instances of inadvertent non-compliances / delayed compliances with the provisions of the
Companies Act by our Company including delay in filing certain statutory forms with the RoC. Although till date, we
have not received any show cause notice from the RoC or other authorities for the said non-compliances/delayed
compliances, we cannot assure that we will not be subject to any action including levy of penalty by the RoC or other
authorities.

32. The deployment of funds raised through this Issue shall not be subject to monitoring by any monitoring agency
and shall be purely dependent on the discretion of the management of our Company.

Since the size of the Issue is less than 210,000 Lakhs, no monitoring agency is required to be appointed by our
Company to oversee the deployment of funds raised through this Issue. The deployment of funds raised through this
Issue, is hence, at the discretion of the management and the Board of Directors of our Company and will not be subject
to monitoring by any independent agency. The Board of Directors of our Company through Audit Committee will
monitor the utilization of the Issue proceeds. Any inability on our part to effectively utilize the Issue proceeds could
adversely affect our financials.

33. We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, which may harm our results of operations and
cause our financial results to fluctuate.
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Our financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. However, some of our operating expenses and finance
charges are influenced by the currencies of those countries where import of our products. We import some of our
products like furniture and home décor items from other countries like Indonesia, China, Malaysia, Thailand and
Vietnam. During Fiscal 2025, our imported stocks accounted for approximately 15.35% of our total cost of purchase
of stock-in-trade for that period. The exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and these currencies has fluctuated in
the past and our results of operations have been impacted by such fluctuations and may be impacted by such
fluctuations in the future.

Depreciation of the Indian rupee against the U.S. Dollar and other foreign currencies may adversely affect our results
of operations by increasing the cost of our products. Volatility in the exchange rate and/or sustained appreciation of
the Indian Rupee will negatively impact our revenue and operating results.

External Risk Factors

34. Economic, political or other factors that are beyond our control may have an adverse effect on our business
and results of operations.

The Indian economy and its securities markets are influenced by political conditions, economic developments and
volatility in securities markets in other countries. Investors' reactions to developments in one country may have
adverse effects on the market price of securities of companies located in other countries, including India. Negative
economic developments, such as rising Financial Year or trade deficits, or a default on national debt, in other emerging
market countries may also affect investor confidence and cause increased volatility in Indian securities markets and
indirectly affect the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability could also have a negative impact
on the Indian economy, including the movement of exchange rates and interest rates in India and could then adversely
affect our business, financial performance and the price of the Equity Shares.

Further, other factors which may adversely affect the Indian economy are scarcity of credit or other financing in India,
resulting in an adverse impact on economic conditions in India and scarcity of financing of our developments and
expansions; volatile inflation rates in India in recent years, which could cause a rise in the costs of rent, wages and
raw materials; volatility in, and actual or perceived trends in trading activity on, India's principal stock exchanges;
changes in India's tax, trade, Financial Year or monetary policies; occurrence of natural or man-made disasters;
prevailing regional or global economic conditions, including in India's principal export markets; and other significant
regulatory or economic developments in or affecting India.

Our performance and the growth of our business are dependent on the health of the overall Indian economy. A
slowdown in the Indian economy could adversely affect the policy of the Indian government towards our industry,
which may in turn adversely affect our financial performance and our ability to implement our business strategy. Any
of the abovementioned factors could depress economic activity and restrict our access to capital, which could have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations and reduce the price of the
Equity Shares. Any financial disruption could have an adverse effect on our business, future financial performance,
shareholders' equity and the price of the Equity Shares.

35. Terrorist attacks, civil disturbances, regional conflicts and other acts of violence in India and abroad may
disrupt or otherwise adversely affect the Indian economy, the health of which our business depends on.

India has from time to time experienced social and civil unrest and terrorist attacks. These events could lead to political
or economic instability in India. Events of this nature in the future could have a material adverse effect on our ability
to develop our business. As a result, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely
affected. India has also experienced social unrest, Naxalite violence and communal disturbances in some parts of the
country. If such tensions occur in places where we operate or in other parts of the country, leading to overall political
and economic instability, it could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and trading
price of our Equity Shares.

36. Our business and activities are regulated by the Competition Act, 2002.

The Competition Act, 2002, as amended (the “Competition Act”) seeks to prevent practices that could have an
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appreciable adverse effect on competition. Under the Competition Act, any arrangement, understanding or action in
concert between enterprises, whether formal or informal, which causes or is likely to cause an appreciable adverse
effect on competition in India is void and may attract substantial penalties. Any agreement among competitors, or
practice or decision in relation to, enterprises or persons engaged in identical or similar trade of goods or provision of
services which directly or indirectly determines purchase or sale prices, limits or controls production, supply, markets,
technical development, investment or provision of services, shares markets or source of production or provision of
services by way of allocation of geographical area, types of goods or services or number of customers in the relevant
market or directly or indirectly results in bid rigging or collusive bidding is presumed to have an appreciable adverse
effect on competition. The Competition Act also prohibits the abuse of a dominant position by any enterprise.
Provisions of the Competition Act relating to acquisitions, mergers or amalgamations of enterprises that meet certain
asset or turnover thresholds and regulations issued by the Competition Commission of India with respect to
notification requirements for such combinations became effective in June 2011. Further our acquisitions, mergers or
amalgamations may require the prior approval of the Competition Commission of India, which may not be obtained
in a timely manner or at all.

If we are affected, directly or indirectly, by the application or interpretation of any provision of the Competition Act,
any enforcement proceedings initiated by the Competition Commission of India, any other relevant authority under
the Competition Act, any claim by any party under the Competition Act or any adverse publicity that may be generated
due to scrutiny or prosecution by the Competition Commission of India, our business and financial performance may
be materially and adversely affected. Further the Competition Commission of India has extra-territorial powers and
can investigate any agreements, abusive conduct or combination occurring outside India if such agreement, conduct
or combination has an appreciable adverse effect on competition in India. However, we cannot predict the impact of
the provisions of the Competition Act on the agreements entered into by us at this stage.

37. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax laws and
regulations, may adversely affect our business and financial performance.

Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by unfavourable changes in or interpretations of
existing, or the promulgation of new, laws, rules and regulations applicable to us and our business. There can be no
assurance that the Indian government may not implement new regulations and policies which will require us to obtain
approvals and licences from the Indian government and other regulatory bodies or impose onerous requirements and
conditions on our operations. Any such changes and the related uncertainties with respect to the applicability,
interpretation and implementation of any amendment or change to governing laws, regulation or policy in the
jurisdictions in which we operate may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows
and results of operations. In addition, we may have to incur expenditures to comply with the requirements of any new
regulations, which may also materially harm our results of operations or cash flows. Any unfavourable changes to the
laws and regulations applicable to us could also subject us to additional liabilities.

38. Changes in trade policies may affect us.

We are continuing to expand our international operations as part of our growth strategy. Any change in policies by
the countries, in terms of tariff and non-tariff barriers, from which our suppliers import or export their raw materials
or components, or countries to which we export our products, may have an adverse effect on our profitability.
Furthermore, we import various raw materials including APIs that are not produced in-house by us, intermediates,
primary packaging materials and secondary packaging materials directly from our international suppliers. Any change
in export policies by the countries in which our suppliers are based may have an adverse impact on our business.

39. Significant differences exist between Ind AS and other accounting principles, such as U.S. GAAP and IFRS,
which may be material to the financial statements prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS contained
in this Letter of Offer.

Our Audited Financial Statements contained in this Letter of Offer have been prepared and presented in accordance
with Ind AS. Ind AS differs from accounting principles and auditing standards with which prospective investors may
be familiar in other countries, such as U.S. GAAP and IFRS. Significant differences exist between Ind AS and U.S.
GAAP and IFRS, which may be material to the financial information prepared and presented in accordance with Ind
AS contained in this Letter of Offer. Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in this Letter

31



of Offer will provide meaningful information and is dependent on your familiarity with Ind AS and the Companies
Act. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Ind AS on the financial disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer
should accordingly be limited.

40. It may not be possible for investors to enforce any judgment obtained outside India against us or any of our
directors and executive officers in India respectively, except by way of a law suit in India on such judgment.

Our Company is incorporated under the laws of the Republic of India all of its directors reside in India. As a result, it
may be difficult for investors to enforce the service of process upon our Company and any of our directors and
executive officers India or to enforce judgments obtained against our Company and these persons in courts outside of
India.

India has reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments in civil and commercial matters with only a limited
number of jurisdictions, which includes the United Kingdom, United Arab Emirates, Singapore and Hong Kong.
Recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Section 13 and Section 44A of the Code of
Civil Procedure, 1908 (“Civil Code”). Section 44 A of the Civil Code provides that where a certified copy of a decree
of any superior court, within the meaning of that Section, in any country or territory outside India which the
Government has by notification declared to be in a reciprocating territory, it may be enforced in India by proceedings
in execution as if the judgment had been rendered by a district court in India. However, Section 44A of the Civil Code
is applicable only to monetary decrees not being in the same nature of amounts payable in respect of taxes, other
charges of a like nature or in respect of a fine or other penalties and does not apply to arbitration awards (even if such
awards are enforceable as a decree or judgment).

A judgment of a court of a country which is not a reciprocating territory may be enforced in India only by a suit upon
the judgment under Section 13 of the Civil Code, and not by proceedings in execution. Section 13 of the Civil Code
provides that foreign judgments shall be conclusive regarding any matter directly adjudicated upon except: (i) where
the judgment has not been pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction; (ii) where the judgment has not been
given on the merits of the case; (iii) where it appears on the face of the proceedings that the judgment is founded on
an incorrect view of international law or refusal to recognize the law of India in cases to which such law is applicable;
(iv) where the proceedings in which the judgment was obtained were opposed to natural justice; (v) where the
judgment has been obtained by fraud; and/ or (vi) where the judgment sustains a claim founded on a breach of any
law then in force in India. The suit must be brought in India within three years from the date of judgment in the same
manner as any other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India.

Further, there are considerable delays in the disposal of suits by Indian courts. It may be unlikely that a court in India
would award damages on the same basis as a foreign court if an action is brought in India. Furthermore, it may be
unlikely that an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if it viewed the amount of damages awarded as
excessive or inconsistent with public policy in India. A party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in India is required
to obtain prior approval from the RBI under FEMA to repatriate any amount recovered pursuant to execution and any
such amount may be subject to income tax in accordance with applicable laws. Any judgment or award in a foreign
currency would be converted into Indian Rupees on the date of the judgment or award and not on the date of the
payment.

41. Rights of shareholders under Indian laws may differ from the laws of other jurisdictions.

Our Articles of Association and Indian law govern our corporate affairs. Indian legal principles related to these matters
and the validity of corporate procedures, Directors' fiduciary duties and liabilities, and shareholders' rights may differ
from those that would apply to a company in another jurisdiction. Shareholders' rights including in relation to class
actions, under Indian law may not be as extensive as shareholders' rights under the laws of other countries or
jurisdictions. Investors may have more difficulty in asserting their rights as one of our shareholders than as a
shareholder of a company in another jurisdiction.

RISKS RELATING TO THE EQUITY SHARES AND THIS ISSUE

42.  Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without
compensation and result in a dilution of shareholding.
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The Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and become null
and void, and Eligible Equity Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The proportionate ownership
and voting interest in our Company of Eligible Equity Shareholders who fail (or are not able) to exercise their Rights
Entitlements will be diluted. Even if you elect to sell your unexercised Rights Entitlements, the consideration you
receive for them may not be sufficient to fully compensate you for the dilution of your percentage ownership of the
equity share capital of our Company that may be caused as a result of the Issue. Renouncee(s) may not be able to
apply in case of failure in completion of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a manner that the Rights
Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee(s) prior to the Issue Closing Date. Further, in case,
the Rights Entitlements do not get credited in time, in case of On Market Renunciation, such Renouncee will not be
able to apply in this Issue with respect to such Rights Entitlements.

43. Applicants to the Issue are not allowed to withdraw their bids after the Issue Closing Date.

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Applicants in this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after
the Issue Closing Date. The Allotment in this Issue and the credit of such Equity Shares to the Applicant’s demat
account with its depository participant shall be completed within such period as prescribed under the applicable laws.
There is no assurance, however, that material adverse changes in the international or national monetary, financial,
political or economic conditions or other events in the nature of force majeure, material adverse changes in our
business, results of operation or financial condition, or other events affecting the Applicant’s decision to invest in the
Rights Equity Shares, would not arise between the Issue Closing Date and the date of Allotment in this Issue.
Occurrence of any such events after the Issue Closing Date could also impact the market price of our Equity Shares.
The Applicants shall not have the right to withdraw their applications in the event of any such occurrence. We cannot
assure you that the market price of the Equity Shares will not decline below the Issue Price. To the extent the market
price for the Equity Shares declines below the Issue Price after the Issue Closing Date, the shareholder will be required
to purchase Rights Equity Shares at a price that will be higher than the actual market price for the Equity Shares at
that time. Should that occur, the shareholder will suffer an immediate unrealized loss as a result. We may complete
the Allotment even if such events may limit the Applicants’ ability to sell our Equity Shares after this Issue or cause
the trading price of our Equity Shares to decline.

44. The Rights Entitlements of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form (“Physical
Shareholders”) may lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the
credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only.
Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders shall be credited in a suspense escrow demat
account opened by our Company during the Issue Period. The Physical Shareholders are requested to furnish the
details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two working days prior to the Issue Closing Date (i.e., on
or before Monday, August 18, 2025) to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their demat accounts at least
one day before the Issue Closing Date. The Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders who do not furnish the
details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two working days prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall
lapse. Further, pursuant to a press release dated December 3, 2018, issued by the SEBI, with effect from April 1, 2019,
a transfer of listed Equity Shares cannot be processed unless the Equity Shares are held in dematerialized form (except
in case of transmission or transposition of Equity Shares).

45. Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, or convertible securities by our Company may dilute your future
shareholding and sale of the Equity Shares by our Promoters or other major shareholders of our Company may
adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, or convertible securities by our Company, including through exercise of
employee stock options or restricted stock units or share warrants may lead to dilution of your shareholding in our
Company, adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of
our securities. Further, any future sales of the Equity Shares by the Promoters or other major shareholders of our
Company may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

46. You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.
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Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares of an
Indian company are generally taxable in India. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment of long-term capital gains
tax in India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares held for more than 12 months. STT will
be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which the Equity Shares are sold. Further, any gain
realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for a period of 12 months or less will be subject to short-term capital
gains tax in India. Capital gains arising from the sale of the Equity Shares may be partially or completely exempt from
taxation in India in cases where such exemption is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the
seller is a resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result,
residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on gains made upon the
sale of the Equity Shares.

47. There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed in a timely manner or at all, and any trading closures
at the Stock Exchanges may adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, final approval for listing and trading of the Equity Shares will not be
granted by the Stock Exchanges until after those Equity Shares have been issued and allotted. Approval will require
all relevant documents authorizing the issuing of Equity Shares to be submitted. There could be a failure or delay in
listing the Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges. Any failure or delay in obtaining the approval would restrict your ability
to dispose of your Equity Shares. Further, historical trading prices, therefore, may not be indicative of the prices at
which the Equity Shares will trade in the future.

Secondary market trading in our Equity Shares may be halted by a stock exchange because of market conditions or
other reasons. Additionally, an exchange or market may also close or issue trading halts on specific securities, or the
ability to buy or sell certain securities or financial instruments may be restricted, which may adversely impact the
ability of our shareholders to sell the Equity Shares or the price at which shareholders may be able to sell their Equity
Shares at a particular point in time.

48. The Issue Price of the Rights Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares after
the Issue.

The Issue Price of the Rights Equity Shares will be determined by our Company in consultation with the Lead
Managers and the Designated Stock Exchange. This price may not be indicative of the market price for the Equity
Shares after the Issue. The market price of the Equity Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations after the Issue,
and may decline below the Issue Price. We cannot assure you that you will be able to resell your Equity Shares at or
above the Issue Price. There can be no assurance that an active trading market for the Equity Shares will be sustained
after this Issue, or that the price at which the Equity Shares have historically traded will correspond to the price at
which the Equity Shares will trade in the market subsequent to this Issue.

49. Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian law and
could thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, any company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares pre-emptive
rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of shares to maintain their existing ownership percentages prior
to the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights have been waived by the adoption of a special
resolution by holders of three-fourths of the shares voted on such resolution, unless our Company has obtained
government approval to issue without such rights. However, if the law of the jurisdiction that you are in does not
permit the exercise of such pre-emptive rights without us filing an offering document or registration statement with
the applicable authority in such jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre-emptive rights unless we make
such a filing. We may elect not to file a registration statement in relation to pre-emptive rights otherwise available by
Indian law to you. To the extent that you are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of the Equity
Shares, your proportional interests in us would be reduced.

50. There may not be an active or liquid market for our Equity Shares, which may cause the price of the Equity
Shares to fall and may limit your ability to sell the Equity Shares.
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The price at which the Equity Shares will trade after this Issue will be determined by the marketplace and may be
influenced by many factors, including:

our financial results and the financial results of the companies in the businesses we operate in;

the history of, and the prospects for, our business and the sectors in which we compete;

the valuation of publicly traded companies that are engaged in business activities similar to us; and
significant developments in India’s economic liberalization and deregulation policies.

In addition, the Indian equity share markets have from time to time experienced significant price and volume
fluctuations that have affected the market prices for the securities of Indian companies. As a result, investors in the
Equity Shares may experience a decrease in the value of the Equity Shares regardless of our operating performance
or prospects.

51. Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limit our ability to attract
foreign investors, which may adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-residents and
residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the requirements specified by the
RBI. If the transfer of shares is not in compliance with such requirements or falls under any of the specified exceptions,
then prior approval of the RBI will be required. In addition, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds
from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no-
objection or tax clearance certificate from the income tax authority. Additionally, the Indian government may impose
foreign exchange restrictions in certain emergency situations, including situations where there are sudden fluctuations
in interest rates or exchange rates, where the Indian government experiences extreme difficulty in stabilizing the
balance of payments or where there are substantial disturbances in the financial and capital markets in India. These
restrictions may require foreign investors to obtain the Indian government’s approval before acquiring Indian
securities or repatriating the interest or dividends from those securities or the proceeds from the sale of those securities.
There can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI or any other government agency can be obtained
on any particular terms or at all.
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SECTION III - INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

This Issue has been authorised through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on November 11, 2024,

pursuant to Section 62(1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The following is a summary of this Issue and should be read in conjunction with and is qualified entirely by the

information detailed in “Terms of the Issue” on page 170.

Equity Shares proposed to be issued

Up to 4,95,80,000 Rights Equity Shares

Rights Entitlements

11 Rights Equity Shares for every 30 Equity
Shares held on the Record Date.

Record Date Thursday, March 20, 2025
Face value per Equity Share %5
Issue Price per Rights Equity Share %10/~

Issue Size

Up to % 4,958.00 lakhs*
*Assuming full subscription

Equity Shares issued prior to the Issue

13,53,35,902 Equity Shares of X 5 each **

Equity Shares subscribed prior to the Issue

13,53,30,684 Equity Shares of X 5 each

Equity Shares paid up prior to the Issue

13,53,30,684 Equity Shares of X 5 each

Equity Shares issued after the Issue (assuming full
subscription for and allotment of the Rights Entitlement)

18,49,15,902 Equity Shares of X 5 each

Equity Shares subscribed and paid-up after the Issue
(assuming full subscription for and allotment of the Rights
Entitlement)

18,49,10,684 Equity Shares of X 5 each

Security Codes

ISIN: INE546Y01022
BSE: 540901
NSE: PRAXIS
ISIN for
INE546Y20030

Rights Entitlements:

Use of Issue Proceeds

For details, see “Objects of the Issue” on page
48.

Terms of the Issue

For details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page
170.

Terms of Payment

The full amount of the Issue Price being X 10/-
will be payable on application.

**Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement under section 230 to 232 of Companies Act, between Future Retail Limited
(“FRL”) and Bluerock eServices Private Limited (“BSPL”) and our Company and their respective Shareholders,
5,218 Equity Shares of the Company are held in abeyance as against 104,371 Equity Shares of FRL, which are held

in abeyance.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was originally incorporated on January 31, 2011, under the Companies Act, 1956 as GRN Energy
Private Limited with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai (“RoC”). Further, the name of our Company
was changed to GRN Retail Private Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation was issued on December 21, 2016,
by RoC. Furthermore, the name of our Company was changed to Praxis Home Retail Private Limited and a fresh
certificate of incorporation was issued on January 5, 2017, by RoC. Thereafter, our Company was converted to a
public limited company and the name of our Company was changed to Praxis Home Retail Limited and a fresh
certificate of incorporation was issued by the RoC on June 21, 2017.

Registered and Corporate Office, Corporate Identity Number and Registration Number

Praxis Home Retail Limited

2nd Floor, Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar
Off Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Near Talav,
Jogeshwari East, Mumbai — 400 060
Telephone: +91 22 4518 4399

E-mail: investorrelations(@praxisretail.in
Website: www.praxisretail.in

Corporate Identity Number: L52100MH2011PLC212866
Registration Number: 212866
Changes in the Registered Office Address

On June 2, 2011, our registered office was shifted from 21-22, Parekh Vora Chambers, 66, Nagindas Master Road,
Fort, Mumbai 400 001 to 32-D, Khotachi Wadi, Ideal Wafer House Compound, Girgaum, Mumbai 400 004. Further,
on July 20, 2017, our registered office was shifted from 32-D, Khotachi Wadi, Ideal Wafer House Compound,
Girgaum, Mumbai 400 004 to iThink Techno Campus, Jolly Board Tower D, Ground Floor, Kanjurmarg (East),
Mumbai 400 042. Our registered office further shifted to 2nd Floor, Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off Jogeshwari-
Vikhroli Link Road, Near Talav, Jogeshwari East, Mumbai — 400 060 with effect from July 1, 2024,

Address of the RoC

Our Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai, which is situated at the
following address:

Registrar of Companies
Registrar of Companies
100, Everest,

Marine Drive

Mumbai - 400 002

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Charu Srivastava

2nd Floor, Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar
Off Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Near Talav,
Jogeshwari East, Mumbai — 400 060
Telephone: +91 22 4518 4399

E-mail: investorrelations@praxisretail.in

Statutory Auditors of our Company

M/s Singhi & Co, Chartered Accountants
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Contact Person: Ravi Kapoor
Telephone: +91 22 — 6662 5537
E-mail: ravikapoor@singhico.com
Firm registration no. 302049E
Peer Review: 014484

Independent Auditor of our Company
M/s DKMH & Co, Chartered Accountants

Contact Person: Manish Kankani
Telephone: +91 97691 68037
E-mail: manishkankani@dmkhca.in
Firm registration no. 116886W
Peer Review: 016619

Lead Managers to the Issue

Prime Securities Limited

Telephone: +91 22 61842525

Email: projectorchid@primesec.com

Investor Grievance Email: projectorchid@primesec.com
Website: www.primesec.com

Contact Person: Apurva Doshi

SEBI Registration No.: INM000000750

New Berry Capitals Private Limited

Telephone: +91 22 4881 8446

Email: mb@newberry.in

Investor Grievance Email: grievances@newberry.in
Website: www.newberry.in

Contact Person: Ankur Sharma

SEBI Registration No.: INM000012999

Statement of responsibilities

Since Prime Securities Limited and New Berry Capitals Private Limited are Lead Managers to the Issue, and all the
responsibilities pertaining to co-ordination and other activities, in relation to the Issue, shall be performed by them.

Legal Advisor to the Issue

M/s. Crawford Bayley & Co.
4th Floor, State Bank Building
N.G.N Vaidya Marg, Fort
Mumbai — 400 023
Mabharashtra, India
Telephone: +91 22 2266 3353

Registrar to the Issue

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park,

LBS Marg, Surya Nagar, Gandhi Nagar,

Vikhroli (West),

Mumbai — 400 083,
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Maharashtra, India.

Telephone: +91 810 811 4949

E-mail: praxis.rights2025@mpms.mufg.com

Investor grievance E-mail: praxis.rights2025@mpms.mufg.com
Website: https://in.mpms.mufg.com/

Contact Person: Shanti Gopalkrishnan

SEBI Registration No.: INR000004058

Investors may contact the Registrar or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue or post-Issue
related matter. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar, with a copy to the
SCSBs, giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s), E-mail address of the sole/ first
holder, folio number or demat account number, number of Rights Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked, ASBA
Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSBs where the Application Form or the plain paper application,
as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip (. For details
on the ASBA process, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 170.

Expert
Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinion:

Our Company has received a written consent dated July 30, 2025 from our Statutory Auditors, M/s Singhi & Co,
Chartered Accountants, to include their name in this Letter of Offer and as an “expert”, as defined under Section 2(38)
of the Companies Act 2013, to the extent and in their capacity as statutory auditors of our Company and in respect of
the inclusion of their reports on Audited Financial Statements, included in this Letter of Offer, and such consent has
not been withdrawn as of the date of this Letter of Offer.

Our Company has received a written consent dated July 30, 2025 from M/s DMKH & Co., Independent Chartered
Accountants, to include their name in this Letter of Offer and as an “expert”, as defined under Section 2(38) of the
Companies Act 2013, to the extent and in respect of the inclusion of the statement of special tax benefits dated July
30, 2025 included in this Letter of Offer, and such consent has not been withdrawn as of the date of this Letter of
Offer.

Banker to the Company

HDFC Bank Limited

Damji Shamji Bldg No: 78, Ground Floor, Nr Kanjurmarg Railway Station,
Kanjurmarg West, Mumbai — 400078

Contact Person: Alpita Chavan

Telephone: 9892149412

E-mail: alpita.chavan@hdfcbank.com

Website: www.hdfcbank.com

CIN: L65920MH1994PLC080618

Banker to the Issue and Refund Banker

HDFC Bank Limited

Damji Shamji Bldg No: 78, Ground Floor, Nr Kanjurmarg Railway Station,
Kanjurmarg West, Mumbai — 400078

Contact Person: Alpita Chavan

Telephone: 9892149412

E-mail: alpita.chavan@hdfcbank.com

Website: www.hdfcbank.com

CIN: L65920MH1994PLC080618

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks
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The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as the SCSBs for the ASBA process is provided on the website
of SEBI at http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and updated from time to time.
For a list of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive the ASBA Forms from the Designated
Intermediaries, please refer to the above-mentioned link.

Issue Schedule

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking
hours on the dates mentioned below:

Issue Opening Date Thursday, August 7, 2025
Last Date for On Market Renunciation of Rights Tuesday, August 12, 2025
Entitlements”

Issue Closing Date” Monday, August 18, 2025
Finalization of Basis of Allotment (on or about) Friday, August 22, 2025
Date of Allotment (on or about) Tuesday, August 26, 2025
Date of Credit (on or about) Monday, September 01, 2025
Date of Listing (on or about) Friday, September 05, 2025

*Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in
such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the
Issue Closing Date.

*Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine
from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).
Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have not
provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to provide their
demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing
Date, i.e., Monday, August 18, 2025, to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat
suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, i.c.,
Monday, August 18, 2025.

Investors are advised to ensure that the Applications are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Our Company,
the Lead Managers or the Registrar to the Issue will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of
Applications on or before the Issue Closing Date. For details on submitting Application Forms, see “Terms of the
Issue” beginning on page 170.

The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such
respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar at https:/in.mpms.mufg.com/ after keying in
their respective details along with other security control measures implemented there at. For further details, see “Terms
of the Issue” on page 170.

Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before
Issue Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date.
No Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were
purchased from market and purchaser will lose the premium paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons who are
credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make an Application to apply for Equity Shares offered under Rights
Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered under Issue.

Credit Rating

This being a Rights Issue of Equity Shares, the appointment of a credit rating agency is not required.

Debenture Trustee

This being a Rights Issue of Equity Shares, the appointment of debenture trustee is not required.
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Monitoring Agency

Since the Issue size does not exceed X 10,000 Lakhs there is no requirement to appoint a monitoring agency in relation
to the Issue under SEBI ICDR Regulation.

Appraising Entity

None of the purposes for which the Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilized have been financially appraised by any
banks or financial institution or any other independent agency.

Underwriting
This Issue is not underwritten and our Company has not entered into any underwriting arrangement.
Filing

This Letter of Offer is being filed with the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE and NSE as per the provisions of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. Further, in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company shall file the copy of this Letter of Offer with
the SEBI at its office located at SEBI Bhavan, Plot No. C4-A, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai 400 051, Maharashtra, India and through the SEBI intermediary portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in in terms
of the SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 dated January 19, 2018, for the
purpose of their information and dissemination on its website.

Minimum Subscription
The objects of the Issue do not involve financing of capital expenditure.

Our Promoter, Kishore Biyani, by letter dated December 16, 2024, (the “Promoter Subscription Letter”) and by a
subsequent reaffirmation letter dated July 28, 2025, issued on behalf of the Promoter Group of the Company, except
Future Corporate Resources Private Limited, has confirmed and ensured the following:

1. to subscribe to their Rights Entitlements in the Issue or renounce a portion of their Rights Entitlements in
favour of the Promoters or other member(s) of our Promoter Group or in favour of existing shareholders of
the Company or third party investors;

il. to subscribe to additional Rights Equity Shares including subscribing to any unsubscribed portion in the
Issue, if any, or subscription pursuant to Rights Entitlement acquired through renunciation, either individually
or jointly and / or severally with any other members of the Promoter Group, subject to compliance with the
minimum public shareholding requirements, as prescribed under the SCRR, the Companies Act, the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Listing Regulations, the SEBI Takeover Regulations and other applicable laws
/ regulations.

The acquisition of Rights Equity Shares by our Promoters and our Promoter Group, over and above their Rights
Entitlements, as applicable, or subscription to the unsubscribed portion of this Issue, shall not result in a change of
control of the management of our Company. Our Company is and will be in compliance with Regulation 38 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements under the
Applicable Law.

Our other Promoter, Future Corporate Resources Private Limited (“FCRPL”), holding only a 0.31% shareholding of
our Company, has been admitted to corporate insolvency resolution proceedings (““CIRP”’) by the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench (“NCLT”), consequent to the proceedings initiated by the Central Bank of
India (“Financial Creditor”) against FCRPL under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”).
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Further, an Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) has been appointed by the NCLT to take control of FCRPL and
the erstwhile management has been suspended in accordance with the provisions of the IBC. Therefore, Mr. Kishore
Biyani is unable to provide confirmation on behalf of FCRPL regarding its participation to subscribing or renouncing
to the Rights Entitlements of FCRPL. However, if any such instructions are received from the IRP of FCRPL, our
Company / Board shall duly consider such subscription or renouncement, as the case may be.

Accordingly, the minimum subscription criteria provided under Regulation 86 (1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations shall
apply to this Issue. In accordance with Regulation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if our Company does not receive
minimum subscription of at least 90% of the Equity Shares being offered under this Issue, on an aggregate basis, our
Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received within 4 (four) days from the Issue Closing Date in
accordance with the SEBI Master Circular. If there is a delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed by
applicable laws, our Company will pay interest for the delayed period at rate as prescribed under the applicable laws.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The share capital of our Company as on date of this Letter of Offer and the details of the Equity Shares proposed to
be issued in the Issue, and the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital after the Issue is set forth below:

(In X lakhs, except share data)
Aggregate value at Aggregate value at issue

Particulars A .
nominal value price
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
30,00,00,000 Equity Shares of T 5 each 15,000.00
6,30,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of T 100 each 630.00
TOTAL AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL 15,630.00
ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL
13,53,35,902 Equity Shares of ¥ 5 each” 6,766.80
6,30,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each® 630.00
SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
13,53,30,684 Equity Shares of ¥ 5 each” 6,766.53
6,30,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each® 630.00

PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER"
Up to 4,95,80,000 Rights Equity Shares (for Eligible Equity

Shareholders) of 3 5 each 2AT9.00 4,958.00
ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL AFTER THE ISSUE()®

18,49,15,902 Equity Shares of X 5 each 9,245.80

6,30,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each® 630.00

SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

AFTER THE ISSUE

18,49,10,684 Equity Shares of ¥ 5 each” 9,245.53

6,30,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each® 630.00

SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT

Before the Issue 13,297.71
After the Issue 15,776.71

) The Issue has been authorised by our Board through its resolution dated November 11, 2024, pursuant to Section
62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions.

) Assuming full subscription by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of the Rights Equity Shares.

# Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement under section 230 to 232 of Companies Act between Future Retail Limited
(“FRL”) and Bluerock eServices Private Limited (“BSPL ") and the Company and their respective shareholders,
5,218 Equity Shares of the Company are held in abeyance as against 104,371 Equity Shares of FRL, which are held
in abeyance.

*Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment, Allotment and deduction of Issue expenses.

@ Allotted to Future Enterprise Limited as shareholder of BSPL, pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement under
section 230 to 232 of Companies Act between FRL and BSPL and the Company.

Notes to Capital Structure
1. Shareholding Pattern of our Company

1. The details of the shareholding pattern of our Company as on June 30, 2025, can be accessed on the website
of BSE at https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/praxis-home-retail-1td/praxis/540901/shareholding-
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pattern/ and NSE at https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-
pattern?symbol=PRA XIS &tabIndex=equity

ii. The details of shareholders of our Company holding 1% or more of the paid-up capital as on June 30, 2025
can be accessed on the website of BSE at
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?scripcd=540901&qtrid=126.00&QtrNam

e=Jun-25 and NSE at https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-
pattern?symbol=PRAXIS&tabIndex=equity

iil. The details of the Equity Shares held by our Promoter and members of our Promoter Group as on June 30,
2025, including details of Equity Shares which are locked-in, pledged or encumbered can be accessed on the
website of BSE at
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=540901&qtrid=126.00&QtrName
=Jun-25 and NSE at https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-
pattern?symbol=PRAXIS&tabIndex=equity

iv. Statement showing holding of Equity Shares of persons belonging to the category “Public” including
shareholders holding more than 1% of the total number of Equity Shares as on June 30, 2025, can be accessed
at
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?scriped=540901&qtrid=126.00&QtrNam
e=Jun-25 and NSE at https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-
pattern?symbol=PRA XIS &tabIndex=equity

2. Details of outstanding instruments as on the date of this Letter of Offer
Praxis Home Retail Limited Share Value Appreciation Rights Plan -2018

Our Company has formulated Praxis Home Retail Limited Share Value Appreciation Rights Plan-2018 pursuant to a
special resolution passed by the shareholders of our Company on September 18, 2018 (“SVAR Plan-2018”). The
purpose of the SVAR Plan-2018 is to reward the Employees of the Company for their performance and to motivate
them to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Company. The Company also intends to use the SVAR Plan-
2018 is to retain talent working with the Company through Employee Stock Option / Stock Appreciation Rights. The
Company at its Eighth Annual General Meeting held on September 21, 2019 amended the Praxis SVAR Plan- 2018
to the effect that the number of ESOPs / SARs that may be granted to the Employee(s) of the Company or of its
subsidiary company(ies) under the Plan, in any financial year shall be less than 1% (one percent) of the issued equity
share capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company, however number of ESOPs/ SARs
that may be granted to any specific Employee(s) of the Company or of its subsidiary company(ies) in aggregate under
the Plan may exceed 1% (one percent) of the issued equity share capital (excluding outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the Company, over the tenure of the Plan

As on June 30, 2025, the details of options pursuant to SVAR Plan-2018 are as follows:

Particulars Grant I Grant 11
Total No. of Options under the Plan 9,75,000
Options granted under SVAR Plan — 2018 3,07,500 1,59,000
Options outstanding but not exercised Nil Nil
Options exercised Nil Nil
Options cancelled/ lapsed* 3,07,500 1,59,000
Options outstanding and vested but not exercised Nil Nil
Total Options un-granted (Pool)** Nil

* Cancelled/lapsed due to resignation
** The Board of our Company has cancelled all ungranted options under the SVAR Plan -2018 and hence, no further
grants shall be offered under the SVAR Plan — 2018

Praxis Home Retail Limited Employee Stock Option Plan — 2021
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Our Company has formulated Praxis Home Retail Limited Employee Stock Option Plan — 2021 pursuant to a special
resolution passed by the shareholders of our Company on December 13, 2021 (“Praxis ESOP — 2021”). The purpose
of the Praxis ESOP - 2021 is to reward the Employees of the Company for their performance and to motivate them to
contribute to the growth and profitability of the Company. The Company also intends to use this Praxis ESOP — 2021
is to retain talent working with the Company through Employee Stock Option.

As on June 30, 2025, the details of options pursuant to Praxis ESOP — 2021 are as follows:

Particulars Grant
Total number of options under the Plan 20,00,000
Options granted under Praxis ESOP - 2021 13,05,000
Options outstanding but not exercised Nil
Options exercised 8,37,000
Options cancelled/ lapsed* 4,68,000
Options outstanding and vested but not exercised# Nil
Total Options un-granted (Pool)** Nil

* Cancelled/lapsed due to resignation
** The Board of our Company has cancelled all ungranted options under the Praxis ESOP - 2021 and hence, no
further grants shall be offered under the Praxis ESOP — 2021

Praxis Home Retail Limited Employee Stock Option Plan — 2024

Our Company has formulated Praxis Home Retail Limited Employee Stock Option Plan — 2024 pursuant to a special
resolution passed by the shareholders of our Company on April 27, 2024 (“Praxis ESOP — 2024”). The purpose of
the Praxis ESOP - 2024 is to reward the Employees of the Company for their performance and to motivate them to
contribute to the growth and profitability of the Company. The Company also intends to use this Praxis ESOP — 2024
is to retain talent working with the Company through Employee Stock Option.

As on June 30, 2025, the details of options pursuant to Praxis ESOP — 2024 are as follows:

Particulars Grant
Total number of options under the Plan 30,00,000
Options granted under Praxis ESOP - 2024 5,00,000
Options outstanding but not exercised 5,00,000
Options exercised Nil
Options cancelled/ lapsed Nil
Options outstanding and vested but not exercised Nil
Total Options un-granted (Pool) 25,00,000

Equity Share Warrants allotted on preferential basis by our Company
On May 9, 2024, our Company allotted 45,07,629 Equity Share Warrants, also on a preferential basis, carrying an
entitlement to subscribe to an equivalent number of Equity Shares with a face value of 5 each. These were priced at

%43.26 per warrant, including a premium of ¥38.26 per warrant, resulting in a total consideration of ¥19.50 crores.

As on June 30, 2025, the details of the outstanding warrants are as follows:

Equity Share | Date of | Equity Share Warrants | Equity Share | Equity Share
Warrant Holder | Allotment | originally allotted Warrants Exercised Warrants outstanding
Benette Coleman May 9, 45,07,629 Nil 45,07,629

& Co. 2024

Except share warrants mentioned above and stock options granted and outstanding under Praxis ESOP - 2024, as on
the date of this Letter of Offer, there are no other outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert debentures, loans
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or other convertible instruments into Equity Shares or any other right, which would entitle any person to any option
to receive Equity Shares.

3. Except as disclosed below, no Equity Shares held by our Promoters or Promoter Group have been locked-in,
pledged or encumbered as on June 30, 2025:

Shareholder Number of Equity Equity Shares as a percentage of
Shares total shares

Equity Shares locked-in/ encumbered/pledged
None Nil Nil

4.  Except as disclosed below, our Promoters and Promoter Group have not acquired any Equity Shares in the one
year immediately preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer with Designated Stock Exchange except the

following.
Sr. Name of Pre- No. of Post- Mode”* Date of
No shareholder acquisition Equity acquisition Acquisition
holding Shares holding
acquired
1. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

5. Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group

Our Promoter, Kishore Biyani, by letter dated December 16, 2024, (the “Promoter Subscription Letter”’) and
by a subsequent reaffirmation letter dated July 28, 2025, issued on behalf of the Promoter Group of the Company,
except Future Corporate Resources Private Limited, has confirmed and ensured the following:

1. to subscribe to their Rights Entitlements in the Issue or renounce a portion of their Rights Entitlements
in favour of the Promoters or other member(s) of our Promoter Group or in favour of existing
shareholders of the Company or third party investors;

il. to subscribe to additional Rights Equity Shares including subscribing to any unsubscribed portion in the
Issue, if any, or subscription pursuant to Rights Entitlement acquired through renunciation, either
individually or jointly and / or severally with any other members of the Promoter Group, subject to
compliance with the minimum public shareholding requirements, as prescribed under the SCRR, the
Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Listing Regulations, the SEBI Takeover
Regulations and other applicable laws / regulations.

The acquisition of Rights Equity Shares by our Promoters and our Promoter Group, over and above their Rights
Entitlements, as applicable, or subscription to the unsubscribed portion of this Issue, shall not result in a change
of control of the management of our Company. Our Company is and will be in compliance with Regulation 38
of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding
requirements under the Applicable Law.

Our other Promoter, Future Corporate Resources Private Limited (“FCRPL”), holding only a 0.31%
shareholding of our Company, has been admitted to corporate insolvency resolution proceedings (“CIRP”) by
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench (“NCLT”), consequent to the proceedings
initiated by the Central Bank of India (“Financial Creditor”’) against FCRPL under Section 7 of the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”).

Further, an Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) has been appointed by the NCLT to take control of FCRPL
and the erstwhile management has been suspended in accordance with the provisions of the IBC. Therefore, Mr.
Kishore Biyani is unable to provide confirmation on behalf of FCRPL regarding its participation to subscribing
or renouncing to the Rights Entitlements of FCRPL. However, if any such instructions are received from the
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IRP of FCRPL, our Company / Board shall duly consider such subscription or renouncement, as the case may
be.

The ex-rights price of the Equity Shares as per Regulation 10(4)(b) of SEBI SAST Regulations is X 13.46.
At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares of our Company.

All Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares as date of this Letter of Offer.
Further, the Rights Equity Shares allotted pursuant to the Issue shall be fully paid up.
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

We intend to utilize the gross proceeds raised through the Issue (the “Gross Proceeds”) after deducting the Issue
related expenses (“Net Proceeds”) for the following objects:

1. To reduce the current liabilities by repaying part of our Borrowings;
. To reduce the current liabilities by repaying part of our outstanding trade payables;
3. General corporate purposes.
(Collectively, referred to as the “Objects™)
The main object clause of our Memorandum of Association enables our Company to undertake its existing activities.

Issue Proceeds

The details of the Issue Proceeds are set forth in the following table:

(R in lakhs)
Particulars Estimated Amount
Gross Proceeds* 4,958.00
Less: Estimated Issue related expenses 104.54
Net Proceeds 4,853.46

*Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment. The amount utilized for
general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.

Requirement of funds and utilisation of Net Proceeds

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in accordance with the details set forth in the following table:

(R in lakhs)
Particulars Estimated Amount
{Rs. In lakhs}
To reduce the current liabilities by repaying part of our Borrowings 1,000.00
To reduce the current liabilities by repaying part of our outstanding trade payables 2,800.00
General corporate purposes* 1,053.46
Net Proceeds* 4,853.46

*Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment. The amount utilized for
general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.

Utilization of Net Proceeds and schedule of implementation

We propose to deploy the Net Proceeds towards the Objects in accordance with the estimated schedule of
implementation and deployment of funds set forth in the table below:

(R in lakhs)
Sr. Particulars Amount to be deployed Estimated deployment of
No. from Net Proceeds Net Proceeds
Fiscal 2026
1. To reduce the current liabilities by repaying 1,000.00 1,000.00
part of our Borrowings
2. To reduce the current liabilities by repaying 2,800.00 2,800.00
part of our outstanding trade payables
3. General corporate purposes™ 1,053.46 1,053.46
Net Proceeds** 4,853.46 4,853.46

* The amount utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.
** Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment.
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The above fund requirements are based on our current business plan, management estimates and have not been
appraised by any bank or financial institution. Our Company’s funding deployment schedule are subject to revision
in the future, in compliance with the applicable laws, at the discretion of our Board and will not be subject to
monitoring by any independent agency. The Net Proceeds are estimated to be deployed immediately upon receipt of
proceeds from the Rights Issue and, in any event, within 60 calendar days of receipt. Further, in case the Net Proceeds
are not completely utilised in a scheduled Fiscal Year due to any reason, the same would be utilised (in part or full) in
the subsequent Fiscal Year i.e. Fiscal 2026. For further details, please see the section titled “Risk factors - The
deployment of funds raised through this Issue shall not be subject to monitoring by any monitoring Agency and shall
be purely dependent on the discretion of the management of our Company” on page 28.

In case of any increase in the actual utilisation of funds earmarked for any of the Objects of the Issue or a shortfall in
raising requisite capital from the Net Proceeds, such additional funds for a particular activity will be met through
means available to us, including by way of incremental debt and/or internal accruals.

Means of Finance

The requirements of funds for the Objects of the Issue detailed above are intended to be funded from the Net Proceeds.
Accordingly, our Company confirms that there is no requirement for it to make firm arrangements of finance through
verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised through the

Issue.

Details of the Objects of the Issue

1. To reduce the current liabilities by repaying part of our Borrowings.
Our Company has entered into various financial arrangements over time which primarily involve inter corporate
Deposits (ICDs) for meeting our working capital requirements and other general corporate purpose. The
borrowings facilities availed by our Company include borrowing in the form of unsecured and short-term
borrowings. As of March 31, 2025, we had total outstanding borrowings of ¥ 11,783.15 lakhs. Our Company
proposes to utilise an estimated amount of X 1,000.00 lakhs from the Net Proceeds towards full or partial
repayment or pre-payment of certain unsecured and short-term borrowings availed by our Company. The details
of the borrowings availed by our Company, which are proposed to be fully or partially repaid from the Net
Proceeds are mentioned below:
Name of the |[Nature off Total Principal |Interest| Purpose |Repayme|Prepayment| Amount
Lender Borrowin| Principal Amount rate of nt penalty/ |proposed to
g Amount | outstanding as | (% per | availing | schedule | conditions | be repaid
(Rs. in on March 31, |annum}| loan from Net
lakhs} 2025 Proceeds
{Rs. In lakhs} {Rs. In
lakhs}
Sahi Trading [ICD 500.00 500.00 12%(Working |As perNo 500.00]
Private Limited Capital |demand [Prepayment
Penalty
Rathod ICD 500.00 500.00 12%(Working |As perNo 500.00]
Fintrade Capital |demand [Prepayment
Private Limited Penalty
1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

The selection of borrowings proposed to be repaid/pre-paid amongst our borrowing arrangements availed is based on
various factors including (i) ensuring borrowing proposed to be repaid/pre-paid are from non-related lenders, (ii) cost
of borrowing, including applicable interest rates (iii), any conditions attached to the borrowings restricting our ability
to prepay the borrowings and time taken to fulfil or obtain waiver for such requirements, and (iv) other commercial
considerations including, among others, the amount of the borrowing outstanding and the remaining tenor of the
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borrowings. However, the aggregate amount to be utilised from the Net Proceeds towards repayment or prepayment
of borrowings in part or full, would not exceed X 1,000.00 lakhs.

We believe that such repayment and/or pre-payment will help reduce our outstanding indebtedness on a consolidated
basis, debt servicing costs improve our debt-to-equity ratio and enable utilisation of our accruals for further investment
in our business growth and expansion. Additionally, we believe that the leverage capacity of our Company will
improve our ability to raise further resources in the future to fund our potential business development opportunities
and plans to grow and expand our business.

If the Net Proceeds are insufficient to the extent required for making payments for such costs, such excessive amount
shall be met from our internal accruals.

2. To reduce the current liabilities by repaying part of our outstanding trade payables

As on March 31, 2025, we have < 9,417.23 lakhs outstanding against our trade payables to 724 parties, of which 722
are non-related parties. Our Company intends to utilize X 2,800.00 lakhs from the Net Proceeds of the Issue to pay
non-related party trade payables. Since, the outstanding trade payables cannot be met from our existing debt facilities
and supplier credit, we expect the same to be met through a fresh infusion of funds by way of equity.

The following are our outstanding trade payables as on March 31, 2025:

(< in lakhs)
Particulars Total amount of outstanding*
Amount due to related parties 118.46
Trade Payables other than related parties 9,298.77
Total 9,417.23

* Qur Statutory Auditor, M/s. Singhi & Co, Chartered Accountants, pursuant to their certificate dated July 30, 2025,
have confirmed these details of outstanding trade payables and the amount outstanding.

Out of the above outstanding trade payables as on March 31, 2025, we intend to utilize X 2,800.00 lakhs from the Net
Proceeds of the Issue to pay select trade payables who are non-related parties. The selection of outstanding trade
payables to be paid from the Net Proceeds shall be based on various factors, including, amongst others (i) amount
outstanding to our Company; (ii) terms and conditions with such trade payables and (iii) other commercial
considerations as per decision of our management. Further, considering that these trade payables, routinely provide
payment credit to our Company it is possible that some of these trade payables may get paid in routine course of
operations from the routine cash flow and internal accruals of the Company, such trade payables would be substituted
with other trade payables and those would be paid from the Net Proceeds.

3. General Corporate Purposes

The Net Proceeds will first be utilized for the Objects as set out above. Subject to this, our Company intends to deploy
balance left out of the Net Proceeds, aggregating to X 1,053.46 Lakhs, towards general corporate purposes and the
business requirements of our Company, as approved by our management, from time to time, subject to such utilization
for general corporate purposes not exceeding 25% of the Gross Proceeds from the Issue, in compliance with the SEBI
ICDR Regulations. Such utilisation towards general corporate purposes shall be to drive our business growth,
including, amongst other things including but not limited funding our growth opportunities, strengthening marketing
capabilities and brand building exercises, and strategic initiatives and any other purpose as permitted by applicable
laws; subject to meeting regulatory requirements and obtaining necessary approvals / consents, as applicable.

The quantum of utilization of funds towards any of the above purposes will be determined based on the amount
actually available under this head and the business requirements of our Company, from time to time. Our Board will
have flexibility in utilizing surplus amounts, if any.

Estimated Issue related expenses

The total expenses of the Issue are estimated to be approximately X 104.54 lakhs. The expenses of the Issue include,
among others, fees of the Lead Managers, fees of the Registrar to the Issue, fees of the other advisors, printing and

50



stationery expenses, advertising, and marketing expenses and other expenses.
The estimated Issue expenses are as under:

Table: Estimated Issue Expenses

Sr. Activity Estimated % of Total % of
No. Amount Estimated Total
(in Z lakh)* Issue Issue
Expenses* Size*
1 Fees to Lead Managers, Registrar, Legal Advisors, and other 71.25 68.16 1.44
professionals
2 Advertising and marketing expenses 2.50 2.39 0.05
3 Regulators including SEBI and Stock Exchanges 23.75 22.72 0.48
4 Printing and distribution of issue stationery 3.79 3.62 0.08
5 Other expenses (stamp duty) 0.25 0.24 0.01
6 Other expenses (miscellaneous) 3.00 2.87 0.06
Total estimated expenses 104.54 100 2.11

* Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment and actual Allotment. In case of any difference between the estimated
Issue related expenses and actual expenses incurred, the shortfall or excess shall be adjusted with the amount
allocated towards general corporate purposes. All Issue related expenses will be paid out of the Gross Proceeds from
the Issue.

Appraisal of the Objects
None of the Objects for which the Net Proceeds will be utilized have been appraised by any agency.
Interim Use of Funds

Pending utilization for the purposes described above, we intend to deposit the Net Proceeds only in scheduled
commercial banks included in the Second Schedule of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 or in any such other
manner as permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations or as may be permitted by SEBI. We confirm that pending
utilization of the Net Proceeds for the Objects of the Issue, our Company shall not utilize the Net Proceeds for any
investment in the equity markets, real estate or related products.

Bridge Loan

Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the date of this Letter of
Offer, which are proposed to be repaid from the Net Proceeds.

Monitoring Utilization of Funds from Issue

As this is an Issue for an amount less than 310,000 lakhs, there is no requirement for the appointment of a monitoring
agency. The Board or its duly authorized committees will monitor the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue. Our
Company will disclose the utilization of the Issue Proceeds, including interim use, under a separate head along with
details, for all such Issue Proceeds that have not been utilized. Our Company will indicate investments, if any, of
unutilized Issue Proceeds in the balance sheet of our Company for the relevant Financial Years subsequent to the
listing.

We will also on an annual basis, prepare a statement of the funds which have been utilized for purposes other than
those stated in this Letter of Offer, if any, and place it before the Audit Committee and the Board. Such disclosure
will be made only until all the Issue Proceeds have been utilized in full. The statement shall be reviewed by the Audit
Committee and our Statutory Auditor for their comments, if any, on the same. Further, in accordance with Regulation
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32 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, we will furnish to the Stock Exchange on a quarterly basis, a statement including
deviations and variations, if any, in the utilization of the Issue Proceeds from the Objects of the Issue as stated above.

Strategic and Financial Partners to the Objects of the Issue
There are no strategic or financial partners to the Objects of the Issue.
Key Industry Regulations for the Objects of the Issue

No additional provisions of any acts, regulations, rules and other laws are or will be applicable to the Company for
the proposed Objects of the Issue.

Other Confirmations

Except as disclosed above, there is no material existing or anticipated transactions in relation to the utilisation of the
Net Proceeds with our Promoters, Directors or Key Management Personnel of our Company and no part of the Net
Proceeds will be paid as consideration to any of them. Except as disclosed above, none of our Promoters, members of

Promoter Group or Directors are interested in the Objects of the Issue.

Our Company does not require any material Government and regulatory approvals in relation to the Objects of the
Issue.
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STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS
To,

The Board of Directors

Praxis Home Retail Limited
2nd Floor, Knowledge House,
Shyam Nagar Off Jogeshwari-
Vikhroli Link Road, Near Talav,
Jogeshwari East, Mumbai,
Mabharashtra 400060.

Prime Securities Limited

1109 /1110, Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai,
Mabharashtra 400021.

New Berry Capitals Private Limited
A-602, Level 6,

Marathon NextGen Innova,
Ganapatrao Kadam Marg,

Lower Parel West, Mumbai,
Mabharashtra 400013.

(Prime Securities Limited and New Berry Capitals Private Limited with any other lead managers that may be
appointed in connection with the issue, the “Lead Managers”)

Dear Sirs,

Re: Statement of Special Tax Benefits available to Praxis Home Retail Limited (‘the Company’) and
shareholders of the Company under the applicable direct tax laws in India prepared in connection with the
proposed rights issue of equity shares of face value of Rs. 5 each of the Company (the “Issue”), in accordance
with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (“SEBI ICDR Regulations™)

This Statement is issued in accordance with the terms of our letter of engagement dated July 15, 2025, with the
company.

We hereby confirm that the enclosed statement in the Annexure I, states the possible special tax benefits under direct
tax laws i.e. Income tax Rules, 1962 as amended by the Finance Act, 2025, i.c., applicable for the Financial Year
2025-26 relevant to the Assessment Year 2026-27, as amended and presently in force in India (hereinafter referred to
as “Income Tax Laws”), and indirect tax laws i.e. the Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, Integrated Goods
and Services Tax Act, 2017, respective State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, Customs Act, 1962, Customs Tariff
Act, 1975 as amended, the rules and regulations, circulars and notifications issued there under, Foreign Trade Policy
presently in force in India, available to the Company and its shareholders.

Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company, its shareholders as the case may be, fulfilling the conditions
prescribed under the relevant provisions of the statute. Hence, the ability of the Company, its shareholders to derive
the special tax benefits is dependent upon their fulfilling such conditions, which based on business imperatives the
Company and its shareholders faces in the future, the Company and its shareholders may or may not choose to fulfill.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Statement cover only special tax benefits available to the Company and to the

shareholders of the Company and are not exhaustive and also do not cover any general tax benefits available to the
Company. Further, any benefits available under any other laws within or outside India have not been examined and
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covered by this Statement.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Annexure I are not exhaustive. This statement is only intended to provide
general information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice.
In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult
his or her own tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the Issue.
Neither are we suggesting nor advising the investor to invest in the Issue based on this statement.

The contents of the enclosed statement are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the
Company and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company.

We also consent to the references to us as “Experts” as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Section 26(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent of the certification provided hereunder and included in
the Letter of Offer “(Offer Document”) of the Company or in any other documents in connection with the Issue.

We hereby give consent to include this statement of special tax benefits in the Offer Documents and in any other
material used in connection with the Issue.

We confirm that while providing this certificate, we have complied with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on
Quality Control (SQC) 1, ‘Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements,’ issued by the ICAL

This certificate is issued for the sole purpose of the Issue, and can be used, in full or part, for inclusion in the Offer
Documents and any other material used in connection with the Issue, and for the submission of this certificate as may
be necessary, to any regulatory / statutory authority, recognized stock exchanges, any other authority as may be
required and/or for the records to be maintained by the Lead Manager in connection with the Issue and in accordance
with applicable law, and for the purpose of any defense the Lead Manager may wish to advance in any claim or
proceeding in connection with the contents of the Offer Documents.

This certificate may be relied on by the Company, Lead Manager, their affiliates and the legal counsel in relation to
the Issue.

We undertake to immediately update you, in writing, of any changes in the abovementioned information until the date
the Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue commence trading on the recognized stock exchanges. In the absence
of any such communication, you may assume that there is no change in respect of the matters covered in this certificate
until the date the Equity Shares commence trading on the recognized stock exchanges.

Yours faithfully,

For M/s DMKH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 116886W

CA. Manish Kankani

Partner

Membership No.: 158020
UDIN: 25158020BMIZPQ4919

Date: July 30, 2025
Place: Mumbai

CC:
M/s. Crawford Bayley & Co.
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State Bank Building, 4th Floor
NGN Vaidya Marg,
Fort, Mumbai — 400 023.

(Crawford Bayley & Co. referred to as the “Legal Counsel”)
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ANNEXURE I

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE DIRECT TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY,
SHAREHOLDERS AND MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY

The information provided below sets out the possible tax benefits available to Praxis Home Retail Limited (“the
Company”) and its shareholders, under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (‘the Act’) as amended by the Finance Act 2025,
i.e., applicable for the Financial Year 2025-26 relevant to the Assessment Year 2026-27, as amended and presently in
force in India (together, the “Direct Tax Laws”) and the Customs Tariff Act, 1975, the Central Goods and Services
Tax Act, 2017, the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Act,
2017, respective State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 and Goods and Services Tax (Compensation to States) Act,
2017 read with the relevant Central Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017, Integrated Goods and Services Tax Rules,
2017, Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Rules, State Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017 and notifications
issued under these Acts and Rules and the foreign trade policy.

It is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not intended to be a substitute for professional advice. Investors are
advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the tax implications of an investment in the equity shares
particularly in view of the fact that certain recently enacted legislation may not have a direct legal precedent or may
have a different interpretation on the benefits, which an investor can avail.

You should consult your own tax advisors concerning the Indian tax implications and consequences of purchasing,
owning and disposing of equity shares in your situation.

a. Special tax benefits available to the Company

There are no special tax benefits available to the Company under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 read
with the relevant Income Tax Rules, 1962, the Customs Tariff Act, 1975, the Central Goods and Services Tax Act,
2017, the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017,
respective State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 and Goods and Services Tax (Compensation to States) Act, 2017
read with the relevant Central Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017, Integrated Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017,
Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Rules, State Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017 and notifications issued
under these Acts and Rules and the foreign trade policy.

b. Special tax benefits available to Shareholders

The shareholders of the Company are also not eligible to any special tax benefits under the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 read with the relevant Income Tax Rules, 1962, the Customs Tariff Act, 1975 and / or Central
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, Union Territory Goods and Services
Tax Act, 2017, respective State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 and Goods and Services Tax (Compensation to
States) Act, 2017 read with the relevant Central Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017, Integrated Goods and Services
Tax Rules, 2017, Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Rules, State Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017 and
notifications issued under these Acts and Rules and the foreign trade policy.
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SECTION IV - ABOUT OUR COMPANY

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The industry related information in this chapter is derived from the reports titled “India Home Furniture Market
2024-2029” dated September 10, 2024, (referred as “Home Furniture Report”) prepared by Mordor Intelligence
Private Limited, except for other publicly available information as cited in this chapter. Neither we nor any other
person connected with the Issue has verified the information in the Home Furniture Report or other publicly available
information cited in this chapter. Further, the Home Furniture Report was prepared on the basis of information as of
specific dates which may no longer be current or reflect current trends. Opinions in the Home Furniture Report may
be based on estimates, projections, forecasts and assumptions that may prove to be incorrect. Prospective investors
are advised not to unduly rely on the Home Furniture Report.

Industry sources and publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from
sources generally believed to be reliable, but their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not
guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured and accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such
information.

MARKET INSIGHTS AND DYNAMICS OF INDIA HOME FURNITURE MARKET
MARKET OVERVIEW

The Indian home furniture market was valued at USD 21.4 billion in 2023. In 2023, the living room furniture segment
dominated the market, capturing 42.9% of the share. This was followed by the bedroom furniture segment, which
captured 26.0%, and the kitchen furniture segment, which captured 15.3%. The demand for residential furniture is
rising, driven by a surge in contract customer orders. Additionally, an uptick in single—and two-person households
is fuelling a need for compact, portable furniture. The home furniture market in India is witnessing growth, buoyed
by factors such as an expanding residential construction sector, increasing internet penetration, a growing preference
for eco-friendly products, and evolving lifestyle choices.

India Home Furniture Market (USD billion), 2020-2029
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India is the world's fourth-largest furniture consumer and the fifth-largest exporter. In 2023, the United States was
India's primary furniture export destination, accounting for 45.74% of its total sales. This was followed by Germany
(5.87%), the Netherlands (5.83%), the United Kingdom (5.15%), and France (4.86%). China dominated India's
furniture imports in 2023, capturing 49.38% of the total market shares. This was followed by Italy (6.8%), Germany
(6.69%), the United States (6.58%), and Malaysia (3.53%).

Furniture and Other Related Categories (Product Code: 94), Import and Export Value in USD Billion, India,
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(Product code: 94) - Furniture; bedding, mattresses, mattress supports, cushions, and similar stuffed furnishings;
luminaires and lighting fittings, not elsewhere specified or included illuminated signs, illuminated nameplates, and
the like; prefabricated buildings)

In terms of age bracket, the age group of 25-35 years has been considered as the prime target group by furniture
retailers in India. Based on cities, most of the demand for furniture products from organized companies has originated
from tier-1 cities. The furniture sector in India remains inward-focused and highly fragmented, with unorganized
players accounting for about 79% of the market. The trend of purchase of small furniture items, such as bean bags and
coffee tables, through online portals has gradually changed to higher volume sales of heavy furniture products.

International interest in the Indian furniture market is growing. This was already evident in the government’s 2013
approval of IKEA’s INR-10,500-crore FDI proposal, which aimed to establish ten stores over the next decade with
the help of associated infrastructure. Initially, IKEA announced plans to build 15 additional stores. Currently, the
brand operates in Hyderabad, Mumbai, and Bengaluru, and is poised to invest approximately INR 7,000 crore to
establish two stores in Gurugram and Noida, marking its entry into the National Capital Region. Looking ahead, IKEA
is gearing up to unveil its next investment phase in India by the end of 2024.
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MARKET DRIVERS, RETRAINTS AND OPPORTUNITIES
DRIVERS
Growth in Residential Real Estate in India

The Indian housing market is surging due to an increasing population and higher demand for affordable homes. Major
cities like Delhi, Mumbai, and Kolkata are witnessing a rise in demand for affordable housing and a heightened interest
in luxury options like villas, penthouses, and upscale apartments. The rise in the residential real estate sector has, in
turn, bolstered the home furniture market. This surge in real estate has translated into an increased demand for home
furniture, spanning from sofa sets and dining tables to beds and chairs. This trend is expected to continue in the coming
years. Traditionally, Indian consumers focused on elaborate furniture mainly for their living rooms. However, with
rising incomes and aspirations, this penchant for quality furnishings extends to other living spaces, including kitchens,
dining areas, and bedrooms.

The Indian real estate landscape is witnessing a resurgence, with transaction volumes in significant cities surging by
45-60% annually. In FY 2023, India’s residential property market hit a milestone, with home sales touching a record
high value of INR 3.47 lakh crore (USD 42 billion), marking an impressive 48% year-on-year increase. The sales
volume also witnessed a robust uptick, with 379,095 units sold, reflecting a 36% rise. Indian real estate developers
completed building around 558,000 houses by the end of 2023, particularly in the major urban hubs. Despite
challenges like high mortgage rates and property prices, 2023 witnessed a surge in demand for residential properties
across the top 8 Indian cities, driven by segments ranging from mid-income to luxury.

The evolution of the housing sector and the rapid expansion of metro cities are reshaping living standards, driving a
growing demand for new furniture. As urban populations increase and living spaces shrink, the need for space-efficient
goods is rising. Multi-functional furniture and homewares are becoming popular, offering enhanced convenience and
maximizing household space. This market growth is supported by socio-economic changes, a large young
demographic with substantial disposable incomes, and a desire to improve their lifestyles.

Growing Demand for Luxury Furniture Products

An increasing focus on stylish home decor is driving consumers towards unique, designer furniture, supported by
economic growth and rising incomes, especially in high-end households. The luxury furniture segment accounts for
15%-20% of India’s furniture market value, with Stanley Lifestyles Ltd holding a 10% share. The Indian government’s
‘Make in India’ initiative further boosts the organized furniture market.

Stanley, a luxury furniture brand, is experiencing 20% year-on-year growth. In June 2024, Stanley Lifestyles
inaugurated its flagship store in Ahmedabad, marking its first store since going public. This store collaborates with
Shivalik Group, a real estate developer. Currently, Stanley has 63 retail outlets in 24 cities and aims to increase this
number to 100 stores within the next two and a half years, solidifying its position in the luxury home solutions market.

MARKET RESTRAINTS
Raw Material Challenges

Raw material costs, notably for particle boards, are approximately 25% higher in India than in China. This cost
disparity directly translates to a 27% higher production cost for Indian furniture. The elevated costs in India stem from
challenges such as the limited availability of certified wood, insufficient commercial forestation practices, and higher
import expenses.

The Dominance of the Unorganized Sector:

India's furniture market is predominantly led by its unorganized sector, which accounts for nearly 75% of the total
sales. This unorganized segment, characterized by a lack of standardization, inconsistent pricing, and limited
technological adoption, faces hurdles in growth and competitiveness. Additionally, the absence of industrial
regulations and limited export potential compound these challenges.
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MARKET OPPORTUNITIES
Innovation and Aesthetics

New-age startups and brands are transforming the furniture value chain in India by introducing technological and
process innovations from production to delivery. They are also focusing on ready-made, low-maintenance, and
customizable furniture to meet modern preferences. The growth of the middle and upper-middle classes has driven
demand for better quality and sophisticated furniture. A new aspirational class, well-traveled and informed, views
furniture as both a utility and a lifestyle statement, increasing demand for premium furniture. Today’s customers
prioritize aesthetics, quality, and comfort over price, creating opportunities for design-led furniture firms, especially
those previously hindered by the unorganized market.

Growing Adoption of Local Furniture Products

India’s ambition to become a global manufacturing hub is reflected in initiatives like ‘Make In India’ and “Vocal for
Local,” which support the manufacturing sector, including furniture production. The government aims for the
manufacturing sector to contribute 25% to the GDP by 2025, in line with the ‘Make in India’ vision. The “Vocal for
Local’ sentiment has led many Indians to prefer Indian-made products over Chinese alternatives, including furniture.
Companies like Jaipur’s Wooden Street are capitalizing on this trend by offering locally sourced, customized furniture,
managing production in-house, and operating delivery centers in over 100 cities.

Increasing Export Potential of India Furniture

The furniture sector in India is a cornerstone of the economy, playing a significant role in the ‘Make in India’ initiative.
While the government promotes domestic furniture manufacturing, exporters are capitalizing on disruptions in the
China-centric supply chain, making significant inroads into multiple foreign markets. These dynamics are set to
elevate many mid-sized furniture firms into more prominent players and present opportunities for new entrants who
can align with and capitalize on emerging market trends.

INSIGHTS INTO LATEST TRENDS AND INNOVATIONS IN THE MARKET
Digitalization Shapes Furniture Preferences and Purchases

Smart Integration: The rise of smart devices, internet connectivity, and voice assistants is influencing furniture
design. Consumers now seek furniture with features like USB ports, Bluetooth, cloud controls, and voice assistant
compatibility. Brands are responding with high-tech additions such as wireless chargers, app-controlled lighting, and
voice-activated storage beds.

AR and VR: Augmented Reality (AR) and Virtual Reality (VR) are revolutionizing the industry by allowing
customers to virtually design rooms, visualize furniture, and scan spaces in real time to preview purchases. AR also
helps designers overlay virtual objects in natural settings to assess scale, design, and color.

Experience Centers

Bangalore, India's IT hub, sees a surge in demand for Italian-inspired home and kitchen furniture. Lecco Cucina opens
its second experience center in HSR Layout, showcasing Italian-design modular kitchens and wardrobes in a 1500-
square-foot space.

BOSKY Interior, a leading East India design firm, inaugurated experience center near Kolkata, aiming to expand
further and solidify its position as Kolkata's premier interior designer. BOSKY's modern center showcases various
products, from modular kitchens to living room designs, with professional consultants ensuring customer satisfaction
and reflecting the company's commitment to customer-centric service.

Multifunctional Furniture

As living costs rise, the appeal of multifunctional furniture, which reduces the need for numerous items, grows. During
the pandemic, there was a notable uptick in demand for furniture with multiple uses. Consumers opt for office chairs
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that double as recliners or work desks that transform into dinner tables, maximizing the value of their investments,
especially with the rising trend of remote work.

Responding to the demand for space-saving solutions, brands are introducing innovative products like Murphy beds,
foldable workstations, and convertible coffee tables. These cater not only to compact urban homes but also to the
growing trend of tiny homes, enabling the creation of versatile, multipurpose rooms.

INSIGHTS ON RECENT DEVELOPMENTS (NEW ENTRANTS, PARTNERSHIPS, JVS, M&A,
INVESTMENT, EXPANSION, ETC.) IN THE MARKET

Month Recent Developments
In July Pepperfry's Woodsworth division introduced its latest furniture line, "Serengeti - The Spirit of Safari".
2024 Drawing inspiration from Africa's vibrant tribal motifs, this collection offers a glimpse of the

continent's rich artistry.

In May HTL Group, a furniture manufacturer, announced its plans to manufacture global brands, like Domicil

2024 and Fabbrica from Germany and Corium Italia from Italy, in India by the end of 2024. Currently,
Singapore-based companies import these brands to the Indian market. Domicil’s sofas are set to be the
first locally produced product.

In March | Relso, India's leading furniture cloud factory, secured an investment worth USD 840,000, co-led by
2024 Ventures Catalysts and Inflection Point Ventures.

In iFUR announced a massive INR-100-crore investment over three years to establish 100 new stores
February | across India. The first five stores are slated to be opened by the end of 2024, with locations in Gurgaon,
2024 Bangalore, Hyderabad, Mumbai, and Pune. Some of these stores will be operated by local partners.

In January | IKEA expanded its e-commerce deliveries to new pin codes across 62 districts in Maharashtra,
2024 Karnataka, Telangana, and Andhra Pradesh.

In BoConcept, a renowned Danish furniture chain, recognizes India as one of its fastest-growing markets.
September | With eight stores in six locations, the brand now eyes tier-II cities to cater to the rising demand for its
2023 contemporary offerings.

In March | Urban Ladder plans to increase its stores to 100 by March 2024.
2023

BRIEF INSIGHTS INTO THE HOUSING MARKET IN INDIA

India's real estate market is expected to grow significantly, reaching a value of USD 5.8 trillion by 2047, up from its
current 7.3% GDP contribution. The sector has attracted substantial foreign direct investment, with USD 60.53 billion
invested between April 2000 and March 2024. The government's 'Housing for All' initiative aims to attract USD 1.3
trillion in investments by 2025.

The residential property market in India hit a record high in FY 2023, with home sales reaching INR 3.47 lakh crore
(USD 42 billion), marking a 48% year-on-year increase. Despite challenges, demand for residential properties surged
in top cities, driven by mid-income, premium, and luxury segments. Luxury real estate, particularly in locations like
Goa, is witnessing a boom, fueled by demand from affluent millennials and non-resident Indians.

The luxury segment has seen significant growth, with sales increasing by 83% and homes priced at INR 1 crore and
above accounting for 41% of total sales in Hl1 2024. Mumbai, NCR, and Bengaluru accounted for 59% of total
residential sales, with Mumbai retaining its position as the leading residential market. However, sales in the affordable
housing segment have remained stagnant, with demand for luxury properties growing amidst a strong economy and
interest from affluent investors.

Residential Property Sales in Units, by City, India, Q2 2023 — Q1 2024
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Market Q22023 Q32023 Q42023 Q12024
Mumbai 20,498 22,308 23,765 23,743
NCR 14,722 13,981 15,907 15,527
Bengaluru 12,857 13,169 14,630 13,133
Pune 11,302 11,302 14,517 11,832
Hyderabad 7,055 8,325 9,200 9,550
Ahmedabad 3,757 4,108 4,023 4,673
Chennai 3,500 3,870 3,900 3,950
Kolkata 3,823 3,772 3,903 3,937
Total 77,514 82,612 89,845 86,345

INDIA HOME FURNITURE MARKET - MARKET SEGMENTATION (MARKET SIZE AND FORECAST)
BY PRODUCT
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India Home Furniture Market Share (%) — By Product — 2023

= Kitchen Furniture

= Living Room Furniture

= Dining Room Furniture
Bedroom Furniture

= Other Furniture

India Home Furniture Market by Product (USD billion) 2020 — 2029

0,
PropUCT | 2020 2021 2022 | 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 CAglogg)
2029)
Kitchen
Kitchen |55 1 26 | 29 33 | 37 41 46 | 52 | 58 | 64 | 11.82%
Living-
room | 65 | 74 | 83 92 | 102 | 114 126 | 140 | 155 | 17.1 | 10.95%
Furniture
Dining-
room | 09 | 1.1 13 15 | 17 20 22 | 25 | 28 | 32 | 12.88%
Furniture
Bedroom
Fumiture | 3.9 | 45 | 5.0 56 61 | 68 | 75 | 82 | 90 | 98 | 9.98%
Other
Fumiture | 1.1 | 13 1.6 19 | 21 24 27 | 31 | 35 | 39 | 1323%

Kitchen Furniture

The kitchen furniture segment in India was valued at USD 3.3 billion in 2023 and is expected to reach USD 6.4 billion
by 2029, growing at a CAGR of 11.82%. Despite the rise of fully furnished apartments, demand for kitchen furniture
remains robust due to Indian customers' preference for customizing their kitchens.

Traditional kitchen layouts in India are giving way to modern modular kitchens with innovative, space-saving
solutions. Indian homeowners are embracing metal-based kitchen furniture for its longer life cycle and premium
aesthetic. The market is currently dominated by unorganized players, but there is a shift towards branded modular
kitchens, driven by the aspiration for a contemporary lifestyle.

Design preferences in Indian kitchens are evolving, with a rising interest in lacquered glass, handleless kitchens, and
European luxury designs. Key players in the market, including Godrej, Style Spa, HomeTown, and IKEA, are tailoring
their product offerings to meet the diverse needs of Indian consumers. The market is expected to grow significantly,
with monthly sales exceeding 10,000 units and a projected tenfold increase in sales over the next four years.
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Living Room & Dining Room Furniture

The living-room furniture segment accounted for a value of USD 9.2 billion in 2023. It is estimated to reach USD
17.1 billion by 2029 with a CAGR of 10.95%. The Dining-room Furniture segment accounted for a value of USD 1.5
billion in 2023. It is estimated to reach USD 3.2 billion by 2029 with a CAGR of 12.88%

The Indian home furniture market is dominated by bedroom furniture, closely followed by living room furniture,
which encompasses diverse items like coffee tables, sofas, and TV stands, with leading manufacturers gravitating
towards minimalist designs. Meanwhile, dining room furniture is driven by the importance of family mealtime and
the need for versatile, adaptable dining spaces that serve multiple functions beyond dining.

Bedroom Furniture

The bedroom furniture segment accounted for a value of USD 5.6 billion in 2023. It is estimated to reach USD 9.8
billion by 2029 with a CAGR of 9.98%

The growing popularity of smart homes is driving demand for apartments, with a focus on functional and stylish
furniture. Bed units with built-in storage and bunk beds with added storage are gaining popularity, while parents invest
in trendy kid's beds that foster development. Indian bedrooms now emphasize sleep quality and aesthetics, with
headboard design becoming a focal point, offering multifunctional features and blending traditional luxury with
contemporary flair. Wooden accents enhance bedroom designs, while middle-class bedrooms prioritize simplicity and
space-saving innovations like beds with storage and foldable wardrobe doors. Grey tones and lighter hues dominate
the bed color palette, with key players including Usha, Damro, Style Spa, HomeTown, and IKEA.

Other Furniture

The other furniture segment accounted for USD 1.9 billion in 2023. It is estimated to reach USD 3.9 billion by 2029
with a CAGR of 13.23%.

Outdoor furniture, such as rattan chairs, leisure chairs, and bamboo chairs, is gaining popularity in the Indian home
furniture market. Rattan and leisure chairs dominate the segment, with demand extending beyond leisure spots and
residential areas to private homes, particularly those with gardens, rooftops, and terraces. As consumers seek to
maximize home space, custom-made furniture is on the rise, with many opting for personalized and fashionable
designs featuring tooled leather, special fabrics, or unique patterns, especially in major cities. This trend reflects the
growing desire for unique and functional outdoor spaces that blend style and comfort.

BY TYPE OF MARKET
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India Home Furniture Market Share (%) — By Type of Market — 2023

= Organized = Unorganized

India Home Furniture Market by Type of Market (USD Billion) 2020 — 2029

2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026 | 2027 | 2028 | 2029 | CAGR

TYPE OF (%)
MARKET (2023-
2029)

Organized 2.9 34 3.9 4.5 5.1 5.8 6.6 7.4 8.3 9.3 12.80%
Unorganized | 11.7 13.5 15.2 16.9 18.8 20.9 23.1 25.6 28.2 31.1 | 10.74%

Organised

The organized segment accounted for USD 4.5 billion in 2023. It is estimated to reach USD 9.3 billion by 2029 with
a CAGR of 12.80%

India's furniture sector, contributing 0.5% to GDP, has potential for greater organization. Key players like Godrej &
Boyce, Style SpA, and Praxis Home Retail, along with online retailers Pepperfry and Urban Ladder, are gaining
traction. Consumers increasingly purchase dining tables and couches online in bulk, with furniture retail experiencing
a milder 40% de-growth compared to other sectors.

The pandemic has led to opportunities for organized players like IKEA and Godrej Interio, while online furniture
market players like Pepperfry and Urban Ladder have seen a 40% CAGR over five years. The market is divided into
horizontal and vertical platforms, with players like Livspace offering solution-based services and Godrej Interio
innovating products for the work-from-home trend. Smaller players like HomeLane and Foyr focus on design
solutions, but may need partnerships or mergers to scale up amidst a competitive landscape.

Unorganised

The unorganized segment accounted for USD 16.9 billion in 2023. It is estimated to reach USD 31.1 billion by 2029
with a CAGR of 10.74%.

India's furniture market is characterized by a large number of small, local players, resulting in a fragmented and
unorganized sector. This fragmentation is attributed to various factors, including high offline rentals and the difficulty
of aligning national supply and demand. As a result, the market lacks prominent national brands, and domestic
furniture manufacturing is also fragmented, with many products like doors and windows being crafted on-site by
individual carpenters.
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The unorganized sector poses a significant challenge to established players, as they offer low-cost products that erode
revenues and undercut branded furniture prices through local shops. Additionally, the industry faces hurdles like high
prices for quality, durable furniture, exacerbated by the costs of materials like wood and leather.

Kerala has emerged as a critical hub for furniture manufacturing, with an abundance of raw materials and a skilled
labor force. To support the sector, the state government has sanctioned five furniture clusters as part of its industrial
policy, aiming to address challenges, implement interventions, and chart a strategic path forward.

The entry of international giants like H&M into the Indian furntiture market has intensified competition, posing a
significant threat to established players like IKEA. H&M's foray into the market aligns with India's 30% local sourcing
mandate, a prerequisite for foreign single-brand retailers operating in the country. This move may challenge IKEA's
dominance and force other players to adapt to changing market dynamics.

India Home Furniture Market by Distribution Channel (USD Billion) 2020 — 2029

2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026 | 2027 | 2028 | 2029 | CAGR
TYPE OF (%)
MARKET (2023-

2029)

DISTRIBUTION | 11.6 13.2 14.8 16.4 18.2 20.2 22.3 24.6 27.1 29.8 | 10.45%
CHANNEL
Specialty 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.5 13.06%
Stores
HOME 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.5 3.0 3.6 20.15%
CENTERS
ONLINE 1.5 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.1 34 3.6 8.99%

INDIA HOMEWARE MARKET (INCLUDES FURNITURE) (MARKET SIZE, TRENDS AND FORECAST)
(2020-2029)
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Over the last few decades, the residential real estate industry's boom has propelled the homeware market.
Traditionally, Indian consumers focused on elaborate furniture and furnishings primarily in the living room — the space
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reserved for entertaining guests. However, as aspirations and incomes have grown, spending patterns have shifted.
Homeware is a burgeoning category in India's retail landscape, boasting a 25-30% annual growth rate. Globally, from
traditional to modern societies, homeware has always been a significant product category. India, too, has seen a notable
shift in its consumer base, with men now equally engaged in homeware purchases.

Homeware and home furnishing stores, offering extensive variety, dominate the market. Many consumers prefer to
physically inspect products before purchasing, favouring brick-and-mortar stores or direct sellers. Multi-functional
homewares are gaining traction, offering enhanced convenience and maximizing household space. Brands like
Chumbak, Masper, and Tangerine, known for their contemporary appeal, are expanding their presence nationwide.

The Government of India's "Housing for all by 2022" initiative aims to construct over 30 million new homes by 2030.
This will undoubtedly bolster the demand for home textiles, furnishings, decor, and houseware, which grow at 25%
annually. Leading retailers, brands, and manufacturers corroborate these trends.

The trend of online food ordering is gaining momentum in India, posing a potential challenge to houseware sales.
Meanwhile, global retailers like IKEA and Williams-Sonoma are expanding their presence in India, offering a wide
range of products including kitchenware and tableware. TTK Prestige, a key player in homewares, is venturing into
the organized dining tableware market.

India's consumer market is growing rapidly, with a 12% year-on-year increase in spending, making it poised to become
the world's 5th largest consumer market by 2025. However, the country still relies on imports to meet houseware
demand due to limited production. Fashion brands like Zara and Armani are recognizing the potential of the homeware
industry and entering this space.

Walmart Inc. plans to triple its exports from India to USD 10 billion by 2027, underscoring its intent to source from
various categories, including homeware. India is already a significant sourcing market for Walmart, with exports
totaling around USD 3 billion.

INDIA DESIGN AND BUILD INDUSTRY (MARKET SIZE, TRENDS AND FORECAST) (2020-2029)
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The demand for trained interior designers is rising in India, driven by changing perceptions of homes as reflections of
their owners' personalities and the recognition of interior design as a science that can enhance productivity in
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workplaces. Interior decorators and designers in India offer a broad spectrum of services, including interior decoration,
furniture, and residential architecture.

The "design and build" approach, where a single agency handles both design and execution, is gaining popularity in
India, transforming the construction landscape. This model has already gained traction globally, with 85% of interior
fit-out projects following this approach.

India's construction firms are evolving by adopting the "design and build" model, with project management
consultancies, architectural firms, and interior vendors expanding into design and build services. The corporate interior
turnkey market is witnessing accelerated growth as design firms enhance their execution capabilities and interior
contractors improve coordination with vendors.

With India's urban population projected to grow significantly by 2050, architects and urban planners are recognizing
the potential of repurposing underutilized urban spaces, driven by a shift towards socio-economic solutions rooted in
circular economics. Technology, including virtual and augmented reality, is playing a pivotal role in architecture,
while the market is witnessing a surge in demand for green buildings and the adoption of new technologies like 3D
printing, Geographic Information Systems (GIS), Building Information Modelling (BIM) and Big Data solutions.

The construction sector is a cornerstone of India's economy, employing over 40 million people and driven by factors
like population increase, urbanization, and rising disposable incomes. Notable architects and builders in India include
Hafeez Contractor, DSP Design Associates, Sanjay Puri Architects, Brigade Group, Godrej Properties, and
Salarpuria Sattva.

INDIA E-COMMERCE MARKET (MARKET SIZE, TRENDS, AND FORECAST) (2020-2029)

India E-Commerce Market (USD Billion) 2020-2029
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India's e-commerce sector is growing rapidly, with projections indicating that the number of internet users will exceed
1.6 billion by 2050. In 2022, India became the world's second-largest online market, driven by increased smartphone
adoption, a rising affluent consumer base, and a heightened reliance on online platforms. India is the world's second-
largest market for active internet users, with over 820 million users as of March 2024, with an 8% annual increase in
internet penetration in 2023.
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The 'Digital India' initiative aims to turn the nation into a trillion-dollar online economy by 2025, with 125 million
online shoppers already present and an additional 80 million projected to join by 2025. While major metropolises lead
in online shopping numbers, e-commerce is increasingly drawing patrons from tier II and tier III cities.

By 2022, 55% of India's internet connections were concentrated in metropolitan regions, with a striking 97% being
wireless. The nation's smartphone user base is set to hit the 1 billion mark by 2026, further bolstering the digital
landscape. Projections indicate that India's digital sector could reach a valuation of USD 1 trillion by 2030.

This surge in internet users, smartphone adoption, and revenue growth has significantly propelled India's e-commerce
landscape, reshaping the nation's business dynamics and paving the way for diverse transaction models, including
business-to-business (B2B), direct-to-consumer (D2C), consumer-to-consumer (C2C), and consumer-to-business
(C2B) interactions.

69



Leading E-commerce Segments, Market Share (%), India, 2022
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The Indian home furniture market was valued at USD 21.4 billion in 2023. It is expected to reach USD 40.5 billion
by 2029, registering a CAGR of 11.19% during the period of 2023-2029.

India, as one of the world's largest developing economies, has seen its home-furniture market flourish, propelled by
urbanization, a sizable youth demographic, and the aspirations of a burgeoning middle class.

While the economy rebounds, factors like a notable urbanization surge, shifting consumer demographics, rising
disposable incomes, and an uptick in home renovation spending are set to drive sustained demand for home furnishings
in the medium to long term.

Notably, as India's home furniture sector experiences robust growth, bolstered by increased investments in
infrastructure and a growing preference for aesthetically pleasing furniture solutions, the industry outlook remains
promising.
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in this section, including information with respect to our plans and strategies, contain
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Before deciding to invest in the Equity Shares,
Shareholders should read this entire Letter of Offer. An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk.
For a discussion of certain risks in connection with investment in the Equity Shares, you should read “Risk Factors”
on page 17, for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements, as well as “Financial
Statements” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on
pages 81 and 147, respectively, for a discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, financial condition or
results of operations. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-
looking statements. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in this section is derived from our Audited
Financial Statements.

OVERVIEW

Our Company operates brick and mortar stores of home furniture and home fashion in the brand name of HomeTown
and caters to home retail segment in India. This retail format brings together under one roof, a wide range of furniture
(both office and home furniture), home furnishing goods, kitchenware, other home related accessories and quality
services including complete home design, modular kitchen among others, giving customers a great in-store experience.
In addition, an exciting range of accessories, such as clocks, wall hangings and décor make it a complete one stop
shop for all home needs. As of June 30, 2025, HomeTown has a pan India presence with 16 stores, across 14 cities in
India. Our Company also operates a web portal for online sale of our products through the website www.hometown.in
and also has its presence on the major e-commerce market places in India through which our Company sells a wide
range of products across furniture, furnishings, décor, tableware and kitchenware.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
We believe that our primary competitive strengths include the following:
Experienced Promoters, management team, and motivated workforce

Our business is consumer driven. Our Promoter Kishore Biyani brings to our Company his vision and leadership
which has been instrumental in our success. Our experienced professional management team has helped us to offer
high standards of customer service and a pleasant shopping experience. Our management team consists of a team of
professionals with relevant domain expertise and retail oriented functional specializations. Further, our management
team has been able to complement our expansion with the ability to create adequate systems and processes. Our
management team is complemented by a committed work force that enables us to operate, synergies and integrate our
front-end and back-end operations efficiently. Our human resources policies aim to create an engaged and motivated
work force, which is essential for our success. We believe in continuous development and have invested in our
employees through regular training programmes to improve skills and service standards, enhance loyalty and increase
productivity.

Robust sourcing capabilities

Driven by the wide scale of operation and an experienced management team, our business reflects robust sourcing
capabilities across categories of our portfolio. In addition, HomeTown maintains an extensive supplier network, both
in local and foreign markets. With a wide vendor network, HomeTown ensures best quality products for entire product
portfolio. HomeTown works with different vendors across India to source furniture and home furnishing products. In
addition, we have put in place effective quality control measures, by a centralized quality control team. Furniture,
Stock Keeping Units (SKUs) are approved post a comprehensive quality screening process wherein sample for each
SKU is sent to quality control team pre-dispatch. HomeTown has an experienced team which has expertise in both
domestic and international sourcing. Our dedicated quality assurance team in Malaysia and China (major sourcing
hubs) also helps in accelerating the new product development.

With our past experience in home retail business, we have developed an understanding of the retailing of furniture
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and furnishing business in India. We believe that our insights into consumer behaviour have contributed to the
development of a distinguished retail format. This insight has also enabled us to strategize, develop and promote new
products to cater to the evolving needs of an Indian consumer.

Cost effective and efficient logistics network

With our past experience, we believe we have been able to develop a supply chain which assures quality and cost
effectiveness along with faster delivery. We are able to source products internationally and deliver it to customer’s
home in a cost effective manner.

Hometown has efficient last mile delivery and assembly capabilities. Further, we have experienced assembly
personnel who have expertise to carry out assembly with assured quality and minimise the damages which generally
happen due to improper fitting.

We are able to deliver our fast-moving products to our customer’s home by effectively utilizing our regional
distribution centres. We also offer quick delivery of our homeware and small furniture items by utilizing our stores as
shipping points.

Extensive supplier network enabling procurement at predicable and competitive pricing

We sell a wide range of furniture home furnishing and home decor products across our product categories. We focus
on using our deep understanding of the markets in which we operate to customise our product assortment in each store
keeping in mind local demands and preferences. We also continuously focus on enhancing our products that we carry.

Our procurement team conducts detailed research on an ongoing basis to locate the best product sources, in relation
to both quality and price. We have an extensive network of suppliers and we endeavour to source our products from
regions where they are widely available or manufactured to minimise our procurement costs. We operate a
standardised procurement system and procure most of our products on a purchase-order basis ensuring procurement
flexibility at competitive prices. Our sustained efforts to improve our strong supplier network have led to an efficient
supply and sale cycle.

Over the years, our business model has remained responsive to supply and demands disruptions. We believe that
differentiated combination of integrated sourcing, distribution and demand fulfilment, sets us with unique business
position. Our business maintains sourcing ties with manufacturers both in India and overseas to obtain the most
compelling product offering for aspirational Indian consumers. The interconnectivity of the regional distribution
centres, city distribution centres and the central warehouse ensure that the products reach the consumers, safely and
timely. As on June 30, 2025, we have 7 distribution centres with pan India coverage and 1 central warechouse at
Nagpur. The business reaches the target customer base through a wide retail base. A mix of strong back-end processes
and persuasive in-store communication delivers a unique customer experience. We believe that due to the scale that
we have achieved over the past years, we have been able to understand and implement the relevant processes to make
our front end and back end functions and execution capabilities efficient. We have been able to increase the scope of
our operations at a consistent pace and provide efficient and convenient offerings to our consumers. Further, due to
our scale and presence across India, we have been able to develop processes that enable us to offer competitive deals
to our consumers.

Omni-channel solution using IT Systems

Taking into consideration the changing landscape of the retail industry across the world, we have put together an
omni-channel view of our customers at every touchpoint. Our customer identification process begins from identifying
our existing customers both at physical stores and online stores or tagging new customers at each of these channels.
This coupled with a centralized view of customer’s product-preference from both these channels forms the bedrock
of our customer journey that has been put together by a robust omni-channel in-house platform.

Built on the mission of being a stakeholder centric organization which in turn includes both our key stakeholders
namely customers and suppliers, it has helped us in serving our customers in the furniture space with delivery Turn
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Around Time (TAT) of 72 hours only for our bestselling furniture in SKU’s.
Online presence in furniture space including on e-commerce market places in India

Our online direct to customer sales are made though our e-commerce portal www.hometown.in. We have been
operating this website and have established a sizeable foothold in the online furniture space. Our e-commerce website
www.hometown.in is developed using the modern technologies and is maintained and supported by an efficient team
of engineers and technicians. We provide a very unique feature of ‘Live video’ demonstration, through which a
consumer can complete their shopping from the comfort of their homes. Once a customer avails this option, a sales
person through video call will give a live demonstration of the products thus aiding the customers in making the
buying decision. We provide an omni-channel experience to our customer, by virtue of which when a customer walks
to a store and selects some products, it gets added to customer’s cart on HomeTown.in. Thereafter the customers can
go back to their home, show the products to the family members and then make eventual purchase.

We also sell products through major e-commerce market places in India. We have optimized our supply chain for
faster delivery for both our e-commerce and physical store operations. In addition to faster deliveries, we have
capability to get the product assembled within 24-48 hrs of delivery thus leading to customer delight.

Our Brand

HomeTown offer trendy, affordable home products and solutions to Indian consumers. Our brand is known for high-
quality, thoughtful design, competitive pricing and great experience. Our customers come to us for thoughtfully
designed, functional products that are built to last, and that represents the true value of what our brand has to offer.

OUR STRATEGIES
Increasing our consumer base through consumer loyalty and expansion of our operations

We intend to enhance our consumer base through continuously increasing our presence (both physical and online
channel) in various cities across India and drive spending across various product segments. We are specifically
focusing to achieve a larger share of consumption spending in our existing markets. As on June 30, 2025, we are
operating with 16 stores across 14 cities across 10 states and have presence on major e-commerce market places. We
intend to increase our share in the consumer spending in India by adding categories to our existing product range to
cater to consumers across Indian society in various home consumption spaces. We also plan to increase our presence
online by including additional pin codes where the consumption patterns are promising.

Further, we intend to continuously increase our presence by identifying properties that we believe may be viable retail
property spaces at strategic locations and enter into arrangements to lock such properties for our format to be launched
in the future.

Continue improving our operating efficiency and supply chain management

Our business model and pricing strategy require us to maintain high levels of operational efficiency on a consistent
basis. Further, we believe that supply chain management is critical to our business. Our supply chain management
involves planning, merchandising, sourcing, standardization, vendor management, logistics, quality control, pilferage
control, replacement and replenishment. We are and will continue to consolidate our supply chain network to improve
the inventory by improving stock movement, replenishment and fill rates.

We plan to further improve our operating efficiency and ensure efficient supply chain management by:

e continuing to refine our store operating systems based on the performance of our stores and feedback from our
customers and local management teams;

e continuing to restructure the look-and-feel of the store with visual merchandising ensuring excellent in-store
customer experience;

e investing further in our IT and data management systems to improve productivity and time savings thereby
increasing our operating efficiency;
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e continuing to strengthen our relationships with our suppliers through cooperation and closer coordination;

e upgrading our distribution centres to improve the efficiency of our inventory and supply management. We will
continue to expand and open new distribution centres in strategic locations to serve our existing and new stores
when it is cost effective and efficient to do so; and

e continuing to absorb best industry practices.

Expand our product portfolio and prioritize customer satisfaction through optimal product assortment

Our store format offers wide range of products for home furniture and furnishing segment in India. We believe with
our product offerings; our format has reached a critical mass and is being accepted amongst consumers. Our operations
are closely connected with the consumer preferences and changing choices and accordingly, it is imperative for us to
forecast and continuously identify the changing demands of our consumers. Towards this end, we have and intend to
continue to identify and evaluate consumer demand across regions and expand our product portfolio in terms of new
brands and new products, in home retail business. In order to accomplish objective, we believe that we have a talented
in-house team of designers who help with product creation right from the ground level, co-create products with our
vendor design team and also visit trade shows and buy the best products for HomeTown customers. Our designers are
guided by 3 principles —

e  Design sensibility of our customers;
e  Price point acceptable to our customers; and
e  Global design trends.

Continue to develop talent and skilled workforce and inculcate good business practices

We believe that the key to our success will be our ability to continue to maintain and grow a team of talented and
experienced professionals. We have been successful in building such a team and intend to continue placing special
emphasis on managing attrition and attracting, training and retaining our employees. As of June 30, 2025, we had 359
regular and 37 contractual employees who are working in different functions, we intend to recruit best available talent
across various industries, train them as per our value system and provide them opportunities to learn, experiment and
innovate.

We intend to continue to encourage our employees to be enterprising and contribute constructively to our business
through effective training and management. Pursuant to our focus on effective training of our employees, we undertake
various internal training programmes. Our HR policies focus on improving employee retention and their engagement
level in the Company. We have also initiated diversity and gender inclusion hiring to promote positive employee
experiences

Advanced and scalable technology for online retail segment

We believe that our advanced technology enables us to support a diverse range of products and services and provide
complex, modular and customizable e-commerce solutions on a scalable platform capable of implementing large
transaction volumes with minimal downtime. Our technology enables us to effectively offer our services across
multiple media, channels and customer interfaces including digital downloading and streaming services and providing
application framework solutions for supply chain and inventory management. Our hosting and technology platform
incorporates digital product catalogue, content management, promotions handling, access to payment gateways, as
well as inventory and logistics management, and is capable of being integrated into the vendor’s IT infrastructure and
third-party configurable software.

OUR PRODUCTS

We offer diversified and wide range of products in Furniture (Living, Dining, Bedroom, Essentials and Office),
Homeware (Furnishings, Tableware, Décor, Kitchenware) and Kitchen appliances. We also offer end to end Modular
solutions (Modular Kitchens, Kitchen accessories, Modular wardrobes, Wardrobe accessories) and customized interior
solutions (design and build) with latest design, focussing on ease of operations and style. All this combined with fine
execution capabilities at a reasonable price makes a great value proposition to the customer.

74



OUR STORES AND WAREHOUSES
As of June 30, 2025, we operate our business through 16 stores across 14 cities across 10 states. We do not own any
of the property from which we operate our stores and the same is taken on lease through various arrangements that

include lease, leave and license.

City / Town wise stores and its numbers

City Stores City Stores
Ahmedabad 1 Pune 1
Aurangabad 1 Nagpur 1

Bhubaneshwar 1 Patna 1
Guwabhati 1 Nasik 1
Hyderabad 1 Visakhapatnam 1
Kolkata 3 Raipur 1
Lucknow 1 Silliguri 1

City / Town wise Distribution Centres / Warehouses and their numbers

City Type Number
Nagpur Central Warehouse 1
Bhiwandi Distribution Centre 1
Hoogly Distribution Centre 1
Visakhapatnam Distribution Centre 1
Patna Distribution Centre 1
Guwahati Distribution Centre 1
Siliguri Distribution Centre 1
Bhubaneshwar Distribution Centre 1

OUR PROCESS AND MARKETING APPROACH

Our marketing efforts are focussed on driving a seamless and frictionless experience to our customers across channels
and platforms. We are distinctly positioned to allow customers to shop how, where and when they want, and we
believe our brand should be everywhere our customer is. From the moment our customer engages with our brand,
whether in-store, on the website, on social media, newspaper ad or on-ground event, the overall experience
communicates the brand’s promise.

Our marketing strategy is mapped to the customer journey and we actively engage with our customers across the
marketing streams - from awareness to purchase and beyond through traditional channels (print, radio, billboards) and
new media platforms (digital, social media, mobile-marketing and email-marketing). Our marketing efforts are
focussed on customer acquisition through sales and product promotions, and on customer retention through
personalised content and product recommendations.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Pursuant to the scheme of Arrangement between Future Retail Limited and Bluerock eServices Private Limited (the
transferor companies), the “HomeTown” business undertaking and e — commerce business of the respective transferor
companies were transferred to Praxis Home Retail Limited (the Company) by virtue of the order dated November 10,
2017, passed by the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench. The said order of the NCLT was effective from
November 20, 2017. Pursuant to the aforesaid order, trademarks and associated logos of “HomeTown” brand across
various classes including 20, 21, 24, 27, 35, 37, 40, and 42 were transferred in the name of our Company. As on the
date of this Letter of Offer, our Company has registered 14 trademarks under the Trade Marks Act, 1999.

COMPETITION
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The home retail market in India has become increasingly competitive in recent years. We face competition from
various other retailers that operate stores in formats similar to ours as well as those retailers who sell retail products
similar to the ones sold by us through small retail stores. These include standalone stores in the organized and
unorganized sector, as well as other chains of stores including departmental stores. We face significant competition
from the online retailers across home retail categories which led to a fragmented and highly competitive ecommerce
market in India. However, we believe that with a nation-wide network of stores and our sizeable online presence
through our website www.hometown.in and major e-commerce market places, provide us a competitive edge.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (“IT”)
Our entire IT landscape is built to recognize the same customer at every touchpoint and offer a single view of the
transaction history to every frontline staff interacting with the customers, be it store-staffs or customer service

personnel. This spawned an integrated IT architecture created in tandem with various other subsystems.

In addition to the customer journey, we have a robust business intelligence platform that provides an end-to-end
analytical capability covering sales management, inventory management and operations.

Our online store www.hometown.in is built on a custom solution developed on Shopify.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resource is one of the critical support functions and forms another key element of the corporate backbone. As
of June 30, 2025, we had 359 regular and 37 contractual employees located at head office and retail stores across the
Country, with additional persons working on contractual basis.

Our dedicated HR team is focused on talent acquisition, employee retention, and skill development to ensure alignment
with the company's strategic goals. We are committed to fostering a culture and work environment that enables our
people to leverage their skills, knowledge, and leadership abilities in a collaborative effort to serve our customers at
all times. We also offer various incentive programs at the store level to encourage and reward employee performance,
thereby boosting morale. We firmly believe in providing equal opportunities for growth and development within the
company. Internal talent is given priority when filling vacancies. Our comprehensive onboarding process, seasonal
product training, and annual career progression programs are complemented by ongoing behavioural, technical, and
functional training sessions throughout the year.

INSURANCE
We have insured our warehouses against fire & allied risks and our stocks against burglary and theft risks. We also

have insurance policies in respect of marine cargo, money policy, fidelity policy, director and officer’s policy, group
personal accident policy, group medi-claim policy.
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OUR MANAGEMENT
OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As per the Articles of Association and subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, our Company is required to
have not less than three Directors and not more than fifteen Directors. As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our Board
comprises of 6 (six) Directors, of which 1 (one) director is designated as ‘CEO & Whole-time Director’, 3 (three) are
Non-Executive Independent Directors including 1 (one) Independent Women Director and 2 (two) are Non-Executive
Non-Independent Directors. The composition of the Board and the various committees of the Board are in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

The following table sets forth the details regarding our Board as on the date of this Letter of Offer:

Sr. Name, Address, Occupation, DIN, Period Age (in Other Directorships
No. of Directorship, Term and Date of Birth years)
1. Ashish Bhutda 48 NIL

Address: C-1106, Oberoi Exquisite, 11
floor, C Wing, Oberoi Garden City, Goregaon
East, Mumbai 400063

Designation: CEO & Whole-time Director
Occupation: Service

DIN: 10810844

Current Term: 3 years

Period of Directorship: since November 11,
2024

Date of Birth: October 9, 1976
2. Jacob Mathew 64 1. Spring Health Water (India) Private
Limited

Address: 53-3, Horamavu Agara,
Doddabanaswadi, Bangalore — 560043

Designation:  Chairperson  Independent
Director

Occupation: Entrepreneur
DIN: 0080144

Current Term: Five years with effect from
April 6, 2021

Period of Directorship: With effect from
April 6, 2021

Date of Birth: March 26, 1961
3. Anou Singhvi 51 1. Worldwide Software Private Limited

Address: 801 C Wing, Raheja Atlantis,
Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel,
Delisle Road, Mumbai — 400 013
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Sr. Name, Address, Occupation, DIN, Period Age (in Other Directorships
No. of Directorship, Term and Date of Birth years)
Designation: Non-Executive Independent
Director
Occupation: Business
DIN: 07572970
Current Term: Five years with effect from
June 30, 2021
Period of Directorship: With effect from
June 30, 2021
Date of Birth: October 18, 1973
4. Samson Samuel 58 1. Future Consumer Limited
_ . 2.  GTM Networks Private Limited
Address: Amanda-A, 1904, Hiranandani 3. Argon Supply Chain Consulting
Meadows, Gladys Alwarez Road, Near . .
Private Limited
Lokpuram, Thane — 400610 . i L
4. Dairynext Private Limited (formerly
Designation: Non-Executive Non- known as Fonterra Future Dairy
Independent Director Private Limited)
5. Integrated Food Park Limited
Occupation: Service 6. Aadhaar Wholesale Trading and
DIN: 07523995 Distribution Limited
) 7. Snackvibe Products Private Limited
Current Term: Liable to retire by rotation. (formerly known as Hain Future
Natural Products Private Limited)
Period of Directorship: With effect from
March 14, 2023
Date of Birth: May 22, 1967
Lynette Robert Monteiro 52 1. Apollo Design Apparel Parks Limited
2. FLFL Lifestyle Brands Limited
Address: PVC-12-910, Prestige Valley 3. Future Consumer Limited

Crest, Museum Road, Bejai, Mangalore -
575004, Karnataka

Designation: Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director

Occupation: Service
DIN: 07901400
Current Term: Liable to retire by Rotation.

Period of Directorship: With effect from
September 28, 2024

Date of Birth: October 4, 1972

Vijai Singh Dugar 72

1. Galaxy Cloud Kitchens Limited
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Sr.
No.

Name, Address, Occupation, DIN, Period
of Directorship, Term and Date of Birth

Age (in
years)

Other Directorships

Address: 605, Tower B, Oberoi Park View,

Near Thakur
Kandivali East, Mumbai 400101

Designation:

Director

Cinema,

Occupation: Retired

DIN: 06463399

Current Term: Five years with effect from
August 12,2024

Thakur Village,

Non-Executive Independent

Period of Directorship: Five years

Date of Birth: September 01, 1952

2. Riddhi Siddhi Mall Management Private

Limited

Details of directorship in companies suspended or delisted

Except as disclosed below, none of our Directors is or was a director of any listed company during the last five years
preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer, whose shares have been, or were suspended from being traded on
any of the stock exchanges during the term of their directorship in such company:

Name of Name of Listed Date of Reasons Period of If the Term (along
Director Company on suspension for suspension | suspension | with relevant
on the suspension of trading dates) of the
stock revoked, director in
exchange(s) the date of the above
revocation | company(ies).
of
suspension:
Samson Future BSE and | May 27, | Non- Suspended | N.A. Managing
Samuel Consumer | NSE 2024 payment of | with Director since
Limited Annual limited November 4,
Listing trading 2023
Fees until  the
payment of
the
outstanding
annual
listing fees
to the
Exchange
Lynette Future BSE and | May 27, | Non- Suspended | N.A. Non-
Robert Consumer | NSE 2024 payment of | with Executive
Monteiro Limited Annual limited Director since
Listing trading August 5,
Fees until  the 2023
payment of
the
outstanding
annual
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Name of Name of Listed Date of Reasons Period of If the Term (along
Director Company on suspension for suspension | suspension | with relevant
on the suspension of trading | dates) of the
stock revoked, director in
exchange(s) the date of the above
revocation | company(ies).
of
suspension:
listing fees
to the
Exchange

None of our Directors is or was a director of any listed company which has been or was delisted from any stock
exchange during the term of their directorship in such company in the last ten years immediately preceding the date
of filing of this Letter of Offer.

OUR KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

SI. Name of Key Management Designation
No. Personnel/ Senior Management
Personnel

Key Managerial Personnel
1. Ashish Bhutda

CEOQO & Whole-time Director (“WTD”)

2. Vikash Kabra Chief Financial Officer

3. Charu Srivastava Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Senior Management Personnel (excluding the Key Managerial Personnel)

4. Ketan Gandhalikar Head — Furniture

All our Key Managerial Personnel and our Senior Management Personnel are permanent employees of our Company.

Management Organisation Structure

Board of Directors

Chief Financial
Officer

Vikash Kabra

CEO & WTD
Ashish Bhutda

Head — Furniture
Ketan Gandhalikar

Company Secretary

Charu Srivastava
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SECTION V: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sr. No. Particulars

a. Audited Financial Statements

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To

The Members of Praxis Home Retail Limited

1. Disclaimer of Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Praxis Home Retail Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information,

We do not express an opinion on the aforesaid financial statements of the Company, because of the
significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer Opinion section of our repart, we have not
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an opinion on the aforesaid
financial statements.

2. Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

a) As stated in note no. 40 of the financial statements of the Company, it has secirity deposit receivahle
towards matured lease agreement from a related party of an amount of Rs. 10,100.00 lakhs. The
Company has not identified & recognized loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on such
other receivables, which is not in conformity with the requirements of Ind AS 109 “Financial
Instruments”. Further, we are informed by the management that till date the Company has not received
any appropriate / adequate response from the lessor towards refunding such amount. Considering
these facts and the available financial position / statement of such related party whers there is an
indication about material uncertainty towards its ability to continue as going concern and where an
Resolution Professional (RP) has been appointed by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal under
the Insclvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and other relevant sumounding circumstances, we are
unable to determine and quantify whether this amount will be fully recaverable and it requires any
provision of ECL.

Further, on January 9, 2025 the RP of Future Enterprises Limited (FEL) has filed an Interlocutory
Application (IA) in Company Petition (IB), before the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
against, amongst others, the Promaoter of the Company and the Company. Under the said 1A, the RP
has, inter alia, claimed lease rental amounting to Rs.4 577,35 lakhs from the Company for the in-store
retail infra-assets leased by FEL to the Company.

These facts also give rise to material uncertainty as regards possible material adjustments that may
be required fo made to the values of recorded security deposit, provision for lease rental on in-stors
retail infra-assets, unrecorded assets and tax implications, if any, arising on account of setiement of
such transactions, which could not be recorded in the financial statements on account of these being
not readily ascertainable. Pursuant to non-receipt of response from the lessor towards refunding the
specified amount and non-determination of the ECL pravision, non-availability of balance confirmation
and non-provision for lease rental, its impact on the losses and EPS of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2025 and on the other equity as on the balance sheet date, is not ascertainable This
matter related to expected credit losses on security deposit was also disclaimed in our report on the
financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024,
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b} Balances of trade payables aggregating to Rs. 9417 23 lakhs are subject to confimmations and

reconciliations, if any, are not ascertainable. We are unahble to comment on the correctness of these

. figures and if any adjustments are required to the said balances as on the March 31, 2025 and related

disclosures in the Financial Statements. This matter was also disclaimed in our repart on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

¢) As stated in note no. 21 of the financial statements, during the year ended the Company has written
back certain trade payables and provisions aggregating to Rs. 3,770.86 |akhs {Including write back of
related parties balance and provisions of Rs. 2,693.72 lakhs) for the year ended March 31, 2025,
reasons of which are not known to us. Hence, we are unable to comment on the comrectness of these
values, and if any adjustments are required to the said balances as on March 31, 2025 and related
disclosures in the financial statements. The above amount includes amount due to one of the related
parties which is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process whose Resolution Professional has
raised a claim of Rs. 2,321 |akhs along with interest which has been denied by the Company and not
recoghized in the books, as explained in note no, 52, This matter was also disclaimed in our report on
the financial statermnent for the year ended March 31, 2024,

d} As stated in note no. 51, the performance of the Company was affected due to shortage of inventory,
liguidity and most of the stores of the Company were running into losses, which may trigger the
requirement for evaluating impairment on Right of Use (ROU) Assets of the financial results having
value of Rs. 12,681.29 lakhs as on March 31, 2025. Inspite of these indicators no assessment of
impairment has been carried out. Hence, we are unable to comment upon the impact arsing on the
loss and EPS for the year ended March 31, 2025 and on the carrying value of ROLU & other equity as
on March 31, 2025. This matter was also disclaimed in our report on the financial statements for the
vear ended March 31, 2024,

e) During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has closed certain stores and inventory at few
of these closed stores amounting to Rs 111.32 lakhs is under the control of the respective lessors, and
the Company was unable to physically verify such inventory and make appropriate provision for the
same. Due to this imitation, we were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to
detenmine and quantify whether the value of Inventory will be fully recoverable and it requires any
provision and hence, we are unable to comment upon the impact arising on the loss and EPS for the
year ended March 31, 2025 and on the carrying value of Inventory & other equity as on March 21,
2025.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs}. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Financial Staternents under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics.

. Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 43 in the financial statements which states that during the year, the Company
has incurred a cash loss of Rs. 4,542,468 lakhs and its net worth is negative as on the Balance Sheet date.
Further, the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 9,310.98 lakhs as at the
balance sheet date [excluding the effect of the observations stated in paragraph 2(a), 2(c) 2{d) and 2{g)].
The Company has also received notice for application under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016
from one of the operational creditors, The above situation indicates that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. In view of above, we
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are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to whether the Company will be able to
service its debts, realize its assets and discharge its liabilities as and when they become due over the
period of next twelve months. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on whether the Company will be
able to continue as Going Concern.

Key Audit Matters
Our report does not include the section of Key Audit Matters, as our opinion is disclaimed, which is in
accordance with the requirements of the SA 705, as issued by ICAI

. Information other than the financial statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion & Analysis, Board's Report
and Corporate Governance Report (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon) which are expected o be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial staterants or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is material misstaternent therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and determine the actions under
the applicable laws and regulations.

. Reszponsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and ars free
from maternial misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor,

In preparing the financial staterments, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease gperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporiing process.

. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Qur cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. However, because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for
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Disclaimer Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an opinion on the aforesaid financial statements,

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements in accordance with the
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and the ethical requirements as prescribed under the
laws and regulations applicable to the Company.

- Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report} Order, 2020 {“the Order’} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable

ii. As required by section 143 (3} of the Act, based on our audit we report that;

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the pumpose of our audit, except to the extent described
in the Basis of Disclaimer of Opinion section above, where we were unable to obtain such
information:;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books, except to the extent described in the Basis of
Disclaimer of Opinion section above and except for the matters stated in the paragraph {h{iv) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g);

c. Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account which are to be read with the paragraph on the Basis
of Disclaimer of Opinion;

d. Due to the possible effects of the matters described in the paragraph on Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion above, we are unable to state whether the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended

e. The matters described in the basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragragh including the assessment
with regards to material uncertainty about going concem as stated above, in our opinion, may have
an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

f. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken on
record by the Board of Dirsctors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such conirols, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B". Our report expresses a disclaimer opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements:

h. With respect to the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the managerial
remuneration paid by the Company to its director during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act:

I. Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the paragraph on Basis for Disclaimer
Opinion above, with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
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accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial position in
its financial statements — Refer note 39 to the financial statements;

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iif. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. (g8) The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 53(ii) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies). including
foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.;

{b) The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 53{iii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person{s) or entify(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parly (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, securify or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i} and (i) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (2)
and {b} above, contains any material misstatement.

V. Mo dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

wi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used various
accounting software(s} for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has not operated during the year for
all the relevant transactions recorded in the respective software(s). In the absence of
adequate information, we are unable to state that there are any instances of audit trail
feature being tampered with in respect of these accounting software(s).

In respect of an accounting software, which is hosted at a third-party service provider
location, where the activities have been outsourced by the Company, independent
serfvice auditors report has not been made available to us. Hence, we are unable to
comment upon whether the required provisions of the Act regarding audit trail for this
software have been complied with in all aspects. With respect to such software, we are
also unable to comment upon whether there was any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with.
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Pursuant to the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014, which
came into effect from April 1, 2024, and in accordance with the requiremsnts of Rulg
11{g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, we report that, based on our
audit procedures and the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has
used various accounting software(s) for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has not been duly
maintained and preserved the audit trail. as per the applicable statutory requirements for
record retention.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firmn Registration No. 302049E

LDIN: 25040404BMLAPH3347
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2025
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 8 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Praxis Retail Home Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

Referred to in paragraph B{i) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report
of even date

According to the information and explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of accounts
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
state that:

)

(i)

(iii}

{iv)

()

CHfice: Kolkata, Mumbal, Delhi NCR, Chennai, Bangalore & Raipur

a) A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

b}

c)

€)

a)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment comprising of Right-of-Use Assets
B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets:
For the year, the property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management.

The Company does not have any immovable property; hence the provision of the clause 3(i)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) or Intangible Assets.

Mo proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactons (Prohibition) Act, 1985 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

During the year, physical verification of inventory has been carried out by the management at
reasonable intervals. However, based on the records examined and explanations provided to us,
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification of inventory, and the aggregate value of
such discrepancies exceads 10% of the value of inventory. The discrepancies have been property
dealt with in the books of account,

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital fimits in excess of Rs. Five crores in
aggregate from a bank or a financial institution on the basis of security of current assets. Hencs, the
reporting requirement under clause 3(ii}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not made any investments, not provided any guarantee or security
or granted any loans or advance in nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any Other parties. Further, there were no loans and advances in the
nature of loan granted sarlier which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted fo settle
the overdue of the existing loan given to the same parties. Hence, the reporting requirements of
clause 3{iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans, made investments, given guarantees and securities. Hence,
the reporiing requirements of clause 3({iv} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deamed to be deposits under

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Hence, the reporting reguirements of clause 3{v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(v)

(vil)

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Govemment under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company, Thus,
reporting under clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on the records examined by us and according to the information and explanations given to

us:

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including

pravident fund, employess’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, goods & service tax
{GST), cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases. As explained to us, the Company did not have any
dues on account of sales tax, service tax, duty of excise and value added tax.

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees' staie

insurance, income tax, duty of customs, goods and services tax, cess and other material statutory
dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

2025, on account of disputes are given below:;

¢) Statutory dues referred to in sub- clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on March 31,

Mame of the MNature of Amount Amount paid Period to Forum where
Statute the Dues {Rs. in Lakhs) | under Protest | which the dispute is
{Rs. in Lakhs) | amount pending
relates
Income  Tax | Income tax 34 13 6.82 | AY 2018-19 CIT {Appeals),
Act, 1961 _ [ Mumbai
Income Tax | Income tax 5072 1014 | AY 2018-20 CIT {Appeals),
Act, 1861 Mumbai
Income  Tax | Income tax 28.95 5.79 | AY 2020-21 CIT {Appeals),
Act, 1961 I o Mumbai
Central goods | Goods and 2871 287 | FY 2017-18 Appeilate
and service | service tax act Authority
tax act, 2017 State Tax
Officer Dethi
Central goods | Goods  and 1.81 0.19 | FY 2017-18 Appellate
and service | service tax act Authority
tax act, 2017 State Tax
Dfficer
. Guwahati
sart o S — | e i Assam
Central goods | Goods  and 51.07 611 | FY 2017-18 Appellate
and service | service fax aci - Authority
tax act, 2017 Central GST &
Centra Excise
| — Chhattisgarh
Central goods | Goods  and 43.30 4.33 | FY 2019-20 Appellate
and  service | service tax act , Authority
tax act, 2017 State Tax
(Appeal 1)
Ahmedabad -
i Gujarat
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(viii)

(ix)
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a)

b)

c)

d}

Central goods | Goods  and 218.02 21.80 | FY 2017-18 Appellate
and service  service tax act Authority
tax act, 2017 State Tax
(Appeal  I)-
| o B Karnatzka
Central goods | Goods  and 109.25 10.82 | FY 2018-19 Appellate
and service | service tax act Authority
tax act, 2017 | State Tax
(Appeal 1}-
TR e Maharashtra
Central goods | Goods and 5.41 0.54 | FY 2018-20 Appellate
and service | service tax act Authority
tax act, 2017 State Tax
(Appeal 1)
RPoURCar— S — - s o Jh amhand
Central goods | Goods  and 27.44 2.74 | FY 2018-20 Appellate
and service | service tax act Authority
tax act, 2017 State Tax
(Appeal |}
S _ - West Bengal
Central goods | Goods  and 36788 Nil | November Directorate
and service | service tax act 2017 to | Genaral of
tax act, 2017 i September Anti
| | 2019 Profiteering
Central goods | Goods  and 175.49 | 17.62 | FY 2018-18 Appellate
and service | service tax act ’ Authority
tax act, 2017 ' State Tax
(Appeal )
i West Bengal
B and Assam

There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the bocks of account which have been
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of

1961}

On the basis of our examination of the records and according to the information and explanations
given to us and representation received from the management, during the year;

the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender

the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other

lender

the Company has not availed any term loans during the year accordingly, reporting under paragraph

J{ix){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

the Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Hence, the reporting
requirements under clause 3ix)(e) and (T} of the Order is not applicable.
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(x) &)

b)

{xi)

During the year, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and hence repeorting reguirements under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Dunng the year, the Company has made issue of share warrants convertible into equity shares by
way of preferential allotment. In regards to these issues, the requirements of section 42 and section
62 of the Companias Act, 2013 have besn complied with and the funds raised have been used for
pumposes for which the funds were raised. Further, other than as stated in this paragraph, in our
opinion and according to the information, explanations and representation given to us, during the
year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures {fully, partially or optionally convertible).

a) According to the information, explanation and representations given to us, no fraud by the

company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,

k) During the vear, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by cost

c)

{xii)

(xiif)

auditor! secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has received whistle blower
complaints during the year, which have been considered by us while determining the nature, timing
and extent of audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, all the transactions entered
during the year with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act whera
applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard {ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures.

{xiv} &) In our opinion, intemal audit system needs to be made commensurate with the size and the

nature of the business of the company

b} We have taken into consideration, the internal audit reports for the period under audit issued to the

(v}

Company till the date while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any nen-cash fransactions with directors or persons connected with them as referred to
in section 192 of the Act. Hence, paragraph 3{xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(xvi) a) The Company is not required to be registerad under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)

Act, 1834,

k) The Company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial of Housing Finance Activities as

prescribed under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1834,

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the

Wi
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Reserve Bank of India and hence reporing under paragraph 3(xvi}(c) of the Order is not applicable.
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d} According to the information, explanations and representation given ta us, there is no CIC in the

(xewii}

{xwiii)

{xin)

(3¢x)

{xxi}

(B RN

Metn

Group.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, during the year, the Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 4,542.46
lakhs. The effect of unguantified modification given in paragraph 2 of our independent auditor's report
has not been taken into consideration for the purpose of reporting in respect of this clause. Further,
the Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 4,942 12 |akhs in the immediately preceding financial
year, which was also determined without considering the effect of the modified opinion issued for the
immediately preceding financial year.

During the year, there has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors.

We draw attention to note no. 43 in the financial statements which states that during the year, the
company has incurred a cash loss of Rs. 4,542.46 lakhs and its net worth is negative as on the
Balance Sheet date. Further, the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs.
9,310.89 lakhs as at the balance sheet date [excluding the effect of the observations stated in
paragraph 2(a), 2{c) and 2{d) of the main audit report]. The Company has also received notice for
application under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code 2018 from one of the operational creditors.
Further considering the financial ratios as disclosed in note 54 to the financial statement and ageing
and expected date of realization of financial azsets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statement, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, there
exists a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as
a going concem and it may not be capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet, as and when they fall due within a perod of one year from the balance sheet date.

Based on the examination of records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, due to the losses incurred by the Company, the conditions and
requirements of section 135 of the act is not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting
requirements under the clause 300d{a) and (xod{b) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture and hence, reporting
requirements under the clause 3(0d) of the Order is not applicable.

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Begistration No. 302048E

Membership Mo. 040404
UDIN: 25040404BMLAPH3347
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 12, 2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial statements of Praxis
Home Retail Limited

Referred to in paragraph [8(ii}(g)] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of
our raport of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with refarence to the Financial
Statements of Praxis Home Retail Limited (the “Company”} as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controis

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) issuad by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (*ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the ascounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's infernal financial contrals over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial confrols and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemmal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Because of the material and pervasive nature of the matters described in the Basis of Disclaimer of
Opinion section in out auditor's report on the accompanying financial stataments, we are not able to obiain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to the accompanying financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepied accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and
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and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,

use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Disclaimer of Opinion

According to the information and sxplanation given to us and considering the paragraph on the basis of
disclaimer of opinion in our auditor's report, the Company has not established its internal financial control
over financial reporting on criteria based on or considering the essential component of miternal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting issued by the
ICAl Because of these reasons, we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for our opimion, whether the Company had adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively as-at March 31, 2025.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial
Statement.

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in detemmining the nature, timing, and extent of audit
tests applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025
and the disclaimer does affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302049E

Membership No. 040404
UDIN: 25040404BMLAPH3347
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 12, 2025
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Praxis Home Retail Limited
CIM: L532100MH2011PLCZ12866
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

{Tin Lakhs)
i Maote As at As at
Ne. March 31, 2025 March 21, 2024
Assets
1. Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 (a) 1,120.42 1,241.8%
Capital Work-In-Frogress 3 [n) 4.329 57.91
Right-of-use Azsets 4 12,581.29 10,725,490
Other Intangible Assets 5 [a} 13.09 16.14
Intangibles under development 5 {b} 12.09 10.28
Financial Assats
Other Financial Assets [ 415.85 1,114 .86
Other Mon-Current Assets 7 12.66 16768
Mon-Current Tax Assets B 2567 2930
Total Non-Current Assets 14,185.46 12,364.06
2. Current Assets
Inventaries 9 3,752.17 5, 74361
Financial Aszets
Trade Receivahles 1a 12,12 2B.74
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 172.14 156.07
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Eguivalents above 12 331 331
Other Financial Assels G 10,616.60 10,701.38
Other Current Assets 7 2,595.35 1,855.58
Total Current Assets 17,151.69 18,558.70
Total Assets 31,337.15 31,922.76
Equity And Liabilities
Eqjuaity
Equity Share Capital 13 6,760.91 £,260.91
Other Equity 14 {12,909.56) {10,578.44]
Tatal Equity {6,148.65)| {4,317.53)
Liahilities
1. Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Lease Liabilitias L3320k 10,904.60 £, 186.64
Frovisicns 15 118.53 16994
Total Non-Current Liahilities 11,023.13 8.356.58
2. Current Liabilities
Firnancial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 11,783.15 7,423.00
Lease Liabilities 32{b} 2,671.96 2,009.01
Trade Payables
Total Dutstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 17 1,487.51 2,068.51
-Tatal Dutstandlng tdues of Creditars other than Micro 17 7,929.72 12,317.92
and dmall Enterprises
Cither Financial Liabilities 18 1,925.89 1,763.35
Dther Current Liabilities ig 640.55 1,285,238
Provisions 15 23.90 25.60
Total Current Liabllities 26462.67 27, 883.71
Total Equity and Lizhilities 31,337.15 31,922.76
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[Praxts Home Retall Cmited

CIN: L52300MHI011PLER 12866

Balance Sheet as at Mareh 31, 2025 5
% in Lakhs

Note Asat As Bk

Mo, March 31, 2025 __|__March3d, 2024 | |

The accom panying notas 1 to 56 are an integral part of the financhal stataments,

As per our raport of even date sttached

Particudars

For and ah bahalf of Board of Directors

For Slaghi & Co. Samsan Samual
Chartered Accountants lef Executive Officer and  Whinla Chairmanand Mon-
Firm Registration No, 302049E Tlmie Diractor Executive Olrector

OIN: 16810844 BIN: 075 995 7

g ,J i
Wifﬂhuw

Company Secretary

Mumbal
Play 13, 2025
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CIM: L52100MHZO11PLER12RES

t’rﬂl: Home Retall Limited
tatament of Profit and Loss for The Year Ended March 31, 2025

{Tin lllt'luﬂ
Yaar Ended Year Endid
IFlﬂhuhrs Note Me. March 31, 1028 BN §L, 7004
|lncoma
Revenue From Operations 20 11,B96.96 2L958%77
Qther Income n 3,914.69 626,16
Total Income 15.811.65 | — 32,598,893
1E:|qunsn
Purchase-of Shock In Trade 4,932,825 10,316,680
Changé in Imventorles of Stack-In-Trade (Increase)/Decrease 12 2,020.98 1,053.28
Emploves Benafits Bxpense 13 1.663.01 4,355.28
Finance Costs 24 1,671.54 2,206.50
Cepreciation arnd Amortization Expense 3, 4 &5(n] 2,745.48 3,6209.12
Other Expenses 25 5,275.64 &,765.68
Total Expenses 19,309.50 30,326.66
Profit / {Loss) before Exceptivnal rerms and Tax {3,457.85) (2,732:73)
Exceptional ltems AB . (FAR. 51}
Profit / (Loss) before Tex and sfter Exceptional ltems {3,497.85) {&571.25)
Taw Expense a5
-Current Tax - -
-Deferred Tax - -
Profitf|Loss) for the Year {3,087.85) {B,571.25
athar Comprehansive [heome
itams that will not be reclassified to statement of profit ond (oss
[a) Rerneasurements of Definad benadlt plans- Galn/(Lossh 23 (55.57) {48.11)
(b} Imeome Tan ralating to above - .
1U~HIH‘ Comprehensive Income/({Loss) For Tha Year {55.57) (49.11)
Tatal Comprehensive Income/[Loss) For The Year 3,55 (8,820,35)
Earnings Per Equity Share of Face Value of X 5/- each 31
Basic {2.60] {7.35)
Diluted {2.69] (7.35]

The accampanying notas 1 to 56 sre an [nbegral part of the floancisl statements.

Ag pat our repart of even dete attachad

For Singhl & Co. sh Bhutda

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No, 302049E Time Director
Dik: 10810844

‘Ravi Kapoo
Parther
Membership Na.; 020404

Mumbai
May 12, 2025

Chiaf Executive Officer and Whale

For and an behalf of Beard of Directors

Gt

 Executive Director |

fnl&nsmwl—"'
Chalrman and Non-

m#;;ij!%f

Vimsl Dhruve
Compeny Secretary
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Praxls Home Retail Limited
CIM: ESZ100MH2011PLCZ12366
Statement of Cash Flow for The Year Ended March 31, 2025

|% 10 Lakhs)
ar Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
Mo, March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
& |Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Leass Before Tax [3,487.85) [8.371.23]
Ad|ustments Foo:
Oeprec aticn and amaortlzation Expanses 274548 3,629.13
Interestincome on Fair Value of Fnancal Ascet {21.99) (#0100
Incarme trom expirg of gif voucher - 1.3
Provizion for Geaduityand Leave Frgis hment {53.12} (24.16]
Provision far Doabtful Debts 61,38 (220 83)
Finance Costs LG71.54 1,706.50
Interest income on Income Tax Rafund (o700} -
Intersst ingarne o Electe sty Refund (0.71] [3.83)
Interest Incame o Fxed Daposits [3.03] [18.B5)
Ernployes stock option exoenseas 34.82 4055
Provision on Damaged and Josolete Inventany [29.54] BH.46
Fayrent of Incidental cast of Leases = |34.5B)
Logs on d sposalfwsite off of Propacty Plans and Equipment 211.60
‘Write Back of Provizians and Trade payables, (3, 790.00) 1304.57)
Write Back of Lesse Liailities [77.00) {18011}
Cash Generated {Used inlffrom before Working Capital Changes [2,746.27) {3.50L.60)
Adjustments For:
Trade Recenablas 16,62 114.92
Loans, Corer Financial Assets and Othar Assets 1157 [1,051.41]
Irasentarics 1.020.98 80158
Trade Payables 11,179,448} 60,73
Other Financal Liakilitles Other Uabilitias s Provis ons (875,81} 7601
Cash Generated from / (Used in) Operations {2,752.40] (2,518.77)
Income Tax (Paidh/Refund 363 | 4557 |
MNet Cash Flows Generated from [/ [Used in} Dperating Activities 12, 7458.78] [2.672.20)
B 'Cash Flows From Investing Activities .
Furchasze of Property, Pantand Fqu prment and Intgrgible Assecs [133.20) |BEL.39)
tterest income on Fixed Deposies 0.01 15.85
Met Cash flow Generated from | [Used In) Investing Activities {133.19) {662.54)
C |Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceedy trom Issue of Equity Shares (Met of issue expenses) L2400 040 4, 125,05
Proceeds frem lssue of Seare Warrants (het of issve expensas) 487,50 1,318,113
[Repayrment}/Froceeds frgm Short term Borrowings (Mot} 4,360.15 2.534.53
Razayment of Long t2rm Barrowings . (549.32)
Principa! Fayvment of Leass Liabiioe {1,790.28} 12,8497 04)
Interssl Paymendt of Lease Linbility (1,234.76]) 11.280.61)
Intersst Paid [154.58) [793.42)
Net Cash flow Generated from [/ [Used In) Financing Activities 2.B58.03 3,552.27
Net [Decrease) [ Increase In Cash and Cash Eguivalents [23.94) 17.53 |
Met [Decreasel] J Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents {23.94) 17.53
Cazh and Cash Equivalents at the beginaing of the year 196.07 178,54
Cash and Cash Equivalents al year ond 172,14 196,07
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Baiances with Basks - In Cusrent Accounts 144.42 143.47
Balances with 3anks - Flxed Deposits . 12,06
Chegues an Hand 7.40 .00
Cash o Hang 20.32 30.64
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 172.14 19E.07
Changes in labilities arising from financing activities
|Jpaning balasce of barrowiings E, 053,00 533779
Proceeds from oorrowings 5,335.61 7,568.00
“|Gepayment of borrowirgs {1,975.46) {4,852.79)
Closing balance of horrowings 12,413.15 £,053.00




Prosds Hame Retall Limited

Cihdy LI 1R0MHZO11PLIZ LT0GE
Siavsment ot Cagl Flow for The Yoar Ended March 21, 2038

/711 Lakhs)|
Iar i |"mm Yo Entud Yaur tnded
e, Murch 81, 2029 Msrch 31, 2024

Moihis:

[F] Thae: abavie sentnmart &f Ciak Flevas haz boan prepard uadar indinsct smathod as et ot In nd A8 , ‘Stakement of Cach Aokt s
wpaciliad under seclion 188 of (he Companies Act, 2043 read wilh thi Companles (ndisn Acoounting Standand) Rutes, 2013 (a5 omendsi}.

il Relar Aoke 18 o she Hnonesal sdatemanie. s mantianad thareli, thete hes boen s shange (o the cinssification of labliiy o amal of
T TG O T NS NG T U REAETH| SESarib s, Hawear, fir the sorpores of dlsclasure In stscanvent of chsh flows,

sl Barrgining continud to inclides 3 820 |skhe of unrdesmed pralevenen-sharns, which ir clessified under Oiher Curnem
Finaneied Liskilties n ti halands shaet oz thae is ea moveimest i tha cash flaws or accouet of such non raddamption,

The aceompanying notes 1 ta 56 2 an Integral port.of the Hnanclal statemants.

Az perour rapart af sudn date st s dredl ik Birdhall of e aff Diriciory

For Singhi & Ca. SomsondTmnd

Charteted Aceolintants lef Exeputive Officer aad Chairman snd Nan-

Firm tration Mo, 3020458 Whole Time Diredior Evacudlve Director "

Dlb: 10810844 i alng A7 yﬂ'{ {p’

o

Aol Hopoor v

Pariner Company Secratery
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wals Home Retal Bmited
rement of Chargds Ia Equity Ter The Tesr Ended March 31, Jogs

| €ty S Capltar = i iakka]
Balanc as at Apet 03, 2028 DA gl ““m’.'h'" alinice ag ot March 21, 2028
636091 SE0.00 B,750.91
Balnnoy as uk Apdt 04, #2n ﬂm;:ﬂn “"":':h" Balares a5 al March 52, 2024
370541 LATEAD 6041
* Mestatad balances o1 tve baginning of tha seporting period sed chisnges in atully ihars sepltel due ha prior erod errors is WL
()} Either gqul : {86 b
TR
i
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TBad | 1B ieT 500 70 | [ALa73.Ee] ;mﬁ
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3 : 355543 - {3,55L47)
x a2 : z EE
-~ . - : =
ie Emg Ransd Man (P30F Sehama - [T 5,1.1. . .
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i
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Al chithon ¢ irsg I|Il psdr - P W Lol Pty gy L £ -
Exprage of Share Cption s = . . - . "
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Halece ,_.,-_- (TR TR
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Motes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements

t,

2.1

2.2

23

Lorparate Information

Praxis Home Retail Ltd ("PHRL" or “the Company”) was originally incorporated on January 31, 2011 as GRNM
Energy Private Limited with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai {“RaC"). Further, name of the
Company was changed to GEN Retail Private Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation was issued on
December 21, 2016 by RoC. Furthermore, name of the Company was changed to Praxis Home Retail Private
Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation was issued on lanuary 5, 2017 by RoC. Pursuant to the
Composite Scheme of Arrangements under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
became a public Company domiciled in [ndia,

The Company is engaged in the business of Home Retailing through departmental stores under various formats
acrpss the country.

The Company is a public limited Company which is listed on two recognised stock exchanges in India. The
Company is incorporated and domiciled in India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {erstwhile the
Companies Act, 1958). The registered office of the Company is located at Mumbai, Maharashtra, India,

These financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 were authorized for issue by the
board of directors on May 12, 2025,

Significant Accounting Policies
Compliance with Indian Accounting Standard [Ind AS):

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and comply in all material aspects with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) read with relevant rules and other accounting principles, The policies set out below have been
consistently applied during the period presented except where 3 newly issued accounting standard or revision in
existing accounting standard requires change in accounting policy hitherto in use,

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are presented in ‘Indian Rupees’, which also is the Company’s functional currency and
all amounts; are rounded to the nearest Lakhs, with two decimals, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and
disclosures mandated by Schedule Il to the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and
regulations as amended from time to time,

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for the
following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value;
and
o defined benefit plans - planned assets measured at fair value
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2.4 Use of judgements, estimates & assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in confarmity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates, judgement and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, the disclosure of
contingent asset and liabilities at the date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to perlod. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of
such changes in the circumstances surrgunding the estimates. Changes in estimate are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

2.5 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of perfermance obligation upen transfer of control of promised products
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those products or services. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and stated net of discounts, returns,
applicable taxes,

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the henefits provided by the Company's
performance ar

2. The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

3.  The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an
entity hias an enfarceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the paint
in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cazh payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appraopriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive such dividend is established.

Gift Voucher

The Company issues Gift WYouchers with 1 year validity. The Gift Youchers, which are unutilized at the end of
their validity period is recognized as income,
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2.6 Purchase of Goods under 5ale or Return basis

The Company also purchases inventories on a Sales or Return basis (SOR) where cost of such purchases / trade
payables becomes due when such inventories are being sold off. Under SOR hasis, the Company does not have
any ownership rights of the said inventory but it acts as a custodian for the inventory till the same are being sold
or returned. The Company has a right to return the inventory to the vendor at any point prior to its sales. Gn the
Balance sheet date, the Company reverses the value of such inventories which are acquired on SOR basis and
are in its possession along with the simultaneous reversal of such amount from purchases/trade payables,

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses if any. The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset inta the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management,

Capital wark-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and equipment {including related expenses), that are
not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

An item of Praperty, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net realisable value and the carrying
amount of the asset} is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Cost of Property, Plant and Equipment acquired in a business combination is recorded at fair value less cost
to sell as on the date of business combination.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’'s carrying
amount is greater than its recoverable ameunt.

Property, Plant and Equipment are eliminated from the financial statements, either on dispasal or when retired
from active use.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and changes, it any, are accounted prospectively.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
anly when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred,
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Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated under the written down value method as per the useful life and
in the manner prescribed in Part "C" Schedule Il to the Act, except for Leasehold Improvements which are
amortised over the life of right of use asset.

Assets Useful life

Furniture & Fixtures 10 years

Office Equipment . Evears

Plant & Machinery 15 years

Electrical Installations 10 years

Computers, Laptops and IT equipment 3 years .

Leasehold I-h:prnuemenis - Over the life of right of use
asset

2.8 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost and other costs incurred, which is attributable to preparing the
assets for its intended use, less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is recorded at fair value on the date of acquisition.

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over their estimated useful economic life. The estimated
useful life of the assets is five years.

An itemn of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the Statement of
Frofit or Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The useful lives and methods of amortisation of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.9 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Mon-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets {cash-generating units). Nen-financial assets that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.10 Current and Non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’'s normal
operating cycle.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;
i) It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal

operating cycle or
It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded or
It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date or,
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iw)  Itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liahility for at
least 12 months after the reporting date,

Current assets include the current partion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current.

Liahilities
A liahility is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria
i) It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle or
i} It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded or
i} It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date ar,
iw)  The Company does not have an uncanditional right to defer settlerment of the liability for at least 12
menths after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liakilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities, All other liakilities are classified as
nen-current,

Deferred tax asset and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash
equivalents, The Company’'s operating cycle is within a period of 12 months.

2.11 Fair value measurement

Accounting policies and disclosures reguire measurement of fair value for both financial and non-financial
ascets.

Fair wvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liahility takes place either:

a. In the principal market for the asset or liahility, or
k. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be-accessible by the Company, The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
ecanomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant ohservable inputs and minimising the use of
unohbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:
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Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
i% directly or indirectly observable,

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sigrificant to the fair value measurement
is unchservahle,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
{bazed on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period:

The Company’s Management determines the policies and procedures for recurring and non— recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unguoted financial assets measured at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liahilities which
are required ta be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liakilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained ghove.

Disclosures far valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions of Financial instruments {including
those carried at amortized cost} (Refer note 26) and Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement
hierarchy {Refer note 26).

2.12 Derivatives

Derivatives including forward contracts are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
Company does not designate their derivatives as hedges and such contracts are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss and are included in the Statement of Prafit and Loss.

In respect of derivative transactions, gains / losses are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss on
settlement.

On a reporting date, open derivative contracts are revalued at fair values and resulting gains / losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

2.13 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially measured at transaction price excluding any financing arrangements in sale
" transactions of the Campany. Expected Credit Loss is assessed and recognized as per Financial Instrument palicy
in2.15
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2.14 Inventaries

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Costs of Inventories are computed on Weighted
Average basis. Cost includes purchase cost and other costs incurred to bringing the inventory to its location and
condition. Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.15 Financial Instruments

The Company recognises financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognised at fair values on initial recognition, except for
trade receivables, which are initially measured at transaction price.

{A) Financial Assets;
a) Classification
The Company shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through

other comprehensive income (FVYOCH) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) on the basis of its business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

b

e

Initial Recognition and Measurement

The Company recognizes financial asset and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial asset and liakilities are recognised at fair value on initial
recognition, except for trade receivable which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction cost
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial asset and financial liahilities that are not
falr value through Profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

¢] Subseguent Measurement
i} Financial asset at Amortized cost

A Financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

ii] Financial Asset at Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI)

Financial Asset is subseguently measured through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow and selling
financial asset and contractual terms of the financial asset give tise on specified dates to the cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest an the principal amount cutstanding. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through Other Comprehensive [ncome {OC), except for the recognition
of impairment gains and losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further in cases where the Company has made
irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investment which are classified as equity
instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income,
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When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recoghised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains / (losses). Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

iii} Financial Asset at Fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)

d)

A Financial Asset which s not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOC! debt instruments, The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables only, the Company
measures the expected credit loss associated with its trade receivables based on historical trend,
industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate
basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when:

= Right to receive cash flow from assets have expired or,

* The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset ar,

* [t retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the received rash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a “pass through™ arrangement.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset,

[B) Financial Liabilities

a} Initial Recognition and Measurement

b}

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs, The Company's financial liabilities include trade
and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequerntly
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR: The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
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i}

ii}

Borrowings:

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of
the borrowings using the EIR method.

Trade and Other Payables:

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payahles are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

c] Derecognition

(€]

2.16

217

& financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is tréated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Contributed Equity

Equity Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses,

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is probable that an
outflow of resources will not be required to settle the obligation. However, if the possibility of outflow
of resources, arising out of present obligation, is remote, it is not even disclosed as contingent liability,

A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there s a liahility that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does not recognize 3 contingent
liahility but discloses its existence in the notes to financial statements, & Contingent asset is not
recognized in financial statements, however, the same are disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefit is probable,

109




2.18

Foreign currency transactions
a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The functional currency of the
Company is the Indian Rupee. The financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees.

b) Transactions, translation and balances

Fareign currency transactions are translated inta the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net
basis.

2.19 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the Equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders is adjusted for after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated
with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.20 Taxes on lncome

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax

Current Income Tax for the current and prior period is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to
or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rate and tax |aws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Current tax is recognised in statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income ar directly in equity; in which case, the current tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively, Where current tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
the business combination,

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liahilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date, ,/L\\
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Deferred tax assets are roccognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.,

Ceferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the vear
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
the statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation ta the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liahilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

2.21 Emplovee benefit

(i} Short Term Emplaoyee Benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the emplayees render the related service are
recognised in respect of emplayees’ services up to the end of the reparting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as short
term employee benefit ohlizgations in the balance shest

(i} Post-Employment Benefits
The following are the post-employment schemaes:

(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity and
(b} defined contribution plans such as provident fund, ESIC, LWF.

Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity Obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the
present value of the defined benefit ohligation at the end of the reporting period .The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reparting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Re-measurement of gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement
of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss
as past service cost,

111




.22

2.23

‘which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Defined Contribution plans
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations, The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized
as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

{iii] Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service, They are
therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.
The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to ocour,

Share-Based Payments

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the
fair value of equity-settled share based payments transactions are set out in Mote no. 30,

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a
straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a correspaonding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the
Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, |s recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the
cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based
Payments Reserve,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows fram operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated based on available information.

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash

ar hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
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2.24 leases

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessess to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the
accounting for finance leases under Ind A5 17, The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less),

The Company assesses at cantract inception whether a contract is or contains a lease. That is; of the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Where the Company is the lessee:

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consists of leases for stores, warehouses and offices taken
oh lease. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract and
period to be considered for recognition of lease liability and right-of-use assets. At the date of
commencement of lease, the Company recognise a right-of-use asset (*ROU"} and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangement in which it is a lessee except for leases with a non-cancellable term of
twelve months or less {short-term |eases) and low value leases. For these short-term leases which have
term less than 12 months and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis aver the term of the lease.

The |ease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments [including Common
Area Maintenance) that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit
in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability {using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made.

The Company remeasures the lease liability {and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-
of-use asset) whenever;

e The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within
the control of the Company affects whether the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
not previously included in its determination of the lease term, or not to exercise an option
previously included in its determination of the lease term., in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate,

¢ A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in
which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The effective date of the modification is the date when both the parties agree to the
lease modification and is accounted for in that point in time.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments (including Common Area Maintenance) made at or before the commencement day, less any
lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsegquently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the non-
cancellable period or lease term as per the management assessment.
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2.25

2.26

The Company applies Ind A5 36 to determine whether a right-of-use aszet is impaired and accounts for
any identified impairment loss as described in the Impairment of Mon-Financial Assets * policy.

Wariable rentals that do not depend on an index or rate, are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred

Where the Company is the Lessor:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
awnership of an assets are classified the asset are classified as operating |leases, Rental income arising is
accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging on operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over
the lease term an the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the
period in which they are earned,

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated July 24, 2020 and June 18, 2021, issued an
amendment to Ind AS 116-lLeases, by inserting a Practical Expedient w.r.t "Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions” effective from the period beginning on or after April 01, 2020. Pursuant to the above
amendment, the Company has elected to apply the Practical Expedient of not assessing the rent
concessions as a lease modification for all the rent concession which are granted due to Covid-19
Pandemic and has recognized the impact of such rent concession as ather income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss,

Business Combination

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acgquisition method under the provisions of
Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets
transferred, equity instruments issued and liahilities incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition,
which is the date on which control is transferred to the Company. The cost of acquisition also includes
the fair value of any contingent consideration. |dentifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair value on the date of
acquisition, Transaction costs that the Company incurs in connection with a business combination such
as finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are expensed
as incurred.

Business combination between entities under commeon control 15 accounted for using the pooling of
interest method, the assets ana liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying
amounts. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting policies.

Berrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary cost incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and the exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific borrowing costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use orsale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale,
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2.28

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on gualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Warranty Costs

Costs of warranty include the cost of labaur, material and related overhead necessary to repair a
product during the warranty period. The warranty period is usually one to three years. Costs related to
warranty are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Critical estimates and judgements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
Estimatian of deferred tax assets recoverable

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the same can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset which is primarily on account of unused brought
forward |osses, in the absence of the reasonable certainty that taxable income will be generated in the
near future to offset the losses if any, incurred by the Company. Refer note 36 for amounts of such
temporary differences on which deferred tax assets are not recognised.

Estimation of defined benefit ohligation

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment employee benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates, Due to the
complexities invalved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate
for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate.
Thase mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes, Future
salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective
countries, Refer note no.29 for key actuarial assumptions.
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* [Impairment of trade receivables, loans and other financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Refer Note no.27 on financial risk management where credit risk and related impairment disclosures are
made.

Equity-settled share based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of equity settled transactions with employees using a Black
Scholes Pricing Model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions requires determination of the mast appropriate valuation model, which iz
dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant, This estimate also requires determination of the
most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility
and dividend yield and making assumptions ahout them.

The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in Note no.30.
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Praxis Home Retail Limited

MNotes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements

3 (al. Property, Flant and Equipment [% I Lakhs)
offl i ectri
Particulars =] Furnliruru and F Leasehold Plant B Machinery EI-E’.'trII:.i| Total
Equlprnent. Fixture Improvements Installation
Gross Carrying Amount
fs At March 31, 2023 165,91 241,77 179:.97 153.24 4.74 204.72 1,550.35
Adaitions 3224 25414 24.53 91,08 1789 41,138 461,23
Deletions (73.81) 173.81}
A5 AL DMigreh 31,2024 158,15 1,085.92 204,55 F{EY 2014 245,50 1498097
Additlans 1.97 201.03 5.0% 52.55 A6.54 131.77 42881
Deleticns {1461} [143.31] 125.68] [59.43} 1240 145.11] |340.55]
As At Mar 31,2025 LB5.51 1147.66 180,80 1B3.65 45,87 EERR 2076.04
Accurnulated Depreciation
s At aarch 31, 2023 56G.07 13797 15%.42 20.71 0.74 2989 414,30
Ceprecigtion for the Year 5837 211.50 16,50 15.26 LGG 5171 355,19
Celetions [73.R1] [23.81)
A5 AT March 31,2024 114.84 34048 10832 2116 258 B1.60 745,78
Depreclation for the Yen 3117 195,36 12.98 28.23 T8 57.65 33r2a
Dzletons [9.60) 152.22) 128.07] 118.52] 10.GE) [13.33} (127.3%)
A5 Ar Mar 31,2025 136,41 496,652 161.22 30.87 9.5% 120.93 955.63
Net Carrying Value
As AL hMarch 31,2024 g23.31 JaB.849 JR.IE 19537 .34 164,30 i 1,241.899
As At Mar 21,2025 4910 B31.05 19.58 152.78 36.28 211,62 | 1,120.42
3 (k). Capltal Work-In-Frogress (% in Lakhs)
|Particulars Total
As At April 01, 2024 5751
Incurred during the yesr Bd.18
Capitalized during the year (107 80)
As At Mar 31, 2025 4,32
Particulars Total
As At april 01, 2023 15.07
Incurred during the vear AR3.17
Capitalized during the year 1440.33)
As At March 31, 2024 E7.581
Ageing for Capital Work-in-Progress as on March 31, 2025 [%in Lakhs}
Particulars Amount In CWIP for period af
hicra than 3
Less than 1 year 12 years 2-3 years ER D Totzl
YEES
Projects in progress .63 2.7 - 4.39
Projects temporarily suspended -
Tatal 0.62 3.76 - 1.349
Ageing for Capital Work-in-Frogress as on March 31, 2024 |Tin Lakhs)
|Particulars | Armount in CWIP for period of
Ryl th ES
Less than L year 12 years 2-3 years sl Total
YEArs
Projects in prograss 57,91 - - 57.81
Projects temporariby suspended -
Total 57.91 - 57.91

Note - The Company do nat have any Capltal-wark-ln progress, whese complietion is overdus or has excesded its cost comaared ko its original olan,
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4, Right-of-use Assels " in Lakhs|

Partlculars : Busldings Orftica aouipments Total
Gross Carrylng Amount g
s s March 31,2023 | 15,81Z 55 = 15,8L5.6E
it [ 25 ai

Medificst oo | |955.19%

Dligprzals 19, 520.00]

Az At March 31,2029 1814917 | g

Adel i | 5,053.47 | B - 5,053.87
kAdilications - - -
Dispazals | 11, 953.41% = r1.r:5.=;.-i: i
Ay A1 Manch 34, 2025 1,239.53 = 11,234.53
Accumulated Deprecisficn |

An AL March 31, 2073 ] - 5,451.12
Copreciatian far the Year — 3.3RIA EFLERLE
rodif cation: o

Mis sxzals jndania (L9174
A5 AL Marcn 31 204 742328

Ceprasiglion P b ear 24053

Iracair catians = -

Lisansss 11.158.861 |

A AL Marckh 31 T025 65851 =

Pet Carrying Yalus

A3 A6 Wiavch 3 2004 ] -G A0 E 10,725 50
Az At Barch 31,2025 13.581.35 = 1258139
|5 {a) diher Int ible Assets |% in Laichs)
; Computer
Farticalars Total
SufCwarn

iFross Larrying Ameaunt
A AL BArch 31,2033
scditians

s AL WA
Eoditians

s AL March 31,2025

el AT F05L

accurnudated Amariatios

s B BARrck 31, 2323 25.0E
Lmorisaton expenze fanche Yea 1010
E I O R Bt e ot 105.1F
&morlsatian expense for the Year 4.3¢
a5 At March 31, 2025 109.95
Het Sook Valus =T
s 4F Wlarch 31,2028 1£ 14 16.14
s At Mar 31 ,200% 13.09 15.08
Motes:-
127 Intunpikie assats ade mibe than Internal y ganerated.
'3 Balanca Usetul 1"z af irzangible assets = upka § pears
5 (b). Intangible a3sats under develogmant

% in Lalhsh
Partleulars Trtal
A3 AL April 0, 2024 1038
incarred daring thz year 181
Capitalzed curing the yea-
A A March, 2025 13.09
Particulars Toaal
a5 At Aped D1, 2023 -
Ieurres daring U gear 10
Capitalizad daring the yea- -
s At March 51, EE-'I 10.2%
Againg fov Intanginle assets under development oy on Memh 31, 2025 |% ik Lakhs]
Particulurs Amaount in Intangibie assers under daveloament for peried of

Lass tvan 1ysar 1-2 weany -3 years lorz £ d Tizal
H= 4 Jeits
Prajects in prigiass ra | in.2a 110
Projects tenparadly suspenced - a3 -
Total 121 10.24 - 1200
Againg for Intangible asseis under development ps pn Masch 31, 2024 |% in Lakhs]
Particulars Amaunt in Intangibée assets under devel it dor pericd of
| icre tazn 3
_ess ban 1year 1-2 yEnis 23 years i Tral
¥Sar -

Dy ecla in prograss 1028 = | AR |
Projects temparz-ily susperced = | : 2 ] :
Tatal 10.2% o | - | 1028
Mots - Tha Ca w M Intaaginle assets wnder deveopment, whoss cum ks BT [E

i

T
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Fraxis Home Retail Limited
Kotes annexed to and farming part of the financial statements

L

\Other Financlal Assets

Particulars

Security oposits  Unsecured. Consitered Good
Qthar Reczivables

a) Securily Deposit - Congidensd Good™

L] Others*

Consigarad Good

Credit impaired

Lrss 1 Allowa nee lor dowebtial delbts

Totel

{% in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Current Mon Current Current _Man Current
261,68 415.85 12543 111485
10,100.490 3 10,300,000 -
252492 - 47549k
253.72 . 13254 -
? 1253.72) - 1132.34] -]
10,636.60 415.85 10,701.3% 1,1749.84

® Securivy Daposlt |5 towares lease szreement which has expired. [Refer Hate no 40}
** qacalyzbles incivdes 1] Aecesvahle fram Forasemerce marketplaces through whiom sales has besn casried out 3nd |

mada of pavmeants.

|| Raceivanle fram banksNOTC towa

rds s5les made through thair

Othar Assets - Current & Non Current T {7 I Lakhs]
3 A5 at March 31, 2025 As a1 March 31, 2024

Particulars gk e

& A Current Non Current Current | Man Currant

unsecured, Considered Good, Unless Otherwize Stated

Caprtal Advances - | 1k.ak = 157.68

Advances ather Lhan Capital Adwances:

iv dudwance to Aelated Partias 6438 F3TL

Less: Frovision for Douhtfiel Aduancos {300.00] {xan|

Met Advance tn Belated 2arties 68.38 43491 -

i) Atfearice Lo Supchiers a74.38 9983 -

il sdvanca to Ereployees a1l B.50 -

Frepaid Expenses 4.0 131,73

=57 paid ander protest 67.13 13.50

Balances with Stalutory Autharities -Considered oo 1,943,356 LGLa.a0 -

Balance: wrth Statutary avtharities -Considered doubifal 5544 5549

Less Frovision for Daubtfol Balznoes [55.44] X (544} -

Total _ 758535 | 12,66 1,585,585 167.68

Mon-Current Tax Assets i in Lakhs)
5 B A at A at

Particulars : = Ma_rd_! _-“-_.__- _Man:h a1,

Tax dedu-;.;r.d“.ar sRLree gl G54

Iax prid under protest 276 21.78

Total 25.67 23.30

Inventories 3 % in Lakhs]

T A5 at Asat

Particulars March 31, Plarchk 31,

= 2025 ! 204

Sreck-in-Trase |noibding s1ack in transit 1% 318,94 Lakhs, varch 47, 2024 : % 265.77 Lakhs] = 1ETLIE 588718

Fackirg Materlais and Drhers 55,66 .01

Less . Provasion for Dhselete Inventorg 2nd Shrinkoge [18z.05] LEA RN

Total Inventories 1,752.17 5,743.61

Iwalued at cast ar Net Realisable Wil whichever is lower)
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10 Trade Recaivables

[¥ in Lakhs)

A5 at Acat
Particulars March 31, March 31,
- - 2025 2024
Unsecured considered good unless stherwise stated |
Corsideres Good 12,12 28.74
\Credit I paired i 35,91 34,848
- - = T
L0551 Allowance for doubtful debts [36.91} 134.80
LEL]] = 1213 28,74
Trade Recalvahles agelng schedule as on March 31, 2025 1% In Lakhs]
Farticilars o Dutstanding For the following periods From due gate of payment
Mot dus Ledeited b Eaahs -1 1-2 Years -3 Years Total
p— W | minths year
Undispated Trade receivables — cansidercd gaad | - 543 3,64 T _'IJ_'..-__
Lindizputed Trade Racelusbias - which have significant increase
i dit risk - - | - T
puted Trade Receivahlas - cradit impaired - PUER 3.60 - 33,13 3651
Cizputed Trade Azceivables — corsidared gonn - = == “_ e
izputed Trade Szcelables — which have significant increase i [
ir gredit risk 7 =
I:Ii:'.pl.rrr.'.!. Trade deceivanles — credrt impaired = | T =
Total - 246 | 738 - 3309 | 43,03
Trade Receivables againg schedule as on March 31, 2024 [T in Lakhs|
|Particulars — - Dutstanding for the Tallowing perieds from due date of paynsent
Mot due LA IHED 5 Aol 1-2 Years 7-3 Years Total
months YEAF s
Undisputed Trade receivables = considered good - | EE R [ AR
Undisputad Trade Eeoeivables - which have significant increase
In cradit rigk : : 2 - ¢ :
Lindispuiod Trade Rrocivables - rr\f:'l'lit impsired. - 157 .32 42 80 - 34.58
Crizguted Trade Receiva bies - considered good B - - - ) = i ]
[espured Irade Recelvabias - which have significant Increase
in cradit risk 3 & +
isputed Trade Aaceivablos — credlt (mpa red_ = = : - - -
Tatal - 20,59 143 a0 | - 36T
11 Cash and Cash Equivalants [Tiin Lakhs)
. - s at AR ar
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Brlancos with Banks . In Current Asrnurts 14442 143.87
O lances wilk Banks - Fised Doposits « 1296
Chegdes on Hand 7.40 0.on
Cazhan Hand - h 20.32 29,64
_T'E:I 17214 I96.07
12 Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalants abave = —— 1% In Lakhs]
Hxat .ﬁ-s ﬂ.t““-_
Particulars March 31, Pdarch 31,
S — 2025 mu
Bank Jalancea - Unclaimed arreuent pilfal.:;l.u.ln'x.'ur\d: fractiznal shares* | 3.31 331
[Total 3 [ am 231

*Restrictad Bank hzlance
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1Praxhs Heme Retail Limited
Motes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements
13 |A] Equity Share Capital |% In: Lakhs] |
Particulars Az at 3 an
o . Mdarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Jhuthorisad
Tn':.l:!E.l'Ir.".tIII: Uty :har:ﬂs i@ hoearn | 41 March Zi24: 200000 15.000.00 .0anan
equity shares ol T 5 exch)
[—
13,52,23,4C2 equity shares o1 % 3 eath | 31 March 2324: 12,332,723 402
enuity shares of & = each) - E.7GL.1T 5,262.17
Subscribed and Paid e
13,5258, 184 equity shares af 5 each | 315t Maah 2024:13,53,15,134
ety sharrs o™ _-,_r:m:hll = E.7&0.81 6,26091
il Reconciliation of Mumber of Fquity Shares.
- Icula Asat Asan
Farticulars March ¥1, 2025 #arch 31, 2024
PLAERE F % in lakhs Rlamieral % in fakhs
Shares Shares
Uacqing Balaree of Equity Sharasaf 50 each 12,52,23,002 FIEL1T £.hG,05,450 1,783.77
Add : Shares issued during Lie vear SPorsuant oo [igan [ssued - 45105571 245078
Addl : Shares lssued diring the year (Purusant ro FS00) - 4 3,62,500 1813 |
adid : Shares ssued diring the vear (Farsuane fo Lonversion of wa-=nts|
1,001,040, 000 L& Sl - -
Total Shares issund 13,562,23.402 6 TELAT 12,53,23.402 haRlay |
Less: Sqares kept in aboyancs [Reafer Rate Ho, i below) 5,218 _Das 5,118 225
Tedal Shares outstanding ab the end af the year | 13,52,18,124 6,T60.91 12,52,1E,184 5,260.91 |
[iid Terms! Rights Attached 1o Equity Shares —
e Tompaty has anbe pag class af Equ oty Shares having 3 aarvalue of ¢ 5 cach ot the Balance Sneet Date. Exch holisr is entithed 1o one wate per share oo case of vnting by shaw af
hards and ora votz per Shares qeld 0 case ol selng by polliballzLl. Cach halesn ! Equity Slare is 2o @nted toowrmal doedend Yinciuding intzrim dividend, il anv] as may e
deciared ey the conpany
1oy Lk gvir of Sgudatan of company, ~e anlders of equ ity skares will ka enrtlnd to racrive rema ning assees of the company, @'Ler distritation of all peefarardial amnonts. The
distnbutars willbe 1 proaortion w the number of eguity shares held by shareholear,
{@il  [Farsuant to the provisians of the Companies fc, 2023, Uhe jssue o7 5248 Eguily Shares are ked® ir abeance corespandng 7o tha respecove sharenaleer: aolding of 104,171 equity
srares i Future Reta Limited
tiel Oetalks of Shares pledged
Particulars A 8t March 31, 2025 Az at March 31, 2024
Ra, of Shares plangac by promctars - . . _
(u] Shared in Lhe Company hedd by @ach sharahalkder holding mare than 5 % shares and number of Sharas hebd are as under:
Ax at March 31, 2025 As ak March 3L, 2024
Name af Sharshalder Mo, af Shares % of Mo, of Shares % of W changa
held Halding hiedd Holding during the
year
Eqgulty Sharns
Guralus Firvess Private Lrmilsy 245,23.708 1514 1.55,87,003 | 1384 17s
tagal Bhansas & PACS - 207,806,697 15.R1 1
Liniversal Trustezs Put Lid - 50,00, L0 B it
Futare Hospillity Privata Lasited - 2 45,135,319 36 200
FuTUre Crrparate Resontces Froate Limited - - 4,15,675 .33 LI
kathew Cyrize 100,21 484 . ral 2 =
|wi)  Disclasure of shareholding of Fromoters
‘Disclosure of Shareholding of Pramatess a5 a9 March 31, 2035 k5 as fallaws: o
| as at March 31, 2025 | A5 at March 31, 2024 |
H change
Mame of Promoter Percamtape of L
HWa. of Shates Parcentage af total shares Mo. of Shares e duiring the
_|ynar
shiri Kishare Bivani 414 005, 414 0004 0.00%
Fulure Sorporats Resouy rces Private Limited 4,153,625 h31% 1.15.625 053 0.003%
Takal 4,106,039 0.31% A.16, 144 033% O.0O0%
it ApgrEgate numier of Shares wiThouL payrinent Being reoived in Cash (pUIELANE te schame of arrargament] dunng the foaneial year Z017-10 - 2,46 38426 Tulty Shares,
wii
) &sat March 31, 2015, k12,500 Mo, o® Equity Shares [March 31, 2024 Mo, of equ ty shares 1,15, 3000 are reserved Tor [sauance Wwands Dufstanting Empsayes Sock Dabinn granter,
[Refar dote 30)
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MNotes annexed bt #and forming part of the finsncial statements

15 |Mon-Current hahiﬁti:: - Provisicns = 1% In Lakhs)|
el - As ot Bearch 31, 2025 ! A= 3% March 31, 2024
Current feon-Currenit Current | Mon Current
Prowiskan for Emplayee Benchits 1
Craluy (ReTer npte ne 39 21462 111.35 Z1.8D 15560
Compensated Absercos B . 23R BB | 180 14,04
Teaal ] 1350 -._1._3.5_3_} T i |
15 | Fmanoial uahmtruurrwn,:l o __ | % In Labds]
¥ Az at March 31, 2025 A5 ab March 31, 2024
Particulars
Unzecured — Lurrent Mor-Current | Current Mon-Current
|inter Corporate Deposits (Refer note A] =
- Faovn Ralamad Palas B0, 105,15 - 405 00
- b dthers 1,678.04 - 2. LA -
[Tatal _ 11,783.45 - TA2L0 -
Security'
il Inter Corpcrats Sooosits are reoayable an demand seiwn by arenis
17 [Trade Payabilas I im Lakhas)|
Earficulars o | i
March 31, 2025 Mizrch 31, 2024
Chatatarelg chigs ol Mic-aared Srall Cilerprisey B - ) B -1,43-'.‘-51 e R
Crabstard ng dues of Craditees ot than Smail and Moo Entara<ses = 1 _THRT 1razy.42
Tl e X 5417.23 | IQJHEE
Trade Payabies sgeing schedube as on March 31, 2075 o 4% In Lakhsh
Fartindars Ctstanding for the following periods from due dake of payment
. Le=s than 1 ¥ear | 1-2 Years 2-3 Tears tore than 3 Years Tatal
11 MSHIE = A34.0F 5as EES ] 15.04 1,487 51
iy ks _ 35511 Lazans s T £, 48 33
|| ispused dues - Uthers [ = o =i =
Total S 5,E26.23 2,138.50 275.40 146.37 AATE 0 |
Unbilied trade payveales joches than micre ane small 2abeprsas) - 100001
Grand Tatal : — [ 3,417.23
Tracke Payatlas ageing schadala a5 an March 31,2024 |% I Lakha]
Particulars Qutstanding for the ioliowing periods frorm due dmmn:vnuﬁ_t i
= Less than 1 Year 1-1 Fears | 2-3 Years | More than 3 Years |
] FEE 1971 50 AR, 71 23.R6 | 4 T
i’ Otaers FATLAD 3,332.73 apamy | &32.54
| Zspatedd thies - MSME =) g < e X
{0 Sicpeated dans  Othes = ol | - |
Ténal 14408 40152 396.73 | 2an.20
tmce peyakles fotaer drar mocoard szl enbzranses) = = ol B | = = e ] i
tal = [ 14,3RFAS |
15 [har Financad Liabilishes-Clovern % in Lol
Particulars Az 1 A
Tarch 21,2025 | March 3L, 2324
Foalary Ami Cmpliyee berslits pagabie J : - = - 3E3.A0 40508
Undalmee 5na~e Monzy o1 Frackan Shares (Refes none 36] 331 341
litsrnst @m0 hariawiags £2309 322
Unredezmed Prefarzame Sharas® w3000 BEC.O0
Tradies Par Caaital Fapaadivacg el N1 131,510
tver Fayzakes jirserest on FSsL anc cther pa=ics] 295,54 | 5424 |
Total 1,925.89 175338

- park (PHCEPS™) sgprepsting bo % 530 Takhs held oy Futdre kakzroqzes Lmsed CFELY) wee due far redemptianon December 08, 2022 Rowceer, a5 oes the
il A ddsidend o procascds al any Tiesh Bae o <9a0es meds Tor e

™ 5% Man Cumu athes Redecmabie Prebeercs Shares af T 101/
Campamiey Al 015 ard sules macle thersunder, the redemipt o of 2 prefecetze shares 1o be made aut o anly aavits availanbe o ke dicris
puposas of such redemaotion. &s te Comoaty bas net g e any 200l curicg Uhe currenl year and 1o provescs o oy feth issue of shas=s made for the purposas of such redenipt on, the Company cauld net ~sdsem she
RPN, The sail BERMS e # dr urregeemrad prefereros coptal o boaks of bz Camps Ty and the same shal Le redeamed s aae s prosisions of B A,

13 | Oahar Cuwrana Liabilitias - 1™ B Lakiha]
Particulars b s at

= Rlzrch 31, 2025 March 31, hodq

Achaanees fror Castopers Tl 10000

Stabstory dues pavahle 132.44 .37

Tatal 055 1,285.33
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Motes annexed to and forming part of the Gnancial statements
[% In Lakhs|
Partlculars ko il
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
14, Other Eguity !
Capital Reserve
DOpaning Balanca 796834 T.55E.34
addizianlappropriztion] Dueing The Year 1,200.00 :
Closing Balance (A 9,168.24 1 968.34
Security Premium
Cpening Balance 12,197.71 1015062
Aursuant to the exercise of chare aptians TAG
Puradant o the Righty Issue Z.450.28
Rights Issur: Faprraes (2D46.69]
Praferential 'ssue Expenses (2R1LET|
Pursuant we the Share Warrants 1,104.00
Clasing Balanca {B] x 12,257.71 12,197.71
Capltal Redemption Reserve
Dpening Balanoe L.ao S
Additisn/|&pproprintinn] During Tha Year - -
dosing Balance (C} 5.00 5.00 |
Share- Based Payment Reserve (Rafer Nate Mo, 30)
Orpening Balance 28.00 105.52
anara based paymants 34.82 43.5%
Dprons lapsed as per ES0P scheme 15.75) 150,91
Exercica af share aptions - EA0R Alzr 2021 | | 76,5
Clasing Balanca {D) 57.07 28.00
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 132,377.51) 123,808 08
Brofitd[Loss| For Tha Year [3.497.85) W8,571.25)
Ciptions lapsad 25 per 2507 schere 575 H1al
ther Comprehensive Incomef{Lass] For The Year
R mrasurement Gaind Lossh on Defined 3anelit Flans (55.57) 1311}
Incare Tax ralating 1o above - -
Closing Balance |Eb - [35,925,17| (32,377.51]
Moaey received against share warrants
Opening Balanoa 1,600.00 | -
*onny reonived sgalast share warrants 1,687.50 1650000
share Wwarrant converted ta Cyuity |11,600.00)
Manay received agains shars warrents wnitten bacy |1, 200.00)
Closing Balance [F) a87,50 | 1,600.00
Total {A+B+C+0+E=F) [12,709,56| {L0,578.44]
Maturg and Purposa of Reserves:
al Capital Reserve
Curing the financial year endad March 32, 201E. the capital reservn af % 7,968,394 Lakhs recognlsed due 1o demerger of
retail homatown division, pursugnt Lo the compasite scheme of arcangam ant with Tuture Retail Limited. During the year
ended March 31, 2035, the respective warrant halder did not exarcise the oplion ta canwert shree crars squity share
watrrants within the corvessien perod ending o Tebruary 1, 2325, Thase nquity share warrants were cancelled by the
Campany and apetication money amownt of T1,200 lakhs received on Augast #2023 wee farfaizad in terms af Lha Fasies
af said warrants and treated as Capilaf Resorvo,
|b] Capital Rademption Reserve
Ourlng the firancial year snded March 31, 2018, the caplta | redam plion reserys of 1500 Lakhs reeagnised due to
dernerger of ratail hemetown division, pursuant e the composite scheme of srrengement with Swture Ratall Lmizad.
ch Security Premium
Security premam is ereatod o recors a sum equal 1o the ageregete amount of its prenaure recalvad on shares lssded as
portha Comaanles act, 2013,
o here- Based Payment Resarve
Thiz recarve relstes to share aplions grantad by the Cempany 0 its 2mplovess and directors uncer ESOF. Furthar
intormation aboul share-based payments to employeas Is et out in Mots no. 30,
&) Retained eamings
This regresents the surslas / |deficit) af the Staremert of Frofit and Loss. The @ mount that zar be distributad by the
Corrparmy e dividind o its equity shareholears |s detarriined based on the separate Finanos | Statemeants of the
Company ard alsn considerng the reguirements of the Companies Ack, 2074,
I} Money recalved agalnst share warrants
This represents smaodnt received on partial allatmeat af Sgaity Share Warrants to greferential invastors on preferontal
allotment basis. | Refer note na. 43)
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MNotes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements

20 Revenue From Operations 1% n Lakhs)|
;I;mh“ ______ Year Ended Tear Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2id4
Sale of Products 11,847.46 21,852.61
Other Operating frncorme
- incame fram sale of Yon Saleable Marchandizes 49,49 1813
- Income from exgiry of Gift Voucher - 7703
Total 11,296.96 2195777
21 Other Incamea o [% Im Lakhs)
: o Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lease ard nther liabilitics written back 3.867.08 And.B1
Interest Inceme 23.49 10278
Cther Miscellanecus Incomea 24.12 6875
Total . 3,914.68 636.16
Mote ; Other Income for the year andad March 31, 2025 ncludes % 3,790 86 lakhs on acoourt of write Sack of rrade
mawables and provisions lincludicg write back of related parties balance and provisiors of % 269372 likhsg).
32 Change In inventories of Stock-in-Trada {% in Lakhs)
Yoar Ended Year Ended
"m_c"ia_“ March 31, 2023 March 31,2024
Opening Inventarles M
Arock-In-Trade 5,4887.18 A, 2531
Packing Matorials and Grhers T4.01 115.14
Chosing Inventories
srcck-In-1rade 3,873.56 | 5,887,158
Facking Materia's ard Dthers G666 | 4.1
Change In Inventories 2,020.98 | _Los3.za
22 Employee Benefits Enpense [Xin Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
articular March 31, 2025 Pharch 31, Zﬂlﬂ;
Salarles, wages and Honus 2,372.63 486965
| Cortributeon to Frovident a0 Uteer burd (Hafer note ro. 20 | 125.90 206.15
Frmplover Stack Qption Frpense (Rofer note ne. 30) | 34,82 29065
Gratuity [Refer note ne. 29) 36.50 3654
Staff Waltare Expenses 93,15 19250
Total 1,663.01 4,355.29 |
24 Finance Costs {% in Lakhs]
Partleulars VednEndud YR Badee
March 11, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on Borrowlngs 335.88 FAE.A5
Unwinding Interest an Lease Uabilities L234.76 1,230,481
Cither interest cosks 100,940 1£7.44
Total - 1,6'."!._._54_ | 2,206.50
25 Other Expenses [ e [% In Lakhs)
B Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Power & Furl AS8.27 1,279.33
Rant B55.74 L.057.30
Repalrs and Maintznance 75.11 153.67
Insurarce 16.31 1977
Rates ani Taxes 62,88 271.83
Trsvelling & Conveyance 7654 231332
Advertisement and Maikellng 41622 1,434 .54
House Keeplng Charges 1E6.04 235480
Trarsportation Charpes I97.61 561,13
‘Warebausing & [Hstributinn Charges 24704 510,25
Wi powisr Aguncy - Sall Hire Charges I63.51 25234
Hamg Delivary Expenses 122,22 413,02
legal & Profossianal ! BO5. 52 TIRGE
Directue s Sitking Fees 10.40 15.90
Payment to Auditors |Refer Mote no. 38) 16.32 24.11
Lass ar Foreigr Currency trarsiazion or trarsactions 19,51 2GR
Lass or disposalfwrite 0 of Fixed Asscts 211.60
Subvention and Credit Card Chargas 26866 468.53
Miscellaneous Expenses ) T 825.04 | 095,85
Total 5.275.64 8,765,668
-
o
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Praxis Home Retail Limited
MNotes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements

26. Fair value megsurements:

{al Financial instruments by category

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars sl At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Amortised cost Fair Value Ampriised cost Fair Value

Financial assets
Trade Receivables 12.12 - 2874 -
Cash and cash eguivalents 172.14 = 196.07 Z
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

3.31 . 3.31 -
ahove
Cher Financial Assets 10,352.92 679.53 10,475,595 1,340,249
Total financial assets 10,540.48 &70.53 10,704.07 1,340.29
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11,783.15 . 7.423.00
Lease Liabilities 13,576.56 x 11,186.55
Trade payables 9,417.23 - 14,386.43
Other financial liabilities 1,925.89 - 1,763.39
Total financial liabilities 36,702.83 - 34,759.37 -

MNote ; The Company has not disclosed the fair value of cash and bank balances, other financial assets, trade pavables, other financial
liabilities and trade receivables because their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value,
(b} Falr value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are {a)
recognised and measured at fair value and [b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in detarmining fair valug, the Company has classified its
financial instruments into the three lavels prescribed under the accounting standard, An explanation of each level follows
undarneath the table.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at fair values disclosed as at March 31, 2025

(Zin Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Security deposits - = 67952 679.53
Other Receivables - - - -
Total financial assets - - 672.53 G79.53

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - a N
Total financial liabilities = > i
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Praxis Home Retail Limited

Assets and liabilities which are measured at fair values disclosed as at March 31, 2024
{% in Lakhs)

Particulars Level 1 Lewval 2 Level 3 Total
Financizal assets
Security deposits - - 1,340,259 1,340,289
Other Receivables - - - J -
Total financial assets - - 1,340.29 1,340.29

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - -
Total financial llabillties - - =
Mates

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2; The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is

determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of cbhservable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates, IF all significant inputs reguired to fair value an instrument are observakle, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3; If one ar mare of the significant inputs is not based an observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(¢} Valuation technigue used to determine falr values
Specific valuation technigues wsed to value financial instruments include:
- the use of gquoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

- the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchanga rates at the balance sheet date

- tha fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysiz / Earnings / EBITDA
multiple method.

{d) Fair value of financial assets and lizbiiities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities, trade receivables, trade pavables, advances to employees, advances from custamers, othear
receivables, security depasits, unclaimed fractional share maney, creditors far capital nature, employes payables and cash and cash
equivalents are considerad to have their fair values approximately egual to their carrying values,

27. Financial Risk Management

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how o plan and execute its business strategies, The Company's
financial risk management palicy is set by the Board of Directors.

{a} Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities - trade receivables and other receivables amounting
to % 49.03 lakhs and T 506.64 |lakhs as on March 31, 2025 respectively and % 63.62 Lakhs and % 568.29 lakhs as on March 31, 2024
raspectively,

(b} Liguidity Risk

i} The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations.
Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to setzle or meet its cbligations on time or at a reasonable
price, Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses and servicing of
financial ohligations.
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ii] Maturity of Financial Liakilities

The amounts disclosed below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, Balances due within 12 months equal to their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant,

[Zin Lakhs)
March 31, 2025 Lass dhar 1 Mhare fan 1 Total
i ©year Year
Interest bearing borrowings® 12,206.24 - 12,206.24
Trade Payables 9,£17.23 - $,417.23
Lease Liabilities 267196 10,904.60 13,576.56
Other Financial Liabilities 1,825.29 - 192589
Total 26,221.32 10,204.60 37,125.92
(% in Lakhs)
March 31, 2024 fespanL | Momten Total
year Year
Interest bearing borrowings® 7,743.22 774322
Trade Fayables 14,386,43 14,386.43
Lease Liahilities 2,989,591 2,186.64 11,186.55
Other Financial Liahilities 1,763.39 1,763.39
Total 26,892.95 B,186.64 35,079.59

*Includes contractual interest payment based on the interest rate prevailing at the reparting date.

(c) Market Risk
rdarket risk is the risk of changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rate, interest rate, and equity prices —will affect the
company’s incame ar values of its holdings of financial statements, The company is not exposed to any significant currency risk and
anguity price risk.

(i) Sensitivity Analysis
Profit or Loss Is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of change in interes? rates,

[% in Lakhs)
: As at
Impact on Profit/|Loss) after tax Asat 94
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest rates increase by 100 basis points = i
Interest rates decrease by 100 basis points Z 3

{d} Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions primarily on account of import of
trading goods Foreign exchange risk arises if recognised liabilities denaminated in a currency that is not the functional currency of
the Company. The Company hedges its foreign exchange risk using foreign exchange forward contracts within the guidelines laid
down by risk management policy of the Campany. Overall, Company always has a limited exposure to foreign currancy risk.

Fallowing table details the carrying amounts of the Company's unhedged foreign currency denominated monetary items at the end
of the reporting period
(in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2034

Particulars

Trade Fayahle
Us Dollar {UsD) .50 7.57

127




Praxis Home Retail Limitad

& 5% strengthening in USD will increase the loss for the year by £ 25.97 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 -  31.50 Lakhs) and a 5% weakening
in USD will decrease the loss for the year by T 25.97 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 - % 31.50 Lakhs). In management’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period

daoes not reflect the exposure during the year.

28. Capltal Risk Management

[&) Risk Management

Far the purpose of the Company’s capital risk management, capital includes issued equity capital and all ather equity reserves
attributable to the equity shareholders, The primary ohjective of the Company’s capital risk management is to maximize the
shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditian and the requirements
of the financial covenants. To maintain and adjust the capital structure, the company may return capital to sharehelder or issue new
shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. The Company includes within
net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, |ess cash and cash eguivalants,

(% in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Barrowings 11,783.15 F,423.00
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 172.14 196.07
MNet Debt (A) 11,611.01 7.226.93
Equity 6,760.91 6,260.91
Other Equity {12,309.58) (10,578.44)
Total Capital (B) {6,148.65) (4,317.53)
Gearing Ratio (C = A/B) -1.89 -1.67

(B] Dividends: The Campany has not paid any dividend since its incorporation.

29, Disclosure under Ind AS 1% “Employee Banefits”.

The Company has various employee benefit schemes covering different categories of employees based on their location of
empioyment,

a} Defined Contribution plans:

{1) Provident Fund

(ii] state defined contribution plans - Employer's contribution to Employees state insurance and Labour Welfare Fund

The provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the
schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits.

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised as expense for the year [5 as

under : (% in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 33:, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contirbution to Provident fund 101.57 169.17
Contirbution ta ESIC 13.14 24,712
Contirbution to NP5 10.94 11.85
Caontirbution to LWF : 0.25
Total 125.90
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b} Defined Benefit plans:
The Company operates the following defined benefit plans:

(i) Compensated Absences

Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss {%in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.92 -

(if} Gratuity

Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss.

{a} Change In Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, governed by The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. It entitles an employes,
who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifieen days wages for every completed year of
service or part thereof in excess of six manths, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned.

[nherent risk: The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsared by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risk
pertaining to the plan. In particular, this exposes the Company, to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in
demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying plan assets, This may result in an increase in cost of providing these
benefits to employees in future, Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan js not subject 1o longevity risk,

The actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been carried out as at March 31, 2025, The
following table sets forth the status of the various defined benefit plans of the Company and the amounts recognised in the Balance

{% in Lakhs}
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 177.41 169,07
Service Cost 24.53 24.32
Interest Cost 11.97 12.22
Benefits Paid {136.00) {77.71)
Re-measurement-Actuarial (gains)flosses 55.57 4911
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the yvear 133 .47 C 17741
{b) Net Defined Benefit Liability f (Assets)
(T in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined Benefit Obligatian 133.47 177.41
Fair value of Plan Assets - -
{Surplus) / Deficit 133.47 177.41
Effects of Assets Ceiling - -
Met Defined Benefit Liability / [Assets) 133.47 177.41
(¢} Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(X in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current Service Cost 24.53 24.72
Met interest on the net defined benefit liability/assets 11.97 12.22
Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 36.50 36.94

129




Praxis Home Retail Limited

(d] Remeasurement effects recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OC1)

Retirement age

[% in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Actuarial [Gains)/ Losses 42,76 11.37
Gain f (Loss) fram change in financial assumptions 3.48 3.08
Gain / [Loss) from change in demographic assumptions 9.33 34,66
Total (Gain) / Loss included in OC1 55,57 49,11
{e) Reconciliation of Amounts in Balance Sheat
(% in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cefined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 177.41 169.07
Defined Benefit cost included in Profit and Loss 36.50 36.54
Total amount included in OCI 55.57 49.11
Benefits paid (135.00) (77.71)
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the yvear 133.47 177.41
(f} Reconciliation of Amaounts in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
(% in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
OCI (income) / Loss atthe beginning of the year 40,75 [8.26)
Total Remeasurement included in QCI 55.57 449,11
OCI [Incame) / Loss at the end of the year 96.32 40.75
(g} Expected Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
[% in Lakhs)
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Year 1 21.62 21.80
Year 2 22.16 2287
Year 3 25.57 24,12
Year 4 24.87 29.10
Year 5 26.22 32.30
Years B to 10 102.84 162.90
Above 10 Years 125,53 432,58
(h} Assumptions
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount Rate 6.60% 7.19%
Expected rate of Salary increase 2% flat 2% flat
Mortality Rate IAI_.f'."'I (2012-14) IAL.M 12012-14)
ultimate ultimate
Service < 5 Years
P, - 31k Service < 5 Years ; 28%
Service = 5 Years |Service = 5 Years ; 3%
s 14%
S8 Years 58 Years
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{i} Sensitivity Analysis
{% In Lakhs)
Az at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 133.47 177.41
Discount Rate 6.60% F.19%
Expected rate of Salary increase 2% flat 2% flat
Discount Rate
Discount Rate -100 basis points 139.80 18882
Discount Rate 4100 basis points 117.66 167.18
Salary increase rate
Rate -100 basis points 128.09 167.45
Rate +100 basis points 139.26 18827

A
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Motes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements
0. Share-Based Payments

|a] Scheme Details

Praxis SVAR Plan - 20138

Tha ESCP Flan titled as Prazis Home Fetail Limited Share Yalue Appreciation Righss, Blan — 2018 |*Prasis SWAR Plan - 2018"] was appraved ay the Board of Diractons at
Ite meeting hald on August 6, 2018 and the samz was zlso passed by way of 2 speciz| resolution by the Sharehalders of the Corpany in t2rms of 2rstwhile SFR(Share
Based Emplayse Benefls) Regulations, 2014 atthe annuzl zanaral meeting held on Septerrber 18, 2018, In sagregate, 8,75 000 slock options were coverad vnder the
Praxis SWAR Plan — 2018,

Curing the year 2018-19, the Mamination and Bemunarstion Committes {*NRTT| of the Company had granted 466,500 apzions under the Fraxis SWAR Blan - 30138 o
directer and empioyess of e Company. Ihe options granted are corvartile into ezual number 07 eqeity shares af face value Rs.5/- ezch. The exzrcise arice of cach
nptios is ke 76/ (including R, 171/- as share gremium).. The cptlons wers sutject to @ minineur vasang period o 1 (one) year fromethe date of grant. Method of

accounting is Fair Valer based and the metod of sestlement will ba Cguity-sectled.

Theraaftar, during the finanoal yvear 2028220, 2000-21, 2021-22, 2022-23,2023-24 & 2024-25, no stock options wers granted under Praxis SYAR Plan - 2028

Praxis Employee Stock Option Plan -2021

I'he ESOP Plan sitled as Praxis Home Retsil Limited, Employee Stock Gprion Plan— 2021 |“E30P - 2071%) was appraved by the Board of irectors atits meeting held on
October 27, 2021 and the same was also passed by wav of & special resalution by the Shareholdars of she Company in terns of SEB {Share Based smployee Benafts znd
Swses Foliity! Regulationg, 2021 by way of postal ballat approved on December 12, 2021, In aggregata, 20,000,000 stock oprions were coverad unser the S50P - 2022

puring the year 2021-22, the Homiratior and Rzmuneration Committee ("NRC" of she Company bad granted 12,05,000 gptions under the ESOF Plan — 2027 o direcor
and employees of the Compary. The options pranted are convertible into equal numbar of equity shares of face walue T 5/- each. The axarcise price of eack agtion 5 T
/- The optinns were suiject to a minimum vesting perzd of 1{ane}year frem the Zate of prant. Wathod of accounting is Fair Walue based and the method of
sattlement will be Equity-sottlod,

Curing the year 2022-23, the Momination and Remuneration Committes ("MREC" of the Campany has granted 1,00,000 nptions under the ESCP Plan - 2021 ta emgloyee
ol the Company. The apliong granted are convectiple inta equal number of equite shases of facz value % 5/- each. The axerdise price nf each option 15T 5/~ The aptionz
wore subjoct toa minimurs vesting pericd al 2 oeedvear fram e dale ol grant, Mathod o aceounting 15 Falr Vaiue sazad and the morthod of setciement willbe Equity-
zattled.

Pradgis Employes Stock Option Plan -2024

The ESCP Pian titled az Praxis Homa Retail Limited Employee Stock Option Plen - 2624 |"ESOP 2024”1 was approved by the Beard of Diractors 3t its meeting held on
Movarnbiar 11, 2024 and the skarehalders at the Extra Ordinary Sereral Meezing feld on spnl2s, 2024, in aggregate, 30,00,000 stack oprions were coverad wnder tha
ESOR — 20374,

Juring the year 2024-25, tha Memination and Rerrunaration Committee |"NACY] of the Company had granted 500,000 optianss under the 2500 Plan - 2024 w0 directar
and employess of tha Company. The cptions granted are convertible Into equal number of equity shares of face walue T8/ cach. The erercse price of each opron iz %
3/, The options wore sehieot teoa misimuen vesting period of | jone) year Form the dace of grant. Mathod of azcounting is Fair Yalue heser and the method of
setdemant will be Equity-settizd,

The “aflowing shara -based payment arrangemenss hive sutssnding oplionsas on Balnos Sheel data.

| —
Number of Options N;ml_ler of Fair Valua at
Option Series putstanding as on Pt'_"m ' Grant Date Westing Date Exercise Price {%) | Grant Date
R outstanding as on | I
E March 31, 2024
__r_‘_rqxis S'I.n'-ﬁ.Fj_PIan :_Z{ILE - b, 500 27032018 - L 17600 35 40
Prasis Employes Stack Option Plan -2021 =] 112500 112,500 1012002 " so0| szio
Frasis Dnployes Slock Option Plan -2024 | o000 Z LL-L1-2021 R i 2157

Uption can be txercized within three pears from the date of Vesting af Options,

* The potions gronted shall vest over 5 period of 5 years frem the date of the geond (in the cotic of 15% e Yeor 1, 15% i Year 4, 205 in Vear 3, 208 o Veor
A g 30% i Veor 5} e the manner specifiied in the resolution passed by the MRC while grarting the options,

** The ogbions gronted sholl vest over o periad of 3 years from the date of the gront (s the rotic of 0% o Yeor I, 30% W Yeor 2 ong 30% 0 Feor 31 in the

maiies speclied i the resalution passed by the NAC while granting the aptions,

#¥® Tha apbions gronted shall vest over @ periad of 3 vears from the dote of the grant [in the ratio of 305 in ¥eor 3, 30X in Year 2 ood 40% 0 Faar 3) 0 the
manner specified in the redalution poassed by the NRCWhle gronting the agticns,

{o} Movemant of share Dptivn

| As at As at

Particulars | March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 1,159,000 5,03.750
Granted During the year 5,00,000 | 3]
Cxpired francelled during the yoar i - 6,500 3.22,250
Exercised during the year o . 1,62,500
Cutstanding at the end of the year 512,500 1,215,000 |
[Frcromahie ot the mnd of the year 1,12,500 £,500 |

The share aptions outstanding at the and of the year had a waiphted average remaining contractual Iihe n* 1,032 days (2024 1 1373 days)
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[c) Falr value on Grant Date

The Tair valur on the grart dats is determined wsing "Black Schales

(Metrod ang Assumplions used toestimete the fair value ol optinns grantag:

focel’, which tekas itto account axercize grice, leen ol the aption, shars prics =t
1EfiJ"l'- date and expectad price volatility of tha undarlying shares, expected dividend yizld and risk free Interast rale fos she torm of the aption,

: Praxis Employes
Praxis Employes Stock Optian Plan -
Praxis SWAR Plan -| Stock Option Plan - 2024 (Granted
Particnlase FLE:] 2021 [Granted Prvanar A1,
Fahuary 27, 20232}
2074)
For 5 vear vesting| For 3 year w!';ting For 3 year vesting
period period period
Fifsk Frae Interest fale l 7.13% 3.72% EB.H5%
Expected Life B 5.EE Yrars 3.4 Years .60 Years)
Expected Yolatiling = 26 100% 55,045 545G
Dividend Yield ] 00% | 0.00%)] .00
Exzrrise P'rice ] B ] 176.00 | 5.0 | 500
{d} Compensation Expenses arising on account of the Share Based Payments . 1% In lakhs)
o Year Ended Year Ended
|Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Expreenses arising from equity - sE'.ilE:[_a;b:!r<~-ha szd payment ransacticns 34,82 4055 |
31, Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Statemeant of Calculation of Basic and Diluled EPS is as under
T Az at Az at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Frofif|Loss) for the year [Rsin Lakhs] (2,497 85} (,571 25]
Weighted average number of Equity Share for Basic EPS 129 ?,9,;5:2'_!5 ] I1,56,01,001
Hainal Vaie por Eguity Share (Rs) . 5)- "T_ 54
Easning/Lussy per Equity Share - Basic (Rs) ] ’ [2.64] fE:
o i = S 3 = T = = ]
Weighted avarage aumber of posential equity shares an account ol Fgloyes stack ogticn sohemes and Fqul-.'y! 66,99,381 | 44.10.520 |
warrants*
Weighted average number of Fquity Share for Diluted [P - 12,57,93,526 11,36,01,091
wominal value per Fguity Shara (Hs) 5 5
Zaming/[Loss) prr Equity Shars - Diluted [Ra) R {2.69)| {2.38]

EPS.

" st effact of the welghted swerage number of gotencial agoity share un srceunt of ESGR and e5ully warrants are antidiumive in naturs for year
ended arch 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the szmeis not considered in the tzledlztion of weighted average number of equity shares for the Dilutzs

3, Leases:-

‘ledza of low-valug asses recopnition exemotions Tor these leases,

The Comsany has iease sontracts for offies, stare promizes and warehouses used in its aprrarons, which has [23se terme between 3 and 30 pears, The
Company's ohiiggtions under s leases are securad by the [Bssor's tizle w Lhe lrased assets, Tha Company alsa has certain beases of offices | store gremises
and waranouies wit lease tesms of 13 manths or less and leases ab office equigmant with low valae, The Company appfios the ‘shoreterm leass” and

(3} Carrving amounts of Lease assets recognised and the movements during the yvear [T In lakhs)

March 31, 2025 [ March 31, 202 |
Particulars I 1

Office Equipments Buildings Total Office Equipments Bulldings Tatal

Opaning Balance 10,725.90 10,725 00 = 10354458 | 10,354 48
Additlons - 505387 5,053.87 - 719540 7,193.40
mdcdifications i - - - - 1:535_1?1;1 {9;5?
Drletions - (794.55] (794 55 | [2,634.96)]  [2,034.56]
Depraciation Expares ; ';J_.4na.93| [2.403.43]) - 13,203,841 13,263 84)
Balance at the end of the year - 12,541.29 12,5629 | 10,725.50 | 10,725.80
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[B] Carrying amounts of lease liakilities and the movements during the year

1= In [akhs]

March 31, 2024

Particulars n March 31, 2025
Opening Balance (Bulldings and Office Equipments) 11,186.56 10,407.07
Additions G028 4% £,000.47
n odificatlans (085800
Financa Charge accrued during the vesr 1,334.75 125061
Payrnent of Lease Liabilities 13,124.558)| §3,845.34)|
Deletions [TAE.G8) 17,563.48)|
13,576.56 11,186.54
Current 2.671LHG 2,095 91
Man-current 10,5804.60 8,186.64
The effective intarest rate farlease Habilitias i in e raage ob TLEOH o 12.00% as on 31 March 2025 (19,15% 10 11% a5 on March 31, 2074)
() The followling are the amounts recognised in statemant of profit and loss [% in lakhs)
learticutars vear Ended fear Ended
March 31, 2025 harch 31, 2024
Oepreciation expense of Leass assets D zacaea | -5.5_63.85
Inberest expense on Lease abilitias 1,234 76 1,290.41
Expensa relating to shart term leases/Variable Lease Payments {included In Rent ind udirg Leasa Rentals) . -
R 1.057.30
Total amoeunt recognised in statemant of profit and loss 4,294.43 5,611.75
[d] Following table provides Information on the Company's variable Leaso payments induding the magnitude in ralation to fized payments
) - 1% in lakhs)
" Yeur Ended | Year Ended
Particulars |
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fined rent fod 751750 | 7,E15.48
wariable rent with minimum payment 500,43 145708
Wariabile rent anly ! 154 26 LEG 34 |

variable lease agreements are caloulated as o pre-defined porcontage on the net sales.

deteimining whetber thade sxlension and termination options are reasonakly certain to o6 exercsed.

[f] et cus below sre undisoounsed furure renzal payments (0 respecs of iegse for Premises, Stores and wars nouses are a: follows:-

The campany has entered into varakble [2ase agres mants as it afers the oppartunity tooaptimice the coses i che ineepsion stage of score operations, all

(] The Comgany has several lzase contracts that include exlension and termination colians Théase opion are negotidted by managament Lo provide
flexibility In manzmng the leased-azset portfalio and align wish she Company's business necds, Mangpement cxercises significens judgeme st in

o [%in lakhs]
Particulars Lk Akt
March 31, 2025 Mefarch 31, 2024
Trre tratal future e roaen lesese mnT-.p:a_ynhEl: =t the Balance Sheet date
“Far a perod nol ater than ooe year 267196 280941
- Feat o peried later than oree year and not -afl::r_than_ﬁﬁs 10,380.86 | 5.613.99
- For @ perlod latsr tﬁan'ﬁve_\,'\aal's 11,252.99 | 12,130.28
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Hates annexed to and forrming part of the financlal statements

33. Segment Reporting

confined in India.

34, Disclosure under Micra, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

The Company is primarily ergaged in the business of "Retail” shrough offline and onling chanqels, which in terms of Ind A5 108 on “Segment Reporting”
canstitutes a single repartlng segment & as such there s no separate reportable segment. Presently the Comparys aperations are predaminantly

Particulars

% in lakhs))

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 21, 2024
Principal amount due to suppliers as at the yvear end 1,4AR7.51 2,068.51
Interest accrued, due ta supaliers an the abave amount, and unpaid 25 at the year end 275,94 1541
Payrnent made to supplersiother than interest) hevond the appalnied date under Sectlon 16 of

¥ i whey o 3,000.43 4,63%.20
ISMED
Interest paid to suppliers under BMESMED Act [ather than Secticn 16) -
Amaurt of Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 15 of the MEMED, zlang with the 3.000.43 e
zmaount of the payment made 1o the supplier beyond the appeinted day dusing the accounting vear Lo BRES
Amaunt of Interest dus and payable far the pericd of delay in making the payment, which Fas been
pald but bevond the appoirted date during the year, but witheut adding the interest specifed -
urder MSMED Act
Amaunt of Interast aocrued and remaining unpald at the end of cach accounting vear to suppliers 275,94 1801
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeading years, until such dats
when the jaterest dues as above are actually pald to the simall enterprise, for the purpose af 275,94 1801
dizzl cwance 25 a deductiblz expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED
35. Income Tax Expense
{i} Income Tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

[% in lakhs]
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Income Tax expense

Current Tax

Deferred Tax:

Decrezse/(increaze| in deferred tax assacs

[Cecrease]fincrease in deferred tax Habilltes

Income Tax relating to Other Comprehensiva Incame

Telal Income Tax Expernsefilnceme]

{11} Reconciliation of Tax Expenses

[% in Lakhs)

Particulars A
March 31, 2025 Az at March 31, 2024

Pratit/(Loss) before tax 13,497 85} 18,571.25)
Applicable Tax Rate 25.17TH 25.17%
Tax ak the Indian tzx rate 1BR0L34) (2,157.21)
The effect of amounts which are not deductible In calculating taxable Incame
Expenses not allowed for tax purposes:
Pravizion for Advances 133.73)
Provision far Doubtful debts [15.55) -
Prowision for Inventory 4743 .75
Interast payable to MESMED 5945 4,53
Interest oi (TC peversal (G5T) 4031 EFR:S
Lease Accounting as per INDAS 115 [123.40] 153,08
Digsllowance ufs 4 10.33 59,62
Gratuity paid during the year 125.04) (10, 26}
Interest Income as per IND AS 109 (5.56] [22.78)
D prciation 28,13 %449
Leasze Liability Written back (19.20) 14030}
Mon Payrment of MSME Due as on year end 37438 369.21
Interast an Leasea liability 31D.76 374,82
Unaksorbed Depreclation on which ng DTA retopnised 57.83 L5245
Others 4.73 229
Business loss an which na deferred tax asset is recognized 13218 953,43

Utilisation of bought forwerd losses

Tax Expense charged to the Statement of Profil snd Loss
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[Fiil Year wise anping of such lpsyes as at March 31, 2025 15 a5 upder:

3 [4n Laichs|
barticulars furalt Al
March 21, 2035 Mlarch 31, 2024

Deferred Tan assat on Follivwimg Business loss & Unabsorhed Depraciation nutT:;:ugnlaed ==
[Bisiness Tass; o = ]
Exp=ing within a1 3425 500208
Expiing within &Y 25-26 ny LA0Z.82 1,402.82
Expiting witho1 AF 26 27 B7.5T B7.57
Lupiring wiIthin &¥ 37-28 L ERTERT FRILED
Fralling willin A7 28-18 B 100,48 5,105.59
|Exiring within, &% 2330 % RUT.1S T
Expiring Wit 47 0-11 g 3 =

Ex wothin Y 37-3% B N 2,E0513 180513
Exp.ng within &Y 32-33 TEEL5.00 407111 |
Extpiriry: within A% 33 33 524,18 5
Il (A7 F9,202.68 | 31,234 71
|Hnakosibed Dearediazion: B B

WithaLt exmiry T = 7,749.15, Hal 18
Tatal B) AaRE __ minia
Total |4-+8) 30,392.63 33, 05058
(iv) Camponents of Deferred Tax Arscts

L. [T #n Lakhs|

- A5 at Asat

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2023
Deeerred Tax dssots oo acconnt of @ i | ]
drzhsarbar brosghl forware asses 737238 BN 98
Jhabsorkad Depreciation _| 264.25 TF 44
Fraperty plant ann Fgutpeent BTG id. 73
Fravigion Tus Leave Samskmant M - L 2,39
Fravision for Granihy i [25.04) 119.36]
Frowisle) For Deabtiul debts - [15.815) = 123,73
Provisicn for aventnry = - 47.33 L6
Lease Aceraartiag as uer NG A= 11k | B (1Z29.40) 1 3
Closing Dalance | = _T_._ERI.DB | 02049 52

during t1e waai

36. Unclaiined Fractional Share Money

37, Aodated Party Disciasurs

b

|a] Partias whard cantral exists ;

Mote: - Since tae Campaay recognic2i OTA only to the axtenr ot OTL, ra deferred tax ircome £ cwaprses 25 recepiized i e staternent of profit ard loss

Pursuant to tae Compasita Sche s of Anangement, the Compary had appoiri=c s Trustes My anart & 100 B Sseclates, 1o ceal with e fractional shares
af tae Cevaany, The total number of fractiana: svares workses vl b 17,061 equity sharss, Aciordivgly, en daril £, 2000 the | rastes sed 17,067 Aoulky
sharas for o total value of 235 47 Lakbs, As per tae certificate recered from tha Trastee, out of the tatal warmants Bsoed towarns dsburéeqsnt of armount
Jeraining ta fractional shaqes, T 331 takhs of 190 v up b 5l pending 1o be cleiman 2y ke sharsbaliers The Lyiance 2 naunt bas deen shawn as sareant
“Inzncial ligbilite iv the finanez: staterwents, This Lelanes has been keat ie 2 seaa sats baak gvcoars,

AR e Il A% - 24 *Related Farty Dischnsire® the Sum pany's ralated parics ang transaclons witk them ivthe ordinary sasese of bisiness 35 disclsed

{1} Campanies vasrcising signtfcant influgnes aver Prasis Home Retail
Limited

through s suasidliane]
|

1} zurplus Flaovess Povate Lirbed (upto 25 September,2oea)
ifFunure Corporate Rescaraes Frivare Limitad (theaugs ¢ s weding! haldag

[} Person hiawing infusnce over Companies mantaned above

|5hri.Kishur: Ervani

Ib} Other related partlas where transactions have taken place during the year

1) Entarprises aver which Companies/indiiduai described in ja] have
controlfsignificant mfleamce

1. FurLine Retal Ljsited

2. Fulye= IJ":s‘i'm.- tashions Lis ed

3. Bubonst Sonsamers Private Limited

4. LF2L Learning Salutions Limited

5. FUEE SUppY TRl SoUions Limile:

F Fllhlr'_a Erilerprises L-m'-‘:zd

7. Future Market Merwosas (mltes

8. Ojas Tracelesss and Mallfr:-;lamg:mnr-t Pt Lo

3. Futu-= Brands Limited

10 Wafuture Digltal jingia) Limited

11.Miyrman Mall Mzqagemant Cr

12 =martstars Prvate Limited

L3, Miubusiness Ventures Pet Ltd,

L&, Futurn Capial (qvestiner] Privete Lmited

15_ FOAT Cunsuitancy Eerm:u Limitzd
16 Future Hasptadsy Fevate Linsited

17. Futura |geas Company Lmited

10 Fature Geaerall indla franne ompany Lirilsg

TH.Fubiee Toupeis Lrmited

20, Future Coosumer L

iribed

11, Future Wadla {leelial

73 Gl Finvest Private Limiten ‘Fast 25th Seatambar, 2024

23 5umar Wall Manageinei! Coripany Pet Limited
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(el Key Monapement Persannal -
rér, Swetank Jzon (Shief Saecuties Clfiver ard Whols Time DOseeton] dpdo Augass 12, 2024
Ri= Biakash Shali [Wanaging Direckar) upks Octaber 31,2023
Pdr Ashish Ghotda (oheaf Beenabbes Cficer and Whole Hime Criractar) woe.? hguember 21, 2024
M. amirs Kedla (Chisf Financial OFicar)
ks Sanu Kapuor [Company Scoretany a0 Somplanee Gfficer] upto august 2, 2034
b, Vimal Dhruee JCarpany Secietaryd wef august 13, 3024
jd} Diregtars
tir. Mahesa Shah Jupto lune 28, 2224] (Charman a0 Mon -Fecee Tjue Dhirsctar)
s aral Singhsi |Irdependert Diractar)
- Jecoi Matiew rdeperdent Director)
Mir. 2amann Samkel [NoreEseostres Man Inderensent Directo:|
P, Lyriette Rubert Montaire (an-Execalive Bar-iadeacndent Birecre
MAr. Wijal = ngh Cugar fae, ! Augast 12, 2024) [Man-Executive Mun-ngspendart Directar)
A Ashish Bt | woaF Mowvembe s 11, 30340 (Chiel Sseoutive O oo - ani Whala Tirs Directer)
1. Transzctan with Relatesd Parties
(% in Laiths)
Enterprises aver which
_ o Companiasfindiideal
Hature af Transactinn: E?M?HM! e described in {a) have Ky Manyigement
significant influence Persanns
cartralfsignificant
inflisence:
BLrchascs _ r = 151,93
B - (320,33
Ll_tﬁpér.l'l:lcnmc 3 1.05 .
) = |- 12,200
Fieril I 125 35 [ W
" B 1157.00)
Sibwer Experses 15.15 0,
i} Z 152.34;
Insniance Fremiam s -
i 11621
[Frerest Epeorees = z s |
|78.53) (38834 ¥
Irtar-Carparate D2 oosit - Taken = - ) 2,245 51
] Cnsprm|  Fanan o
Irter Corpnrats DEpesl - Repaid = - 404540
11,2000 fisti.o -
Lzailities ae arger requingd welien back # 2E03T2
| =
Expenises neLrred I heral of -elated saries DaEs s rateen s IR -
- R - (245341
Remnunesatior 1o Kty Manage“al Pessuninel and Uireztees ® i - 154.89
] - 1.5
Zatstanding Bz lznce as an 2158 Mach 2025 K
kguity Sharzs baln It Company o _1:.2:5_9-_.'
} " — {1,470.85) [P ;
Secdrity Denosit Recesahis : 10,149,734
] Pl S0,149. 741 :
Tr=de Fayzole ] ] 12846 =
- ] 12,307 57 i
e given > : i3 33L97 -
| F — Batery =
Priwiain For Countiul ddvancns - R : 5
$300.00}
ﬂligl{f.n'puldh: Depase - laken|nrcianing irtenest arcrusg] I _'.!7'5_54 ARTTAT =
P (07541 14108541 -
Eermureration payable " ; 1R.30
* Remunaraticn does 2ot include pust-empleyment Banefits, as they 2re determined anan actuara dess [or the Company asa wanic.
Hate Fredous year figures ane ghean 0 parerthes s, -
Detars ot Erapheyes Slock Dptions autstaacding durivg L Balarce Shnet data,
_ i -k
Partieilars Psc::i:";;;;:'“ ESUP Granted ESOPS LagsedCarcelled Eies m;‘::;:;;"‘“ iy
Astisn Bhutda - 5,080,000 - 5,00.300
Sarmir Eedia [ - - ET.500
Total 67,500 500,000 = " 567,500
: g 1
Particulars 552:‘“:"1?;::“"3 | ESOP (Exercized] ES0Ps Lapsed/Cancallad EsORs U:‘:;;;:J“‘ Ly
4,060, G 13, 500050 12.50,0400 =
135,300 82,5000 - ]
5, 35.,000 13,17, 500] B R XL B, 500
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2. Significant Relatad Party Transactlons

A Purchazes includes purchasza from Futors Aetzil Limited £ Wil 12024 T 325 laths), Sreartsters Srivate Limited % 151.93 lakhs (2024 T 32043 lakhsh &
Tranzgortatians snd Warehousing services includes to Futurs Supply Chair Solutiang Lismibed TNl (2024; € B50.48 lakhs),

B. Gther Incorne includes income from U321 Learming Soluticns limited (Rzntal Income) T 1,95 'akhs (2024, ©9.20 Lkt

- Ront eupansas fram Fururs Market Selworks Limited £ 10032 lakhs (2024 7119.07 lakhs) and Ojas Tragelesse and wall ke rizgernent Privaze Lireizzd %
2502 lakhs {2024: T 37 52 |akhs).

D.Other Fxpenses from U2L Learning Scluzons Umites (Training & Leveloprment Fxpenses; % 1385 fakha (2024 T 65 25 lakhsl, Foturs Market Morwn
Lirnited 3 116 lakhs iAdversiscment Bxpensas) (7074 2 3 83 lakhs), Fuluee Ideas Company Loited IEmsloyer waifare expenses] T 0,14 lokos (2024: £ 028
‘akhs|

=. insurance Fremium paid oo Futsre Generali india INsurance Sompany Limited + M 12024: 710,62 lskhs).

F. Interest expenses include interest paid/payable to Fuswre Capital Investrent Private Limited % Nil (2024: % 128.68 lakks), FDRT Consuitancy Servicos
Limited T Mit (2024: % 28 89 lakhs], Future Haspilalily Private Limited € il [2034: T 55 63 lakhs), Futurs Market Metworks Limited % 41,42 Lakks 1024 %
.39 fakhs), Mutusiness Wenturos Private Lmited T Wi (2024; % 104,75 fakbs) Surpius Finvest Peivate Limited T fil (2024: % TE.EL lakha) and Suhani Mall
WManagement Campany Put Ltd % 28,70 |2023- Wil Lunng the yeer relazed pariles of the Corepany, have agread to waive theintorest socroed on the
lozn fram el 1, 2024 gl December 31, 2024 apgreganing to T 465 33 lakhs.

G Inter-Corporate Deposit Tazen from Funure Capita? Investmant Prvate Lisited I Wil 1202A: % 1300.00|, FOAT Consultency Sarvices Limited T 525.00 fakhs
12024; % 1,490,000 Jakha), Future Hospitality Private Limited < Rl (2024: T 30000 laknsl, Future Marker Meowors Limted T 16800 kkhs {2024 % 280,00
lakhsl, Nubwsiness Vertures Private Limiced % 70081 lakhs (2023 T 200,00 lakhsl, Surplus Finvest Private Lmted % BO0.00 [1khs 12024 ;€ 180000 lakha),
Sufani Mall Management Company Pur Limited % 380,00 (2024 3 Kil), Cutcost Consumers Private Itd £ 350,00 (2004: 7 il) and Niyman Mall Maragemen=
Camipany T 533 00 [Z0Z4: T Nif),

H.Inter Coporate Jeoosil Aepsid to FORTE Consultaney Sorvices Limited TNl (2023 % 880,00 lakhs, Surpius Finvest Private Livitad % 40300 kukhs (2024 %
148500 [skhs| and Futwre Hospitality Privats Limiced 3 2000 (2024 % Kil]

|. Liakilitles ne langer required weltlen back includes 2mournt againgt Cjzs | radeisase ana Mall Management Frivate Limited T 8l (20249 %98 06 12 ihis)
Fulusie Lifestde Fashions Lienited T 807 15 lakhis (2024 T Nil), Fusure Retall Limites T 24057 l2khs 12024: % Nil}, Future Sup ply Chaln Salutions Lmited T
151971 lakhs (2024: T Mil), Mufuturs Diglzal (Insiz) Limited % 24,52 lakhs (2078 % Nill and Tutura Bransds Limited % 1,76 lakhs [Z0Z4: T NIt

| Expenzas incurred in hehalf of rzlated parties neludes amount paid on beha'f of Future Litestyle Fashions Limited = M {2034 T 448,34 ‘akhs),

K Manzgerial Remunerstion includas Mr. Ashish BRutda £ 24.90 lakhs { 2004 - 2 MUI B Mishiesh Shah T M| 2024 © € 13933 lakhe), e Swetank Jan ©
B.05 lakhs (2024: T 19015 lakhs), Mr. Semir Kedia 11256 lakhs (2024: € 10630 lakba |, Mr vimal Dhurve £ 26,72 lakie 22024 - T 8l and As. Sans
Kapoor T 1125 lakhs [2024: T 34,17 lakhs),

Lirecter Siting f2es paid to br, Mahash Shah T0.50 lakhs [2020: % LSO lakiw), M lacok Mathew % 3.00 lakhs (2024 %910 lakhs), Mr. Hasminder Sahni ¢
Ril (2024, % 3.8 lakhs), M5 Anou Singhvl T 170 1akss (2021: € 3.20 lakhs), Ms. Lynette Nontsire T1.20 skis [2020; € 140 lakha], Mr. Samson Samuel @
2.00 lakhs (2024 T 740 lakhs) and M- Vijay Sinen Dugar T 130 lakis (2029 4 pil 1

Cutstanding Balance as on 315t March, 2025:

A Equicy shares beld in the Company - Surplus Flavest Brivate Limited 4 1.226.19 lukhs (2029 -% 1,4.4085 lakhs), Future Corporate Resources Privete Limites
% 2078 Igkhs [2029: % 20,78 lakfs), Futura Hospitality Privasa Linnzes T Ml fakhs [2024: % 22557 laknsl, Mishore Rivani % 001 lakhs (2034: T 0001 faihz)

B. Security Deposit receivabile fram Future Enterprises Limited, amouriting to T 10,100.00 lakhs (2074 T 10,200,00 lakhs) and Future Market Metwors
Limited, amounting to T 49,74 |akhs (2024: % 49,74 fakhs),

. Trade Payables includes payatle to Fulurs Supply Chains Solusons Limited of % W.1{2024: 1,515 71 lakhs), Futuse Lifestyle Fashions Limised % nil {2024
% 81059 lakhe) and Provisions % NI{207d: T 72905 lakhs], Future Setarl Limited T NIl (2074; 240,47 lzkhsl, Smarstens Prviee Dmited %5281 lakhs (#0314
T 133.80 fakhs), Djas fradefeass and Mall Manzgernent Private Limitad % Mil (2024 % Kil) and Frovislers of T 38.54 |akhs (2024, € 17.01 likhsl, Euture
Rarkes Metworks Lmitad T 58,31 lakhs (2024: TA0.35 lakhsl and Provisicns T 6.74 fakhs (2024 T5.21 lakhs), Mufuture Digital {india) Lirvites of 3 Wil 2024,
% 24,52 lakhel, UL Learning Solutions Lirmited T Kl |2024: % 15.28 lashs] aad Future Brands Limited T Nil (20240 % 1,76 lakhs).

0. Advances given inciudes lease rental advances to Future Enterprisas Lim'ted 3 33137 lakhs (2024 T 331,97 (akhz) and O35 Tradelsase and Woall
Manazement Private Lirnited T 36,40 lakhs (2024; T 11 95 [akhs!.

E. Frovision for Doubrful Advances agaivst iease rental advances given to Future Enarprises limized 3 30000 lakhs (2024: T 300.00 lakhs).

. Iater-Corporate Deposit Taken |incuding Inserest accried) Outstznding frorm Futire Cagital Investment Privats Limited T 1,370.39 ‘akhs |2024: ¥
1,370.39 lakhs), FOKT Consultansy Servicas Lmited % 1,112 32 lakfs [2024: T590.37 |akhs, Future Hasgialily Private Limined € 878,73 |akhs (2073 T 948 73
lakhs), Future Market Metworks Limitad £439.71 lakhs (2024: £ 250,35 lakbs), Mubusingss Wentures Private Limited £ 1,017.42 lachs [2024: T 945,73 lakhs),
Sumlus Fenwest Private [imited % 779.54 lakhs (2024 % 40253 lakhs), Cutcost Consurrer Pyt Umited € 344971 lakhs (3094: % W), Mivman Mall
Management Cn. % 33300 fzkhs (2024: T Nil} and Subani Mall Maragement Company Per [td % 405,83 lakhs [2024: TNl
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3B. Payment to the Avditors [excluding G5T)

. [%in Lakhs)
f Tear Ended Tear Ended
Particulars
March 31, 3025 March 31, 7024

For Statunory Audit B0 1950 |
For Litmited Rewvew (acludes % 2.00 (akhs _.-_\|:-"|3|r|i-ng et Statutory Auditor dorieg Yoar : m:-l. .III;
ended March 31, 2075, : I = ’
Far Cartifications .60 120
out nfpacl;:et PALERSES D.72 091
Total 16,32 | 24.11

38. Commitments and Contingent Liahilities

|i] Commitments

4. Leases - Dparating Lease commitrments - Company as lesson

The Campany has entered (ita loase agreament and its undizcounted prasent vaiue of e lezss rental %or the ~on-cancellzhlz term is % 1,220,495 L akhs
[2024: T 444,00 Lakhs).

b. Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaiming te be exzzuted on capitad account and rot provided for as on March 31, 2035

Copital Commitiments - 39 41 lakhs (2024 % 356.43 lakes)

[i) Contingent Liahility:

171 The Comaany Has not provided fSar Incorme Tax demand dermans cxcluding cantimgent inserest ol T 113,80 lakns (2024: T113 20 Iakhs) which i prnding
befare CIT Appeais & for GET Tax demand al TAT0.62 lakhs 12024 3 Mil) which is pe=ding befors GST 4ppellate Autharitics,

(b1 On Kovembor 27, 2020, Thee Company has received demans notice fror the Dirertorate Seneral of Anti Profiteering dopattment whersin the
deparinent has stated that the Campany has contravenad the provislors of Sertion 1731] of the Cantral Goods ans Service Tax Asl, 2017 and the banafi
ol the rata reduztion in G5T from 28% tn 1 5% was not passed on to the recipients by increasing the base price nfthe products. s per -he razors the Lol
armount of profiterering coversd for the period 15.11.2017 5030,08.201% has been wiarked ouzto % 368 Likhs, The Camgany nas submitsad iz reply nn
lanuary 18, 2021 to Matianal Arti Frofiteering Suthority (GSTL Tne Company was granted parsonzl Searing in the matter by Matanal Ant-Prafterring
Autharitg [G5T)on Apedl 7, 2022, Pursuant te the sad nearing, the Campary has arpued and submired s re ply wide ietter dase Apidl 13, 2022 =2 emphasine
the: Faer that the benefit o G51 rale change was duly pirsod on to the castormers. Turther clarficetion was reduired by the Dlzectorare Genaral of Ans
Frofitearing dapartment on Novernber 3, 2022, ‘or which Comparre has subritted i reply vida eloer date Movembar 17, 2022 Final order 1s awaited in
this regard.

lu} Rased on cansulbetian with the legal advisors el the Company, the management Selirecs astha Lax aurhoritizs are nal likely to he able to
substantiate their tax assessments / demands & azeordingly it has rot provided Tor these tax damancs ot the Bzlznce shess daze,

R 0 Y 2021-22, 2r aperstionzal credilor fled an spplicetion urdar 1BC with NOLT, Mumbal bessh far alleged non-paymant of its duss [insluding interss )
arcunting 1o % 10065 lakhs. Howewer, the total outstanding az per the Company’s beoks is oy <0083 lakhs 4s ar Warch 3L, 335, tha said matter was
pending befiore the MOLT

(&) The Company is a paroy =3 varlous legal proceadings in normal cousse of business and does nat exzect the suscome of these pracredings to have any
adversa 2ffect on its financial canditions, resufts o the cperazons o rash fow. Amsuets o such disoutes nre enascer=ainag ble.

4 During the: Financizl Year 2077 23, tznure ala Ieass rantal agreemant entered by the Camgany with @ related parcy - Future Encarprises Limited
(Lassar) pursuant to the dermmerger of business znd asslgnfnent of the orlginel Ivaze arrasgament expired on Movernboer 30, 2025 The Company has sacuiily
depasits of % 10,100 likhs receivable frorm the Lessor, The Comos nf concicues b held the posszssion of the Stores leased assels (FPF| from the Lessor. The
Company has mads follow ug with che Lessar for wansfer of Stores leased gssate and recovery of sacurity deposic amaunt. In the year 2024, the Cormpany
cbtaingd a waluation report from an ind ependent prafassicral firm under which the value of these mesots ware maore than the amount of security fepaosit.
Ihe Campany has cansidersd the securisy deposits ameunt is good and adequately recelvable against realizable value of these assets. Further, no lease
Fantal charges are fiable to be paid in view of expiralion of the agregiment with the Lessur. Accardingly, na provision towards leswe reneal hezs been
provided In the bonks of accous s, Further it may also be menzioned thas post expiry 07 iease termn e Dessor fas been relerred undar Corporata
Insolvency Resnluzion Prazsaswith =fzct fram February 27, 2073, The Rasoluticn Frofassianal ("AP*) of the said Lessor has filed an nzerlaoutary
Appdication |18]in Company Patition {IB) Mo, 513/ MOLT MBA02Z on laruery 8, 2045, before the Mational Company Law Trigunal, Murmial hench (MELT]
urizer the 1B, 2018 against, amangst others, the fromator of the Cempany gnd the Comngany, | the zaid 14, the RP fas, inter alia, claimed the lazse renital
AMAUNTNE 1 % 4577.35 lakhs from the Company for she in-store retail infra azseds loesed ay the Lessor to the Company. The said 14 is challanged an the
Arounds thas she R Ras relivs upon the unauthentcated, unsiaed snd Incoreplte Transaction Sudit report. The Company is in the srocess of §ling is
reply disputing afl the @aims
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Hatemaents,

41, ind A5 115 : Revenue from contraces with cuscomers
The application of Ind A% 113 did net have any signifisant imgact an recognition and messaremens of revenue and related items o the standzlans lnancial

L. Disintegrated revenue information
Aet out below is the disaggregasion of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers

o 1% In lakhs)
il Year Ended| Year Ended|
March 31, 2025 March 31, 7024
Type of Goods or Service B
s (et of tam) i 1 11,847.45 21,862 51
Clher Operating lncome FERE] 4518
Total revenua from contracts with customars 11,806.05 21,957.77
India ] 11,896.95 2LusTIT
Cuswide af India : ] E
Total revenue from contracts with customers | 11 EDE.BE 21,857.77
Timlng of revenue recognition i =
Gends transferred at a poing in time 11,E06.95 2195777
Services transfarred over time . o =
Total revenue from contracts with customers [ 11,856.95 21,852.77
1. Contract Balances
[T im lakhs)
P ‘rear Ended Yaar Ended
Particulars
R — March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Recaivahizs i} T 12z | 2874
l;.-.I:IrITriI\'.'r Lizhitities (Advance from Customers); |
Opening Balance L - 1,047.00 1,144.10
Clozing Balznce B S 1,047 .00
Mel [Increase) Deciease ‘539,89 | __§n.u

Mote - During year ended March 31, 2025, revenue recagnizaed is T 1,047.00 fakhs ancdadvances snlieeted is T 50711 lakbs, During vear nded March 31,
2024, revecue recognired is T 1,143,390 akhys and advances sollected s 1,04 7.00 lakhs.

A2, Costs of wairarty include the cost af labaur, material and related overhead necessasy toosepaic @ prodact curing Uee warranly perod. The Comoany
has deplayed an in-house stal? tor torepair the preducts undes warraaty period, The Company haing 8 trader Bave Back to back sssreanty agreemanty
with the parties for il the produects it sales Further the Cormpany's cost on stores and spares based on the actugl expenses incurred fsel® is naot mascrial
and is further insianifican: relzted to products which are under warranty perlod af mora than dne year. Hence the Campany does not maike any provision
for warranties in accordance with in accordance with Ind &5 37 and sxpense out she cost onoan astaal basis,

43, The Company has incurred a cash loss of £4512 16 lakhs during the year endes Warch 31, 2025, Further, its current hiabilities ercead its currant assets
which indicabe a matarial uncertainty axists thal may cadt & significant doubs onthe Cormpizny's abilitg i centinue a5 a going concermn. in the currens yaar,
the Cornpany iats rmaised Furids through e of skare warrarts amounting 7o 3 487 S01akks, izsue of equity shares amaunticg te Rs 1200 lakan and alsa
annnunced raising further funds under Aights Issue o improve its iguidioy position. Further, the Campany is committed o improve its operational

eficigncy to boost saies, reduce cost and 1o explore various possible cptions to raise the funds. These ogether are expected to brirg finanical stability and
Improve the netdortt enabling the Company to meet all obligasons. Accordingly, the Francial resuits of the Company have been pregaced on a going

e i biasis,

dd. Rights lssue: a) The Board of Directors of the Compaeny agproved Rights issue faran agaregate smmount af % 4,958 00 Lakh, The Cormipsaery fas neceived
necessacy in oringiple appravels of the Mock Exchanges. Subseguent to such approvals, the Company has fized is30e price of B5. 13 per couity share under
the Highzs lssue. However, as at March 31, 2025, the ssue was pending o opan for subscripson.

[b] The Cormgany in s Lester of OFer dates Way 26, 2023 o¥fered £91,85 577 Equity shares by way of righss issoe ot o fee valoe of T5 each and a price af
T AR por equity share [inciuding 2 premiom ot T6 per equity shanel. The issue openad on Jung B, 2023 snd closed on fune 18 2073, Thee Company allntred
4,91,85, 572 equity shares of face valug o % b each on the basis of allotrmant approved by Committee of Rirectors of the Saard of Directors of the Company
on June 22, 2023, aggregating to T 4891855 Lakhs including Secuiitias Premium of T 2,455 3E Lakns, ds o March 31, 2024, the net proceeds has baan fully
ulilised tomards Lhe stated -.’E-I'J:-.“Eli'.-re.‘- ol repayment of outstanding trade pavables and gereral corporate purpases.

45, Preferential allotment

a) Pursuant oo the Shareholders’ agproval at the Cetra Grdinasy Genarel Meeting heli on &pil 27, 2024, the Company an May 9, 2024 issuad and allotted
45,07 638 Shara Warrants al an lssue price of T 4326 per Share Warrant 1o the Specficd Irvestor Benancts, Colermen arnd Com pany Lirmited an orefesential
allozment hasis, on recieipt of 25% |T 4R87.50 lakhs| of the tatal! consideration price (3 1950 lakhs) far the Share Warrants. The Warrants sh all be canverted
innlex pquivilent numbers of rguity shares at a conversion price of T 43 26 per equity sharz on receipt of the remaining censideration ol 5% within a pericd

ot 18 manths from the date of aliotment of Share Warrents,
bl Pursuant co the terms of 4,00,00.000 Share Warrants iszeed and sllobies in 2023-24, 3 holder of the szid Share Warrants exerciscd the sprion te convert
1,000,040, 000 Share Warrants into aouity shares by paying remalning 73% aimount thergon and accordingly, the Cormpany allotzed 1,00000,000 equity shares

on Cctober 15, 2024 at an ssue once of Rs L8 per eguity share.
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6. fubsequent Events

i After close of the Finanical Yoar 2024-25, the Chief Sinancal OHicer of the Cormpany resianad wea . Aaril 30, 2024,

Il Pursuans o aporcezl of the Board of Diroctars, the Shareholdars at the Crira Ordinasy Ceneral Meoting helz on March 13, 2025 fag appraved tooisige
32,88.000 equity shares at an issuc price of R2.73 19 par aquity share ta various trade creditors of the Company on a preferentia basis "Freferentia
lsiue”). The said Prelerential lssue was subjzct 1o, hier alia, receipt of 'In-princizie aparavas’ af tho Stock Exchahges under the SEBI{Lsting Chligstiors
nd Disclosure Roguirernents) Regulstions, 2005 [the “Listng Rewdasions"| and acticying requisite compliances with SEB (lssue of Capizal aad Discloaurs
Requirements] Regularions, 2018 (he “IC0R Regulations"] Subseauanl by <he passing of specizl resolution by the sharchalders, the Company was in
recelpt of a specific quary lrom 85E Limited with respect to compliance with regulasion 25343 of the 1CRR Repulations regarding issuanice of eguity shares
fnr “consideration ather than cash’. The C-:'-mpan',' respandzd szating that issue of netw shares agsinss sattlameant of trade labilities i te be considerad far
‘cash® and therefore, da nat attract pravisions of regulazon 163(3) of DA Reguiations. Hawaver, BSF Limited did nat &gree with the interpeetation 2nd
accordingly. has cosed the zppicarion of the Company on 22nd April 2025, upan eziry of given timeframe, without according “in-princdple approval® fur
dhe Preforential ssue as required dnder regulation 28 of Listirg Regulations. In view o closure of application for in-principle zoproval’ by BSF [imited, the
special resalution gassed by the sharehalders tor allotmant nder Preferensial lae was o acted wpon.

A7 As o the Salance sheet date (currenl yoar and previaus yrarl, the Company has reversed the nventarios which wera purrhased on Sala ar Return
asiz {30R] basls of T1,183.60 takhs and 3 227783 lakhs respactively along with the siriultineaus reversal o’ sueh amaunz fram puschases /trada

payab e,

AB.Ceceptional iems for the vear ended March 31, 2024 inchides % 538,51 lakhs revereal of aversrads, The Cormgany nas a practice to ioad the overhezds,
snder skandard costmelhad, in the inveniorres by encreasing Lhe costs of purchases of stock In trade, inzlyding costs which were ves ta be incureaed b it
Subsequentiy, as and when the scbual casts were ifcd rrad 1owetde supply chan for suck purchases, they wrere gatting added al that point in time with the
cost of purchases of stock in trade, rasher than teing rharged in the respective ling icerms of steterment of prefit & inss, From year anded Mares 31, 2022
oressrets, to comaly with she raguizements of ind AS, Lhe Company haz stopped such pracree and hes identified and reverses 2l such overbends
AREreaALing tn % 838,51 lekhs whick wara Iying inits op gning invenrorias of © 6,633 64 |lakns.

9. Balances of Irade Payahles and Other Receivaiies aré sebject to confirmations and recenciliatior, if any. Such reconsiliatior, in the opinian of sae

ranagement, e notlixely o be matenal and will he carned aut as ang whan acesrtaines,

50. The Company does hol have BNy Wansactions with the companies siruck o wnder section 228 ol Companias Act. 2013 during the vear endes March
31, 2025 However, it had & transaction of % 478 Lakhs with Yeteran Facilizy fManagerent Pus. Lzt [3 compasy struck off under sectisn 243 of Companies

Act, 2013] during yeas ended March 31, 2073,

: (% In Eakhs)
Mature of
transaction with Balance eutstanding as ‘Balance wutstanding as on |Relationship with the
Name of struck off Company struch off Company  |on hiarch 31, 3025 March 31, 2024 Struck off Compaty
Weteran Facilioy Manzgement Serdicas |
Erivate Limited |Payables .76 APE [MA

51. During the vear, the paformance abthz Comparny was abnormal dus to shorzage al inventary and liquidity. Fursuant towhich there i anincreazs in
losses in the currens vear a2 compared o the precedicg periods. Wkt of the stores af the Company wers running into losses during this periad, which criiny
NZEel wp the reguirement for providing inpairmant on Rlght of Lse [ROUI Assets of 12 581,29 lakhs, However, The Com pany has received necewary in-
principlz approvals of the Stock Excharues for the Alght issue amaunting Lo T 4,918.55 lzkhs. Subsequant t such approveals, the Campany b fived issue
price of Ha L0/ per equity share usder the Rights Issue. However. as al March 31, 2025, the issy e was pardicg Lo open for subscriplion The Campany Is
confiden: that the liguidity azd srofitability position of =18 Com pany will improve inthe cext financal vear. Ard fence, it envizigss that tnere may not be
3 reed arising to provide any impairment on A0U in the currert financial WEar

SZ.Aegsclution Professional |RP) of Future Lilestylz Fashions Limised ATFLEL") has files an ncerlacutory Sgolicaticn against the Promoser, Mr. Kishore Bivani
ardd Praxiz Home Aetail Limited {*Respordents”) before Homhle Mational Cormpany Law Tribural, MumBal Bench [“MEIT), in the matier ralating to
Corporate insolvennoy Resolution Process initiated against FLEL, which i rereived by the Company on 4 Jznuary 7074, In the taid niedemtory Applicazian
filed against the Respondents, tho RE has praved to NCLD to treat the srensactions ce rried cut by the erstwhile directars of the Corporass Debtas as
fraudulent transactions, in accordance with Socion B of the Coade snd has sought direcons fom NOIUT directing the Respondents oo pay the amount due
Lo FUFL tothe tume al T 2321 Crore along with intarest. The Company Isin the process of serkicg legal advice and = taking approoriate steps to contest
this mazter. Tl the tima tha clalm is not substantiated, ft is conzidered as conzingent lishilicy,
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53, Other Stanutory Informations

I The Compary Joes not kayg any ansastion which see nos recarcsd in the ocks ot azzounts tathas been surrendered or disclosed 25 incame durng
thes yprar in t1E Lax assrssments Ukrder tha IRca ma- Art, IOEL.

ii. The Company fas ot gdvanced or lzaned ar investad funds tn a- ¥ DEEr ersenis; ar entity(ies), including forelgn entities !
undarstanding that the Intermediary shzll:

(&) Hirectly or indiractly lend or invest in othar perscns ar entitizs id2a e in 2y masher whetsoaye: b o on hehalf of the cormpany (U timase

rzrmediaries) wirh the

Bereficiarizs) ar

1b) Brovide any puarastee, secaliby or the like to or on behzal’ ol the Ulkimate 3encfisizrzs.

i The Company nas not raceived any fund from any personist or entitylies], including forsign onsitizs Funaging Parsy) with che understanding [whether
recorded in writing ar etheswisz! that the Ca mpany shall:

{2} Directly or indirectly lead or invest in othar perscns or endties identificd in any raneer whatsoever by nron behal® of the fun fing party compiny
IUltimate Benaficlries) or

(50 frovide any guarantes, secusing or the like to or on belalfaf the Ultimates Azneficiaries.

iv. Durieg the vear the company /s net declerod vl defaulter by any bans or financialinstisution ar othe Irndor,

v The Company Zoes not have any charges or satistactinn which is ¥rerto be regislersd with ROC beyond the stazutory period.

vi. The Company bas not raded or invested in Lryptc currency ar virtual currency during tha finanedal voar,

Wi, The Cormpany has not detaulied in repaymnent of loans or ather bemrowings or paymenl of interest therecs Lo any lencer.

viil. The Company does nos have any 3enami property, where any proceeding has bear initiated or panding seairst <he compary for kalding any Benammi
property

la.Corporate Seciil Acspon slbility [CER] - Az per the section 1335 of the Companies &ct 2024, the Campany isrequired w spend % Mil (2024: T Kil} towards
53R based o proficaliility of the Caombany, swainst the same T Mil has been spent by the Campany

54, Ratio Analysis

Particulars
RE'EF. rage helow fae March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 varlance
WANBNCE TEasons

lil Current Ratio (times) .65 QBT -3%

i} Dbt Equity Ratlo (times) ] _ {1.02} (1.77)] -11%

iii) Dbt Servlce Coverage Ratlo (timas] 1] [0.79] i1.10] 2Am i
il Return on Equity [%) (6] i6.84) {250,135 TE%

uh Inventory Tunover Ratio {times] 7 1.86 L 20

i) Trade Recelvables Turnover Ratio (times) {2} 240 .03 2RA%

vii] Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (times) ] 1] 0.34 073 A% ]
wiii} Met Capital Tumover Ratio (times) (5] | Ciam |2.35) 45,

i) Net Profit Ratio %) ' ] (1) {24.40) 13222 1%

%] Return on Capital Emploved [36) (1} (3241} (177,953 q2%

xi} Return on Investment | N.ﬁ.l B N_ﬂ.l ]

Ratios have been computed as under

il Currant Retia = Currant Assess / Cumrent Lixbilitias

i} Debt Equity Ratz = Total Trebs 2 Shareholders Eguily

1] Debt Service Coverage Retio = Earnings aveilable for deb® service ind uding exceptiangl iterns/Debr servize

iv) Aetum on Equity = Net Prafit after zax f Swverage Sharehelders Fouity

vl Imventary Turnaver Ratio = COGS / Averaps Inventary

vil Trads Reczvebles Turngver Hatlo = Kot Credit Safes / Sucrage Recelvablos

Vil Trace fayables Turnover Hatle = Total Purchases | Average Pavables

wiii} Met Capltal Turnover Ratio = Yet Sales S Warkica Capital

ix] Mat Profit Margin = Mel Profic after tax Induding excepsional ifams F Me: Sales

w1 Aelurm on Czpital Dnployed - EBIT induding axceptional itams/ Capital Fmployed

%i) Returs on Investment = ncanme grnerated from investrment £ Average investments

(1) Decrease was primanly on account of losses incured in £y 74 25

[Z1 Chahge ir rrade racaivabiles turnover ratic was primaily o sccount of decrease in redi sales

[3} Decrease wes plimarily on account of decreaza In purchasz of steck-in-srade.

i Debt Equity ratiz has changed primarily on account of increase in Borrowings and negative sharenoldars’ equity.

151 Wet Capital tumover ratio changed on account of decreaase in operational reeen ue and Ineresse in nepative warking capital,
(G} Aetum on Fquisy has Improved on accaunt of lossas belng curtaired down in comparad ta previous vear,

|7} Imvantory turmovar ratio has improved an srcouat ef invenbary reduction snd dacreace in purchase of stock -in-trade.
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E5. Rscent sccouinding prenoundamnnts

Inkstry af Cotparats Affsirs {"MCA"] notifies new standards or amendments 1o e exdating standards undar Cormpenles {indian Accounting Standands}
Aulay 8 dslsnd fram time bo e, Duriag the yesr enced March 31, 2015, M8 Kog netfled Ind AS 117 - Insutancs Contracss sad armendments to nd a5 -
116~ Lunsar ; falating to-sale und leasa kack traraactiany, apphicable fram Aprll 3, 3024, Tha Carnpay has aisedied that thare i na significant knpack on
IE4 fnmeial stotermarts,

3. Previoua yenrs figlres have bean ragroupind or reciassified wharever necesanry th confalm b current yeurs prESentation whith are net camidered Lo
# maTeriad ta tha Floanclel Swtements.

As per our MpoH of even dete srtsched Far snd an behsifof 8oard of Directors

Eruels Hore Rtz Umnized
CIN: LS21CaMHI01PLE2 12666

Samt s

For Slnghl & Co. Samaon Samisel
Chartered Ageountants Chiaf Executive (Hilear and Whale Time Chalrresn and Nan-
Director Exacuthve Director %

£l 10810844 oMz I!?TM Pa
ol ﬂqﬂl
CL E
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MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

Except as stated in this Letter of Offer and as disclosed below, to our knowledge, no circumstances have arisen
since March 31, 2025, which materially and adversely affect or are likely to affect our operations, performance,
prospects or profitability, or the value of our assets or our ability to pay material liabilities:

1.
2.

Resignation of Mr. Samir Kedia as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. April 30, 2025

Resignation of Mr. Vimal Dhruve as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. June 26,
2025

Appointment of Mr. Vikash Kabra as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. July 14, 2025

Appointment of Ms. Charu Srivastava as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. July 14,
2025

Disposal of a significant number of Equity Shares by our Promoter Group, resulting in a decline in their
shareholding from 23.61% as on March 31, 2025, to 9.92% as on the date of this Letter of Offer, thereby
ceasing to have significant influence over our Company

The Promoter of the Company, Mr. Kishore Biyani, vide his request letter dated June 09, 2025, sought
reclassification of his shareholding from the “Promoter” category to the “Public” category along with the
persons and entities acting in concert with him. This request was subsequently confirmed by the
resolution professional of Future Corporate Resources Private Limited through the letter dated July 11,
2025. The Board of Directors of the Company approved the said reclassification on July 14, 2025, in
accordance with the provisions of Regulation 31A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, which governs the
conditions and process for reclassification of promoters as public shareholders.

Allotment of 1,12,500 (One Lakh Twelve Thousand Five Hundred) equity shares of face value of Rs.5/-
(Rupees Five) each on April 26, 2025, pursuant to the exercise of stock options granted under the
Company’s employee stock option scheme.

Closure of our application by BSE without granting in-principle approval for the proposed preferential
issue of Equity Shares, which necessitated the Company to refrain from proceeding with the issuance of
Equity Shares intended for conversion of our trade liabilities.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK]
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ACCOUNTING RATIOS

The following tables present certain accounting and other ratios derived from the Audited Financial Information.
For details see “Financial Statements” on page 81.

Accounting Ratios

Particulars Based on Audited Financial Based on Audited Financial
Statements Statements
As at and for the year ended As at and for the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Basic earnings per share (%) (2.69) (7.35)
Diluted earnings per share (%) (2.69) (7.35)
Return on Net Worth (%) (22.74) (69.58)
Net Asset Value per Equity Share (%) (11.37) (9.84)
EBITDA (% in lakhs) 919.17 (2,735.62)

The formula used in the computation of the above ratios are as follows:

Basic earnings Net Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Sharcholders

per share (after adjusting non-controlling interest) before exceptional item / Weighted Average
number of Equity Shares.

Diluted earnings Net Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders

per share (after adjusting non-controlling interest) before exceptional item / Weighted Average
number of Equity Shares (including convertible securities).

Return on net Profit for the Period/Year as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity

worth (in %) Shareholders (prior to other comprehensive income)/ Net worth at the end of the
Period/Year.

Net asset value Net Worth on basis divided by the number of Equity Shares outstanding for the period/year.

per Equity Share

EBITDA Profit for the year before finance costs, tax, depreciation, amortization, and exceptional

items as presented in the statement of profit and loss in the Financial Statements.

Calculation of Return of Net Worth
(In % lakh, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Profit After Tax (A) (3,497.85) (8,571.25)
Net Worth at end of year (B) (15,379.10) (12,318.90)
Return on Net Worth (%) (C=A/B) (22.74) (69.58)

Calculation of Net asset value per Equity Share
(In % lakh, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Net Worth at end of year (A) (15,379.10) (12,318.90)
No. of Equity Shares outstanding at end of year (in no.) (B)* 13,52,18,184 12,52,18,184
Net Asset Value per Equity Share (%) (C=A/B) (11.37) (9.84)

*Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the issue of 5,218 Equity Shares is kept in abeyance
corresponding to the respective shareholders holding of 1,04,371 equity shares in Future Retail Limited. The
same is not taken into consideration while calculating the number of equity shares.

Calculation of EBITDA
(In X lakh, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars For the year ended March 31, For the year ended March 31,
2025 2024
Profit (Loss) after Tax (3,497.85) (8,571.25)
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Particulars For the year ended March 31, For the year ended March 31,
2025 2024

Add: Tax Expense - -

Add: Finance Costs 1,671.54 2,206.50

Add: Depreciation and Amortization 2,745.48 3,629.13

Expense

EBITDA 919.17 (2,735.62)
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with

the “Financial Statements” beginning on page 81.

Some of the information contained in the following discussion, including information with respect to our plans
and strategies, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should also read
“Risk Factors” and “Forward Looking Statements” beginning on page 17 and 13, respectively, which discuss a
number of factors and contingencies that could affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Our financial statements included in Letter of Offer are prepared in accordance with Ind AS, which differs in
certain material respects from other accounting standards like IFRS and U.S. GAAP. Our financial year ends on
March 31 of each year. Accordingly, all references to a particular financial year are for the 12 months ended
March 31 of that year. Unless otherwise indicated or the context requires, the financial information for Financial
Year 2025 included herein is based on the Audited Financial Statements included in Letter of Offer. For further
information, see “Financial Statements” beginning on page 81.

Unless otherwise indicated, industry and market data used in this section has been derived from the report “India
Home Furniture Market 2024-2029” prepared and released by Mordor Intelligence Private Limited. Certain data
in Letter of Offer is based on reports prepared by third party sources and management estimates. Neither we, nor
the Lead Managers, any of their affiliates or advisors, nor any other person connected with the Issue has
independently verified such information. For further information, see “Presentation of Financial and Other
Information — Market and Industry Data” beginning on page 11.

OVERVIEW OF OUR BUSINESS

Our Company operates brick and mortar stores of home furniture and home fashion in the brand name of
“HomeTown” and caters to home retail segment in India. This retail format brings together under one roof, a wide
range of furniture (both office and home furniture), home furnishing goods, kitchenware, other home related
accessories and quality services including complete home design, modular kitchen among others, giving
customers a great in-store experience. In addition, an exciting range of accessories, such as clocks, wall hangings
and décor make it a complete one stop shop for all home needs. As on June 30, 2025, Hometown has a pan India
presence with 16 stores across 14 cities across 10 states in India. Our Company also operates a web portal for
online sale of our products through the website www.hometown.in and also has its presence on the major e-
commerce market places in India through which our Company sells a wide range of products across furniture,
furnishings, décor, tableware and kitchenware.

SIGNIFICANT FACTORS AFFECTING OUR BUSINESS, FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Our financial condition and results of operations are affected by numerous factors and uncertainties, including
those discussed in the section titled ‘Risk Factors’ on page 17. The following are certain factors that had, and we
expect will continue to have, a significant effect on our financial condition and results of operations:

. Our Company has incurred losses in the past, which may adversely impact our business and financial
conditions.
. One of our Promoters is undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), which may adversely

affect our business, financial position and timely completion of the process relating to the Rights Issue.

. Our Company and certain persons of Promoter Group are involved in certain legal proceedings, including
IBC matters. Any adverse outcome in these proceedings may adversely affect our business, compliance
framework, reputation and ability to explore various business resources.

. Our Company, our Promoters and Promoter Group were involved in certain legal proceedings initiated by

the Securities and Exchange Board of India in the past. The adverse decisions in these proceedings may
adversely affect our business and results of operations.
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Our Statutory Auditor has included certain remarks on our Audited Financial Statements. The Statutory
Auditors’ report issued under the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO”), on our Audited
Financial Statements contains a few disclaimers of opinion on certain matters.

Reduction in Promoter Group shareholding and proposed reclassification of Promoter may adversely impact
our governance structure, investor perception, and strategic direction

Our business is subject to seasonal and cyclical volatility and our inability to forecast the trends and
consumer preferences or demands in the forthcoming seasons may contribute to fluctuations in our results
of operations and financial condition.

The success of our business is dependent on our procurement systems, supply chain management and
efficient logistics, and any disruption in the same may affect our business adversely.

If we are unable to enter into new leasehold or rental agreements for locations suitable for our stores, or we
are unable to renew our existing leasehold or rental agreements for our current stores, it may adversely
affect our expansion and growth plans.

Any adverse impact on the title or ownership rights or development rights of our landlords from whose
premises we operate may impede our effective operations of our stores, offices or distribution centres in the

future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

For details about our key significant accounting policies, see section titled “Financial Information” on page 81.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Except as mentioned in chapter “Financial Information” on page 81, there has been no change in accounting
policies during the Fiscal ended March 31, 2025.

RESERVATIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, MATTER OF EMPHASIS, ADVERSE REMARKS / OTHER
OBSERVATIONS IN CARO

The following is the summary of qualifications/ reservation /emphasis of matters/ adverse remarks / other
observations in Companies Auditor's Report Order (CARO), 2020, (as applicable) during the Fiscal ended March

31,2025:
Financial Qualifications / Reservation / Matter of Emphasis / Adverse Remarks / | Impact on the
Year /| Key Audit Matters / Other Observations in CARO Financial
Period statements of
the Company
For the year | Disclaimer of Opinion NA
ifllgreci 31 We do not express an opinion on the aforesaid financial statements of the
2025 > | Company, because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis
for Disclaimer Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
opinion on the aforesaid financial statements.
For the year | Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion NA
ended
March 31, | 4) As stated in note no. 40 of the financial statements of the Company, it
2025 has security deposit receivable towards matured lease agreement from
a related party of an amount of Rs. 10,100.00 lakhs. The Company has
not identified & recognized loss allowance for expected credit losses
(ECL) on such other receivables, which is not in conformity with the
requirements of Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”. Further, we are
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Financial
Year
Period

/

Qualifications / Reservation / Matter of Emphasis / Adverse Remarks /
Key Audit Matters / Other Observations in CARO

Impact on the
Financial

statements of
the Company

informed by the management that till date the Company has not
received any appropriate / adequate response from the lessor towards
refunding such amount. Considering these facts and the available
financial position / statement of such related party where there is an
indication about material uncertainty towards its ability to continue as
going concern and where an Resolution Professional (RP) has been
appointed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and other relevant surrounding
circumstances, we are unable to determine and quantify whether this
amount will be fully recoverable and it requires any provision of ECL.

Further, on January 9, 2025, the RP of Future Enterprises Limited
(FEL) has filed an Interlocutory Application (IA) in Company Petition
(IB), before the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
against, amongst others, the Promoter of the Company and the
Company. Under the said IA, the RP has, inter alia, claimed lease rental
amounting to Rs.4,577.35 lakhs from the Company for the in-store
retail infra-assets leased by FEL to the Company.

These facts also give rise to material uncertainty as regards possible
material adjustments that may be required to made to the values of
recorded security deposit, provision for lease rental on in-store retail
infra-assets, unrecorded assets and tax implications, if any, arising on
account of settlement of such transactions, which could not be recorded
in the financial statements on account of these being not readily
ascertainable. Pursuant to non-receipt of response from the lessor
towards refunding the specified amount and non-determination of the
ECL provision, non-availability of balance confirmation and non-
provision for lease rental, its impact on the losses and EPS of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, and on the other equity
as on the balance sheet date, is not ascertainable. This matter related to
expected credit losses on security deposit was also disclaimed in our
report on the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024.

b) Balances of trade payables aggregating to Rs. 9,417.23 lakhs are subject
to confirmations and reconciliations, if any, are not ascertainable. We
are unable to comment on the correctness of these figures and if any
adjustments are required to the said balances as on the March 31, 2025,
and related disclosures in the Financial Statements. This matter was
also disclaimed in our report on the financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2024.

c) As stated in note no. 21 of the financial statements, during the year
ended the Company has written back certain trade payables and
provisions aggregating to Rs. 3,770.86 lakhs (Including write back of
related parties balance and provisions of Rs. 2,693.72 lakhs) for the year
ended March 31, 2025, reasons of which are not known to us. Hence,
we are unable to comment on the correctness of these values, and if any
adjustments are required to the said balances as on March 31, 2025, and
related disclosures in the financial statements. The above amount
includes amount due to one of the related parties which is under
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process whose Resolution
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Financial
Year /
Period

Qualifications / Reservation / Matter of Emphasis / Adverse Remarks /

Key Audit Matters / Other Observations in CARO

Impact on the
Financial

statements of
the Company

Professional has raised a claim of Rs. 2,321 lakhs along with interest
which has been denied by the Company and not recognized in the
books, as explained in note no. 52. This matter was also disclaimed in
our report on the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024.

d) As stated in note no. 51, the performance of the Company was affected
due to shortage of inventory, liquidity and most of the stores of the
Company were running into losses, which may trigger the requirement
for evaluating impairment on Right of Use (ROU) Assets of the
financial results having value of Rs. 12,581.29 lakhs as on March 31,
2025. Inspite of these indicators no assessment of impairment has been
carried out. Hence, we are unable to comment upon the impact arising
on the loss and EPS for the year ended March 31, 2025, and on the
carrying value of ROU & other equity as on March 31, 2025. This
matter was also disclaimed in our report on the financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2024.

e) During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has closed certain
stores and inventory at few of these closed stores amounting to Rs
111.32 lakhs is under the control of the respective lessors, and the
Company was unable to physically verify such inventory and make
appropriate provision for the same. Due to this limitation, we were
unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to determine
and quantify whether the value of Inventory will be fully recoverable
and it requires any provision and hence, we are unable to comment upon
the impact arising on the loss and EPS for the year ended March 31,
2025 and on the carrying value of Inventory & other equity as on March
31, 2025.

For the year
ended
March 31,
2025

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 43 in the financial statements which states that
during the year, the Company has incurred a cash loss of Rs. 4,542.46 lakhs
and its net worth is negative as on the Balance Sheet date. Further, the
Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 9,310.98
lakhs as at the balance sheet date [excluding the effect of the observations
stated in paragraph 2(a), 2(c) 2(d) and 2(e)]. The Company has also
received notice for application under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code
2016 from one of the operational creditors. The above situation indicates
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. In view of above, we are
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to whether the
Company will be able to service its debts, realize its assets and discharge
its liabilities as and when they become due over the period of next twelve
months. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on whether the Company
will be able to continue as Going Concern.

NA

For the year
ended
March 31,
2025

Emphasis of Matter

NIL

NA
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Financial
Year /
Period

Qualifications / Reservation / Matter of Emphasis / Adverse Remarks /
Key Audit Matters / Other Observations in CARO

Impact on the
Financial

statements of
the Company

For the year
ended
March 31,
2025

Key Audit Matters

Our report does not include the section of Key Audit Matters, as our
opinion is disclaimed, which is in accordance with the requirements of the
SA 705, as issued by ICAIL

NA

For the year
ended
March 31,
2025

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company
has used various accounting software(s) for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has not operated during the year for all the relevant transactions
recorded in the respective software(s). In the absence of adequate
information, we are unable to state that there are any instances of audit trail
feature being tampered with in respect of these accounting software(s).

In respect of an accounting software, which is hosted at a third-party
service provider location, where the activities have been outsourced by the
Company, independent service auditors report has not been made available
to us. Hence, we are unable to comment upon whether the required
provisions of the Act regarding audit trail for this software have been
complied with in all aspects. With respect to such software, we are also
unable to comment upon whether there was any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.

Pursuant to the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
which came into effect from April 1, 2024, and in accordance with the
requirements of Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, we report that, based on our audit procedures and the information and
explanations provided to us, the Company has used various accounting
software(s) for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has not been duly
maintained and preserved the audit trail, as per the applicable statutory
requirements for record retention.

NA

For the year
ended
March 31,
2025

Under CARO 2020

ii. (a) During the year, physical verification of inventory has been carried out
by the management at reasonable intervals. However, based on the records
examined and explanations provided to us, discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification of inventory, and the aggregate value of such
discrepancies exceeds 10% of the value of inventory. The discrepancies have
been properly dealt with in the books of account.

vii. (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, duty of customs, goods & service tax (GST), cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities though there
has been a slight delay in a few cases. As explained to us, the Company did
not have any dues on account of sales tax, service tax, duty of excise and value
added tax.

vii. (¢) Statutory dues referred to in sub- clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2025, on account of disputes are given below:

NA
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Financial Qualifications / Reservation / Matter of Emphasis / Adverse Remarks / | Impact on the
Year /| Key Audit Matters / Other Observations in CARO Financial
Period statements of
the Company
Name Nature | Amount | Amount | Period to Forum where
of the of (Rs. in | paid which the dispute is
Statute | the Lakhs) | under amount pending
Dues Protest relates
(Rs. in
Lakhs)
Income | Income | 34.13 6.82 AY 2018- | CIT (Appeals),
Tax tax 19 Mumbai
Act,
1961
Income | Income | 50.72 10.14 AY 2019- | CIT (Appeals),
Tax tax 20 Mumbai
Act,
1961
Income | Income | 28.96 5.79 AY 2020- | CIT (Appeals),
Tax tax 21 Mumbai
Act,
1961
Central | Goods | 28.71 2.87 FY 2017-18 | Appellate
goods and Authority State
and service Tax  Officer
service | tax act Delhi
tax act,
2017
Central | Goods 1.91 0.19 FY 2017-18 | Appellate
goods and Authority State
and service Tax  Officer
service | tax act Guwabhati
tax act, Assam
2017
Central | Goods | 61.07 6.11 FY 2017-18 | Appellate
goods and Authority
and service Central GST &
service | tax act Centra Excise
tax act, — Chhattisgarh
2017
Central | Goods | 43.30 4.33 FY 2019-20 | Appellate
goods and Authority State
and service Tax  (Appeal
service | tax act I)-Ahmedabad
tax act, — Gujarat
2017
Central | Goods | 218.02 21.80 FY 2017-18 | Appellate
goods and Authority State
and service Tax  (Appeal
service | tax act I)-Karnataka
tax act,
2017
Central | Goods 109.25 10.92 FY 2018-19 | Appellate
goods and Authority State
and service Tax  (Appeal
service | tax act I)-Maharashtra
tax act,
2017
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Qualifications / Reservation / Matter of Emphasis / Adverse Remarks /

Impact on the

Year /| Key Audit Matters / Other Observations in CARO Financial
Period statements of
the Company

Central | Goods | 5.41 0.54 FY 2019-20 | Appellate

goods and Authority State

and service Tax  (Appeal

service | tax act I)-Jharkhand

tax act,

2017

Central | Goods | 27.44 2.74 FY 2019-20 | Appellate

goods and Authority State

and service Tax  (Appeal

service | tax act I)-West Bengal

tax act,

2017

Central | Goods | 367.88 | Nil November | Directorate

goods and 2017 to | General of

and service September | Anti

service | tax act 2019 Profiteering

tax act,

2017

Central | Goods 175.49 17.62 FY 2018-19 | Appellate

goods and Authority State

and service Tax  (Appeal

service | tax act I)-West Bengal

tax act, and Assam

2017

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company
has incurred cash losses of Rs. 4,542.46 lakhs. The effect of unquantified
modification given in paragraph 2 of our independent auditor’s report has not
been taken into consideration for the purpose of reporting in respect of this
clause. Further, the Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 4,942.12 lakhs in
the immediately preceding financial year, which was also determined without
considering the effect of the modified opinion issued for the immediately
preceding financial year.

xix. We draw attention to note no. 43 in the financial statements which states
that during the year, the company has incurred a cash loss of Rs. 4,542.46 lakhs
and its net worth is negative as on the Balance Sheet date. Further, the
Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 9,310.99 lakhs
as at the balance sheet date [excluding the effect of the observations stated in
paragraph 2(a), 2(c) and 2(d) of the main audit report]. The Company has also
received notice for application under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code
2016 from one of the operational creditors. Further considering the financial
ratios as disclosed in note 54 to the financial statement and ageing and
expected date of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statement, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, there exists a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern and it may not be capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
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PRINCIPAL COMPONENTS OF OUR STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Income

Our Income comprises of:

Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations comprises of revenue from sale of products and revenue from other operating income
which includes commission income, income from sale of scrape, income from sale of entitlements and other
income.

Other Income

Other income primarily comprises of certain non-recurring income such as concessions, recovery from damages,
liabilities written back, excess lease liabilities written back, Interest on Income Tax refund and other miscellaneous
income.

Expenses

Our expenses primarily comprise purchase of stock in trade, changes in inventories of stock-in-trade, employee
benefit expenses, rent expense including lease rentals, finance costs, depreciation and amortization expenses and
other expenses.

Purchase of stock-in-trade

The purchase of stock-in-trade comprises of purchase of finished goods.

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade comprises of difference in closing balance vis-a-vis opening balance of
stock in trade.

Employee benefit expense

Employee benefit expense consists of salaries, wages, bonus, contribution to provident fund & other funds,
employee stock option expense and staff welfare expenses.

Rent including lease rentals

Rent including lease rentals comprises of expenses on account of lease contracts for office, store premises and
warehouses used in our operations, which has lease terms between nine and thirty years.

Finance costs

Finance cost comprises of interest on borrowings, unwinding interest on lease liabilities, unwinding interest on
Financial Instrument at amortised cost and other finance cost.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense comprise of depreciation expense of lease assets, plant and equipment,
furniture & fixture, office equipment, computers.

Other expenses
Other expenses comprise of expenses related to power and fuel, repairs and maintenance, insurance, rates and
taxes, travelling and conveyance, advertisement and marketing, inventory shrinkage/damage, provision for

obsolete inventory and shrinkage, legal and professional, balances with government authorities written off
excluding reversal of provision of doubtful advances, inventory scrapped excluding reversal of provision for slow
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moving inventory, loss on foreign currency translation/transactions, subvention and credit card charges and
miscellaneous expenses.

Tax expenses

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable
income for the year as determined in accordance with applicable tax rates and the provisions of applicable tax
laws. Deferred tax charge / (credit) is recognized based on the difference between taxable profit and book profit
due to the effect of timing differences. Our deferred tax is measured based on the applicable tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the relevant balance sheet date.

Results of our Operations

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our results of operations for the periods indicated:

Period ended March 31, 2025, compared to period ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Fiscal 2025 % of total Fiscal 2024 % of total
income income
1. | Income
Revenue from operations 11,896.96 75.24% 21,957.77 97.18%
Other Income 3,914.69 24.76% 636.16 2.82%
Total income 15,811.65 100.00% 22,593.93 100.00%
2. | Expenses
Purchase of Stock in trade 4,932.85 31.20% 10,316.80 45.66%
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 2,020.98 12.78% 1,053.26 4.66%
Employee benefits expense 2,663.01 16.84% 4,355.29 19.28%
Finance Costs 1,671.54 10.57% 2,206.50 9.77%
Depreciation and Amortisation 2,745.48 17.36% 3,629.13 16.06%
Other Expenses 5,275.64 33.37% 8,765.68 38.80%
Total expenses 19,309.50 122.12% 30,326.66 134.22%
3. | Exceptional items - 00.00% (838.51) 3.71%
4. | Profit/(Loss) before Tax (3,497.85) -22.12% (8,571.25) -37.94%
5. | Tax Expenses
-Current Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
-Deferred Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
-Earlier year’s tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
6. | Profit and loss for the year (3,497.85) -22.12% (8,571.25) -37.94%

Total Income

Our total income decreased by 30.02% to X 15,811.65 lakhs for the Fiscal 2025 from 322,593.93 lakhs for the
Fiscal 2024. The changes are due to following reasons:

Revenue from operations

Our revenue from operations decreased by 45.82% to ¥11,896.96 lakhs for the Fiscal 2025 from X 21,957.77 lakhs
for the Fiscal 2024. This was on account of non-availability of sufficient inventory due to lower revenues and
closure of few stores.

Other income

Our other income increased by 615.36% to X 3,914.69 lakh for the Fiscal 2025 from 2636.16 lakhs for the Fiscal
2024 primarily on account of write back off liabilities.

Expenses

Our total expenses decreased by 36.33% to 219,309. 50 lakh for the Fiscal 2025 from %30,326.66 lakhs for the
Fiscal 2024, due to following reasons:

155



Purchase of Stock in trade

Our purchase of stock in trade decreased by 52.19% to %4,932.85 lakh for the Fiscal 2025 from 10,316.80
lakhs for the Fiscal 2024, primarily due to liquidity constraints due to which company was not able to procure
more merchandise from supplier

Changes in inventories of stock in trade

Our inventories of stock in trade stood at 2,020.98 lakh for the Fiscal 2025 as compared to %1,053.26 lakhs for
the Fiscal 2024, primarily due to the sale of aged inventory held by the company, with very limited fresh stock
inward during the financial year

Employee benefit expense

Our employees benefit expense decreased by 61.14% to %2,663.01 lakh for the Fiscal 2025 from %4,355.29 lakhs
for the Fiscal 2024, primarily due to corresponding reduction in count of the employees in the Fiscal year 2025.

Finance cost

Our finance cost decreased by 24.25% to %1,671.54 lakh for the Fiscal 2025 from 2,206.50 lakhs for the Fiscal
2024 due to waiver of interest on ICDs from a few of the promoter companies.

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Our depreciation and amortisation expenses decreased by 24.35% to 2,745.48 lakhs for the Fiscal 2025 from
%3,629.13 lakhs for Fiscal 2024, primarily on account of closure of few of the stores and few assets being written
off/scraped.

Other Expenses

Our other expenses decreased by 39.82% to %5,275.64 lakh for the Fiscal 2025 from %8,765.68 lakhs for Fiscal
2024, primarily due to decrease in expense on account of various steps taken to optimize the Store operational
cost and Supply chain cost. There has been a major reduction on the marketing spend.

Profit/ (Loss) for the period

Our loss for the Fiscal 2025 stood at % -3,497.85 lakhs as compared to %-8,571.25 lakhs for the Fiscal 2024 due to
the abovementioned reasons.

Related Party Transactions
For details, please see the chapter titled “Financial Statements” beginning on page 81.

Significant developments after March 31, 2025, that may affect our future results of operations

e Resignation of Mr. Samir Kedia as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. April 30, 2025
e  Resignation of Mr. Vimal Dhruve as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. June 26, 2025
e  Appointment of Mr. Vikash Kabra as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. July 14, 2025

e  Appointment of Ms. Charu Srivastava as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. July 14,
2025

e  Disposal of a significant number of Equity Shares by our Promoter Group, resulting in a decline in their
shareholding from 23.61% as on March 31, 2025, to 9.92% as on the date of this Letter of Offer, thereby
ceasing to have significant influence over our Company

e  The Promoter of the Company, Mr. Kishore Biyani, vide his request letter dated June 09, 2025, sought
reclassification of his shareholding from the “Promoter” category to the “Public” category along with the
persons and entities acting in concert with him. This request was subsequently confirmed by the resolution
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professional of Future Corporate Resources Private Limited through the letter dated July 11, 2025. The Board
of Directors of the Company approved the said reclassification on July 14, 2025, in accordance with the
provisions of Regulation 31A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, which governs the conditions and process
for reclassification of promoters as public shareholders.

Allotment of 1,12,500 (One Lakh Twelve Thousand Five Hundred) equity shares of face value of Rs.5/-
(Rupees Five) each on April 26, 2025, pursuant to the exercise of stock options granted under the Company’s
employee stock option scheme.

Closure of our application by BSE without granting in-principle approval for the proposed preferential issue
of Equity Shares, which necessitated the Company to refrain from proceeding with the issuance of Equity
Shares intended for conversion of our trade liabilities.
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SECTION VI: LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND DEFAULTS

Except as disclosed below, there is no outstanding litigation with respect to (i) issues of moral turpitude or
criminal liability on the part of our Company;, (ii) material violations of statutory regulations by our Company,
(iii) economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company; (iv) any pending matters,
which if they result in an adverse outcome, would materially and adversely affect our operations or our financial
position; and (v) other litigation, including civil or tax litigation proceedings, which involves an amount in excess
of the Materiality Threshold (as defined below) adopted by the Committee of Directors on July 30, 2025.

In this regard, please note the following:

1. Any outstanding litigation involving our Company i.e., proceedings other than litigation involving issues of
moral turpitude, criminal liability, material violations of statutory regulations or proceedings related to
economic offences, shall be considered material and shall be disclosed in the Draft Letter of Offer/Letter of
Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer, if (i) the monetary claim involved in such proceedings is an amount
equal to or exceeding 5 % of the total income of the Company as per the audited financial statements of the
Company for the immediately preceding financial year (being I 594.85 lakh, 5% of T 11,896.96 lakh as on
March 31, 2025) (“Materiality Threshold”), and / or (ii) is otherwise determined to be material in terms of
the Materiality Policy.

2. Pre-litigation notices received by our Company from third parties (excluding notices pertaining to any
offence involving issues of moral turpitude, criminal liability, material violations of statutory regulations or
proceedings related to economic offences) shall not be evaluated for materiality until such time our Company
are impleaded as defendants in litigation proceedings before any judicial forum.

All terms defined herein in a particular litigation disclosure pertain to that litigation only.

Litigations involving our Company

There are no issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability, material violations of statutory regulations or economic
offences or material pending matters involving our Company, except as follows:

A. Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability
i.  Criminal Litigations initiated against our Company
1. On October 1, 2024, the legal metrology officer from the Uttar Pradesh Legal Metrology
Department conducted a visit to our store premises in Gomtinagar, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh, and
observed the following non-compliances: non-disclosure of unit sale price on Borosil Glass Mug
Products manufactured by Borosil Limited; non-disclosure of unit sale price on Dubai Whisky
Glasses imported by Raj Agencies; and alteration of MRP on the desert spoon set manufactured
by FNS International Pvt Ltd. Following this, the Legal Metrology Officer seized the
aforementioned products and issued an adoption memorandum under the Legal Metrology Act,
2009, read with the Legal Metrology (Enforcement) Rules, 2011. The matter is currently
pending.
ii.  Criminal Litigations initiated by our Company
As on the date of this Letter of Offer, there are no criminal litigations initiated by our Company.

B. Matters involving material violations of statutory regulations by our Company

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding proceedings/matters involving material
violations of statutory regulations by our Company.

C. Economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding economic offences initiated against our
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Other proceedings involving our Company which involve an amount exceeding the Materiality
Threshold and other pending matters which, if they result in an adverse outcome would materially
and adversely affect the operations or the financial position of our Company

1.

Civil Litigations initiated against our Company

M/s. Koncepts Interior (“Operational Creditor”) has filed an application in National Company
Law Tribunal, Mumbai (“NCLT Mumbai”) under Section 9(1) of the IBC read with Rule 6 of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy (Application to Adjudicating Authority) Rules 2016 to intiate corporate
insolvency resolution process against our Company for the alleged outstanding operational debt
amounting to 3100.66 lakhs along with 18% per annum. The matter is currently pending.

. Pursuant to a petition filed by Bank of India, the corporate insolvency resolution process was

initiated against Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited (“Corporate Debtor”) by the National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (“NCLT Mumbai”) vide order dated May 04, 2023. A demand
notice dated October 05, 2023, was issued by Mr. Ravi Sethia (“Resolution Professional”) calling
upon our Company to pay 32,320.57 lakhs outstanding towards rent payable to the Corporate Debtor
under the leave and license agreement dated April 1, 2021, (“L&L Agreement”) entered into
between the Corporate Debtor and our Company. Subsequently, the Resolution Professional filed
an Interlocutory Application (“I.A-1”) with the NCLT Mumbai against our Promoter Kishore
Biyani and our Company (“Respondents”) seeking relief to direct the Respondents to pay a sum of
%2,320.57 lakhs along with interest at the rate of 18% per annum. In the same case involving the
corporate insolvency resolution process of the Corporate Debtor, Sudha Apparels Limited (“SAL”)
has filed an Interlocutory Application (“I.A-2”) against the Resolution Professional seeking inter
alia the relief of handing over the vacant and peaceful possession of an immovable property situated
in Rajarhat, Kolkata, owned by SAL (“Rajarhat Property”). Since our Company is in possession
and operates a store at the Rajarhat Property under the L&L Agreement, we filed an intervention
application in the I.A-2 seeking impleadment as a party in the proceedings of I.A-2. Both [.LA-2 and
our intervention application were dismissed by NCLT Mumbai vide order dated October 01, 2024
(“NCLT Order”). Subsequently, SAL challenged the NCLT Order before the National Company
Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi, by filing a company appeal under section 61(1) of the IBC
(“Company Appeal”). As our Company was not made a party to the Company Appeal, we have
filed an intervention application in response. The matter is currently pending.

Pursuant to a petition filed by M/s Foresight Innovations Private Limited, the corporate insolvency
resolution process was initiated against Future Enterprises Limited (“Corporate Debtor”) by the
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (“NCLT Mumbai”) through its order dated February
27, 2023. Subsequently, Mr. Avil Menezes was appointed as the resolution professional
(“Resolution Professional”) of the Corporate Debtor by NCLT Mumbai via its order dated June
22,2023. Based on the transaction audit report submitted by the transaction auditor, the Resolution
Professional filed an interlocutory application (“IA”) under sections 43, 44, 45, 46, 66 and 67 read
with Section 60(5) of the IBC before NCLT Mumbai on January 9, 2025, against, amongst others,
our Promoter Mr. Kishore Biyani and our Company. Under the IA, the Resolution Professional has,
inter alia, claimed a refund of an alleged lease rental amounting to Rs.4,577.35 lakhs from the
Company for the in-store retail infrastructure assets leased by the Corporate Debtor to our
Company. Our Company is in the process of preparing and filing a reply to the IA. The matter is
currently pending.

Civil Litigations initiated by our Company

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding civil litigations initiated by our Company
exceeding the Materiality Threshold.

Tax Proceedings initiated against our Company

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding tax proceedings initiated against our
Company exceeding the Materiality Threshold.
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER APPROVALS

Our Company requires various licenses, registrations, permits and approvals issued by relevant central and state
authorities under various rules and regulations (“Approvals”) for carrying on its present business activities. The
requirement for the Approvals may vary based on factors such as the legal requirements in the jurisdiction, in
which the stores and warehouses are located. Further, our obligation to obtain and renew such approvals arises
periodically and applications for such approvals are made at the appropriate stage.

Since, our Company intends to utilize the proceeds of the Issue, after deducting Issue related expenses for reducing

the current liabilities by repaying part of its outstanding trade payables and for general corporate purposes, no
government and regulatory approval pertaining to the Object of the Issue will be required.
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES
Authority for the Issue

The Issue has been authorised by a resolution of the Board passed at its meeting held on November 11, 2024,
pursuant to Section 62 (1) (a) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Committee of the Directors of the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on March 13, 2025
has resolved to issue Equity Shares to the Eligible Equity Shareholders at an Issue Price of X 10/- per Equity Share
(including a premium of X 5/- per Equity Share), in the ratio of 11 Rights Equity Shares for every 30 Equity
Shares, as held on the Record Date being Thursday, March 20, 2025. The Issue Price of % 10/- per Rights Equity
Share has been arrived at, in consultation with the Lead Managers, prior to determination of the Record Date.

This Letter of Offer has been approved by the Committee of Directors of our Board on July 30, 2025.

Our Company has received in-principle approvals from BSE and NSE for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to
be allotted in this Issue pursuant to their letters dated March 4, 2025, and March 7, 2025, respectively. Our
Company will also make applications to BSE and NSE to obtain their trading approvals for the Rights Entitlements
as required under the SEBI Rights Issue Circular.

Our Company has been allotted the ISIN INE546Y20030 for the Rights Entitlements to be credited to the
respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company. For details, see “Terms of the
Issue” on page 170.

Prohibition by the SEBI

None of our Company, our Promoters, members of our Promoter Group and our Directors are prohibited from
accessing or operating in the capital markets or restrained from buying, selling or dealing in securities under any
order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority:

Fugitive Economic Offender

Neither our Promoters nor our Directors have been declared as Fugitive Economic Offenders.

Association of our Directors with the securities market

None of our Directors are associated with the securities market.

Prohibition by RBI

Neither our Company, nor our Promoters or our Directors have been or are identified as Wilful Defaulters or
Fraudulent Borrowers.

Eligibility for the Issue

Our Company is a listed company and has been incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. Our Equity Shares
are presently listed on the Stock Exchanges. Our Company is eligible to offer Rights Equity Shares pursuant to
this Issue in terms of Chapter III of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other applicable provisions of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. Further, our Company is undertaking this Issue in compliance with Part B of Schedule VI of the
SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Compliance with Regulation 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Our Company is in compliance with the conditions specified in Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, to the extent applicable. Our Company has received “in-principle” approvals from NSE and BSE for
listing the Rights Equity Shares through their letters dated March 4, 2025, and March 7, 2025, respectively. Our
Company will also make applications to NSE and BSE to obtain trading approvals for the Rights Entitlements as
required under the SEBI ICDR Master Circular. BSE is the Designated Stock Exchange for the purpose of the
Issue.
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Applicability of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

The present Issue being of less than 5,000 Lakhs, Our Company is in compliance with first proviso to Regulation
3 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and our Company shall file the copy of the Letter of Offer prepared in accordance
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations with SEBI for information and dissemination on the website of SEBI, i.e.

www.sebi.gov.in.

Compliance with clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Our Company is in compliance with the provisions specified in clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, to the extent applicable, in terms of the disclosures made in this Letter of Offer.

Further, our Company confirms that it is in compliance with the following:

a) Our Company has been filing periodic reports, statements and information in compliance with the SEBI
Listing Regulations, as applicable, for the last one year immediately preceding the date of filing of this Letter
of Offer with the BSE and NSE;

b) the reports, statements and information referred to in sub-clause (a) above are available on the website of the
BSE and NSE; and

¢) Our Company has an investor grievance-handling mechanism which includes meeting of the Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee at frequent intervals, appropriate delegation of power by the Board as regards share
transfer and clearly laid down systems and procedures for timely and satisfactory redressal of investor
grievances.

As our Company satisfies the conditions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR
Regulations, and given that the conditions specified in Clause (3) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR
Regulations are not applicable to our Company, the disclosures in this Letter of Offer are in terms of Clause (4)
of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Disclaimer Clause of SEBI
As required, a copy of the Letter of Offer will be submitted to SEBI.

“IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THE LETTER OF OFFER
TO SEBI SHOULD NOT, IN ANY WAY BE DEEMED OR CONSTRUED THAT THE SAME HAS BEEN
CLEARED OR APPROVED BY SEBI. SEBI DOES NOT TAKE ANY RESPONSIBILITY EITHER FOR
THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF ANY SCHEME OR THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THE ISSUE IS
PROPOSED TO BE MADE, OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF THE STATEMENTS MADE OR
OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THE LETTER OF OFFER. THE LEAD MANAGERS, PRIME
SECURITIES LIMITED AND NEW BERRY CAPITALS PRIVATE LIMITED HAS CERTIFIED THAT
THE DISCLOSURES MADE IN THE LETTER OF OFFER ARE GENERALLY ADEQUATE AND ARE
IN CONFORMITY WITH SEBI (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2018 IN FORCE FOR THE TIME BEING. THIS REQUIREMENT IS TO
FACILITATE INVESTORS TO TAKE AN INFORMED DECISION FOR MAKING INVESTMENT IN
THE PROPOSED ISSUE.

IT SHOULD ALSO BE CLEARLY UNDERSTOOD THAT WHILE THE COMPANY IS PRIMARILY
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CORRECTNESS, ADEQUACY AND DISCLOSURE OF ALL RELEVANT
INFORMATION IN THE LETTER OF OFFER, THE LEAD MANAGERS ARE EXPECTED TO
EXERCISE DUE DILIGENCE TO ENSURE THAT THE COMPANY DISCHARGES ITS
RESPONSIBILITY ADEQUATELY IN THIS BEHALF AND TOWARDS THIS PURPOSE THE LEAD
MANAGERS, PRIME SECURITIES LIMITED AND NEW BERRY CAPITALS PRIVATE LIMITED
HAVE FURNISHED TO SEBI A DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATE DATED JULY 30, 2025 WHICH
READS AS FOLLOWS:

1. WE HAVE EXAMINED VARIOUS DOCUMENTS INCLUDING THOSE RELATING TO
LITIGATION, INCLUDING COMMERCIAL DISPUTES, PATENT DISPUTES, DISPUTES WITH
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COLLABORATORS, ETC. AND OTHER MATERIAL WHILE FINALISING THE LETTER OF
OFFER OF THE SUBJECT ISSUE;

ON THE BASIS OF SUCH EXAMINATION AND DISCUSSIONS WITH THE COMPANY, ITS
DIRECTORS AND OTHER OFFICERS, OTHER AGENCIES, AND INDEPENDENT
VERIFICATION OF THE STATEMENTS CONCERNING THE OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE, PRICE
JUSTIFICATION, CONTENTS OF THE DOCUMENTS AND OTHER PAPERS FURNISHED BY
THE ISSUER, WE CONFIRM THAT:

a. THE LETTER OF OFFER FILED WITH SEBI IS IN CONFORMITY WITH THE
DOCUMENTS, MATERIALS AND PAPERS WHICH ARE MATERIAL TO THE ISSUE;

b. ALL MATERIAL LEGAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO THE ISSUE AS SPECIFIED BY
SEBI, THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT AND ANY OTHER COMPETENT AUTHORITY IN
THIS BEHALF HAVE BEEN DULY COMPLIED WITH; AND

¢. THE MATERIAL DISCLOSURES MADE IN THE LETTER OF OFFER ARE TRUE AND
ADEQUATE TO ENABLE THE INVESTORS TO MAKE A WELL INFORMED DECISION
AS TO THE INVESTMENT IN THE PROPOSED ISSUE AND SUCH DISCLOSURES ARE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, THE SEBI
ICDR REGULATIONS AND OTHER APPLICABLE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

BESIDES OURSELVES, ALL INTERMEDIARIES NAMED IN THE LETTER OF OFFER ARE
REGISTERED WITH SEBI AND THAT TILL DATE, SUCH REGISTRATION IS VALID.- NOTED
FOR COMPLIANCE

WE HAVE SATISFIED OURSELVES ABOUT THE CAPABILITY OF THE UNDERWRITERS TO
FULFIL THEIR UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS. — NOT APPLICABLE

WRITTEN CONSENT FROM THE PROMOTERS HAS BEEN OBTAINED FOR INCLUSION OF
THEIR SPECIFIED SECURITIES AS PART OF THE PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION SUBJECT
TO LOCK-IN AND THE SPECIFIED SECURITIES PROPOSED TO FORM PART OF THE
PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION SUBJECT TO LOCK-IN SHALL NOT BE DISPOSED OR SOLD
OR TRANSFERRED BY THE PROMOTERS DURING THE PERIOD STARTING FROM THE
DATE OF FILING LETTER OF OFFER WITH SEBI TILL THE DATE OF COMMENCEMENT
OF LOCK-IN PERIOD AS STATED IN THE LETTER OF OFFER. - NOT APPLICABLE, BEING
A RIGHTS ISSUE.

ALL APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF SEBI ICDR REGULATIONS, WHICH RELATE TO
SPECIFIED SECURITIES INELIGIBLE FOR COMPUTATION OF PROMOTERS’
CONTRIBUTION, HAVE BEEN AND SHALL BE DULY COMPLIED WITH AND APPROPRIATE
DISCLOSURES AS TO COMPLIANCE WITH THE SAID REGULATION(S)HAVE BEEN MADE
IN THE LETTER OF OFFER. - NOT APPLICABLE, BEING A RIGHTS ISSUE.

ALL APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF SEBI ICDR REGULATIONS, WHICH RELATE TO
RECEIPT OF PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION PRIOR TO OPENING OF THE ISSUE, SHALL
BE COMPLIED WITH. ARRANGEMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO ENSURE THAT THE
PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION SHALL BE RECEIVED AT LEAST ONE DAY BEFORE THE
OPENING OF THE ISSUE AND THAT THE AUDITORS’CERTIFICATE TO THIS EFFECT
SHALL BE DULY SUBMITTED TO SEBI. WE FURTHER CONFIRM THAT ARRANGEMENTS
HAVE BEEN MADE TO ENSURE THAT THE PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION SHALL BE
KEPT IN AN ESCROW ACCOUNT WITH A SCHEDULED COMMERCIAL BANK AND SHALL
BE RELEASED TO THE ISSUER ALONG WITH THE PROCEEDS OF THE ISSUE. - NOT
APPLICABLE, BEING A RIGHTS ISSUE.

NECESSARY ARRANGEMENTS SHALL BE MADE TO ENSURE THAT THE MONIES
RECEIVED PURSUANT TO THE ISSUE ARE CREDITED OR TRANSFERRED TO IN A
SEPARATE BANK ACCOUNT AS PER THE PROVISIONS OF SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION
40 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THAT SUCH MONIES SHALL BE RELEASED BY THE
SAID BANK ONLY AFTER PERMISSION IS OBTAINED FROM ALL THE STOCK
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EXCHANGES, AND THAT THE AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO BETWEEN THE BANKERS TO
THE ISSUE AND THE ISSUER SPECIFICALLY CONTAINS THIS CONDITION. - NOTED FOR
COMPLIANCE TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE

9. THE EXISTING BUSINESS AS WELL AS ANY NEW BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER FOR WHICH
THE FUNDS ARE BEING RAISED FALL WITHIN THE ‘MAIN OBJECTS’ IN THE OBJECT
CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OR OTHER CHARTER OF THE ISSUER
AND THAT THE ACTIVITIES WHICH HAVE BEEN CARRIED IN THE LAST TEN YEARS ARE
VALID IN TERMS OF THE OBJECT CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION. -
COMPLIED WITH TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE

10. FOLLOWING DISCLOSURES HAVE BEEN MADE IN THE LETTER OF OFFER:

a. AN UNDERTAKING FROM THE ISSUER THAT AT ANY GIVEN TIME, THERE SHALL BE
ONLY ONE DENOMINATION FOR THE EQUITY SHARES OF THE ISSUER, EXCLUDING
SUPERIOR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES, WHERE AN ISSUER HAS OUTSTANDING
SUPERIOR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES - COMPLIED WITH (THE COMPANY HAS NOT
ISSUED ANY SUPERIOR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES); AND

b. AN UNDERTAKING FROM THE COMPANY THAT IT SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL
DISCLOSURE AND ACCOUNTING NORMS SPECIFIED BY THE SEBI. - COMPLIED
WITH

11. WE SHALL COMPLY WITH THE REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO ADVERTISEMENTS IN
TERMS OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2018. - NOTED FOR COMPLIANCE

12. IF APPLICABLE, THE COMPANY IS ELIGIBLE TO LIST ON THE INNOVATORS GROWTH
PLATFORM IN TERMS OF THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER X OF THE SEBI ICDR
REGULATIONS, 2018.- NOT APPLICABLE, BEING A RIGHTS ISSUE.

THE FILING OF THE LETTER OF OFFER DOES NOT, HOWEVER, ABSOLVE OUR COMPANY
FROM ANY LIABILITIES UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 OR FROM THE REQUIREMENT
OF OBTAINING SUCH STATUTORY OR OTHER CLEARANCES AS MAY BE REQUIRED FOR THE
PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSED ISSUE. SEBI FURTHER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO TAKE UP, AT
ANY POINT OF TIME, WITH THE LEAD MANAGERS ANY IRREGULARITIES OR LAPSES IN THE
LETTER OF OFFER.

Disclaimer from our Company and the Lead Managers

Our Company and the Lead Managers, namely Prime Securities Limited and New Berry Capitals Private Limited
accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Letter of Offer or in the advertisement or any
other material issued by or at the instance of our Company and that anyone placing reliance on any other source
of information would be doing so at their own risk.

We and the Lead Managers shall make all information available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and no
selective or additional information would be available for a section of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in any
manner whatsoever including at presentations, in research or sales reports etc. after filing of this Letter of Offer
with the SEBI.

Applicants will be required to confirm and will be deemed to have represented to our Company and the
Lead Managers and their respective directors, officers, agents, affiliates and representatives that they are
eligible under all applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire the Rights Equity
Shares and that they shall not issue, sell, pledge or transfer their Rights Entitlement or Rights Equity
Shares to any person who is not eligible under applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals
to acquire the Rights Equity Shares and are relying on independent advice/ evaluation as to their ability
and quantum of investment in this Issue. Our Company, the Lead Managers and their respective directors,
officers, agents, affiliates and representatives accept no responsibility or liability for advising any Investor
on whether such Investor is eligible to acquire any Rights Equity Shares.
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The Lead Managers and its affiliates may engage in transactions with, and perform services for, our Company
and our group entities or affiliates in the ordinary course of business and have engaged, or may in the future
engage, in transactions with our Company and our group entities or affiliates, for which they have received, and
may in the future receive, compensation.

Cautions

Our Company and the Lead Managers shall make all relevant information available to the Eligible Equity
Shareholders in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and no selective or additional information would be
available for a section of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in any manner whatsoever, including at presentations,
in research or sales reports, etc., after filing this Letter of Offer.

No dealer, salesperson or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not contained
in this Letter of Offer. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. This Letter of Offer
is an offer to sell only the Rights Equity Shares and the Rights Entitlement, but only under circumstances and in
the applicable jurisdictions. Unless otherwise specified, the information contained in this Letter of Offer is current
only as at its date.

Disclaimer with respect to jurisdiction

This Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of Indian law and the applicable rules and regulations
thereunder. Any disputes arising out of the Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the appropriate court(s) in
Mumbai, India only.

Designated Stock Exchange
The Designated Stock Exchange for the purposes of this Issue is BSE.
Disclaimer Clause of BSE

BSE Limited ("the Exchange") has given vide its letter dated March 04, 2025, permission to this Company to use
the Exchange's name in this Letter of Offer as the stock exchange on which this Company's securities are proposed
to be listed. The Exchange has scrutinized this letter of offer for its limited internal purpose of deciding on the
matter of granting the aforesaid permission to this Company. The Exchange does not in any manner:

e  Warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this letter of offer; or

e  Warrant that this Company's securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange; or

e  Take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this Company, its promoters, its management
or any scheme or project of this Company;

and it should not for any reason be deemed or construed that this letter of offer has been cleared or approved by
the Exchange. Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any securities of this Company may
do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the
Exchange whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection
with such subscription/acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or for any
other reason whatsoever.

Disclaimer Clause of NSE

As required, a copy of this letter of offer has been submitted to National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(hereinafter referred to as NSE). NSE has given vide its letter Ref. No. NSE/LIST/46058 dated March 07, 2025
permission to the Issuer to use the Exchange’s name in this letter of offer as one of the stock exchanges on which
this Issuer’s securities are proposed to be listed. The Exchange has scrutinized this letter of offer for its limited
internal purpose of deciding on the matter of granting the aforesaid permission to this Issuer.

It is to be distinctly understood that the aforesaid permission given by NSE should not in any way be deemed or
construed that the letter of offer has been cleared or approved by NSE; nor does it in any manner warrant, certify
or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this letter of offer; nor does it warrant that
this Issuer’s securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange; nor does it take any
responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this Issuer, its promoters, its management or any scheme or
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project of this Issuer. Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquire any securities of this Issuer may
do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the
Exchange whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection
with such subscription /acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or any
other reason whatsoever.

Selling Restrictions

The distribution of the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter, Application Form and the
issue of Rights Equity Shares, to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements
prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession the letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer,
Entitlement Letter or Application Form may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such
restrictions.

We are making this Issue of Equity Shares on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will send/
dispatch the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter and Application Form only to email
addresses of such Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company. Those
overseas shareholders who do not update our records with their Indian address or the address of their duly
authorized representative in India, prior to the date on which we propose to e-mail the Letter of Offer, Abridged
Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter and Application Form, shall not be sent the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of
Offer, Entitlement Letter and Application Form. Further, the Letter of Offer will be provided, primarily through
e-mail, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company or the Lead Managers to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who
have provided their Indian addresses to our Company and who make a request in this regard. Investors can also
access the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form from the
websites of the Registrar, our Company, the Lead Managers, and the Stock Exchanges. Accordingly, our
Company, the Lead Managers and the Registrar will not be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue
materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Entitlement Letter and the Application
Form.

No action has been or will be taken to permit this Issue in any jurisdiction or the possession, circulation, or
distribution of the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form or any other material relating
to our Company, the Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in any jurisdiction where action would be required for
that purpose.

Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly,
and the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter and Application Form may not be distributed
in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the
Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter and Application Form will not constitute an offer in
those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, under those circumstances, the Letter
of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter and Application Form must be treated as sent for
information only and should not be copied, redistributed or acted upon for subscription to Rights Equity Shares
or the purchase of Rights Entitlements. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Letter of Offer, Abridged
Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter and Application Form should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights
Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares, distribute or send such document in, into the United States or any other
jurisdiction where to do so would, or might contravene local securities laws or regulations or would subject the
Company, Lead Managers or their respective affiliates to any filing or registration requirement (other than in
India). If the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter and/or Application Form is received by
any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights
Entitlement or Rights Equity Shares referred to in the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter
and Application Form. Envelopes containing an Application Form should not be dispatched from any jurisdiction
where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares in this Issue
must provide an Indian address.

No information in this Letter of Offer should be considered to be business, financial, legal, tax or investment
advice.

Any person who makes an application to acquire Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares offered in this
Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorised to acquire
the Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
prevailing in his jurisdiction, without requirement for our Company, the Lead Managers or their respective
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affiliates to make any filing or registration (other than in India).

Neither the delivery of the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter and
Application Form nor any sale or offer hereunder, shall under any circumstances create any implication that there
has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or that the information contained herein is
correct as at any time subsequent to the date of this Letter of Offer or date of such information.

The contents of this Letter of Offer and Abridged Letter of Offer should not be construed as legal, tax or
investment advice. Prospective investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal
consequences as a result of buying or selling of Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements. As a result,
each investor should consult its own counsel, business advisor and tax advisor as to the legal, business, tax
and related matters concerning the offer of Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements. In addition,
neither our Company nor the Lead Managers nor any of their respective affiliates are making any
representation to any offeree or purchaser of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements regarding
the legality of an investment in the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements by such offeree or
purchaser under any applicable laws or regulations.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the United
States Securities Act, 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”), or any U.S. state securities laws and may not be
offered, sold, resold or otherwise transferred within the United States of America or the territories or possessions
thereof (“United States” or “U.S.”) or to, or for the account or benefit of, “U.S. persons” (as defined in Regulation
S under the Securities Act (“Regulation S), except in a transaction exempt from the registration requirements of
the Securities Act. The Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares referred to in this Letter of Offer are being
offered in India and in jurisdictions where such offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares and/ Or Rights
Entitlements are permitted under laws of such jurisdictions, but not in the United States. The offering to which
the Draft Letter of Offer/Letter of Offer and Abridged Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances
is to be construed as, an offering of any securities or rights for sale in the United States or as a solicitation therein
of an offer to buy any of the said securities or rights.

Accordingly, the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Entitlement Letter and Application Form should not
be forwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States at any time.

Neither our Company nor any person acting on behalf of our Company will accept subscriptions or renunciation
from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on
behalf of our Company has reason to believe, is in the United States when the buy order is made. No payments
for subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares shall be made from US bank accounts and all persons subscribing for
the Rights Equity Shares and wishing to hold such Rights Equity Shares in registered form must provide an address
for registration of the Rights Equity Shares in India.

We, the Registrar, the Lead Managers or any other person acting on behalf of us, reserve the right to treat
as invalid any Application Form which: (i) does not include the certification set out in the Application Form
to the effect that the subscriber does not have a registered address (and is not otherwise located) in the
United States and is authorised to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or its agents to have been executed
in, electronically transmitted from or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a registered Indian
address is not provided; or (iv) where we believe that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such
Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and we shall not be bound to
allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares in respect of any such Application Form.

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.
Filing

This Letter of Offer is being filed with the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE and NSE as per the provisions of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, Further, in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company shall file the copy of this Letter
of Offer with the SEBI at its office located at SEBI Bhavan, Plot No. C4-A, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051, Maharashtra, India and through the SEBI intermediary portal at
https://siportal.sebi.gov.in  in terms of the SEBI  circular  bearing reference  number
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SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 dated January 19, 2018, for the purpose of their information and
dissemination on its website.

Mechanism for Redressal of Investor Grievances

Our Company has adequate arrangements for the redressal of investor complaints in compliance with the corporate
governance requirements under the SEBI Listing Regulations. We have been registered with the SEBI Complaints
Redress System (SCORES) as required by the SEBI Circular no. CIR/OIAE/2/2011 dated June 3, 2011.
Consequently, investor grievances are also tracked online by our Company through the SCORES mechanism.

In compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India Master Circular for Online Dispute Resolution
(“ODR”) bearing reference number SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/145 dated July 31, 2023 (“SEBI
ODR Master Circular”) we have completed the registration process of our Company on the Smart Market
Approach for Resolution through ODR Portal (‘SMART ODR”). Further we undertake to resolve and take action
on the complaints received in respect of the Issue expeditiously and satisfactorily and in accordance with the
timelines provided under the SEBI ODR Master Circular and Securities and Exchange Board of India Circular
bearing reference number SEBI/HO/OIAE/IGRD/CIR/P/2023/156 dated September 20, 2023. The Company has
authorized its Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer to redress all complaints in relation to the Issue
including any complaints regarding the post—issue activities of the Issue such as allotment, refund, and dispatch.

Our Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee which meets at least once a year and as and when
required. Its terms of reference include considering and resolving grievances of shareholders and effective
exercise of voting rights. All investor grievances received by us have been handled by the Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer.

The Investor complaints received by our Company are generally disposed of within 15 days from the date of
receipt of the complaint.

The average time taken by the Registrar to the Issue for attending to routine grievances will be within 30 (thirty)
days from the date of receipt. In case of non-routine grievances where verification at other agencies is involved,
it would be the endeavour of the Registrar to the Issue to attend to them as expeditiously as possible. We undertake
to resolve the investor grievances in a time bound manner.

Investor Grievances arising out of this Issue:

Any investor grievances arising out of the Issue will be handled by the Registrar to the Issue i.e. MUFG Intime
India Private Limited. The agreement between the Company and the Registrar provides for a period for which
records shall be retained by the Registrar in order to enable the Registrar to redress grievances of Investors.

Investors may contact the Registrar or our Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue/post-Issue related matter.
All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar, with a copy to the SCSBs
(in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s), e-
mail ID of the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat account number, serial number of the Application
Form, number of Rights Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked, ASBA Account number and the
Designated Branch of the SCSBs where the Application Form, or the plain paper application, as the case
may be, was submitted by the ASBA Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip. For
details on the ASBA process, please see “Terms of the Issue” on page 170.

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue at:

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park,

LBS Marg, Surya Nagar, Gandhi Nagar

Vikhroli (West)

Mumbai — 400 083

Mabharashtra, India.

Telephone: +91 810 811 4949

E-mail: praxis.rights2025@ in.mpms.mufg.com

Investor grievance E-mail: praxis.rights2025@ in.mpms.mufg.com

Website: https://in.mpms.mufe.com/
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Contact Person: Shanti Gopalkrishnan
SEBI Registration No.: INR000004058

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer at the below mentioned address for any
pre-Issue/ post-Issue related matters such as on-receipt of Letters of Allotment / demat credit/ Refund Orders etc.

The contact details of the Company Secretary are as follows:
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer:

Charu Srivastava

2nd Floor, Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar
Off Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Near Talav
Jogeshwari East, Mumbai — 400 060
Telephone: +91 22 4518 4399

E-mail: investorrelations@praxisretail.in
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SECTION VII - ISSUE RELATED INFORMATION
TERMS OF THE ISSUE

This section is for the information of the Investors proposing to apply in this Issue. Investors should carefully read
the provisions contained in this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the
Application Form, before submitting the Application Form. Our Company and the Lead Manager are not liable
for any amendments or modifications or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date
of this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigation and ensure that the
Application Form is accurately filled up in accordance with instructions provided therein and this Letter of Offer.
Unless otherwise permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI ICDR Master Circular,
Investors proposing to apply in this Issue can apply only through ASBA or by mechanism as disclosed in this
Letter of Offer.

Investors are requested to note that application in this Issue can only be made through ASBA facility. For
guidance on the application process through ASBA and resolution of difficulties faced by investors, you are advised
to read the frequently asked question on the website of the Registrar at www.in.mpms.mufg.com.

The Rights Entitlement on the Equity Shares, the ownership of which is currently under dispute and including any
court proceedings or are currently under transmission or are held in a demat suspense account and for which our
Company has withheld the dividend, shall be held in abeyance and the Application Form along with the Rights
Entitlement Letter in relation to these Rights Entitlements shall not be dispatched pending resolution of the dispute
or court proceedings or completion of the transmission or pending their release from the demat suspense account.
On submission of such documents /records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of the Equity Shares
with regard to these cases on or prior to the Issue Closing Date, to the satisfaction of our Company, our Company
shall make available the Rights Entitlement on such Equity Shares to the identified Eligible Equity Shareholder.
The identified Eligible Equity Shareholder shall be entitled to subscribe to Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue
during the Issue Period with respect to these Rights Entitlement and subject to the same terms and conditions as
the Eligible Equity Shareholder.

Overview

This Issue is proposed to be undertaken on a rights basis and is subject to the terms and conditions contained in
this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, and the
Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of our Company, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the FEMA, the FEMA Rules, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Listing Regulations, the SEBI
ICDR Master Circular and the guidelines, notifications, circulars and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government
of India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time to time, approvals, if any, from RBI or other
regulatory authorities, the terms of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with Stock Exchanges
and the terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment Advice.

I DISPATCH AND AVAILABILITY OF ISSUE MATERIALS

Pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other applicable laws, the Rights
Entitlements will be credited to the demat account of the Eligible Equity Shareholders who are Equity
Shareholders as on the Record Date, however, the Issue Materials will be sent/ dispatched only to such
Eligible Equity Shareholders, who have provided an Indian address to our Company and only such
Eligible Equity Shareholders are permitted to participate in the Issue. The credit of Rights Entitlement
does not constitute an offer, invitation to offer or solicitation for participation in the Issue, whether
directly or indirectly, and only dispatch of the Issue Material shall constitute an offer, invitation or
solicitation for participation in the Issue in accordance with the terms of the Issue Material. Further, receipt
of the Issue Materials (including by way of electronic means) will not constitute an offer, invitation to or
solicitation by anyone in (i) the United States or (ii) any jurisdiction or in any circumstances in which
such an offer, invitation or solicitation is unlawful or not authorized or to any person to whom it is
unlawful to make such an offer, invitation or solicitation. In those circumstances, this Letter of Offer and
any other Issue Materials must be treated as sent for information only and should not be acted upon for
subscription to Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or re-distributed, in part or full.
Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Issue Materials should not distribute or send the Issue
Materials in or into any jurisdiction where to do so, would or might contravene local securities laws or
regulations, or would subject our Company or its affiliates or the Lead Manager or their affiliates to any
filing or registration requirement (other than in India). If Issue Material is received by any person in any

170


http://www.in.mpms.mufg.com/

such jurisdiction or the United States, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares.

The Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue
material will be sent/ dispatched only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian
address to our Company. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail
address, this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement
Letter and other Issue material will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible
Equity Shareholders have not provided their valid e-mail address, then the Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be physically dispatched,
on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Further, this Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided their Indian address and who have made a request in this regard.

Investors can access this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form
(provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares under
applicable laws) on the websites of:

@) our Company at www.praxisretail.in ;

(i1) the Registrar at https://in.mpms.mufg.com/;

(iii) the Lead Manager, at www.primesec.com and www.newberrycapitals.in;
(iv) the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com.

To update the respective Indian addresses/e-mail addresses/phone or mobile numbers in the
records maintained by the Registrar or by our Company, Eligible Equity Shareholders should
visit www.in.mpms.mufg.com.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements
from the website of the Registrar (i.e., www.in.mpms.mufg.com) by entering their DP ID and Client
ID or folio number (for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as
on Record Date) and PAN. The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our
Company at www.praxisretail.in .

Please note that neither our Company nor the Registrar nor the Lead Manager shall be
responsible for not sending the physical copies of Issue materials, including this Letter of Offer,
the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form or delay in
the receipt of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or
the Application Form attributable to non-availability of the e- mail addresses of Eligible Equity
Shareholders or electronic transmission delays or failures, or if the Application Forms or the
Rights Entitlement Letters are delayed or misplaced in the transit.

The distribution of this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the
issue of Rights Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is
restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. No action has been, or will be, taken
to permit this Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except that this
Letter of Offer is being filed with SEBI and the Stock Exchanges. Accordingly, Rights Equity Shares
may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Issue Materials may not be distributed, in any
jurisdiction, except in accordance with and as permitted under the legal requirements applicable in such
jurisdiction. Receipt of the Issue Materials will not constitute an offer, invitation to or solicitation by
anyone in any jurisdiction or in any circumstances in which such an offer, invitation or solicitation is
unlawful or not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer, invitation or
solicitation. In those circumstances, such Issue Materials must be treated as sent for information only
and should not be acted upon for making an Application and should not be copied or re-distributed.

Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter or the Application Form should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights Equity
Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer,
the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form in or into any jurisdiction where to do so, would,
or might, contravene local securities laws or regulations or would subject our Company or its affiliates
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or the Lead Manager or their respective affiliates to any filing or registration requirement (other than in
India). If this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the
Application Form is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they
must not seek to make an Application or acquire the Rights Entitlements referred to in this Letter of
Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form. Any person
who purchases or renounces the Rights Entitlements or makes an application to acquire the Rights
Equity Shares offered in the Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented and warranted that such
person is eligible to subscribe and authorized to purchase or sell the Rights Entitlements or acquire the
Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in such person’s
jurisdiction and India, without requirement for our Company or our affiliates or the Lead Manager or
their respective affiliates to make any filing or registration (other than in India).

Our Company is undertaking the Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will
send this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application
Form and other applicable Issue materials primarily to email addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders
who have provided a valid email address and an Indian address to our Company.

This Letter of Offer will be provided, primarily through e-mail, by the Registrar on behalf of our
Company or the Lead Manager to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their
Indian addresses to our Company and who make a request in this regard.

Neither our Company, nor any person acting on behalf of our Company, will accept a subscription or
renunciation or purchase of the Equity Shares and/ or Rights Entitlements from any person, or the agent
of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company, or any person acting on behalf of our Company,
has reason to believe is, in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an
Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should be postmarked in the United States,
electronically transmitted from the United States or otherwise dispatched from the United States or from
any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer of securities under this Letter of Offer,
and all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares
in registered form must provide an address for registration of these Equity Shares in India. Our
Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will dispatch,
only through email, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form and other applicable Issue
materials only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company.

Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements or Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared,
warranted and agreed, by accepting the delivery of this Letter of Offer, that it is not and that at the time
of subscribing for the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States, and
is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations.

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.

The Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “US SEC”), any state securities commission in the United
States or any other US regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or
endorsed the merits of the offering of the Rights Entitlements, the Rights Equity Shares or the accuracy
or adequacy of this Letter of Offer. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United

States.
II. PROCESS OF MAKING AN APPLICATION IN THE ISSUE
. In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI ICDR Master

Circular and the ASBA Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in
this Issue are mandatorily required to use the ASBA process. Investors should carefully
read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making their Application
through ASBA.

The Application Form can be used by the Eligible Equity Shareholders as well as the

Renouncees to make Applications in this Issue basis the Rights Entitlement credited in their
respective demat accounts.
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Please note that one single Application Form shall be used by Investors to make Applications
for all Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat account. In case of Investors who
have provided details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, such
Investors will have to apply for the Rights Equity Shares from the same demat account in which
they are holding the Rights Entitlements and in case of multiple demat accounts, the Investors
are required to submit a separate Application Form for each demat account.

Investors may apply for the Rights Equity Shares by submitting the Application Form to the
Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the
SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application
Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts.

Investors are also advised to ensure that the Application Form is correctly filled up stating
therein that the ASBA Account in which an amount equivalent to the amount payable on
Application as stated in the Application Form will be blocked by the SCSB.

Applicants should carefully fill-in their depository account details and PAN in the
Application Form or while submitting application through online/electronic Application
through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB). Please note that
incorrect depository account details or PAN or Application Forms without depository
account details shall be treated as incomplete and shall be rejected. For details, see “-
Grounds for Technical Rejection” on page 179. Our Company, the Lead Manager, the
Registrar and the SCSBs shall not be liable for any incomplete or incorrect demat details
provided by the Applicants.

Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Investors may choose
to accept the offer to participate in this Issue by making plain paper Applications. Please note
that SCSBs shall accept such applications only if all details required for making the application
as per the SEBI ICDR Regulations are specified in the plain paper application and that Eligible
Equity Shareholders making an application in this Issue by way of plain paper applications
shall not be permitted to renounce any portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, see “-
Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA
process” on page 175.

Options available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders

The Rights Entitlement Letter will clearly indicate the number of Rights Equity Shares that the
Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled to in the Issue.

If the Eligible Equity Shareholder applies in this Issue, then such Eligible Equity Shareholder
can:

(1) apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements; or

(i1) apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights
Entitlements (without renouncing the other part); or

(iii) apply for Rights Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements and
renounce the other part of its Rights Entitlements; or

(@iv) apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements
and apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares; or

) renounce its Rights Entitlements in full.
Making of an Application through the ASBA process

An Investor, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have
an ASBA enabled bank account with SCSBs, prior to making the Application. Investors desiring
to make an Application in this Issue through ASBA process, may submit the Application Form
in physical mode to the Designated Branches of the SCSB or online/ electronic Application
through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB
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to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts.

Investors should ensure that they have correctly submitted the Application Form and have
provided an authorisation to the SCSB, via the electronic mode, for blocking funds in the
ASBA Account equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in the Application Form, as
the case may be, at the time of submission of the Application.

For the list of banks which have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process,
please refer to
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34.

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of the SEBI circular
bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012, within the periods
stipulated therein, Applications may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs.
Further, in terms of the SEBI circular bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated
January 2, 2013, it is clarified that for making Applications by SCSBs on their own account
using ASBA facility, each such SCSB should have a separate account in its own name with any
other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used solely for the purpose of making
an Application in this Issue and clear demarcated funds should be available in such account
for such an Application.

The Lead Manager, our Company, their directors, their employees, affiliates, associates and
their respective directors and officers and the Registrar shall not take any responsibility for
acts, mistakes, errors, omissions and commissions etc., in relation to Applications accepted by
SCSBs, Applications uploaded by SCSBs, Applications accepted but not uploaded by SCSBs
or Applications accepted and uploaded without blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts.

Investors applying through the ASBA facility should carefully read the provisions applicable
to such Applications before making their Application through the ASBA process.

Do’s for Investors applying through ASBA:

(a) Ensure that the necessary details are filled in the Application Form including the details
ofthe ASBA Account.

(b) Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant, PAN and beneficiary
account are correct and the beneficiary account is activated as the Rights Equity
Shares will be Allotted in the dematerialized form only.

() Ensure that the Applications are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs
and details of the correct bank account have been provided in the Application.

(d) Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Rights Equity Shares
(including Additional Rights Equity Shares) applied for} X {Application Money of
Equity Shares}) available in ASBA Account mentioned in the Application Form
before submitting the Application to the respective Designated Branch of the SCSB.

(e) Ensure that you have authorised the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the total
amount payable on application mentioned in the Application Form, in the ASBA
Account, of which details are provided in the Application Form and have signed the
same.

® Ensure that you have a bank account with SCSBs providing ASBA facility in your
location and the Application is made through that SCSB providing ASBA facility in
such location.

(2) Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the
SCSB for your submission of the Application Form in physical form or plain paper
Application.

(h) Ensure that the name(s) given in the Application Form is exactly the same as the

name(s) in which the beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. In
case the Application Form is submitted in joint names, ensure that the beneficiary
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account is also held in same joint names and such names are in the same sequence in
which they appear in the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter.

1) Ensure that your PAN is linked with Aadhaar and you are in compliance with CBDT
notification dated Feb 13, 2020 read with press release dated June 25, 2021 and
September 17, 2021.

Don’ts for Investors applying through ASBA:

(a) Do not apply if you are not eligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws
applicable to your jurisdiction.

(b) Do not apply if you have not provided an Indian address.

(c) Do not submit the Application Form after you have submitted a plain paper

Application to a Designated Branch of the SCSB or vice versa.

(d) Do not send your physical Application to the Lead Manager, the Registrar, the
Bankers to the Issue (assuming that such Bankers to the Issue are not SCSB’s), a
branch of the SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB or our Company;
instead submit the same to a Designated Branch of the SCSB only.

(e) Do not instruct the SCSBs to unblock the funds blocked under the ASBA process
upon making the Application.

® Do not submit Application Form using third party ASBA account.

(2) Avoiding applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/restriction in making
any physical Application.

(h) Do not submit Multiple Application Forms.

Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA
process

An Eligible Equity Shareholder in India who is eligible to apply under the ASBA process may
make an Application to subscribe to this Issue on plain paper in terms of Regulation 78 of SEBI
ICDR Regulations in case of non-receipt of Application Form as detailed above. In such cases
of non-receipt of the Application Form through physical delivery (where applicable) and the
Eligible Equity Shareholder not being in a position to obtain it from any other source may make
an Application to subscribe to this Issue on plain paper with the same details as per the
Application Form that is available on the website of the Registrar, Stock Exchanges or the
Lead Manager. An Eligible Equity Shareholder shall submit the plain paper Application to the
Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money in the
said bank account maintained with the same SCSB. Applications on plain paper will not be
accepted from any Eligible Equity Shareholder who has not provided an Indian address.

Please note that in terms of Regulation 78 of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Eligible Equity
Shareholders who are making the Application on plain paper shall not be entitled to renounce
their Rights Entitlements and should not utilize the Application Form for any purpose
including renunciation even if it is received subsequently.

The Application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint
holders, in the same order and as per specimen recorded with his/her bank, must reach the

office of the Designated Branch of the SCSB before the Issue Closing Date and should contain
the following particulars:

L. Name of our Company, being Praxis Home Retail Limited;

2. Name and address of the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders (in the
same order and as per specimen recorded with our Company or the Depository);

3. Folio number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in
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physical form as on Record Date)/DP and Client ID;

4. Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents
of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, PAN of the Eligible Equity
Shareholder and for each Eligible Equity Shareholder in case of joint names,
irrespective of the total value of the Equity Shares applied for pursuant to this Issue;

5. Number of Equity Shares held as on Record Date;

6. Allotment option — only dematerialised form;

7. Number of Rights Equity Shares entitled to;

8. Number of Rights Equity Shares applied for within the Rights Entitlements;

9. Number of Additional Rights Equity Shares applied for, if any (applicable only if
entire Rights Entitlements have been applied for);

10. Total number of Rights Equity Shares applied for;

1. Total Application amount paid at the rate of ¥ 10/- per Rights Equity Share;

12. Details of the ASBA Account such as the SCSB account number, name, address and

branch of the relevant SCSB;

13. In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application with an
Indian address, details of the NRE / FCNR/NRO account such as the account number,
name, address and branch of the SCSB with which the account is maintained;

14. Authorisation to the Designated Branch of the SCSB to block an amount equivalent
to the Application Money in the ASBA Account;

15. Signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder (in case of joint holders, to appear in the
same sequence and order as they appear in the records of the SCSB); and

In cases where Multiple Application Forms are submitted for Applications pertaining to Rights
Entitlements credited to the same demat account including cases where an Investor submits
Application Forms along with a plain paper Application, such Applications shall be liable to
be rejected.

Investors are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. Failure to do so could result in
an Application being rejected, with our Company, the Lead Manager and the Registrar not
having any liability to the Investor. The plain paper Application format will be available on the
website of the Registrar at www.in.mpms.mufg.com.

Our Company, the Lead Manager and the Registrar shall not be responsible if the Applications
are not uploaded by the SCSB or funds are not blocked in the Investors” ASBA Accounts on
or before the Issue Closing Date.

Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in
Pphysical form

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI ICDR
Master Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall
be made in dematerialised form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding
Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity
Shares in this Issue are advised to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar or
our Company at least two clear Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the
credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day before
the Issue Closing Date.

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those Eligible Equity Shareholders,
among others, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and/or whose demat account details
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are not available with our Company or the Registrar, shall be credited in a demat suspense
escrow account opened by our Company.

Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and
who have opened their demat accounts after the Record Date, shall adhere to following
procedure for participating in this Issue:

(a) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall visit
https://web.in.mpms.mufg.com/RIssue/RIssue_Register.aspx?ReqType=dpi to
upload their self- attested client master sheet of their demat account and also provide
the other details as required, no later than two Clear Working Days prior to the Issue
Closing Date;

(b) The Registrar shall, after verifying the details of such demat account, transfer the Rights
Entitlements of such Eligible Equity Shareholders to their demat accounts at least one
day before the Issue Closing Date; and

(c) The remaining procedure for Application shall be same as set out in the section
entitled “- Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper
under ASBA process” on page 175.

Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on the
Record Date will not be allowed to renounce their Rights Entitlements in the Issue. However,
such Eligible Equity Sharcholders, where the dematerialized Rights Entitlements are
transferred from the suspense escrow demat account to the respective demat accounts within
prescribed timelines, can apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares while submitting the
Application through ASBA process.

Application for Additional Rights Equity Shares

Investors are eligible to apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their Rights
Entitlements, provided that they are eligible to apply for Equity Shares under applicable law
and they have applied for all the Rights Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements
without renouncing them in whole or in part. Where the number of Additional Rights Equity
Shares applied for exceeds the number available for Allotment, the Allotment would be made
as per the Basis of Allotment finalised in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange.
Applications for Additional Rights Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment shall be
made in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in the manner as set out in the
section entitled “- Basis of Allotment” on page 192.

Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for
Additional Rights Equity Shares. Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity
Shareholders cannot apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares unless regulatory
approvals are submitted.

Additional general instructions for Investors in relation to making of an Application

(a) Please read this Letter of Offer carefully to understand the Application process and
applicable settlement process.

(b) Please read the instructions on the Application Form sent to you. Application should
be complete in all respects. The Application Form found incomplete with regard to
any of the particulars required to be given therein, and/or which are not completed in
conformity with the terms of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form are liable to be rejected. The
Application Form must be filled in English.

(©) In case of non-receipt of Application Form, Application can be made on plain paper
mentioning all necessary details as mentioned under the section entitled “Making of
an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA process”
on page 175.
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Applications should be submitted to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or made
online/electronic through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB)
for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application
in their respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the Issue Closing Date,
Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard
Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchanges.

Applications should not be submitted to the Bankers to the Issue, our Company or
the Registrar or the Lead Manager.

All Applicants, and in the case of Application in joint names, each of the joint
Applicants, should mention their PAN allotted under the Income-Tax Act, irrespective
of the amount of the Application. Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or
the State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the
courts, Applications without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be
rejected. With effect from August 16,2010, the demat accounts for Investors for which
PAN details have not been verified shall be “suspended for credit” and no Allotment
and credit of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue shall be made into the
accounts of such Investors.

Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, bank
account details and occupation (“Demographic Details”) are updated, true and
correct, in all respects. Investors applying under this Issue should note that on the
basis of name of the Investors, DP ID and Client ID provided by them in the
Application Form or the plain paper Applications, as the case may be, the Registrar
will obtain Demographic Details from the Depository. Therefore, Investors applying
under this Issue should carefully fill in their Depository Account details in the
Application. These Demographic Details would be used for all correspondence with
such Investors including mailing of the letters intimating unblocking of bank account
of the respective Investor and/or refund. The Demographic Details given by the
Investors in the Application Form would not be used for any other purposes by the
Registrar. Hence, Investors are advised to update their Demographic Details as
provided to their Depository Participants. The Allotment Advice and the intimation
on unblocking of ASBA Account or refund (if any) would be mailed to the address
of the Investor as per the Indian address provided to our Company or the
Registrar or Demographic Details received from the Depositories. The Registrar
will give instructions to the SCSBs for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account
to the extent Rights Equity Shares are not Allotted to such Investor. Please note
that any such delay shall be at the sole risk of the Investors and none of our
Company, the SCSBs, Registrar or the Lead Manager shall be liable to
compensate the Investor for any losses caused due to any such delay or be liable
to pay any interest for such delay. In case no corresponding record is available
with the Depositories that match three parameters, (a) names of the Investors
(including the order of names of joint holders), (b) DP ID, and (c¢) Client ID, then
such Application Forms are liable to be rejected.

By signing the Application Forms, Investors would be deemed to have authorised the
Depositories to provide, upon request, to the Registrar, the required Demographic
Details as available on its records.

For physical Applications through ASBA at Designated Branches of SCSB,
signatures should be either in English or Hindi or in any other language specified in
the Eighth Schedule to the Constitution of India. Signatures other than in any such
language or thumb impression must be

attested by a Notary Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under his/her
official seal. The Investors must sign the Application as per the specimen signature
recorded with the SCSB.

Investors should provide correct DP ID and Client ID/ folio number (for Eligible

Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date)
while submitting the Application. Such DP ID and Client ID/ folio number should
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match the demat account details in the records available with Company and/or
Registrar, failing which such Application is liable to be rejected. Investor will be
solely responsible for any error or inaccurate detail provided in the Application. Our
Company, the Lead Manager, SCSBs or the Registrar will not be liable for any such
rejections.

In case of joint holders and physical Applications through ASBA process, all joint
holders must sign the relevant part of the Application Form in the same order and as
per the specimen signature(s) recorded with the SCSB. In case of joint Applicants,
reference, if any, will be made in the first Applicant’s name and all communication
will be addressed to the first Applicant.

All communication in connection with Application for the Rights Equity Shares,
including any change in contact details of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be
addressed to the Registrar prior to the date of Allotment in this Issue quoting the name
of the first/sole Applicant, folio number (for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold
Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date)/DP ID and Client ID and
Application Form number, as applicable. In case of any change in contact details of
the Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Eligible Equity Shareholders should also send
the intimation for such change to the respective depository participant, or to our
Company or the Registrar in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity
Shares in physical form.

Investors are required to ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for
by them does not exceed the prescribed limits under the applicable law.

Do not apply if you are ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws
applicable to your jurisdiction.

Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be
rejected on this ground.

Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making
any physical Application.

Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order.
Do not submit Multiple Applications.

An Applicant being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of RBI and
in order to apply in this Issue as an incorporated non-resident must do so in accordance
with the FDI Policy and the FEMA Rules, as amended.

Ensure that your PAN is linked with Aadhaar and you are in compliance with CBDT
notification dated February 13, 2020 and press release dated June 25, 2021 and
September 17, 2021.

Grounds for Technical Rejection

Applications made in this Issue are liable to be rejected on the following grounds:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

DP ID and Client ID mentioned in Application does not match with the DP ID and
Client ID records available with the Registrar.

Details of PAN mentioned in the Application does not match with the PAN records
available with the Registrar.

Sending an Application to our Company, the Lead Manager, Registrar, Bankers to
the Issue, to a branch of a SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB.

Insufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account with the SCSB for blocking the
Application Money.
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(1)

(s)

Funds in the ASBA Account whose details are mentioned in the Application Form
having been frozen pursuant to regulatory orders.

Account holder not signing the Application or declaration mentioned therein.

Submission of more than one Application Form for Rights Entitlements available in
a particular demat account.

Multiple Application Forms, including cases where an Investor submits Application
Forms along with a plain paper Application.

Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN (except for Applications on behalf of
the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed
by the courts).

Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act,
1872, except Applications by minors having valid demat accounts as per the
Demographic Details provided by the Depositories.

Applications by SCSB on own account, other than through an ASBA Account in its
own name with any other SCSB.

Application Forms which are not submitted by the Investors within the time periods
prescribed in the Application Form and this Letter of Offer.

Physical Application Forms not duly signed by the sole or joint Investors, as
applicable.

Application Forms accompanied by stock invest, outstation cheques, post-dated
cheques, money order, postal order or outstation demand drafts.

If an Investor is (a) debarred by SEBI; or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has
provided any interim relief then failure to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing
the Investor to subscribe to their Rights Entitlements.

Applications which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in,
electronically transmitted from or dispatched from jurisdictions where the offer and
sale of the Rights Equity Shares is not permitted under laws of such jurisdictions; (ii)
does not include the relevant certifications set out in the Application Form, including
to the effect that the person submitting and/or renouncing the Application Form is
outside the United States, and is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares
under applicable securities laws and is complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable
to such person in connection with this Issue; and our Company shall not be bound to
issue or allot any Rights Equity Shares in respect of any such Application Form.

Applications which have evidence of being executed or made in contravention of
applicable securities laws.

Application from Investors that are residing in U.S. address as per the depository
records (unless the Application Form is submitted by a person who is both an U.S.
QIB and U.S. Qualified Purchaser in the United States).

Applicants not having the requisite approvals to make Application in the Issue.

IT ISMANDATORY FOR ALL THE INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE TO
APPLY THROUGH THE ASBA PROCESS, TO RECEIVE THEIR RIGHTS EQUITY
SHARES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY
ACCOUNT/CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY
THE INVESTOR AS ON THE RECORD DATE. ALL INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER
THIS ISSUE SHOULD MENTION THEIR DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT’S NAME, DP ID
AND BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER/FOLIO NUMBER IN THE APPLICATION
FORM. INVESTORS MUST ENSURE THAT THE NAME GIVEN IN THE APPLICATION
FORM IS EXACTLY THE SAME AS THE NAME IN WHICH THE DEPOSITORY
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ACCOUNT IS HELD. IN CASE THE APPLICATION FORM IS SUBMITTED IN JOINT
NAMES, IT SHOULD BE ENSURED THAT THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS ALSO
HELD IN THE SAME JOINT NAMES AND ARE IN THE SAME SEQUENCE IN WHICH
THEY APPEAR IN THE APPLICATION FORM OR PLAIN PAPER APPLICATIONS, AS
THE CASE MAY BE.

Multiple Applications

In case where multiple Applications are made using same demat account in respect of the same
set of Rights Entitlement, such Applications shall be liable to be rejected. A separate
Application can be made in respect of Rights Entitlements in each demat account of the
Investors and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. Similarly, a
separate Application can be made against Equity Shares held in dematerialized form and
Equity Shares held in physical form, and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple
applications. Further supplementary Applications in relation to further Rights Equity Shares
with/without using additional Rights Entitlement will not be treated as multiple application. A
separate Application can be made in respect of each scheme of a mutual fund registered with
SEBI and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. For details, see “-
Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds” on page 182.

In cases where Multiple Application Forms are submitted, including cases where (a) an
Investor submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application or (b) multiple plain
paper Applications (¢) or multiple applications through ASBA, such Applications may be
treated as multiple applications and are liable to be rejected or all the balance shares other than
Rights Entitlement will be considered as additional shares applied for, other than multiple
applications submitted by any of our Promoter or members of our Promoter Group to meet the
minimum subscription requirements applicable to this Issue.

Procedure for Applications by certain categories of Investors
Procedure for Applications by FPIs

In terms of applicable FEMA Rules and the SEBI FPI Regulations, investments by FPIs in the
Equity Shares is subject to certain limits, i.e., the individual holding of an FPI (including its
investor group (which means multiple entities registered as foreign portfolio investors and
directly and indirectly having common ownership of more than 50% of common control)) shall
be below 10% of our post-Issue Equity Share capital. In case the total holding of an FPI or
investor group increases beyond 10% of the total paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company,
on a fully diluted basis or 10% or more of the paid-up value of any series of debentures or
preference shares or share warrants that may be issued by our Company, the total investment
made by the FPI or investor group will be re-classified as FDI subject to the conditions as
specified by SEBI and RBI in this regard. Further, the aggregate limit of all FPIs investments is
up to the sectoral cap applicable to the sector in which our Company operates.

FPIs are permitted to participate in this Issue subject to compliance with conditions and
restrictions which may be specified by the Government from time to time. FPIs who wish to
participate in the Issue are advised to use the Application Form for non-residents. Subject to
compliance with all applicable Indian laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals in
terms of Regulation 21 of the SEBI FPI Regulations, an FPI may issue, subscribe to or
otherwise deal in offshore derivative instruments (as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations
as any instrument, by whatever name called, which is issued overseas by an FPI against
securities held by it that are listed or proposed to be listed on any recognised stock exchange in
India, as its underlying) directly or indirectly, only in the event (i) such offshore derivative
instruments are issued only to persons registered as Category I FPI under the SEBI FPI
Regulations; (ii) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons who are
eligible for registration as Category I FPIs (where an entity has an investment manager who is
from the Financial Action Task Force member country, the investment manager shall not be
required to be registered as a Category I FPI); (iii) such offshore derivative instruments are
issued after compliance with ‘know your client’ norms; and (iv) compliance with other
conditions as may be prescribed by SEBI.
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An FPI issuing offshore derivative instruments is also required to ensure that any transfer of
offshore derivative instruments issued by or on its behalf, is carried out subject to inter alia the
following conditions:

(a) such offshore derivative instruments are transferred only to persons in accordance
with the SEBI FPI Regulations; and

(b) prior consent of the FPI is obtained for such transfer, except when the persons to whom
the offshore derivative instruments are to be transferred to are pre — approved by the
FPL

Procedure for Applications by AlFs, FVCls, VCFs and FDI route

The SEBI VCF Regulations and the SEBI FVCI Regulations prescribe, among other things,
the investment restrictions on VCFs and FVCIs registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI AIF
Regulations prescribe, among other things, the investment restrictions on AIFs.

As per the SEBI VCF Regulations and SEBI FVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVCls are not
permitted to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by
VCFs or FVCIs will not be accepted in this Issue. Further, venture capital funds registered as
Category I AIFs, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, are not permitted to invest in listed
companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by venture capital funds
registered as category I AIFs, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, will not be accepted in
this Issue. Other categories of AIFs are permitted to apply in this Issue subject to compliance
with the SEBI AIF Regulations. Such AIFs having bank accounts with SCSBs that are
providing ASBA in cities / centres where such AlIFs are located are mandatorily required to
make use of the ASBA facility. Otherwise, applications of such AIFs are liable for rejection.

Procedure for Applications by NRIs

Investments by NRIs are governed by the FEMA Rules. Applications will not be accepted from
NRIs that are ineligible to participate in this Issue under applicable securities laws.

As per the FEMA Rules, an NRI or Overseas Citizen of India (“OCI”) may purchase or sell
capital instruments of a listed Indian company on repatriation basis, on a recognised stock
exchange in India, subject to the conditions, inter alia, that the total holding by any individual
NRI or OCI will not exceed 5% of the total paid- up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or
should not exceed 5% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or
share warrants issued by an Indian company and the total holdings of all NRIs and OCIs put
together will not exceed 10% of the total paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or shall
not exceed 10% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share
warrants. The aggregate ceiling of 10% may be raised to 24%, if a special resolution to that
effect is passed by the general body of the Indian company.

Further, in accordance with press note 3 of 2020, the FDI Policy has been amended to state that
all investments by entities incorporated in a country which shares land border with India or
where the beneficial owner of an investment into India is situated in or is a citizen of any such
country (“Restricted Investors”), will require prior approval of the Government of India. It is
not clear from the press note whether or not an issue of the Rights Equity Shares to Restricted
Investors will also require prior approval of the Government of India and each Investor should
seek independent legal advice about its ability to participate in the Issue. In the event such
prior approval has been obtained, the Investor shall intimate our Company and the Registrar
about such approval within the Issue Period.

Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds

A separate application can be made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund
registered with SEBI and such applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. The
applications made by asset management companies or custodians of a mutual fund should
clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which the application is being made.

No Mutual Fund scheme shall invest more than 10% of its net asset value in equity shares or
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equity related instruments of any single company provided that the limit of 10% shall not be
applicable for investments in case of index funds or exchange traded funded or sector or
industry specific schemes. No Mutual Fund under all its schemes should own more than 10%
of any company’s paid-up share capital carrying voting rights.

Procedure for Applications by Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Companies
(“NBFC-SI"’)

In case of an application made by NBFC-SI registered with RBI, (a) the certificate of
registration issued by RBI under Section 451A of RBI Act, 1934 and (b) net worth certificate
from its statutory auditors or any independent chartered accountant based on the last audited
financial statements is required to be attached to the application.

Last date for Application

The last date for submission of the duly filled in the Application Form or a plain paper
Application is Monday, August 18, 2025, i.e., Issue Closing Date. Our Board or any committee
thereof may extend the said date for such period as it may determine from time to time, subject
to the Issue Period not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue
Opening Date).

If the Application Form is not submitted with an SCSB, uploaded with the Stock Exchanges
and the Application Money is not blocked with the SCSB, on or before the Issue Closing Date
or such date as may be extended by our Board or any committee thereof, the invitation to offer
contained in this Letter of Offer shall be deemed to have been declined and our Board or any
committee thereof shall be at liberty to dispose of the Equity Shares hereby offered, as set out
in the section entitled “- Basis of Allotment” on page 192.

Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, Applications through ASBA process will be
uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the
Stock Exchanges.

Please ensure that the Application Form and necessary details are filled in. In place of
Application number, Investors can mention the reference number of the e-mail received from
Registrar informing about their Rights Entitlement or last eight digits of the demat account.
Alternatively, SCSBs may mention their internal reference number in place of application
number.

Withdrawal of Application

An Investor who has applied in this Issue may withdraw their Application at any time during
Issue Period by approaching the SCSB where application is submitted. However, no Investor
applying through ASBA facility may withdraw their Application post 5.00 p.m. (Indian
Standard Time) on the Issue Closing Date.

Disposal of Application and Application Money

No acknowledgment will be issued for the Application Money received by our Company.
However, the Designated Branches of the SCSBs receiving the Application Form will
acknowledge its receipt by stamping and returning the acknowledgment slip at the bottom of
each Application Form.

Our Board or a committee thereof reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or
reject any Application, in whole or in part, and in either case without assigning any reason
thereto.

In case an Application is rejected in full, the whole of the Application Money will be unblocked
in the respective ASBA Accounts, in case of Applications through ASBA. Wherever an
Application is rejected in part, the balance of Application Money, if any, after adjusting any
money due on Rights Equity Shares Allotted, will be refunded / unblocked in the respective
bank accounts from which Application Money was received / ASBA Accounts of the Investor
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within a period of 4 days from the Issue Closing Date. In case of failure to do so, our Company
shall pay interest at such rate and within such time as specified under applicable law.

For further instructions, please read the Application Form carefully.

II1. CREDIT OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS IN DEMAT ACCOUNTS OF ELIGIBLE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS

. Rights Entitlements

As your name appears as a beneficial owner in respect of the issued and paid-up Equity Shares
held in dematerialised form or appears in the register of members of our Company as an Eligible
Equity Shareholder in respect of our Equity Shares held in physical form, as on the Record Date,
you may be entitled to subscribe to the number of Rights Equity Shares as set out in the Rights
Entitlement Letter.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements
from the website of the Registrar (i.e., www.in.mpms.mufg.com) by entering their DP ID and
Client ID or folio number (for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical
form as on Record Date) and PAN. The link for the same shall also be available on the website
of our Company (i.e., www.praxisretail.in).

In this regard, our Company has made necessary arrangements with NSDL and CDSL for
crediting of the Rights Entitlements to the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders
in a dematerialized form. A separate ISIN for the Rights Entitlements has also been generated
which is ISIN: INE546Y20030. The said ISIN shall remain frozen (for debit) until the Issue
Opening Date. The said ISIN shall be suspended for transfer by the Depositories post the Issue
Closing Date.

Additionally, our Company will submit the details of the total Rights Entitlements credited to
the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Demat Suspense Account to
the Stock Exchanges after completing the corporate action. The details of the Rights
Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such
respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar after keying in their
respective details along with other security control measures implemented thereat.

Rights Entitlements shall be credited to the respective demat accounts of Eligible Equity
Shareholders before the Issue Opening Date only in dematerialised form. Further, if no
Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before
Issue Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the
Issue Closing Date. No Rights Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be
credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were purchased from market and purchaser will lose
the premium paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons who are credited the Rights
Entitlements are required to make an Application to apply for Rights Equity Shares offered
under the Issue for subscribing to the Rights Equity Shares offered under the Issue.

If Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have
not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are
required to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar no later than
two clear Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of the Rights
Entitlements by way of transfer from the Demat Suspense Account to their respective demat
accounts, at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders
holding shares in physical form can update the details of their respective demat accounts on the
website of the Registrar (ie
https://web.in.mpms.mufg.com/RIssue/RIssue_Register.aspx?ReqType=dpid). Such Eligible
Equity Shareholders can make an Application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to
their respective demat accounts.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI ICDR
Master Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall

be made in dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall
credit the Rights Entitlements to the (i) demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders
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holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account
(namely, “MITPL PRAXIS HOME RETAIL RIGHTS ESCROW DEMAT ACCOUNT”)
opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Sharecholders which would comprise Rights
Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in the account of the IEPF authority; or (b) the
demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or the Equity Shares which
are lying in the unclaimed suspense account (including those pursuant to Regulation 39 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations) or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the
Registrar on the Record Date; or (c) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders
holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date where details of demat accounts
are not provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (d) credit
of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (e¢) the ownership of the Equity Shares
currently under dispute, including any court proceedings or where legal notices have been
issued, if any; or (f) non- institutional equity shareholders in the United States.

With respect to the Rights Entitlements credited to the demat suspense account, Eligible Equity
Shareholders are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self-attested PAN and
client master sheet of demat account etc., details/ records confirming the legal and beneficial
ownership of their respective Equity Shares) to our Company or the Registrar not later than
two clear Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., by Monday, August 18, 2025, to
enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow
account to their demat account at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, to enable such
Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in the Issue, and this communication shall
serve as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholders in this regard. Such Eligible Equity
Shareholders are also requested to ensure that their demat account, details of which have been
provided to our Company or the Registrar account is active to facilitate the aforementioned
transfer. In the event that the Eligible Equity Shareholders are not able to provide relevant
details to our Company or the Registrar by the end of two clear Working Days prior to the
Issue Closing Date, Rights Entitlements credited to the demat suspense account shall
lapse and extinguish in due course and such Eligible Equity Shareholder shall not have any
claim against our Company and our Company shall not be liable to any such Eligible Equity
Shareholder in any form or manner.

Iv. RENUNCIATION AND TRADING OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT

° Renouncees

All rights and obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications and
refunds pertaining to this Issue shall apply to the Renouncee(s) as well.

. Renunciation of Rights Entitlements

This Issue includes a right exercisable by Eligible Equity Shareholders to renounce the Rights
Entitlements credited to their respective demat account either in full or in part.

The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and
vice versa shall be subject to provisions of FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or
guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance from time to time. However, the facility
of renunciation shall not be available to or operate in favour of an Eligible Equity Shareholders
being an erstwhile OCB unless the same is in compliance with the FEMA Rules and other
circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance from time to time.

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements credited in your demat account can be made either by
sale of such Rights Entitlements, using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges
or through an off-market transfer.

. Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their
respective demat accounts, either in full or in part (a) by using the secondary market platform
of the Stock Exchanges (the “On Market Renunciation”); or (b) through an off-market
transfer (the “Off Market Renunciation”), during the Renunciation Period. The Investors
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should have the demat Rights Entitlements credited / lying in his/her own demat account prior
to the renunciation. The trades through On Market Renunciation and Off Market Renunciation
will be settled by transferring the Rights Entitlements through the depository mechanism.

Investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result
of trading in the Rights Entitlements. Investors who intend to trade in the Rights Entitlements
should consult their tax advisor or stock-broker regarding any cost, applicable taxes, charges
and expenses (including brokerage) that may be levied for trading in Rights Entitlements.

Please note that the Rights Entitlements which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the
Investors on or before the Issue Closing Date shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue
Closing Date.

Payment Schedule of Rights Equity Shares

T 10/- per Rights Equity Share (including premium of X 5/- per Rights Equity Share) shall be payable
at the time of application.

The Lead Manager and our Company accept no responsibility to bear or pay any cost, applicable
taxes, charges and expenses (including brokerage), and such costs will be incurred solely by the
Investors.

(@

(b)

On Market Renunciation

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their
respective demat accounts by trading/selling them on the secondary market platform of the
Stock Exchanges through a registered stock-broker in the same manner as the existing Equity
Shares of our Company.

In this regard, in terms of provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI ICDR Master
Circular, the Rights Entitlements credited to the respective demat accounts of the Eligible
Equity Shareholders shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges under ISIN:
INE546Y20030 subject to requisite approvals. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company
will obtain the approval from the Stock Exchanges for trading of Rights Entitlements. No
assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained On Market Renunciation or the price
at which the Rights Entitlements will trade. The details for trading in Rights Entitlements will
be as specified by the Stock Exchanges from time to time.

The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading
of Rights Entitlements is 1 (one) Rights Entitlements.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place only during the Renunciation Period for On
Market Renunciation, i.e., from Thursday, August 7, 2025 to Tuesday, August 12, 2025 (both
days inclusive).

The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to sell their Rights Entitlements will
have to do so through their registered stock-brokers by quoting the ISIN: INE546Y20030 and
indicating the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to trade. The Investors can place
order for sale of Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their
demat account.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place electronically on secondary market platform of
BSE and NSE under automatic order matching mechanism and on ‘T+1 rolling settlement
basis’, where ‘T’ refers to the date of trading. The transactions will be settled on trade-for-
trade basis. Upon execution of the order, the stock-broker will issue a contract note in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges and the SEBI.

Off Market Renunciation

The Eligible Equity Sharcholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their
respective demat accounts by way of an off-market transfer through a depository participant.
The Rights Entitlements can be transferred in dematerialised form only.
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Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market
transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat
account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable Renouncees to
subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares in the Issue.

The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to transfer their Rights Entitlements
will have to do so through their depository participant by issuing a delivery instruction
slip quoting the ISIN: INE546Y20030, the details of the buyer and the details of the Rights
Entitlements they intend to transfer. The buyer of the Rights Entitlements (unless already
having given a standing receipt instruction) has to issue a receipt instruction slip to their
depository participant. The Investors can transfer Rights Entitlements only to the extent of
Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.

The instructions for transfer of Rights Entitlements can be issued during the working hours of
the depository participants.

The detailed rules for transfer of Rights Entitlements through off-market transfer shall be as
specified by the NSDL and CDSL from time to time.

MODE OF PAYMENT

All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. The Registrar
will not accept any payments against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through
ASBA facility.

Under the ASBA facility, the Investor agrees to block the entire amount payable on Application with
the submission of the Application Form, by authorizing the SCSB to block an amount, equivalent to the
amount payable on Application, in the Investor’s ASBA Account. The SCSB may reject the application
at the time of acceptance of Application Form ifthe ASBA Account, details of which have been provided
by the Investor in the Application Form does not have sufficient funds equivalent to the amount payable
on Application mentioned in the Application Form. Subsequent to the acceptance of the Application by
the SCSB, our Company would have a right to reject the Application on technical grounds as set forth
in this Letter of Offer.

After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account details of which are provided in
the Application Form, the SCSB shall block an amount equivalent to the Application Money mentioned
in the Application Form until the Transfer Date. On the Transfer Date, upon receipt of intimation from
the Registrar, of the receipt of minimum subscription and pursuant to the finalization of the Basis of
Allotment as approved by the Designated Stock Exchange, the SCSBs shall transfer such amount as per
the Registrar’s instruction from the ASBA Account into the Allotment Account which shall be a
separate bank account maintained by our Company, other than the bank account referred to in sub-
section (3) of Section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013. The balance amount remaining after the
finalisation of the Basis of Allotment on the Transfer Date shall be unblocked by the SCSBs on the
basis of the instructions issued in this regard by the Registrar to the respective SCSB.

In terms of RBI Circular DBOD No. FSC BC 42/24.47.00/2003- 04 dated November 5, 2003, the stock
invest scheme has been withdrawn. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this
Issue.

Mode of payment for Resident Investors

All payments on the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. Applicants are
requested to strictly adhere to these instructions.

Mode of payment for Non-Resident Investors

As regards the Application by non-resident Investors, payment must be made only through ASBA
facility and using permissible accounts in accordance with FEMA, FEMA Rules and requirements
prescribed by RBI and subject to the following:

1. In case where repatriation benefit is available, interest, dividend, sales proceeds derived from
the investment in Rights Equity Shares can be remitted outside India, subject to tax, as
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applicable according to the Income- Tax Act. However, please note that conditions applicable
at the time of original investment in our Company by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including
repatriation shall not change and remain the same for subscription in the Issue or subscription
pursuant to renunciation in the Issue.

Subject to the above, in case Rights Equity Shares are Allotted on a non-repatriation basis, the
dividend and sale proceeds of the Rights Equity Shares cannot be remitted outside India.

In case of an Application Form received from non-residents, Allotment, refunds and other
distribution, if any, will be made in accordance with the guidelines and rules prescribed by RBI
as applicable at the time of making such Allotment, remittance and subject to necessary
approvals.

Application Forms received from non-residents/ NRIs, or persons of Indian origin residing
abroad for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall, amongst other things, be subject to
conditions, as may be imposed from time to time by RBI under FEMA, in respect of matters
including Refund of Application Money and Allotment.

In the case of NRIs who remit their Application Money from funds held in FCNR/NRE
Accounts, refunds and other disbursements, if any shall be credited to such account.

Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders must submit regulatory
approval for applying for Additional Rights Equity Shares.

VL BASIS FOR THIS ISSUE AND TERMS OF THIS ISSUE

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered for subscription to the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose
names appear as beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in respect of our
Equity Shares held in dematerialised form and on the register of members of our Company in respect
of our Equity Shares held in physical form at the close of business hours on the Record Date.

For principal terms of Issue such as face value, Issue Price, Rights Entitlement, see “The Issue” beginning
on page 36.

Fractional Entitlements

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to existing Eligible Equity
Shareholders in the ratio of 11 Rights Equity Shares for every 30 fully paid-up Equity Shares
held as on the Record Date. As per ASBA Circular, the fractional entitlements are to be
ignored. Accordingly, if the shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less
than 30 Equity Shares or is not in the multiple of 30 Equity Shares, the fractional entitlements
of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored by rounding down of their Rights
Entitlements. However, the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are
being ignored, will be given preferential consideration for the Allotment of one additional
Rights Equity Share if they apply for additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their
Rights Entitlements, if any, subject to availability of Rights Equity Shares in this Issue post
allocation towards Rights Entitlements applied for.

For example, if an Eligible Equity Shareholder holds 40 Equity Shares, such Equity
Shareholder will be entitled to 14 Rights Equity Shares and will also be given a preferential
consideration for the Allotment of one additional Rights Equity Share if such Eligible Equity
Shareholder has applied for additional Rights Equity Shares, over and above his/her Rights
Entitlements, subject to availability of Rights Equity Shares in this Issue post allocation
towards Rights Entitlements applied for.

Further, the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding less than 3 (three) Equity Shares of face
value of %5 each as on Record Date shall have ‘zero’ entitlement in the Issue. Such Eligible
Equity Shareholders are entitled to apply for additional Equity Shares and will be given
preference in the allotment of one additional Equity Share if, such Eligible Equity Shareholders
apply for the additional Equity Shares. However, they cannot renounce the same in favour of
third parties and the application forms shall be non-negotiable.
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Ranking

The Rights Equity Shares to be issued and Allotted pursuant to this Issue shall be subject to the
provisions of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter,
the Application Form, and the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association,
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, FEMA, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI
Listing Regulations, and the guidelines, notifications and regulations issued by SEBI, the
Government of India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time to time, the terms
of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the Stock Exchanges and the
terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment advice. The Rights Equity Shares to be issued
and Allotted under this Issue, shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares, in all
respects including dividends.

Listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue

Subject to receipt of the listing and trading approvals, the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be
issued on a rights basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges. Unless
otherwise permitted by the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Rights Equity Shares Allotted
pursuant to this Issue will be listed as soon as practicable and all steps for completion of
necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading in the Rights Equity Shares will
be taken within such period prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our Company has
received in-principle approval from the BSE through letter bearing reference number
LOD/RIGHT/HC/FIP/1889/2024-25 dated March 04, 2025 and from the NSE through letter
bearing reference number NSE/LIST/46058 dated March 07, 2025. Our Company will apply to
the Stock Exchanges for final approvals for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares
subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained
trading in the Rights Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity Shares offered under
this Issue will trade after the listing thereof.

For an applicable period, from the Call Record Date, the trading of the Rights Equity Shares
would be suspended under the applicable law. The process of corporate action for crediting the
fully paid-up Rights Equity Shares to the Investors’ demat accounts may take such time as is
customary or as prescribed under applicable law from the last date of payment of the amount
under the Call notice for the final Call.

The existing Equity Shares are listed and traded on BSE (Scrip Code:540901) and NSE
(Symbol: PRAXIS) under the ISIN: INE546Y01022. The Rights Equity Shares shall be
credited to a temporary ISIN which will be frozen until the receipt of the final listing/ trading
approvals from the Stock Exchanges. Upon receipt of such listing and trading approvals, the
Rights Equity Shares shall be debited from such temporary ISIN and credited to the new ISIN
for the Rights Equity Shares and thereafter be available for trading and the temporary ISIN shall
be permanently deactivated in the depository system of CDSL and NSDL.

The listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall be based
on the current regulatory framework then applicable. Accordingly, any change in the
regulatory regime would affect the listing and trading schedule.

In case our Company fails to obtain listing or trading permission from the Stock Exchanges,
our Company shall refund through verifiable means/unblock the respective ASBA Accounts,
the entire monies received/blocked within four days of receipt of intimation from the Stock
Exchanges, rejecting the application for listing of the Rights Equity Shares, and if any such
money is not refunded/ unblocked within fifteen days after our Company becomes liable to
repay it, our Company and every director of our Company who is an officer-in-default shall,
on and from the expiry of the fourth day, be jointly and severally liable to repay that money
with interest at rates prescribed under applicable law.

Subscription to this Issue by our Promoter and members of our Promoter Group

For details of the intent and extent of subscription by our Promoter and members of our
Promoter Group, see “Capital Structure ” on page 71.
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. Rights of Holders of Equity Shares of our Company

Subject to applicable laws, Equity Shareholders who have been Allotted Rights Equity Shares
pursuant to the Issue shall have the following rights:

(a) The right to receive dividend, if declared,
(b) The right to receive surplus on liquidation;
(c) The right to receive offers for rights shares and be allotted bonus shares, if announced,

(d) The right to free transferability of Rights Equity Shares;

(e) The right to attend general meetings of our Company and exercise voting powers in
accordance with law, unless prohibited / restricted by law and as disclosed in this
Letter of Offer; and

6] Such other rights as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company
under the Companies Act, 2013, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles
of Association.

VII. GENERAL TERMS OF THE ISSUE
. Market Lot

The Equity Shares of our Company shall be tradable only in dematerialized form. The market
lot for Equity Shares in dematerialised mode is one Equity Share.

. Joint Holders

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be
deemed to hold the same as the joint holders with the benefit of survivorship subject to the
provisions contained in our Articles of Association. In case of Equity Shares held by joint
holders, the Application submitted in physical mode to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs
would be required to be signed by all the joint holders (in the same order as appearing in the
records of the Depository) to be considered as valid for allotment of Equity Shares offered in
this Issue.

. Nomination

Nomination facility is available in respect of the Equity Shares in accordance with the
provisions of the Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

Since the Allotment is in dematerialised form, there is no need to make a separate nomination
for the Equity Shares to be Allotted in this Issue. Nominations registered with the respective
DPs of the Investors would prevail. Any Investor holding Equity Shares in dematerialised
form and desirous of changing the existing nomination is requested to inform its Depository
Participant.

o Arrangements for Disposal of Odd Lots

The Equity Shares shall be traded in dematerialised form only and, therefore, the marketable
lot shall be one Equity Share and hence, no arrangements for disposal of odd lots are required.

. Restrictions on transfer and transmission of shares and on their consolidation/splitting

There are no restrictions on transfer and transmission and on their consolidation/splitting of
shares issued pursuant this Issue. However, the Investors should note that pursuant to the
provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of
transmission or transposition of securities, the request for transfer of securities shall not be
affected unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository.
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Notices

Our Company will send through email and speed post, this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of
Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material only to the
Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In case such Eligible Equity
Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of
Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent
only to their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not
provided their e-mail address, then this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be physically
dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Further, this Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who
have provided their Indian address and who have made a request in this regard.

All notices to the Eligible Equity Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be
published in one English language national daily newspaper with wide circulation, one Hindi
language national daily newspaper with wide circulation and one Marathi language daily
newspaper with wide circulation (Marathi being the regional language of Mumbai where our
Registered Office is situated).

This Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form shall also be
submitted with the Stock Exchanges for making the same available on their websites.

Offer to Non-Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders/Investors

As per Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules, RBI has given general permission to Indian companies to
issue rights equity shares to non-resident equity shareholders including additional rights equity
shares. Further, as per the Master Direction on Foreign Investment in India dated January 4,
2018 issued by RBI, non-residents may, amongst other things, (i) subscribe for additional shares
over and above their rights entitlements; (ii) renounce the shares offered to them either in full
or part thereof in favour of a person named by them; or (iii) apply for the shares renounced in
their favour. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of Rights Equity
Shares shall be, amongst other things, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by
RBI under FEMA in the matter of Application, refund of Application Money, Allotment of
Rights Equity Shares and issue of Rights Entitlement Letters/ letters of Allotment/Allotment
advice. If a non-resident or NRI Investor has specific approval from RBI or any other
governmental authority, in connection with his shareholding in our Company, such person
should enclose a copy of such approval with the Application details and send it to the Registrar
at C-101, 1% Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400 083,
Maharashtra, India. It will be the sole responsibility of the Investors to ensure that the
necessary approval from the RBI or the governmental authority is valid in order to make any
investment in the Issue and the Lead Manager and our Company will not be responsible for
any such allotments made by relying on such approvals.

This Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and Application
Form shall be sent only to the Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible Equity
Shareholders on a reasonable efforts basis, who have provided an Indian address to our
Company and located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares may
be permitted under laws of such jurisdictions. Eligible Equity Shareholders can access this
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the
Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under
applicable securities laws) from the websites of the Registrar, our Company, the Lead Manager
and the Stock Exchanges. Further, Application Forms will be made available at Registered and
Corporate Office of our Company for the non-resident Indian Applicants. Our Board may
at its absolute discretion, agree to such terms and conditions as may be stipulated by RBI
while approving the Allotment. The Rights Equity Shares purchased by non-residents shall be
subject to the same conditions including restrictions in regard to the repatriation as are
applicable to the original Equity Shares against which Rights Equity Shares are issued on rights
basis.
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In case of change of status of holders, i.e., from resident to non-resident, a new demat account
must be opened. Any Application from a demat account which does not reflect the accurate
status of the Applicant is liable to be rejected at the sole discretion of our Company and the
Lead Manager.

The non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders can update their Indian address in the records
maintained by the Registrar to the Issue and our Company by submitting their respective copies
of self-attested proof of address, passport, etc. at investorrelations@praxisretail.in /
praxis.rights2025@in.mpms.mufg.com.

ALLOTMENT OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR IN THIS ISSUE CAN
BE ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY
ACCOUNT IN WHICH OUR EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE
RECORD DATE. FOR DETAILS, SEE “ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR REFUND/ UNBLOCKING
OF ASBA ACCOUNTS” ON PAGE 193.

VIII. ISSUE SCHEDULE

LAST DATE FOR CREDIT OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS Tuesday, August 5, 2025
ISSUE OPENING DATE Thursday, August 7, 2025
LAST DATE FOR MARKET RENUNCIATION OF RIGHTS Tuesday, August 12, 2025
ENTITLEMENTS *

ISSUE CLOSING DATE* Monday, August 18, 2025
FINALISATION OF BASIS OF ALLOTMENT (ON OR ABOUT) Friday, 22 August, 2025
DATE OF ALLOTMENT (ON OR ABOUT) Tuesday, 26 August, 2025
DATE OF CREDIT (ON OR ABOUT) Monday, 1 September, 2025
DATE OF LISTING (ON OR ABOUT) Friday, 5 September, 2025

# Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees
on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

* Qur Board or the Rights Issue Committee will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from
time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).
Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record
Date, have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are
required to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar no later than two clear
Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e. Monday, August 18, 2025, to enable the credit of the
Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective
demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, i.e., Monday, August 18, 2025. If demat
account details are not provided by the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical
form to the Registrar or our Company by the date mentioned above, such Shareholders will not be allotted
any Rights Equity Shares, nor such Rights Equity Shares be kept in suspense account on behalf of such
shareholder in this regard. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are also requested to ensure that their demat
account, details of which have been provided to our Company or the Registrar, is active to facilitate the
aforementioned transfer. Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form can
update the details of their demat accounts on the website of the Registrar (i.e.,
www.in.mpms.mufg.com). Such Eligible Equity Shareholders can make an Application only after the
Rights Entitlements is credited to their respective demat accounts. Eligible Equity Shareholders can
obtain the details of their Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar (i.e.,
www.in.mpms.mufg.com) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of Eligible
Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form) and PAN. The link for the same shall also
be available on the website of our Company.

IX. BASIS OF ALLOTMENT

Subject to the provisions contained in this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, the Articles of Association and the approval of the Designated
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Stock Exchange, our Board will proceed to Allot the Rights Equity Shares in the following order of

priority:

(a) Full Allotment to those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for their Rights
Entitlements of Rights Equity Shares either in full or in part and also to the Renouncee(s) who
has or have applied for Rights Equity Shares renounced in their favour, in full or in part.

(b) Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored and Eligible
Equity Shareholders with zero entitlement, would be given preference in allotment of one
Additional Rights Equity Share each if they apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares.
Allotment under this head shall be considered if there are any unsubscribed Rights Equity
Shares after allotment under (a) above. If number of Rights Equity Shares required for
Allotment under this head are more than the number of Rights Equity Shares available after
Allotment under (a) above, the Allotment would be made on a fair and equitable basis in
consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange and will not be a preferential allotment.

(c) Allotment to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who having applied for all the Rights Equity
Shares offered to them as part of this Issue, have also applied for Additional Rights Equity
Shares. The Allotment of such Additional Rights Equity Shares will be made as far as possible
on an equitable basis having due regard to the number of Equity Shares held by them on the
Record Date, provided there are any unsubscribed Rights Equity Shares after making full
Allotment in (a) and (b) above. The Allotment of such Rights Equity Shares will be at the sole
discretion of our Board in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this
Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

(d) Allotment to Renouncees who having applied for all the Rights Equity Shares renounced in their
favour, have applied for Additional Rights Equity Shares provided there is surplus available
after making full Allotment under (a), (b) and (c) above. The Allotment of such Rights Equity
Shares will be made on a proportionate basis having due regard to the number of Rights
Entitlement held by them as on Issue Closing Date and in consultation with the Designated
Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

(e) Allotment to any other person, subject to applicable laws, that our Board may deem fit,
provided there is surplus available after making Allotment under (a), (b), (c) and (d) above,
and the decision of our Board in this regard shall be final and binding.

After taking into account Allotment to be made under (a) to (d) above, if there is any unsubscribed
portion, the same shall be deemed to be ‘unsubscribed’.

Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar shall send to
the Controlling Branches, a list of the Investors who have been allocated Rights Equity Shares in this
Issue, along with:

L. The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by
our Company for this Issue, for each successful Application;

2. The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank
account; and

3. The details of rejected ASBA applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the
respective ASBA Accounts.

4. Further, the list of Applicants eligible for refund with corresponding amount will also be shared
with Banker to the Issue to refund such Applicants.

ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR REFUND/ UNBLOCKING OF ASBA ACCOUNTS

Our Company will send/ dispatch Allotment advice, refund intimations, if applicable, or demat credit
of securities and/or letters of regret, only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian
address; along with crediting the Allotted Rights Equity Shares to the respective beneficiary accounts
(only in dematerialised mode) or in Demat Suspense Account (in respect of Eligible Equity Shareholders
holding Equity Shares in physical form on the Allotment Date) or issue instructions for unblocking the
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funds in the respective ASBA Accounts, if any, within a period of 15 days from the Issue Closing Date.
In case of failure to do so, our Company and our Directors who are “officers in default” shall pay interest
at such other rate as specified under applicable law from the expiry of such 15 days’ period.

The Rights Entitlements will be credited in the dematerialized form using electronic credit under the
depository system and the Allotment advice shall be sent, through a mail, to the Indian mail address
provided to our Company or at the address recorded with the Depository.

In the case of non-resident Investors who remit their Application Money from funds held in the NRE
or the FCNR Accounts, unblocking refunds and/or payment of interest or dividend and other
disbursements, if any, shall be credited to such accounts.

Where an Applicant has applied for Additional Rights Equity Shares in the Issue and is Allotted a lesser
number of Rights Equity Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid/blocked shall be
refunded/unblocked. The unblocking of ASBA funds / refund of monies shall be completed be within
such period as prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In the event that there is a delay in making
refunds beyond such period as prescribed under applicable law, our Company shall pay the requisite
interest at such rate as prescribed under applicable law.

Payment Terms

% 10/- per Rights Equity Share (including premium of X 5/- per Rights Equity Share) shall be payable as
follows:

Due Date Face Value %) Premium () Total )

On Application 5/- 5/- 10/-

Separate ISIN for Rights Equity Shares

In addition to the present ISIN for the existing Equity Shares, our Company would obtain a separate
ISIN for the Rights Equity Shares for each Call, until fully paid-up. The Rights Equity Shares offered
under this Issue will be traded under a separate ISIN after each Call for the period as may be applicable
under the rules and regulations prior to the record date for the final Call Notice. The ISIN representing
the Rights Equity Shares will be terminated after the Call Record Date for the final Call. On payment of
the final Call Money in respect of the Rights Equity Shares, such Rights Equity Shares would be fully
paid-up and merged with the existing ISIN of our Equity Shares.

XL PAYMENT OF REFUND
. Mode of making refunds

The payment of refund, if any, including in the event of oversubscription or failure to list or
otherwise would be done through any of the following modes.

(a) Unblocking amounts blocked using ASBA facility.

(b) NACH - National Automated Clearing House is a consolidated system of electronic
clearing service. Payment of refund would be done through NACH for Applicants
having an account at one of the centres specified by RBI, where such facility has been
made available. This would be subject to availability of complete bank account details
including a Magnetic Ink Character Recognition (“MICR”) code wherever applicable
from the depository. The payment of refund through NACH is mandatory for
Applicants having a bank account at any of the centres where NACH facility has been
made available by RBI (subject to availability of all information for crediting the
refund through NACH including the MICR code as appearing on a cheque leaf, from
the depositories), except where Applicant is otherwise disclosed as eligible to get
refunds through NEFT or Direct Credit or RTGS.

(©) National Electronic Fund Transfer (“NEFT”) — Payment of refund shall be
undertaken through NEFT wherever the Investors’ bank has been assigned the Indian
Financial System Code (“IFSC Code”), which can be linked to a MICR, allotted to
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that particular bank branch. IFSC Code will be obtained from the website of RBI as
on a date immediately prior to the date of payment of refund, duly mapped with MICR
numbers. Wherever the Investors have registered their nine digit MICR number and
their bank account number with the Registrar to our Company or with the Depository
Participant while opening and operating the demat account, the same will be duly
mapped with the IFSC Code of that particular bank branch and the payment of refund
will be made to the Investors through this method.

(d) Direct Credit — Investors having bank accounts with the Bankers to the Issue shall
be eligible to receive refunds through direct credit. Charges, if any, levied by the
relevant bank(s) for the same would be borne by our Company.

(e) RTGS - If the refund amount exceeds %2,00,000, the Investors have the option to
receive refund through RTGS. Such eligible Investors who indicate their preference
to receive refund through RTGS are required to provide the IFSC Code in the
Application Form. In the event the same is not provided, refund shall be made through
NACH or any other eligible mode. Charges, if any, levied by the Investor’s bank
receiving the credit would be borne by the Investor.

® For all other Investors, the refund orders will be dispatched through speed post or
registered post subject to applicable laws. Such refunds will be made by cheques, pay
orders or demand drafts drawn in favour of the sole/first Investor and payable at par.

(2) Credit of refunds to Investors in any other electronic manner, permissible by SEBI
from time to time.

Refund payment to non-residents

The Application Money will be unblocked in the ASBA Account of the non-resident
Applicants, details of which were provided in the Application Form.

XII. ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR DEMAT CREDIT OF SECURITIES

The demat credit of securities to the respective beneficiary accounts will be credited within 15 days
from the Issue Closing Date or such other timeline in accordance with applicable laws.

Receipt of the Rights Equity Shares in Dematerialized Form

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR UNDER THIS
ISSUE CAN BE ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO (A)
THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE
EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE RECORD DATE, OR
(B) THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT, DETAILS OF WHICH HAVE BEEN
PROVIDED TO OUR COMPANY OR THE REGISTRAR AT LEAST TWO CLEAR
WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE BY THE ELIGIBLE
EQUITY SHAREHOLDER HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM AS
ON THE RECORD DATE.

Investors shall be Allotted the Rights Equity Shares in dematerialized (electronic) form. Our
Company has signed two agreements with the respective Depositories and the Registrar to the
Issue, which enables the Investors to hold and trade in the securities issued by our Company
in a dematerialized form, instead of holding the Equity Shares in the form of physical
certificates:

a) Tripartite agreement dated October 12, 2017, amongst our Company, NSDL and the
Registrar to the Issue; and

b) Tripartite agreement dated October 11, 2017, amongst our Company, CDSL and the
Registrar to the Issue.

INVESTORS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES CAN BE
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TRADED ON THE STOCK EXCHANGES ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM.

The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares in this Issue in the
dematerialised form is as under:

1. Open a beneficiary account with any depository participant (care should be taken that
the beneficiary account should carry the name of the holder in the same manner as is
registered in the records of our Company. In the case of joint holding, the beneficiary
account should be opened carrying the names of the holders in the same order as
registered in the records of our Company). In case of Investors having various folios
in our Company with different joint holders, the Investors will have to open separate
accounts for such holdings. Those Investors who have already opened such
beneficiary account(s) need not adhere to this step.

2. It should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of the Investors and
the names are in the same order as in the records of our Company or the Depositories.

3. The responsibility for correctness of information filled in the Application Form vis-
a-vis such information with the Investor’s depository participant, would rest with the
Investor. Investors should ensure that the names of the Investors and the order in which
they appear in Application Form should be the same as registered with the Investor’s
depository participant.

4. If incomplete or incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the Application
Form, the Investor will not get any Rights Equity Shares and the Application Form
will be rejected.

5. The Rights Equity Shares will be allotted to Applicants only in dematerialized form
and would be directly credited to the beneficiary account as given in the Application
Form after verification. Allotment advice, refund order (if any) would be sent through
physical dispatch, by the Registrar but the Applicant’s depository participant will
provide to him the confirmation of the credit of such Rights Equity Shares to the
Applicant’s depository account.

6. Non-transferable Allotment advice/ refund intimation will be directly sent to the
Investors by the Registrar, on their registered email address or through physical
dispatch.

7. Renouncees will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary

account for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares in this Issue. In case these details are
incomplete or incorrect, the Application is liable to be rejected.

8. Dividend or other benefits with respect to the Equity Shares held in dematerialized
form would be paid to those Equity Shareholders whose names appear in the list of
beneficial owners given by the Depository Participant to our Company as on the date
of the book closure.

9. Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record
Date, and who have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company
or to the Registrar at least two clear Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date,
shall not be able to apply in this Issue.

XIII. IMPERSONATION

Attention of the Investors is specifically drawn to the provisions of sub-section (1) of Section 38 of the
Companies Act, 2013 which is reproduced below:

“Any person who —

a) makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or
subscribing for, its securities; or

b) makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different names or in different
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©)

combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or

otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of,
securities to him, or to any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under
Section 447.”

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 for fraud involving an amount of
at least 20.10 crore or 1% of the turnover of the company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment for
a term which shall not be less than six months extending up to 10 years and fine of an amount not less
than the amount involved in the fraud, extending up to three times such amount (provided that where the
fraud involves public interest, such term shall not be less than three years.) Further, where the fraud
involves an amount less than 20.10 crore or one per cent of the turnover of the company, whichever is
lower, and does not involve public interest, any person guilty of such fraud shall be punishable with
imprisonment for a term which may extend to five years or with fine which may extend to 20.50 crore or

with both.

XIV. UTILISATION OF ISSUE PROCEEDS

Our Board declares that:

A. All monies received out of this Issue shall be transferred to a separate bank account;

B. Details of all monies utilized out of this Issue referred to under (A) above shall be disclosed,
and continue to be disclosed till the time any part of the Issue Proceeds remains unutilised, under
an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the purpose for
which such monies have been utilised; and

C. Details of all unutilized monies out of this Issue referred to under (A) above, if any, shall be

disclosed under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the
form in which such unutilized monies have been invested.

XV. UNDERTAKINGS BY OUR COMPANY

Our Company undertakes the following:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

The complaints received in respect of this Issue shall be attended to by our Company
expeditiously and satisfactorily.

All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading
at all Stock Exchanges where the Equity Shares are to be listed will be taken by our Board
within the time limit specified by SEBI.

The funds required for making refunds / unblocking to unsuccessful Applicants as per the
mode(s) disclosed shall be made available to the Registrar by our Company.

Where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall
be sent to the Investor within 15 days of the Issue Closing Date, giving details of the banks
where refunds shall be credited along with amount and expected date of electronic credit of
refund.

In case of refund / unblocking of the Application Money for unsuccessful Applicants or part of
the Application Money in case of proportionate Allotment, a suitable communication shall be
sent to the Applicants.

No further issue of securities shall be made till the securities offered through this Letter of Offer
are listed or till the application monies are refunded on account of non-listing, under
subscription, etc., other than as disclosed in accordance with Regulation 97 of SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

Adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all ASBA Applications.

As on date, our Company does not have any convertible debt instruments.
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9) Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms specified by SEBI from
time to time.

XVI. INVESTOR GRIEVANCES, COMMUNICATION AND IMPORTANT LINKS

L. Please read this Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained
in the Application Form, Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter are an
integral part of the conditions of this Letter of Offer and must be carefully followed; otherwise
the Application is liable to be rejected.

2. All enquiries in connection with this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Application
Form or Rights Entitlement Letter must be addressed (quoting the registered folio number in
case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record
Date or the DP ID and Client ID number, the Application Form number and the name of the
first Eligible Equity Shareholder as mentioned on the Application Form and superscribed
“Praxis Home Retail Limited— Rights Issue” on the envelope and postmarked in India) to the
Registrar at the following address:

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, 1% Floor, 247 Park LBS Marg,

Vikhroli (West) Mumbai 400 083

Mabharashtra, India

Tel: +91 81081 14949

E-mail: praxis.rights2025@in.mpms.mufg.com

Investor grievance ID: praxis.rights2025@in.mpms.mufg.com

Contact person: Shanti Gopalkrishnan

Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com

SEBI Registration No.: INR000004058

3. In accordance with SEBI ICDR Master Circular, frequently asked questions and online/
electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution
of difficulties faced by the Investors will be available on the website of the Registrar
(www.in.mpms.mufg.com). Further, helpline number provided by the Registrar for guidance
on the Application process and resolution of difficulties is +91 81081 14949.

4. The Investors can visit following links for the below-mentioned purposes:

a) Frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for
guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the
Investors: https://web.in.mpms.mufg.com/;

b) Updation of Indian address/ e-mail address/ phone or mobile number in the records
maintained by the Registrar or our Company: www.in.mpms.mufg.com;

c) Updation of demat account details by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in
physical form:
https://web.in.mpms.mufg.com/RIssue/RIssue_Register.aspx?ReqType=dpid;

d) Submission of self-attested PAN, client master sheet and demat account details by
non- resident Eligible Equity Shareholders: praxis.rights2025@ in.mpms.mufg.com.

This Issue will remain open for a minimum seven days. However, our Board or the Rights
Issue Committee will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to
time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Closing
Date).
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SECTION VIII - OTHER INFORMATION

MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

The following material documents and contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of
business carried on by our Company or entered into more than two years prior to the date of this Letter of Offer)
which are or may be deemed material have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company. Copies of
these contracts and also the documents for inspection would be available at the registered office of the Company
between 10 a.m. and 5 p.m. on all working days and will also be available on the website of our Company from
the date of this Letter of Offer until the Issue Closing Date.

A.

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Material Contracts for the Issue
Issue Agreement dated December 13, 2024, between our Company and the Lead Managers.
Registrar Agreement dated December 5, 2024, between our Company and the Registrar to the Issue.

Banker to the Issue Agreement dated March 13, 2025, amongst our Company, the Lead Managers, the
Registrar to the Issue and the Banker to the Issue.

Material Documents in Relation to the Issue
Certified copies of the updated Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of our Company.

Certificate of incorporation dated January 31, 2011, and fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon
last change of name dated June 21, 2017.

Scheme of Arrangement between Future Retail Limited or Bluerock eServices Private Limited and Praxis
Home Retail Limited and their respective Shareholders and creditors - under Sections 230 to 232 read with
Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended and duly sanctioned by Mumbai bench of National
Company Law Tribunal on November 10, 2017.

Order dated November 10, 2017, of the National Company Law Tribunal approving the Scheme, effective
from November 20, 2017.

Information Memorandum dated January 29, 2018, for listing of 2,46,33,208 equity shares of X5 each of the
Company.

Industry report titled “India Home Furniture Market 2024-2029” report dated September 10, 2024, prepared
by Mordor Intelligence Private Limited.

Copy of Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal 2025.
Copies of annual report of our Company for Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022.
Resolution of our Board dated November 11, 2024, approving the Issue.

Appointment letter dated November 11, 2024, in respect of appointment of Ashish Bhutda as the CEO &
Whole-time Director.

Resolution of our Committee of Directors dated March 13, 2025, finalizing the terms of the Issue including
Issue Price, Record Date and the Rights Entitlement Ratio.

Order of the NCLT, Mumbai bench dated September 24, 2024, in CP(IB) No.1111/MB/2022 and CP(IB)
No.1113/MB/2024 admitting FCRPL into corporate insolvency resolution proceedings;

Consents of our Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Statutory
Auditor, Independent Auditors, Lead Managers, Banker to the Company, Banker to the Issue, Legal Advisor
to the Issue, Mordor Intelligence for Industry report and the Registrar to the Issue for inclusion of their names
in this Letter of Offer to act in their respective capacities.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

The audit report dated May 12, 2025, of the Statutory Auditors along with the Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025, included in this Letter of Offer.

Statement of Special Tax Benefits dated July 30, 2025, from the Independent Chartered Accountants M/s
DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants.

Tripartite Agreement dated October 12, 2017, between our Company, NSDL and the Registrar to the Issue.
Tripartite Agreement dated October 11, 2017, between our Company, CDSL and Registrar to the Issue.
In-principle approval issued by the BSE dated March 4, 2025, and the NSE dated March 7, 2025.

Due diligence certificate dated July 30, 2025, addressed to SEBI from the Lead Managers.

Letter dated June 09, 2024, from Mr. Kishore Biyani, expressing his intention to reclassify himself from the
“Promoter Group” category to the “Public” category, along with other persons and entities acting in concert

with him, subject to requisite compliances;

Confirmation letter dated July 11, 2025, from Future Corporate Resources Private Limited, issued by its
resolution professional, confirming the request made by Mr. Kishore Biyani for reclassification of his
shareholding from the “Promoter” category to the “Public” category, along with persons and entities acting
in concert with him, subject to requisite compliances.

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at any time if
so required in the interest of our Company or if required by the other parties, without notice to the Eligible Equity
Shareholders subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes.
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DECLARATION
I hereby declare that no statement made in this Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. I further certify that all the legal requirements connected with the Issue
as also the guidelines, instructions, etc., issued by SEBI, Government of India and any other competent authority
in this behalf, have been duly complied with.

I further certify that all disclosures made in this Letter of Offer are true and correct.

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY

Ashish Bhutda

CEO & Whole-time Director

Date: July 30, 2025

Place: Mumbai
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DECLARATION

I hereby declare that no statement made in this Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. I further certify that all the legal requirements connected with the Issue
as also the guidelines, instructions, etc., issued by SEBI, Government of India and any other competent authority
in this behalf, have been duly complied with.

I further certify that all disclosures made in this Letter of Offer are true and correct.

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY

Lynette Robert Monteiro

Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

Date: July 30, 2025

Place: Gurgaon
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DECLARATION

I hereby declare that no statement made in this Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. I further certify that all the legal requirements connected with the Issue
as also the guidelines, instructions, etc., issued by SEBI, Government of India and any other competent authority
in this behalf, have been duly complied with.

I further certify that all disclosures made in this Letter of Offer are true and correct.

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY

Jacob Mathew

Chairperson Independent Director

Date: July 30, 2025

Place: Bangalore
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DECLARATION
I hereby declare that no statement made in this Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. I further certify that all the legal requirements connected with the Issue
as also the guidelines, instructions, etc., issued by SEBI, Government of India and any other competent authority
in this behalf, have been duly complied with.

I further certify that all disclosures made in this Letter of Offer are true and correct.

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY

Anou Singhvi

Non-Executive Independent Director

Date: July 30, 2025

Place: Mumbai
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DECLARATION
I hereby declare that no statement made in this Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. I further certify that all the legal requirements connected with the Issue
as also the guidelines, instructions, etc., issued by SEBI, Government of India and any other competent authority
in this behalf, have been duly complied with.

I further certify that all disclosures made in this Letter of Offer are true and correct.

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY

Vijai Singh Dugar

Non-Executive Independent Director

Date: July 30, 2025

Place: Mumbai
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DECLARATION
I hereby declare that no statement made in this Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. I further certify that all the legal requirements connected with the Issue
as also the guidelines, instructions, etc., issued by SEBI, Government of India and any other competent authority
in this behalf, have been duly complied with.

I further certify that all disclosures made in this Letter of Offer are true and correct.

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY

Samson Samuel

Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

Date: July 30, 2025

Place: Thane
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DECLARATION

I hereby declare that no statement made in this Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. I further certify that all the legal requirements connected with the Issue
as also the guidelines, instructions, etc., issued by SEBI, Government of India and any other competent authority
in this behalf, have been duly complied with. I further certify that all disclosures made in this Letter of Offer are
true and correct

SIGNED BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF OUR COMPANY

Vikash Kabra

Chief Financial Officer

Date: July 30, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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